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CORPORATE STRUCTURE

China Insurance
(Holdings) Company,
Limited (The People’s

Republic of China)

Y 100%

China Insurance H.K.
(Holdings) Company

Limited
) The Public
N 54.38%
'45.62%
China Insurance
International Holdings

Company Limited

"~ 100% Y 100% Note (1) { ~50.05% Note (2)§ " 50.05% "100%
Cgina Inzuranoe China International Tai Ping Life The Tai Ping SINO-RE
Mrgﬁggersnseergts Reinsurance Insurance Insurance Reinsurance

Limited Company Limited Company, Limited Company, Limited Brokers Limited

Note (3)§ = 64.5% Note (4) 50.1%

Tai Ping Asset
Management
Company Limited

Tai Ping Pension
Company Limited

Note (1): CIHC and Fortis own the remaining 25.05% and 24.90% equity interests in TPL, respectively.
Note (2): CIHC and ICBC (Asia) own the remaining 42.02% and 7.93% equity interests in TPI, respectively.

Note (3): Together with the 14% and 7.5% equity interests held by CIGAML and TPI, respectively, the Group’s effective interest in TPP is 50.03%.
CIHC and Fortis own the remaining 4% and 10% equity interests in TPP, respectively.

Note (4): Together with the 12% and 9.9% equity interests held by CIGAML and TPI, respectively, the Group’s effective interest in TPAM is 42.03%.
CIHC and Fortis own the remaining 20% and 8% equity interests in TPAM, respectively.

(As at 31 December 2008)
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

Dear Shareholders,

It has always been a great honor for me to be a part of the directors and senior management of China Insurance
International Holdings Company Limited (“CIIH” or “the Company”). Now, it is an even greater honor for me to be
able to report to you, our shareholders and partners, for the first time as Chairman of our Company. Throughout
the years, we have always stated very clearly to you that our primary objective and goal is to create and produce
long-term shareholder value to all of our investors and partners. This principle, | guarantee you, will not change
now or in the future. Everything that we try to do and pursue, whether strategically for the long term or in managing
our various operations on a day-to-day basis, is done so with this basic tenet in mind. We believe that our efforts
have been successful in building up our operations to where they are today, and we fully intend to continue developing
our businesses along such lines now and into the future.

In 2006 and 2007, the insurance industry in China, along with financial institutions from around the world, benefited
from extraordinary investment gains, particularly in equity investments. In China, the A-share markets in Shanghai
and Shenzhen, as well as the equity indices in Hong Kong, recorded significant share price appreciation during this
time, and the financial results of ClIH and other insurance companies in China benefited substantially as a result.
CIIH was able to record consecutive record setting years in profitability in 2006 and 2007, primarily because of the
extraordinary investment gains from the equity markets.

In 2008, the financial conditions of global financial institutions and that of the global financial system itself witnessed
sharp reversals. After experiencing one of the strongest bull markets in history in 2006 and 2007, the world suddenly
found itself in 2008 in one of the most difficult and sharpest bear markets in history, financially and economically.
With major financial institutions disappearing overnight or requiring emergency government bailouts, the financial
turmoil and volatility of the markets reached unprecedented levels. In such a market environment, almost everyone
— entities, institutions, funds, individuals — with investments in the capital markets were negatively affected. In
such an extraordinarily adverse trading environment, ClIH was not immune, and was not able to avoid a significant
decline in investment income, primarily from its equity investments in shares traded in the A-share markets and in
Hong Kong. Simultaneously, our property and casualty insurance operations at TPI incurred significant operating
losses due to rapid business expansion and higher claims expenses from natural disasters, our pension operations
at TPP incurred more-than-expected operating losses due to its early stage of development, and we recognized
impairment on the remaining goodwill associated with the acquisition of CIGAML. This combination of factors
caused ClIH to record a consolidated loss of HK$299.72 million in 2008.

We are not pleased with this result. We feel that we could have, and should have, done better. Unfortunately, no
one could have predicted the grave negative impacts and implications the global financial crisis has had, nor its
depth and reach. As such, we are more determined than ever to produce strong results for our shareholders in the
future. Despite our consolidated financial loss, our fundamental businesses at our reinsurance and life insurance
operations remain strong and well-positioned, and continue to develop according to plan. CIRe and TPL are both
now laying the foundations for further growth, greater scale and sustainable profitability into the future. In 2008,
the economy and insurance industries of the PRC continued to expand at an attractive level, despite the global
economic and financial turmoil, and CIIH was able to produce solid growth at all of its business lines. In 2008,
ClIH’s gross premiums written and policy fees increased significantly to HK$25,003.80 million from HK$17,934.00
million in the Last Year, representing a strong increase of 39.4%.

In 2008, our reinsurance operation, CIRe, produced a small net profit attributable to shareholders of HK$51.85
million versus the record profit of HK$579.69 million achieved Last Year. The decline in profit was primarily due to
equity investment losses on shares traded in Hong Kong. Despite the decline in the bottom line, CIRe’s result is
satisfactory given the very challenging reinsurance market and investment conditions prevalent during this time.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

Moreover, during the Year, CIRe maintained its strong position in all of its core markets. CIRe successfully opened
and began operations at its Beijing branch, which is an important milestone for our future reinsurance initiatives in
Mainland China. The reinsurance market of the PRC has vast long-term potential, and CIRe is now very
well-positioned to participate in this highly attractive market, which is already its single largest geographic market.
CIRe continued to maintain its leading position in its traditional core markets of Hong Kong & Macau, as well as
other countries in the Asian region at reasonable terms and conditions. As such, CIRe’s reinsurance gross premiums
written increased to HK$1,839.00 million from HK$1,681.21 million in the Last Year, representing a solid increase
of 9.4%.

In 2008, TPL’s profit attributable to equity holders was HK$440.68 million, versus the HK$1,018.06 million in earnings
Last Year. The decrease in profitability at our life insurance operations was primarily due to the lower overall investment
yield of the investment portfolio, primarily caused by equity investment losses in the A-share markets. TPL's core
operations, however, remain very strong and very promising. The life insurance operations recorded premiums of
HK$21,207.79 million, representing an increase of 30.6% from the HK$16,245.25 million produced in the Last
Year. TPL's strong increase in premium income was driven by a higher number of individual agents, productivity
improvements among the overall agency force, and resurgence in demand from our clients in the bancassurance
channel.

Other highlights and important events of 2008 included the following:

o During the Year, there was a significant increase in catastrophes in China and worldwide relative to 2006 and
2007, during which time there were almost no major catastrophes. As such, CIRe experienced higher
catastrophe-related claims in 2008. However, the financial impact of these higher claims levels has been
ameliorated by CIRe’s retrocession protections. Part of these retrocession arrangements were put into place
by CIRe in the Last Year, during which time there were no major catastrophes. The underwriting result was
further improved by the release of redundant loss provisions conservatively set against the claims liabilities of
earlier years. Thus, despite a higher incidence of catastrophe claims, CIRe was able to produce a strong
underwriting profit of HK$222.43 million for the Year compared to HK$108.64 million in the Last Year.

° During the Year, at TPL, with the outlook of the A-share equity markets uncertain, TPL curtailed the sales of
its unit linked products, which fell significantly to HK$2,053.06 million from HK$4,274.36 million in the Last
Year, representing a decrease of 52.0%. This decline in premium, however, was more than made up for by the
strong increase in demand for non unit-linked products, which sharply increased to HK$19,154.73 million
from HK$11,970.89 million in the Last Year, representing an increase of 60.0%. The strength of the non
unit-linked product sales was apparent in both the individual agency distribution channel and the bank distribution
channel. Non unit-linked premiums distributed through the individual agency force increased to HK$4,403.09
million from HK$2,501.32 million in the Last Year, representing an increase of 76.0%. In the bank distribution
channel, non unit-linked premiums increased to HK$13,604.75 million from HK$8,208.53 million in the Last
Year, representing an increase of 65.7%.

° TPL'’s strategy over the past few years has been to gradually increase, within its sales of non unit-linked
products, the proportion of those products with regular premium. This key parameter is one of the most
important priorities of the senior management and professionals of the life insurance operations. During the
Year, regular premium products accounted for 99.0% (2007: 98.5%) and 22.9% (2007: 17.6%) of the total
non unit-linked product sales produced by TPL’s individual agents and bancassurance channels, respectively.
Such higher proportion of regular premium product sales is very encouraging, and will continue to be the
focus of TPL in the years to come. Regular premium products have higher profit margins from an actuarial
perspective and as such constitute much higher quality business for the life insurance operations.

8 China Insurance International Holdings Company Limited  Annual Report 2008
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

° The higher proportion of regular premium products and their higher profitability is reflected in the significantly
higher embedded value and new business value figures of TPL for 2008. We have again disclosed to you in
our Annual Results our latest actuarial figures. Despite adopting more conservative assumptions, in particular
for the long-term investment yield to take into account, the uncertain investment outlook in the near term, the
actuarial valuation of TPL has increased significantly over that of Last Year. Although increasing in absolute
size, the expense overrun, relative to the value of business in force and new business value, has also improved
over the past twelve months. We are greatly encouraged by this continued positive development of the profitability
of our business, and we strongly believe that this is the true and best measure of our efforts to bring value to
our shareholders.

2009 will be a critically important operational year for ClIH. With financial turbulence and volatility continuing in
global capital markets, and deepening concerns of possibly significant and long recessions in many of the world’s
economies, difficult challenges face the economy and financial institutions of the PRC. Despite the uncertainties
and adversities likely to come in the next twelve months, we continue to be cautiously optimistic about all of our
core operations, and believe that many opportunities for attractive growth and expansion are now emerging. With
the turmoil of the financial markets negatively impacting the financial strength of many global reinsurers, reinsurance
capacity has decreased at a time when natural disasters and catastrophes have increased in frequency. As a
result, CIRe believes that the reinsurance pricing cycle is beginning to turn more favorably to reinsurers. CIRe
therefore believes that now is a prime opportunity to acquire premium at attractive pricing, terms and conditions.
Within its core markets in Asia, CIRe is optimistic about business growth and development prospects in the short-to
medium-term. With the opening of the Beijing branch, CIRe’s prospects and capabilities for serving the vast potential
of the reinsurance markets of Mainland China have improved substantially. In pursuing such opportunities, however,
CIRe will continue to focus on its risk management principles and strictly adhere to its long established conservative
underwriting policies in controlling its risks and exposures.

In 2009, TPL has launched a major initiative to further reinforce and strengthen its prioritization of regular premium
sales. TPL intends to grow its regular premium sales at both its individual agency and bancassurance distribution
channels at rates which are much higher than industry averages. Sales and management professionals at all levels
of management will be evaluated and assessed based on regular premium sales production, which will be heavily
weighted in the overall evaluation. Overall, TPL is highly confident that its strategic prioritization of regular premium
sales in the years to come is the best next step for the life insurance operations, and is the most optimal and
prudent strategy to take under any macroeconomic condition or scenario in the PRC now and in the future.

Following the incredibly volatile investment years of 2006, 2007 and 2008, we are now very cautious with our
expectations on investments, given the tremendous volatility and unpredictability the past years have seen. For
2009, we will continue to assume and target conservative and stable investment yields over the long term for our
investment portfolios in both Hong Kong and the PRC. If we are able to achieve this conservative objective, then
the overall profitability of our operations should be one of the best in the PRC and the world. Overall, long-term, |
feel as strongly and confidently as ever that the future is bright for all of our operations and businesses at ClIH. Our
Company is continuing to make steady and gradual process in building itself up to becoming one of the best,
strongest and most profitable financial institutions in the PRC.

10 China Insurance International Holdings Company Limited  Annual Report 2008
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

It is truly an honor for me to lead CIIH. | sincerely believe that the global financial and economic crisis, from which
we will undoubtedly survive and grow stronger, represents a test for our resolve and persistence in following our
principles and standards. We can and we will recover from the current economic difficulties, and we will then be
well-positioned to rise even higher. It is our utmost objective at ClIH to become one of the best and most respected
financial institutions in China and the world. This goal is shared by all of the senior managers and directors of the
Company. When economic and financial times and environments are good, our work and lives are more predictable
and straightforward. It is times such as these, with economic and financial conditions at their worst in history, when
our senior managers, directors and all of our employees must rise to the occasion and perform. It is when times are
bad and at their most difficult that all of us at ClIH must maintain our strict discipline and highest levels of commitment
to world-class standards in operations, corporate governance, investor relations and transparency. Only with such
discipline and dedication can we best serve the interests of our shareholders over the long term, and become one
of the best companies in the world.

On behalf of all of us at ClIH, | would like to wholeheartedly and sincerely thank you for being so trusting and
supportive of us over the past years! Thank you also very much for continuing to believe in us during this most
difficult time! One special characteristic of our culture is that we have a very long-term outlook and view of business
and the world. With a view to the long term, it is possible to see 2008 as being not too unusual and a year which
may happen again in the future. We have had good economic/financial cycles in the past, and we have had bad
economic/financial cycles in the past. These cycles will be repeated in the future. And, there is no question that,
every now and then, we will have years in which economic/financial conditions are as bad, if not worse, than what
we just experienced in 2008. The key is for our Company to build up our operations to be able to withstand such
unforeseen and unexpected negative events, such that we can emerge stronger and better when conditions inevitably
improve. We need to be prepared, as professionals and as a Company, for such unforeseen, but inevitable, events.
We believe that we have made strong progress in building upon such a philosophy, and that we will emerge stronger
than ever one day soon. As such, given our long-term outlook, we are very confident in saying to our shareholders
and investors that the best is yet to come for us and for you, and that we look forward to continuing our
communications and work with you in 2009 and beyond!

Finally, I would like to give thanks to all of ClIH’'s employees in 2008. Despite the exceedingly difficult conditions
that we all faced during the Year, the staff and professionals of the Company have been unwavering in their tremendous
dedication and hard work. We believe strongly that our continued adherence to our principles and unyielding focus
and willingness to sacrifice to reach our objectives will allow CIIH to emerge from the current difficult conditions
stronger than ever. Our professionals and employees are the best in China and the world, and are our greatest
asset. They are the bedrock of ClIH and are the platform from which we will continue to advance forward in the
future! Although 2009 will be an uncertain and challenging year, there is no doubt in any of our minds that our
people will be able to find solutions for any and all obstacles or challenges that we might face.

Thank you again! We all look forward to working with you, our shareholders, as partners now and into the future!
Lin Fan
Chairman

Hong Kong, 18 March 2009

12 China Insurance International Holdings Company Limited  Annual Report 2008
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MANAGEMENT REVIEW AND ANALYSIS

14

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL RESULTS

The performance highlights of the Group for the Year were as follows:

For the year ended 31 December, HK$ million

2008 2007 Change
Gross premiums written and policy fees 25,003.80 17,934.00 39.4%
Net investment income 3,394.34 1,888.40 79.8%
Net realized investment (losses)/gains (1,048.78) 4,277.79 -
Net unrealized investment (losses)/gains (1,755.63) 505.58 -
Impairment on AFS equities (309.44) — —
Goodwill impairment (73.28) — —
Net exchange loss (119.20) (31.12) 3.8 times
(Loss)/profit before taxation (269.00) 3,010.91 —
(Loss)/profit after taxation (205.76) 2,457.20 -
Net (loss)/profit attributable to the equity holders (299.72) 1,549.07 -
Basic (loss)/earnings per share (HK cent) (21.2) 110.2 —
No final dividend proposed (2007: HK10 cents per share) — 141.53 —

The net (loss)/profit attributable to the equity holders by each business line is summarized below:

For the year ended 31 December, HK$ million

2008 2007 Change
Reinsurance 51.85 579.69 (91.1%)
Life insurance 440.68 1,018.06 (56.7%)
Property and casualty insurance (280.50) (58.31) 4.8 times
Corporate and other businesses (5611.75) 9.63 —
— Holding company and other businesses (237.54) 42.83 —
— Pension company operated by TPP (164.53) (59.63) 2.8 times
— Assets management companies operated
by TPAM and CIGAML (36.40) 26.43 —
— Goodwill impairment (73.28) — —
Net (loss)/profit attributable to the equity holders (299.72) 1,649.07 —

China Insurance International Holdings Company Limited

Annual Report 2008
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MANAGEMENT REVIEW AND ANALYSIS

The following analysis shows the movement of the net assets value attributable to the equity holders of the Company
(“NAV”) from 1 January 2008 to 31 December 2008.

HK$ million

NAV as at 1 January 2008 5,685.63
Loss recognized in income statement (299.72)
Net changes in AFS investment reserve (866.54)
Exchange gain arising from translation of the financial statements

of subsidiaries outside Hong Kong 147.70
Dividend paid (141.45)
Others ! 71.00
NAV as at 31 December 2008 4,596.62

! Others mainly include the net proceeds received for Shares issued under the Share Option Scheme and the amortization of the costs of the
Shares acquired under the Share Award Scheme.

The gross premiums written and policy fees for the Year increased significantly by 39.4% to HK$25,003.80
million from HK$17,934.00 million in the Last Year. The increase was mainly due to the strong premium growth at
each of our business segments, in particular the life insurance business in which premiums increased by 30.6% to
HK$21,207.79 million from HK$16,245.25 million in the Last Year.

The net loss attributable to the equity holders for the Year was HK$299.72 million (2007: profit of HK$1,549.07
million). The Group’s net loss was primarily due to investment losses from equity securities traded in Hong Kong
and the PRC, and operating losses at our property and casualty insurance operations at TPI, pension operations at
TPP and impairment on goodwill associated with acquisition of CIGAML. Because of our relative lack of scale and
early stage of development, changes in investment performance in particular will have a relatively larger impact on
our consolidated figures.

The reinsurance business contributed net profit to the equity holders of HK$51.85 million (2007: HK$579.69
million). The decline in profits was mainly due to significant declines in investment returns during the Year,
primarily because of equity investment losses from shares traded in Hong Kong, which offset higher underwriting
profits.

The life insurance business contributed net profit to the equity holders of HK$440.68 million (2007:
HK$1,018.06 million). The decrease in profits was mainly due to significant declines in investment returns
during the Year, primarily because of equity investment losses from shares traded in the PRC, which offset
strong increases in premium and improvements in the scale of operations.

The property and casualty insurance business incurred a net loss to the equity holders of HK$280.50
million (2007: HK$58.31 million). The increase in losses was mainly due to significant increase in premiums,
which resulted in higher acquisition costs booked in the Year, the current lack of scale of operations, higher
claims expenses from natural disasters, and a significant decline in investment returns, during the Year. The
continuing severe and irrational competition in the PRC property and casualty insurance market has made
profitable underwriting extremely difficult.

The holding company and other businesses incurred a net loss to the equity holders of HK$237.54 million
(2007: profit of HK$42.83 million). The losses were primarily due to investment losses of HK$129.03 million
(2007: gains of HK$161.53 million), which were primarily related to equity losses on shares traded in Hong
Kong and interest expenses of HK$80.17 million (2007: HK$80.02 million) related to the outstanding senior
debt.

16 China Insurance International Holdings Company Limited  Annual Report 2008
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MANAGEMENT REVIEW AND ANALYSIS

The pension business incurred a net loss to the equity holders of HK$164.53 million (2007: HK$59.63 million).
The losses were mainly due to the current lack of economies of scale at the pension operations and investment
losses (primarily related to equity shares traded in the A-share markets) incurred during the Year. The Group’s
pension business is operated by TPP, which is a PRC-incorporated company and a non-direct controlled
subsidiary effectively owned 50.03% by the Group. TPP is principally engaged in planning and administrating
enterprise annuity products, providing trustee and investment services for enterprise annuity schemes in
Mainland China. Such supplemental pension systems are voluntarily built by enterprises and their employees
and represent a vast potential market. TPP also provides marketing services to TPL on group life insurance
products.

At the end of the Year, the annuity and investment funds managed by TPP amounted to RMB15.6 billion,
which constituted the funds and schemes of 6,833 enterprises. As the qualified enterprise annuity industry is
still in its nascent stage of development in China, and because TPP is one of the very first approved pension
operators in the country, TPP is still in its initial set-up period and is building up its marketing network and
exploring potential business models for the future.

The asset management business incurred a net loss to the equity holders of HK$36.40 million (2007: profit
of HK$26.43 million). The Group's asset management business is operated by TPAM and CIGAML, which are
mainly engaged in the provision of investment consultancy services to the Group in managing its RMB and
non-RMB investment portfolios, respectively. TPAM and CIGAML currently represent cost centres of the Group,
as the asset management fee income received from the Group companies are eliminated at the consolidated
level, while the corresponding expenses, such as salary, incentive compensation paid to fund managers and
other operating expenses, are absorbed in full at the consolidated level.

During the Year, the impairment of HK$73.28 million (2007: nil) was recognized on the goodwill associated
with the acquisition of CIGAML in 2002. In 2005, an impairment amount of HK$250.00 million was made on
this goodwill. After the further impairment amount of HK$73.28 million in 2008, there is no remaining goodwill
asset associated with the acquisition of CIGAML recognized in the consolidated financial statements of the
Company.

CONSOLIDATED INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE

Consolidated investment assets

The total investments of the Group are summarized as follows:

At 31 December, HK$ million

2008 % of Total 2007 % of Total
Debt securities 50,028.09 69.0% 27,746.83 54.3%
Direct equity securities 1,621.71 2.2% 7,000.45 13.7%
Equity investment funds 5,123.70 71% 5,614.96 11.0%
Composite investment funds 90.36 0.1% 139.95 0.3%
Cash and bank deposits 15,620.70 21.5% 10,520.27 20.6%
Investment properties 76.72 0.1% 78.56 0.1%
Total investments 72,561.28 100.0% 51,101.02 100.0%
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MANAGEMENT REVIEW AND ANALYSIS

The investments in securities are classified as Held-to-Maturity (“HTM”), Available-for-Sale (“AFS”), Designated at
Fair Value through Profit or Loss (“DTPL”) and Loans and Receivables (“LR”). The detailed breakdown by such
classifications for the total investment portfolio of the Group was as follows:

At 31 December 2008, HK$ million

HTM AFS DTPL LR Total
Debt securities 21,004.15 26,003.95 854.18 2,165.81 50,028.09
Direct equity securities - 1,510.72 110.99 — 1,621.71
Equity investment funds — 2,711.89 2,411.81 — 5,123.70
Composite investment funds - 38.18 52.18 - 90.36
21,004.15 30,264.74 3,429.16 2,165.81 56,863.86

At 31 December 2007, HK$ million
HTM AFS DTPL LR Total
Debt securities 1,019.07 25,947.54 523.91 256.31 27,746.83
Direct equity securities — 5,243.17 1,757.28 — 7,000.45
Equity investment funds — 2,220.71 3,394.25 — 5,614.96
Composite investment funds — 51.38 88.57 — 139.95
1,019.07 33,462.80 5,764.01 256.31 40,502.19

The percentages of the Group’s total investments held by each business segment in terms of carrying values at the
balance sheet date were as follows:

2008 2007

Reinsurance 5.6% 8.5%
Life insurance 86.3% 87.1%
Property and casualty insurance 5.6% —
Corporate and other businesses 2.5% 4.4%
100.0% 100.0%
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MANAGEMENT REVIEW AND ANALYSIS

Consolidated investment income

The total investment income of the Group on a pre-tax basis recognized in the consolidated income statement was
as follows:

For the year ended 31 December, HK$ million

2008 2007 Change
Net investment income 3,394.34 1,888.40 79.8%
Net realized investment (losses)/gains (1,048.78) 4,277.79 -
Net unrealized investment (losses)/gains (1,755.63) 505.58 —
Impairment on AFS equities (309.44) — —
Total investment income 280.49 6,671.77 (95.8%)
Less: Investment (losses)/gains

attributable to unit-linked products ! (2,146.67) 553.12 —

Total investment income excluding
income of unit-linked products 2,427.16 6,118.65 (60.3%)

! Unit-linked products are the funds managed by the Group for its clients and policyholders. The investment returns attributable to such
products are completely borne by the clients and policyholders, and do not directly impact the financial results of the Group.

The total investment income (excluding the income of unit-linked products) of the Group recognized in the consolidated
income statement decreased by 60.3% to HK$2,427.16 million in the Year from HK$6,118.65 million in the Last
Year. The decrease was primarily attributable to equity investment losses from shares traded in Hong Kong and the
PRC. Following extraordinarily strong and positive performances in 2006 and 2007, equity markets in Hong Kong
and the PRC experienced sharp declines during the Year.

According to the Group’s impairment policy, available-for-sale investments in debt and equity securities are reviewed
periodically to determine whether there is objective evidence of impairment. Objective evidence of impairment for
available-for-sale equity securities may include specific information about the issuer, but may also include information
on material changes that have taken place in the technological, market, economic or legal environments, which
taken together or taken alone may provide evidence that the cost of the equity securities may not be recovered.
Under such criterion, significant or prolonged declines in the fair value of an asset below its cost is also objective
evidence of impairment. In 2008, the impairment loss on available-for-sale equity securities recognized in the income
statement was HK$309.44 million.
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MANAGEMENT REVIEW AND ANALYSIS

The details of the Group’s investment (loss)/income on a pre-tax basis are summarized as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2008, HK$ million

Unrealized
gains/
(losses)
Recognized in the consolidated income statement recognized
Interest Realized in the fair
income/  Dividend Rental  (losses)/ Unrealized Sub value Grand
(expense) income income gains losses Impairment total reserve total
Debt securities
HTM 502.23 - - - - - 502.23 - 502.23
AFS 1,190.97 - - (16.85) - - 1,17412 1,333.54  2,507.66
DTPL 19.94 - - 284.74 (33.43) - 271.25 - 271.25
LR 4413 - - - - - 4413 - 4413
Direct equity securities
AFS - 44.61 - 679.31 - (230.36) 493.56 (1,604.73) (1,111.17)
DTPL - 8.88 - (715.39)  (350.52) - (1,057.03) - (1,057.03)
Equity investment funds
AFS - 343.84 - (435.85) - (79.08)  (171.09) (1,182.71) (1,353.80)
DTPL - 818.68 - (836.20) (1,277.90) - (1,295.42) - (1,295.42)
Composite investment funds
AFS - 0.19 - - - - 0.19 (12.94) (12.75)
DTPL - 38.16 - (8.54) (91.94) - (62.32) - (62.32)
Cash and bank deposits 434,77 - - - - - 434,77 - 43477
Investment properties - - 2.81 - (1.84) - 0.97 - 0.97
Securities sold under
repurchase agreements (79.59) - - - - - (79.59) - (79.59)
Others 24.72 - - - - - 24,72 - 24,72

213717 1,254.36 281 (1,048.78) (1,755.63)  (309.44)  280.49 (1,466.84) (1,186.35)
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MANAGEMENT REVIEW AND ANALYSIS

For the year ended 31 December 2007, HK$ million

Unrealized
(losses)/
gains
Recognized in the consolidated income statement recognized
Interest Realized in the fair
income/  Dividend Rental  (losses)/ Unrealized Sub value Grand
(expense) income income gains gains Impairment total reserve total
Debt securities
HTM 65.17 - - - - - 65.17 - 65.17
AFS 978.16 - - (0.54) - - 977.62 (2,373.35) (1,395.73)
DTPL 21.75 - - 100.36 41.26 - 163.37 - 163.37
LR 5.65 - - - - - 5.65 - 5.65
Direct equity securities
AFS - 25.55 - 237546 - - 2,401.01  1,321.75  3,722.76
DTPL - 6.48 - 492.99 56.35 - 555.82 - 555.82
Equity investment funds
AFS - 256.30 - 710.94 - - 967.24 45117 1,418.41
DTPL - 382.32 - 592.78 379.10 - 1,354.20 - 135420
Composite investment funds
AFS - - - - - - - 4.27 4.27
DTPL - 22.67 - 4.73 23.34 - 50.74 - 50.74
Cash and bank deposits 388.07 - - - - - 388.07 - 388.07
Investment properties - - 2.43 (0.18) 5.53 - 7.78 - 7.78
Securities sold under
repurchase agreements (285.33) - - - - - (285.33) - (285.33)
Others 19.18 - - 1.25 - - 20.43 - 20.43
1,192.65 693.32 243 427779 505.58 - 6,671.77 (596.16)  6,075.61
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MANAGEMENT REVIEW AND ANALYSIS

REINSURANCE BUSINESS

The Group’s reinsurance business is operated by CIRe, which is a Hong Kong-incorporated company and
wholly-owned by the Group. CIRe is mainly engaged in the underwriting of all classes of reinsurance business
around the globe, except long-tail, liability reinsurance business from outside of Asia, such as the United States
and Europe. CIRe’s key markets are Hong Kong and Macau, Mainland China, Japan, the rest of Asia, Europe and
other parts of the world.

The key financial data and key performance indicators of the reinsurance business are summarized below:

For the year ended 31 December, HK$ million

2008 2007 Change
Gross premiums written 1,839.00 1,681.21 9.4%
Net premiums written 1,568.66 1,470.06 6.7%
Net earned premiums 1,534.90 1,441.95 6.5%
Net claims incurred (887.76) (944.99)* (6.1%)
Net commission expenses (396.01) (351.66) 12.6%
Underwriting profit 222.43 108.64* 2.1 times
Total investment (loss)/income (97.90) 530.13 —
Net exchange (loss)/gain (38.09) 10.96* —
Profit before taxation 59.59 616.93 (90.3%)
Profit attributable to the equity holders 51.85 579.69 (91.1%)
Regulatory solvency margin ratio 630.6% 747.5% (116.9 pts)
Technical reserves ratio 179.1% 179.8% (0.7 pt)
Retained ratio 85.3% 87.4% (2.1 pts)
Earned premiums ratio 83.5% 85.8% (2.3 pts)
Loss ratio ! 57.8% 65.5%" (7.7 pts)
Expense ratio 2 27.1% 26.4% 0.7 pt
Combined ratio ® 84.9 91.9* (7.0 pts)
! The loss ratio is based on net earned premiums.
2 The expense ratio is based on net premiums written. The management believes that calculating the expense ratio based on net premiums

written is a fairer indicator and better reflects the underwriting performance of CIRe. If the net earned premiums basis is applied, then the
expense ratio would be 27.7% for the Year (2007: 26.9%).

3 The combined ratio is the sum of the loss ratio and the expense ratio. If the expense ratio is based on net earned premiums, then the
combined ratio would be 85.5 for the Year (2007: 92.4).

* Prior to 2008, the exchange difference arising from the claim reserve was recognized in the underwriting results. In order to better reflect the
underwriting performance of CIRe, from 2008 onwards, such exchange difference will be reclassified into a separate account in the income
statement, namely as the net exchange loss. The exchange difference for 2008 and 2007 are an exchange gain of HK$57.15 million and an
exchange loss of HK$50.23 million, respectively. For consistency and comparability purposes, the corresponding figures and ratios of 2007
are restated accordingly, however, they are not restated in the consolidated financial statements because the amounts involved are not
material from the perspective of the consolidated level.

The original amount of net claims incurred, underwriting profit and net exchange gain for 2007 are HK$995.22 million, HK$58.41 million and
HK$61.19 million, respectively. The original loss ratio and combined ratio for 2007 are 69.0% and 95.4, respectively.
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MANAGEMENT REVIEW AND ANALYSIS

Profit Attributable to the Equity Holders

The reinsurance business contributed net profit to the equity holders of HK$51.85 million during the Year
(2007: HK$579.69 million), representing a decline of 91.1% compared to Last Year. Although much lower than Last
Year, this level of profitability is considered to be satisfactory, as the reinsurance market and investment conditions
in 2008 were one of the most difficult in history. The underwriting profit, together with the release of redundant
previous years’ loss provisions, were able to offset CIRe’s losses in investments (primarily related to equity securities
traded in Hong Kong) and foreign exchange (related to its foreign currency holdings).

In 2006 and 2007, CIRe’s operations and earnings benefited substantially from extraordinary investment gains
related to the strong global equity markets, particularly equities traded in Hong Kong. In 2008, global equity markets
and those in Hong Kong experienced significant investment losses, as deteriorating economic fundamentals worldwide
combined with crises of confidence in the global financial system to produce sudden and severe equity market
declines. The resulting credit crunch has severely dampened economic activity around the world, and resulted in
previously-not-seen-before market volatility. Whereas CIRe produced back-to-back record earnings in 2006 and
2007 on the strength of investment gains in the equity markets, in 2008 the sudden and drastic reversals in the
equity markets have likewise significantly dampened results for the reinsurance operations.

2008 also saw a significant increase in catastrophes in China and worldwide relative to 2006 and 2007, during
which time there were almost no major catastrophes. As such, CIRe experienced higher catastrophe-related claims
in 2008, albeit the financial impact of these higher claims levels has been ameliorated by ClIRe’s retrocession
protections. Part of these retrocession arrangements were put into place by CIRe in the Last Year, during which
time there were no major catastrophes. The underwriting result was further improved by the release of redundant
loss provisions conservatively set against the claims liabilities of earlier years. Thus, despite a higher incidence of
catastrophe claims, CIRe was able to produce a strong underwriting profit of HK$222.43 million for the Year compared
to HK$108.64 million in the Last Year.

Gross Premiums Written

CIRe’s gross premiums written increased by 9.4% to HK$1,839.00 million from HK$1,681.21 million in the Last
Year. During the Year, CIRe made further inroads into the Mainland China market, which has now become the
single largest geographic market of CIRe and which drove the overall premium growth of the reinsurance operations.
ClIRe’s Beijing branch was successfully launched and became operational before the end of 2008, just in time to
allow the branch and its professionals to participate in the 2009 business renewals with clients in Mainland China.
In CIRe’s traditional core markets of Hong Kong and Macau, intense competition from the over one hundred registered
primary insurers has caused general concerns over original premium pricing. In such a competitive environment,
CIRe decided to take a more cautious approach with renewals, while simultaneously seeking to maintain and
strengthen our existing client relationships. CIRe has been involved in Hong Kong and Macau for a very long time,
and as such its professionals in Hong Kong have tremendous and unique experience, know-how and in-depth
knowledge of these two markets, which represents a key competitive advantage. In 2008, CIRe made an effort to
utilize these combined skills and experience to better serve and respond to the various needs and demands of its
clients. As a result, CIRe was able to maintain its position with most of its key clients and contracts in Hong Kong
and Macau, even though the overall premium levels are slightly lower.

In other Asian markets, CIRe was able to keep its market position and grow its premiums in-line with the respective
market. Outside of Asia, to maintain CIRe’s position and reputation as one of the few Asian-based reinsurers to be
long-term committed and involved with reinsurance clients and intermediaries from around the world, the premium
income from outside of Asia has increased in line with the growth of the core Asian portfolio, and continues to
represent approximately 20.0% of gross premiums written.
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MANAGEMENT REVIEW AND ANALYSIS

CIRe’s geographical distribution of gross premiums written is summarized as follows:

For the year ended 31 December, HK$ million

2008 % of Total 2007 % of Total

Hong Kong & Macau 304.00 16.5% 316.65 18.8%
Mainland China (& Taiwan) 530.03 28.8% 399.65 23.8%
Japan 143.42 7.8% 113.97 6.8%
Rest of Asia 453.70 24.7% 455.99 27.1%
Europe 226.92 12.3% 249.97 14.9%
Others 180.93 9.9% 144.98 8.6%
1,839.00 100.0% 1,681.21 100.0%

Net Claims Incurred

Despite an increase in frequency of catastrophes during the Year, CIRe’s net claims incurred decreased by 6.1% to
HK$887.76 million from HK$944.99 million in the Last Year. The loss ratio decreased to 57.8% from 65.5% in
2007. During the Year, the southern provinces of Mainland China experienced a rare snowstorm in the months of
January and February, which became the single largest loss for CIRe for the year. The net retained loss from the
snowstorm, however, was only half of the gross incurred loss due to CIRe’s retrocession protections. The devastating
earthquake which struck Sichuan Province in Mainland China on 12 May did not result in serious losses to CIRe,
mainly because of the region’s low insurance penetration. However, the rainstorm in Guangdong Province and
Hong Kong during the middle of June 2008 and Hurricane lke, which hit areas in the Caribbean Sea and Texas of
the United States in September 2008, did result in some losses for the reinsurance operations. Overall, because of
proper and effective risk management and retrocession protections in place, CIRe was not overly affected by the
catastrophes which occurred during 2008.

ClIRe’s top three major claims in terms of gross losses during the Year were as follows:
For the year ended 31 December 2008, HK$ million

Gross Net retained
Date of loss loss incurred loss incurred % retention

Snowstorm in Southern China Jan 2008 187.62 94.72 50.5%
Rainstorm in Guangdong & Hong Kong, China Jun 2008 65.61 48.31 73.6%
Hurricane ke in United States Sep 2008 36.05 35.46 98.4%

The loss provisions originally set aside for the claims liabilities of earlier years were reviewed during the Year. Due
to positive developments of the run-off liabilities for the earlier underwriting years, redundant loss provisions amounting
to approximately HK$160.90 million were released (approximately 10.5% of net earned premium of the Year), which
helped to bolster the underwriting results and profitability in 2008. The combined ratio during the Year was 84.9
(2007: 91.9).
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MANAGEMENT REVIEW AND ANALYSIS

Investment Performance
The composition of investments held by CIRe was as follows:

At 31 December, HK$ million

2008 % of Total 2007 % of Total
Debt securities 1,904.91 46.8% 1,734.13 39.9%
Direct equity securities 231.80 5.7% 638.93 14.7%
Composite investment funds 67.04 1.7% 90.84 2.1%
Cash and bank deposits 1,786.45 43.9% 1,807.81 41.5%
Investment properties 76.72 1.9% 78.56 1.8%
Total invested assets 4,066.92 100.0% 4,350.27 100.0%

During the Year, because of the extraordinarily challenging investment market conditions globally, CIRe was very
cautious in its asset allocation for its investment portfolio. Equity investments were significantly reduced, while
debt securities and cash and bank deposits were increased to a combined total of approximately 90.7% of the
total invested assets as at 31 December 2008 (2007: 81.4%). Almost all of the debt securities had investment
grade ratings from international credit rating agencies.

The classification of CIRe’s investments in securities under HTM, AFS and DTPL was as follows:

At 31 December 2008, HK$ million

HTM AFS DTPL Total
Debt securities 1,338.63 390.08 176.20 1,904.91
Direct equity securities - 194.66 37.14 231.80
Composite investment funds - 38.18 28.86 67.04
1,338.63 622.92 242.20 2,203.75

At 31 December 2007, HK$ million
HTM AFS DTPL Total
Debt securities 1,013.62 572.33 148.18 1,734.13
Direct equity securities - 569.55 69.38 638.93
Composite investment funds — 51.38 39.46 90.84
1,013.62 1,193.26 257.02 2,463.90
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MANAGEMENT REVIEW AND ANALYSIS

The debt securities classified by type and class were as follows:

At 31 December, HK$ million

2008 2007

Central governments and central banks 131.34 181.61
Public sector entities 50.97 100.72
Banks and other financial institutions 1,425.13 980.45
Corporate entities 286.47 441.37
Others 11.00 29.98
1,904.91 1,734.13

The debt securities classified by original currencies in their respective HKD equivalents were as follows:

At 31 December, HK$ million

2008 2007

USD 1,677.80 1,667.75
EUR 85.08 11.36
HKD 68.98 19.97
GBP 40.43 —
Others 32.62 35.05
1,904.91 1,734.13

The total investment income and the investment yield of CIRe’s investments on a pre-tax basis recognized in the
consolidated income statement were as follows:

For the year ended 31 December, HK$ million

2008 2007 Change
Net investment income 178.67 184.62 (3.2%)
Net realized investment (losses)/gains (96.96) 357.38 -
Net unrealized investment losses (73.79) (11.87) 6.2 times
Impairment on AFS equities (105.82) — —
Total investment (loss)/income (97.90) 530.13 —
Total investment yield (2.2%) 13.0% —

CIRe’s total investment income was a loss of HK$97.90 million for the Year, a significant decline from the profit of
HK$530.13 million in the Last Year. Sharp declines in prices for equities traded in Hong Kong were the primary
factors behind CIRe’s large investment losses, both realized and unrealized, as well as the impairment on AFS
equities. Although the recurrent income from bank deposits and fixed income securities was stable, it could not
offset the significant losses in equities, which resulted in the overall negative total investment yield for 2008. The
above-described investment income and investment yield figures do not include a net exchange loss of HK$38.09
million (2007: gain of HK$10.96 million).
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MANAGEMENT REVIEW AND ANALYSIS

The details of CIRe’s investment (loss)/income on a pre-tax basis were as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2008, HK$ million

Unrealized
losses
recognized
Recognized in the consolidated income statement in the fair
Interest  Dividend Rental  Realized Unrealized Sub value Grand
income income income losses losses Impairment total reserve total
Debt securities
HTM 76.21 - - - - - 76.21 - 76.21
AFS 35.89 - - - - - 35.89 (65.04) (29.15)
DTPL 9.26 - - (1.28) (36.23) - (28.25) - (28.25)
Direct equity securities
AFS - 12.64 - (95.31) - (105.82)  (188.49) (93.43)  (281.92)
DTPL - 1.60 - (0.37) (25.35) - (24.12) - (24.12)
Composite investment funds
AFS - 0.19 - - - - 0.19 (12.95) (12.76)
DTPL - 2.94 - - (10.37) - (7.43) - (7.43)
Cash and bank deposits 36.17 - - - - - 36.17 - 36.17
Investment properties - - 2.81 - (1.84) - 0.97 - 0.97
Others 0.96 - - - - - 0.96 - 0.96

158.49 17.37 2.81 (96.96) (73.79)  (105.82) (97.90) (171.42)  (269.32)
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MANAGEMENT REVIEW AND ANALYSIS

For the year ended 31 December 2007, HK$ million

Unrealized
gains/
(losses)
Recognized in the consolidated income statement recognized
Realized  Unrealized in the fair
Interest  Dividend Rental  (losses)/  (losses)/ Sub value Grand
income income income gains gains  Impairment total reserve total
Debt securities
HTM 64.85 - - - - - 64.85 - 64.85
AFS 24.47 - - - - - 24.47 9.49 33.96
DTPL 11.38 - - (0.34) (15.06) - (4.02) - (4.02)
Direct equity securities
AFS - 8.20 - 356.75 - - 364.95 (99.92) 265.03
DTPL - 1.91 - (0.10) (1.73 - 0.08 - 0.08
Composite investment funds
AFS - - - - - - - 4.27 4.27
DTPL - 3.18 - - (0.61) - 2.57 - 2.57
Cash and bank deposits 67.82 - - - - - 67.82 - 67.82
Investment properties - - 2.43 (0.18) 5.53 - 7.78 - 7.78
Others 0.38 - - 1.25 - - 1.68 - 1.63
168.90 13.29 2.43 357.38 (11.87) - 530.13 (86.16) 443.97
Reserving

CIRe continues to focus on writing property damage, marine and short tail liability reinsurance, involving portfolio
of risks or for individual policies or risks. CIRe does not get involved in long tail, liability reinsurance in markets
outside of Asia as a matter of policy. Based on the review of prior years’ loss reserve provisions against the positive
development of the run-off liabilities, redundant loss reserve provisions were released during the Year. CIRe continues
to adopt prudent reserving standards, resulting in technical reserve provisions at the higher end of the prudent and
conservative range. CIRe is therefore able to meet and satisfy the high expectations of its business counterparties
and rating agencies in maintaining adequate reserve provisions to ensure that it can safely meet its insurance
liabilities.
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MANAGEMENT REVIEW AND ANALYSIS

42

LIFE INSURANCE BUSINESS

The Group’s life insurance segment is operated by TPL, which is a PRC-incorporated company and is 50.05%-
owned by the Group. TPL is principally engaged in the underwriting of life insurance policies in Mainland China.

The key financial data of the life insurance business is summarized below:

For the year ended 31 December, HK$ million

2008 2007 Change
Gross premiums written 21,207.79 16,245.25 30.6%
Net premiums written and policy fees 21,104.67 16,186.53 30.4%
Net earned premiums and policy fees 21,061.26 16,206.73 30.0%
Total investment income 530.38 5,802.71 (90.9%)
Net exchange loss (81.66) (86.61) (5.7%)
Net policyholders’ benefits (4,288.57) (4,066.93) 5.5%
Net commission expenses (2,026.97) (1,645.50) 23.2%
Change in life insurance funds, net of reinsurance (11,742.51) (11,849.47) (0.9%)
Administrative and other expenses (2,671.61) (1,901.47) 40.5%
Finance costs (98.18) (68.45) 43.4%
Profit before taxation 794.05 2,622.88 (68.5%)
Profit after taxation 880.43 2,034.08 (56.7%)
Profit attributable to the equity holders 440.68 1,018.06 (56.7%)

China Insurance International Holdings Company Limited

Annual Report 2008
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MANAGEMENT REVIEW AND ANALYSIS

The key operational data of the life insurance business is summarized below:

2008 2007 Change
Market share ' 2.6% 3.2% (0.6 pt)
Number of provincial branches 33 29 4
Number of sub-branches and marketing centres 506 317 189
Number of in-force policies 6,944,279 5,016,857 1,927,422
Number of individual agents 46,781 41,140 5,641
Persistency ratio — 13th month 2 82.6% 83.0% (0.4 pt)
Persistency ratio — 25th month ? 91.1% 92.1% (1.0 pt)

! Based on gross premiums written in accordance with PRC GAAP and published by the CIRC.

2 Based on the amount of premiums.

Profit Attributable to the Equity Holders

The life insurance business contributed net profit to the equity holders of HK$440.68 million during the Year
(2007: HK$1,018.06 million), representing a decline of 56.7% compared to Last Year. Although much lower than
Last Year, this level of profitability is considered to be satisfactory, as the global financial and economic turmoil in
2008 also significantly impacted the financial markets of the PRC, in particular the A-share equity markets which
fell substantially. Despite this turbulence and volatility, TPL still managed to achieve profitability, as higher gross
premiums written, effective cost controls and greater scale economies overcame large investment losses (primarily
related to equity securities traded in the PRC).

In 2006 and 2007, TPL’s operations and earnings benefited substantially from extraordinary investment gains related
to the strong domestic A-share equity markets in the PRC, which produced one of the highest levels of returns of
stock indices in the world. In 2008, A-share equity markets produced one of the highest levels of losses of stock
indices in the world, as the financial markets of the PRC could not avoid the impact of deteriorating economic
fundamentals worldwide and the crises of confidence brought forth by the credit crunch. Whereas TPL produced
back-to-back record earnings in 2006 and 2007 on the strength of investment gains in the equity markets, in 2008
the sudden and drastic reversals in the equity markets have likewise significantly lowered results for the life insurance
operations.
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MANAGEMENT REVIEW AND ANALYSIS

Gross Premiums Written

TPL's gross premiums written increased by 30.6% to HK$21,207.79 million from HK$16,245.25 million in the Last
Year. Due to uncertainties in the investment outlook, TPL curtailed the sales of unit-linked products and has been
successful in shifting its marketing focus and strategy to more traditional life insurance products with regular premium
features. With penetration rates still at relatively low levels, the PRC life insurance industry continues to have vast
potential for rapid expansion. With a large presence in every single major province and city in the country (except
for Tibet, Qinghai, Ningxia and Hainan Island), TPL’s nationwide presence and infrastructure have allowed the life
insurance operations to continue to produce strong premium growth and to gain scale in the marketplace. TPL’s
gross premiums written, by line of business, were as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2008, HK$ million

Non unit-linked Unit-linked

products products Total % of Total
Individual 4,403.09 270.61 4,673.70 22.0%
Bancassurance 13,604.75 1,782.35 15,387.10 72.6%
Group 1,146.89 0.10 1,146.99 5.4%
19,154.73 2,053.06 21,207.79 100.0%

For the year ended 31 December 2007, HK$ million

Non unit-linked Unit-linked

products products Total % of Total
Individual 2,501.32 2,757.25 5,258.57 32.4%
Bancassurance 8,208.53 1,506.80 9,715.383 59.8%
Group 1,261.04 10.31 1,271.35 7.8%
11,970.89 4,274.36 16,245.25 100.0%

During the Year, the sale of unit linked products fell significantly to HK$2,053.06 million from HK$4,274.36 million
in the Last Year, representing a decrease of 52.0%. This decline in premium, however, was more than made up for
by the strong increase in demand for non unit-linked products, which sharply increased to HK$19,154.73 million
from HK$11,970.89 million in the Last Year, representing an increase of 60.0%.

The strength of the non unit-linked product sales was apparent in both the individual agency distribution channel
and the bank distribution channel. Non unit-linked premiums distributed through the individual agency force increased
to HK$4,403.09 million from HK$2,501.32 million in the Last Year, representing an increase of 76.0%. This strong
growth was due to improvements in productivity among the existing agency force, as well as the increase in number
of individual agents to 46,781 as of 31 December 2008 (2007: 41,140). In the bank distribution channel, non
unit-linked premiums increased to HK$13,604.75 million from HK$8,208.53 million in the Last Year, representing
an increase of 65.7%. TPL's bank channel of distribution benefited from the resurgence of interest in bancassurance
products among policyholders amidst the poor equity markets sentiment, as well as TPL's continued leadership
and cutting-edge expertise in this line of the business.

46 China Insurance International Holdings Company Limited  Annual Report 2008



;4

¥ [ (Bl A A O AT

ERFRRE

KFAEZ ERRREREF 2162.4525F8 7T EF130.6%ZE212.077988 T - AR ERNSTHE » K FASZRAKRE
BRAEERNHEE KNSR EMSERMREEE S REHCHERASRBER - BRN2BXRMEMNMEKTE - FEAS
REENZREMDEEREKX - BECEASRKEEEMELRAMNE (R - 58 FERFEEN - KFEASHNER
BEANMEHEMEIASRRESEBESSEINRBER I AEMISHEE - KEASKRERSD 2 ETRRREWT ¢

BE—ZTE/\F+-A=+—HILFE BHEET

IREELER REELAER wrE  (hAZEEF ot

(EPN 4,403.09 270.61 4,673.70 22.0%
IRITIRER 13,604.75 1,782.35 15,387.10 72.6%
Elf 1,146.89 0.10 1,146.99 5.4%
19,154.73 2,053.06 21,207.79 100.0%

HE_FEE+F+_A=1+—HIFE BEET

IR EEAER 2 WNEBEER wEE R AR S

@A 2,501.32 2,757.25 5,258.57 32.4%
IRITIRER 8,208.53 1,506.80 9,715.33 59.8%
Ef] 1,261.04 10.31 1,271.35 7.8%
11,970.89 4,274.36 16,245.25 100.0%

RER - HEBEEERVEEARIE NEZ20.5306188 7T © #8ELEF42.743618E 7T  RIE52.0% ° T « HIRER AR
BRI EEEERT KN BINE R - IFHREELEERMNREREF119.708918BLEFA60.0%E191.5473F AT

R BELEMNEETEAARESHRERRTOHEEBAEA LA - BRAARERENIEREELFERREREF
25.01321BB TIE £ 44.0309(E 87T - 1#£K76.0% © ANt @IS RERA AR AEREFOELEAUAIR_ZEZNE+ A
=+ BEAREBMEE46,781A(ZTZTLF 41,1400 FTBL - BT WREHT  FREELERREANHESF
82.0853 {84125 136.0475(E8 7T + 18K65.7% ° AFASHIRITHEREZENELEREN S RSN ERENTRT
REBEMBIFR - LRATFASEERFOIFEE LA R ENTEH

FREBZERER AT 2008 F ik

47



MANAGEMENT REVIEW AND ANALYSIS

During the Year, TPL continued to increase, within its non unit-linked product sales, the proportion of its products
with regular premium. The detailed breakdown of TPL’s single premium products and regular premium products by
line of business is summarized as follows:

For the year ended 31 December, HK$ million

Individual
2008 % of Total 2007 % of Total
Single Premium 42.51 1.0% 36.35 1.5%
Regular Premium — First Year 2,115.40 48.0% 1,062.51 42.5%
Regular Premium — Renewal Year 2,245.18 51.0% 1,402.46 56.0%
4,403.09 100.0% 2,501.32 100.0%
Bancassurance
2008 % of Total 2007 % of Total
Single Premium 10,492.55 771% 6,763.54 82.4%
Regular Premium — First Year 1,685.17 12.4% 586.95 7.2%
Regular Premium — Renewal Year 1,427.03 10.5% 858.04 10.4%
13,604.75 100.0% 8,208.53 100.0%
Group
2008 % of Total 2007 % of Total
Employee Benefit (“EB”) 692.59 60.4% 633.47 50.2%
Annuity 454.30 39.6% 627.57 49.8%
1,146.89 100.0% 1,261.04 100.0%

TPL's strategy over the past few years has been to gradually increase, within its sales of non unit-linked products,
the proportion of those products with regular premium. This key parameter is one of the most important priorities
of the senior management and professionals of the life insurance operations. During the Year, regular premium
products accounted for 99.0% (2007: 98.5%) and 22.9% (2007: 17.6%) of the total non unit-linked product sales
produced by TPL’s individual agents and bancassurance channels, respectively. Such higher proportion of regular
premium product sales is very encouraging, and will continue to be the focus of TPL in the years to come. Regular
premium products have higher profit margins from an actuarial perspective and as such constitute much higher
quality business for the life insurance operations.
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MANAGEMENT REVIEW AND ANALYSIS

The higher proportion of regular premium products and their higher profitability is reflected in the significantly
higher embedded value and new business value figures of TPL for 2008, despite the adoption of more conservative
assumptions (in particular, for the investment yield to take into account the ongoing financial crisis). It is encouraging
to note that the embedded value of TPL (expressed in terms of HKD) has increased 24.3% to HK$8,548 million
from HK$6,879 million at the end of Last Year despite a lower adjusted net worth. Likewise, the new business value
after cost of capital and expense overrun for the Year increased to HK$865 million from HK$603 million at the end
of Last Year, representing a remarkable growth of 43.5%. These latest actuarial figures of TPL are disclosed below
in the section titled “Embedded Value of TPL”.

Investment Performance
The composition of investments held by TPL was as follows:
At 31 December 2008, HK$ million

Investment assets

(excluding Unit-linked Unit-linked
product assets) product assets
HK$ million % of Total HK$ million % of Total Total
Debt securities 44,945.96 77.0% 592.38 13.9% 45,538.34
Direct equity securities 1,034.86 1.8% 67.18 1.6% 1,102.04
Equity investment funds 2,418.22 4.1% 2,354.26 55.3% 4,772.48
Cash and bank deposits 9,946.20 17.1% 1,244.09 29.2% 11,190.29
Total invested assets 58,345.24 100.0% 4,257.91 100.0% 62,603.15

At 31 December 2007, HK$ million

Investment assets

(excluding Unit-linked Unit-linked
product assets) product assets
HKS$ million % of Total HK$ million % of Total Total
Debt securities 25,461.94 63.7% 228.59 5.0% 25,690.53
Direct equity securities 4,280.21 10.7% 1,5658.37 34.3% 5,833.58
Equity investment funds 2,926.16 7.3% 2,567.05 56.7% 5,4938.21
Cash and bank deposits 7,294.99 18.3% 181.16 4.0% 7,476.15
Total invested assets 39,963.30 100.0% 4,530.17 100.0% 44,493.47

During the Year, because of the extraordinarily challenging investment market conditions in the PRC, TPL was very
cautious in its asset allocation for its investment portfolio. Equity investments were significantly reduced, while
debt securities and cash and bank deposits were increased to a combined total of approximately 94.1% of TPL’s
total invested assets (excluding unit-linked product assets) as at 31 December 2008 (2007: 82.0%).
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MANAGEMENT REVIEW AND ANALYSIS

The classification of TPL’s investments in securities under HTM, AFS, DTPL and LR was as follows:

At 31 December 2008, HK$ million

HTM AFS DTPL LR Total
Debt securities 19,222.47 23,634.69 617.43 2,063.75 45,538.34
Direct equity securities — 1,034.86 67.18 — 1,102.04
Equity investment funds - 2,360.72 2,411.76 — 4,772.48
19,222.47 27,030.27 3,096.37 2,063.75 51,412.86

At 31 December 2007, HK$ million
HTM AFS DTPL LR Total
Debt securities — 25,094.06 340.16 256.31 25,690.53
Direct equity securities — 4,168.80 1,664.78 — 5,833.58
Equity investment funds — 2,220.71 3,272.50 — 5,493.21
— 31,483.57 5,277.44 256.31 37,017.32

The debt securities classified by type and class were as follows:

At 31 December, HK$ million

2008 2007

Central governments and central banks 19,204.89 13,5629.67
Banks and other financial institutions 8,465.89 2,911.76
Corporate entities 17,867.56 9,249.10
45,538.34 25,690.53
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MANAGEMENT REVIEW AND ANALYSIS

The total investment income and the investment yield of TPL on a pre-tax basis recognized in the consolidated
income statement were as follows:

For the year ended 31 December, HK$ million

2008 2007 Change
Net investment income 3,051.63 1,5691.93 91.7%
Net realized investment (losses)/gains (834.45) 3,758.60 —
Net unrealized investment (losses)/gains (1,592.69) 452.18 -
Impairment on AFS equities (94.11) — -
Total investment income 530.38 5,802.71 (90.9%)
Less: Investment (losses)/gains
attributable to unit-linked products (2,146.67) 558.12 -
Total investment income excluding
unit-linked products income 2,677.05 5,249.59 (49.0%)
Total investment yield excluding
unit-linked products income 5.3% 15.6% (10.8 pts)

TPL’s total investment income was a gain of HK$2,677.05 million for the Year, a significant decline from the profit of
HK$5,249.59 million in the Last Year. Sharp declines in equities traded in the PRC was the primary factor behind
TPL’s large investment losses, both realized and unrealized, as well as the impairment on AFS equities. Although
the recurrent income from bank deposits and fixed income securities increased significantly, it could not overcome
the significant losses in equities, which resulted in the lower total investment yield for 2008. The above-mentioned
investment income and investment yield figures do not include a net exchange loss of HK$81.66 million (2007:
HK$86.61 million).
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MANAGEMENT REVIEW AND ANALYSIS

The details of TPL's investment (loss)/income on a pre-tax basis was as follows:

56

For the year ended 31 December 2008, HK$ million

Unrealized
gains/
(losses)
Recognized in the consolidated income statement recognized
Interest Realized  Unrealized in the fair
income/ Dividend (losses)/ gains/ Sub value Grand
(expense) income gains (losses) Impairment total reserve total
Debt securities
HTM 421.65 - - - - 421.65 - 421.65
AFS 1,103.07 - (29.08) - - 1,073.99 1,380.58 2,454.57
DTPL 8.49 - 277.10 0.49 - 286.08 - 286.08
LR 42.52 - - - - 42.52 - 42.52
Direct equity securities
AFS - 23.51 815.69 - (60.00) 779.20 (1,254.28) (475.08)
DTPL - 6.83 (709.34) (317.02) - (1,019.53) - (1,019.53)
Equity investment funds
AFS - 339.75 (358.96) - (34.11) (53.32)  (1,154.85)  (1,208.17)
DTPL - 816.87 (829.86)  (1,276.16) - (1,289.15) - (1,289.15)
Cash and bank deposits 345.47 - - - - 345.47 - 345.47
Securities sold under
repurchase agreements (79.28) - - - - (79.28) - (79.28)
Others 22.75 - - - - 22.75 - 22.75
1,864.67 1,186.96 (834.45)  (1,592.69) (94.11) 530.38 (1,028.55) (498.17)
For the year ended 31 December 2007, HK$ million
Unrealized
(losses)/
gains
Recognized in the consolidated income statement recognized
Interest Realized in the fair
income/ Dividend (losses)/  Unrealized Sub value Grand
(expense) income gains gains  Impairment total reserve total
Debt securities
AFS 943.88 - (0.54) - - 943.34 (2,386.70)  (1,443.36)
DTPL 3.40 - 97.84 55.66 - 156.90 - 156.90
LR 5.65 - - - - 5.65 - 5.65
Direct equity securities
AFS - 11.93 1,879.75 - - 1,891.68 1,414.31 3,305.99
DTPL - 414 485.66 56.88 - 546.68 - 546.68
Equity investment funds
AFS - 256.30 710.94 - - 967.24 45117 1,418.41
DTPL - 366.13 584.95 339.64 - 1,290.72 - 1,290.72
Cash and bank deposits 270.31 - - - - 270.31 - 270.31
Securities sold under
repurchase agreements (285.33) - - - - (285.33) - (285.33)
Others 15.52 - - - - 15.52 - 15.52
953.43 638.50 3,758.60 452.18 - 5,802.71 (521.22) 5,281.49
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MANAGEMENT REVIEW AND ANALYSIS

Net Policyholders’ Benefits
The net policyholders’ benefits of TPL are summarized as follows:

For the year ended 31 December, HK$ million

2008 2007 Change
Net claims 592.49 459.94 28.8%
Surrenders 3,472.70 3,452.95 0.6%
Annuity and maturity payments 102.87 83.00 23.9%
Policy dividends 120.51 71.04 69.6%
4,288.57 4,066.93 5.5%
Net Commission Expenses
The net commission expenses of TPL were as follows:
For the year ended 31 December, HK$ million
2008 2007 Change
Net commission expenses 2,026.97 1,645.50 23.2%
Ratio of net commission expenses to gross
premiums written 9.6% 10.1% (0.5 pt)

Administrative and Other Expenses

The administrative and other expenses of TPL are summarized as follows:

For the year ended 31 December, HK$ million

2008 2007 Change

Staff costs 1,214.43 866.82 40.1%
Rental expenses 153.96 95.73 60.8%
Others 1,303.22 938.92 38.8%
2,671.61 1,901.47 40.5%

Financial Strength and Solvency Margin

The solvency margin ratios of TPL under the CIRC regulations were as follows:

At 31 December, RMB million

2008 2007
Actual Solvency Margin 4,740 3,501
Minimum Statutory Solvency Margin 2,175 1,625
Solvency Margin Ratio 218% 215%
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MANAGEMENT REVIEW AND ANALYSIS

PROPERTY AND CASUALTY INSURANCE BUSINESS

The Group’s property and casualty insurance segment is operated by TPI, which is a PRC-incorporated company
and is 50.05%-owned by the Group. (Previously, before 15 July 2008, TPl was an associate of ClIH and was
consolidated under the equity accounting method). It is principally engaged in the underwriting of motor, marine
and non-marine insurance policies in Mainland China.

On 15 July 2008, the Company contributed additional capital of RMB265,460,000 into TPI. With this capital
contribution, ClIH’s stake in TPI increased from 40.025% to 50.05%, allowing the Company to become the controlling
shareholder of TPI. The financial results of TPI for the period from the date of acquisition to 31 December 2008
have been consolidated into the Group financial statements on a line-by-line basis for the year ended 31 December
2008. However, the following key financial data and ratios of TPI cover the full year of 2008. Readers and investors
are advised to pay attention to these details when reading the consolidated financial statements.

For the year ended 31 December, HK$ million

2008 2007 Change
Gross premiums written 4,778.54 3,500.44 36.5%
Net premiums written 3,979.05 2,983.12 33.4%
Net earned premiums 3,660.00 2,361.69 55.0%
Net claims incurred (2,276.66) (1,381.79) 64.8%
Net commission expenses (303.45) (178.33) 70.2%
Total investment income 34.04 333.88 (89.8%)
Net exchange loss (10.78) (16.22) (33.5%)
Administrative and other expenses (1,663.43) (1,201.65) 38.4%
Finance costs (5.03) — -
Underwriting loss (593.14) (400.08) 48.3%
Loss before taxation (574.89) (92.19) 6.2 times
Loss after taxation (622.99) (145.68) 4.3 times
Loss attributable to the equity holders (280.50) (58.31) 4.8 times
— in form of associate (113.25) (568.31) —
— in form of subsidiary (167.25) — -
Technical reserves ratio 114.0% 100.9% 13.1 pts
Retained ratio 83.3% 85.2% (1.9 pts)
Earned premiums ratio 76.6% 67.5% 9.1 pts
Loss ratio 62.2% 58.5% 3.7 pts
Expense ratio ? 49.7% 46.2% 3.5 pts
Combined ratio ® 111.9 104.7 7.2 pts
! The loss ratio is based on net earned premiums.
2 The expense ratio is based on net premiums written. The management believes that calculating the expense ratio based on net premiums

written is a fairer indicator and better reflects the underwriting performance of TPI. If the net earned premiums basis is applied, then the
expense ratio would be 54.0% for the Year (2007: 58.4%).

s The combined ratio is the sum of the loss ratio and the expense ratio. If the expense ratio is based on net earned premiums, then the
combined ratio would be 116.2 for the Year (2007: 116.9).
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MANAGEMENT REVIEW AND ANALYSIS

The key operational data of the property and casualty insurance business is summarized below:

2008 2007 Change
Market share ' 1.7% 1.6% 0.1 pt
Number of provincial branches 27 22 5
Number of sub-branches and marketing centres 455 280 175
Number of in-force policies 4,417,198 3,639,279 877,919
Number of individual agents 1,338 545 793
Number of direct sales representatives 3,661 2,459 1,202
Total investment yield 2 1.1% 16.8% (15.7 pts)

! Based on gross premiums written in accordance with PRC GAAP and published by the CIRC.

2 Excluding exchange gain/(loss) incurred from foreign currency capital assets.

Loss Attributable to the Equity Holders

The property and casualty insurance business incurred a net loss to the equity holders of HK$280.50 million during
the Year (2007: HK$58.31 million). The increase in losses was mainly due to the significant increase in premiums,
which resulted in higher acquisition costs accounted for in the Year, the current lack of scale of operations, higher
claims expenses from natural disasters, and a significant decline in investment returns, primarily because of equity
investment losses from shares traded in the PRC, during the Year.

Gross Premiums Written

TPI's gross premiums written increased by 36.5% to HK$4,778.54 million from HK$3,500.44 million in the Last
Year. The detailed breakdown of TPI's gross premiums written was as follows:

For the year ended 31 December, HK$ million

Business Line 2008 % of Total 2007 % of Total
Motor 3,761.13 78.7% 2,754.99 78.7%
Marine 199.80 4.2% 160.37 4.6%
Non-marine 817.61 17.1% 585.08 16.7%

4,778.54 100.0% 3,500.44 100.0%
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MANAGEMENT REVIEW AND ANALYSIS

Net Claims Incurred

TPI's net claims incurred increased by 64.8% to HK$2,276.66 million from HK$1,381.79 million in the Last Year.
During the Year, the net retained losses arising from the snowstorm in the southern provinces of Mainland China
during January and February and the earthquake in Sichuan Province of Mainland China on 12 May were HK$68.60
million and HK$26.34 million, respectively, adding approximately 2.6 points to the incurred loss and combined
ratios. TPI's loss ratio increased slightly by approximately 1.1 percentage points in the Last Year if the snowstorm
and earthquake claims are excluded.

Combined Ratio

TPI's expense ratio, calculated based on net premiums written, increased to 49.7% from 46.2% in the Last Year.
The increase in expense ratio was due to TPI’'s continued lack of economies of scale which has resulted in relatively
high operational expenses, as well as the increasing pressures on acquisition costs due to the continued severe
and irrational competition in the PRC property and casualty insurance market. TPI’s combined ratio of 111.9 during
the Year is higher than the 104.7 in the Last Year and is not optimal. TPI's loss ratios, expense ratios and combined
ratios over the past few years were as follows:

For the year ended 31 December

2008 2007 2006

Loss ratio 62.2% 58.5% 56.6%
Expense ratio 49.7% 46.2% 44.6%
Combined ratio 111.9 104.7 101.2
Investment Performance
The composition of investments held by TPl was as follows:
At 31 December, HK$ million

2008 % of Total 2007 % of Total
Debt securities 2,105.07 51.6% 158.05 5.5%
Direct equity securities 10.29 0.3% 193.76 6.8%
Equity investment funds 351.17 8.6% 491.82 17.2%
Cash and bank deposits 1,612.70 39.5% 2,020.46 70.5%
Total invested assets 4,079.23 100.0% 2,864.09 100.0%

During the Year, because of the extraordinarily challenging investment market conditions in the PRC, TPl was very
cautious in its asset allocation for its investment portfolio. Equity investments were significantly reduced, while
debt securities and cash and bank deposits were increased to a combined total of approximately 91.1% of total
invested assets as at 31 December 2008 (2007: 76.0%).
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MANAGEMENT REVIEW AND ANALYSIS

The classification of TPI's investments in securities under HTM, AFS, DTPL and LR was as follows:

At 31 December 2008, HK$ million

HTM AFS DTPL LR Total
Debt securities 426.48 1,576.53 — 102.06 2,105.07
Direct equity securities - 10.29 — - 10.29
Equity investment funds — 351.17 — — 351.17
426.48 1,937.99 — 102.06 2,466.53

At 31 December 2007, HK$ million
HTM AFS DTPL LR Total
Debt securities — 158.05 — — 158.05
Direct equity securities — 1938.76 — — 193.76
Equity investment funds — 426.08 65.74 — 491.82
— 777.89 65.74 — 843.63

The debt securities classified by type and class were as follows:

At 31 December, HK$ million

2008 2007

Central governments and central banks 1,128.55 —
Banks and other financial institutions 616.48 116.82
Corporate entities 360.04 41.23
2,105.07 158.05

The total investment income and the investment yield of TPI's investments on a pre-tax basis recognized in the
consolidated income statement were as follows:

For the year ended 31 December, HK$ million

2008 2007 Change
Net investment income 235.30 113.63 2.1 times
Net realized investment (losses)/gains (156.29) 245.583 —
Net unrealized investment losses — (25.28) —
Impairment on AFS equities (44.97) — —
Total investment income 34.04 333.88 (89.8%)
Total investment yield 1.1% 16.8% (15.7pts)
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MANAGEMENT REVIEW AND ANALYSIS

TPI’s total investment income was HK$34.04 million for the Year, a large decline from the profit of HK$333.88
million in the Last Year. Sharp declines in equities traded in the PRC was the primary factor behind TPI’s large
investment losses, both realized and unrealized, as well as the impairment on AFS equities. Although the recurrent
income from bank deposits and fixed income securities increased substantially, it could not offset the significant
losses in equities, which resulted in the much lower total investment yield for 2008. The above-mentioned investment
income and investment yield figures do not include a net exchange loss of HK$10.78 million (2007: HK$16.22
million).

The details of TPI's investment (loss)/income on a pre-tax basis were as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2008, HK$ million

Unrealized
gains/
(losses)
Recognized in the consolidated income statement recognized
Interest Realized  Unrealized in the fair
income/ Dividend gains/ (losses)/ Sub value Grand
(expense) income (losses) gains Impairment total reserve total
Debt securities
HTM 5.30 - - - - 5.30 - 5.30
AFS 43.74 - 0.63 - - 44,37 26.56 70.93
DTPL - - - - - - - -
LR 1.61 - - - - 1.61 - 1.61
Direct equity securities
AFS - 0.70 10.89 - - 11.59 (61.52) (49.99)
Equity investment funds
AFS - 134.97 (168.18) - (44.97) (78.18) (129.59) (207.77)
DTPL - 0.02 0.37 - - 0.39 - 0.39
Cash and bank deposits 49.04 - - - - 49.04 - 49.04
Securities sold under
repurchase agreements (0.08) - - - - (0.08) - (0.08)
99.61 135.69 (156.29) - (44.97) 34.04 (164.55) (130.51)
For the year ended 31 December 2007, HK$ million
Unrealized
(losses)/
gains
Recognized in the consolidated income statement recognized
Interest Realized in the fair
income/ Dividend (losses)/  Unrealized Sub value Grand
(expense) income gains losses  Impairment total reserve total
Debt securities
AFS 13.25 - (18.42) - - (5.17) (19.64) (24.81)
Direct equity securities
AFS - 0.09 64.37 - - 64.46 96.92 161.38
DTPL - 0.10 45.46 - - 45.56 - 45.56
Equity investment funds
AFS - 42.88 35.34 - - 78.22 58.04 136.26
DTPL - 31.57 118.78 (25.28) - 125.07 - 125.07
Cash and bank deposits 27.06 - - - - 27.06 - 27.06
Securities sold under
repurchase agreements (1.32) - - - - (1.32) - (1.32)
38.99 74.64 24553 (25.28) - 333.88 135.32 469.20
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MANAGEMENT REVIEW AND ANALYSIS

Net Commission Expenses
The net commission expenses of TPl were as follows:

For the year ended 31 December, HK$ million

2008 2007 Change

Net commission expenses 303.45 178.33 70.2%
Ratio of net commission expenses to gross

premiums written 6.4% 51% 1.8 pts

Administrative and Other Expenses
The administrative and other expenses of TPl are summarized as follows:

For the year ended 31 December, HK$ million

2008 2007 Change

Staff costs 658.03 265.68 2.5 times
Rental expenses 62.13 45.69 36.0%
Business tax and additional charges 265.55 205.45 29.3%
Others 677.72 684.83 (1.0%)
1,663.43 1,201.65 38.4%

Financial Strength and Solvency Margin
The solvency margin ratios of TPl under the CIRC regulations were as follows:

At 31 December, RMB million

2008 2007
Actual Solvency Margin 919 564
Minimum Statutory Solvency Margin 532 435
Solvency Margin Ratio 173% 130%
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MANAGEMENT REVIEW AND ANALYSIS

OUTLOOK
Reinsurance Business — CIRe

The turmoil in the financial markets since the end of 2007 and continuing throughout 2008 to today has negatively
impacted the financial strength of almost all financial institutions worldwide, including reinsurers. As a result,
reinsurance capacity has decreased at a time when clients are becoming more cautious in choosing their reinsurance
counterparties. Such an environment gives an advantage to more established reinsurers, such as CIRe, over the
many start-up reinsurers which have begun operations in recent years. Clients are also now looking to spread their
reinsurance placements over several reinsurers in order to reduce their concentration risks and dependence on
specific reinsurers, having seen the rapid demise of previously well-established and prestigious international financial
institutions. Such diversification needs among clients is also an advantage for CIRe, especially in markets in which
it is not a large player.

Although CIRe has been affected by the financial turbulence (primarily equity investment losses), the reinsurance
operations have emerged from the difficult times of 2008 in relatively healthy condition. CIRe produced an operating
profit in 2008, continues to have a sound and liquid asset base, and has retained a deeply loyal and experienced
management and professional team, all of whom have seen and gone through the peaks and troughs of various
reinsurance market cycles. CIRe is thus well-positioned to take advantage of the opportunities that are now arising
amidst the ongoing financial crisis.

For the January 2009 renewals of reinsurance contracts in many Asian countries, which traditionally account for
more than half of the gross premiums written of CIRe, the pricing of the various markets have hardened by varying
degrees, with property reinsurance contracts in Mainland China having the steepest corrections in terms and
conditions, in favor of the reinsurers. In addition, thus far in 2009, the world has seen very unusual and extreme
weather patterns in many countries, which have further reaffirmed concerns over global weather changes. Such
ongoing and substantial changes in global weather will undoubtedly generate higher demand and higher pricing for
catastrophe-related reinsurance.

In pursuing such opportunities, CIRe will continue focusing on its risk management policies and seek to further
enhance its catastrophe and financial modeling capabilities. CIRe will also maintain its long established conservative
underwriting policy in controlling its risks and exposures. Within its core markets in Asia, CIRe is optimistic about
business growth and development prospects in the short-to medium-term. With the opening of the Beijing branch,
CIRe’s prospects and capabilities for serving the vast potential of the reinsurance market of Mainland China have
improved substantially. With the economy likely to continue growing at relatively fast rates over the long term and
with insurance still very much under-penetrated in the country, CIRe believes that Mainland China will be a key
driver of its growth in the years to come.

The difficult year of 2008 has further concentrated the minds of CIRe’s senior management and professionals on
the importance of basic principles and the necessity for strict discipline in carefully and constantly evaluating
reinsurance risks, insisting on risks commensurate with terms and conditions, and striving to provide the most
efficient and world-class customer services to its clients. Given the continued uncertainty and volatility of global
capital markets, the investment policies and investment portfolio will continue to be managed in a conservative and
prudent fashion, with a special emphasis placed upon risk management and conservative asset allocation. With
such old fashioned, but durable, values and principles, CIRe is highly confident of being able to continue delivering
its promises to its clients and shareholders, and remains an admired Chinese reinsurer in the global markets.
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MANAGEMENT REVIEW AND ANALYSIS

Life Insurance Business — TPL

The senior management and professionals of TPL are cautiously optimistic for the prospects of the PRC life insurance
industry in 2009. Although the current global economic slowdown has also impacted the PRC, it is expected that
China’s economy will be resilient and still manage to produce relatively attractive economic expansion during the
coming year. With life insurance penetration still at very low levels, the prospects for the PRC life insurance market
remain very bright over the long term.

In 2009, TPL has launched a major initiative to further reinforce and strengthen its prioritization of regular premium
sales. TPL intends to grow its regular premium sales at both its individual agency and bancassurance distribution
channels at rates which are much higher than industry averages. Sales and management professionals at all levels
of management will be evaluated and assessed based on regular premium sales production, which will be heavily
weighted in the overall evaluation. Overall, TPL is highly confident that its strategic prioritization of regular premium
sales in the years to come is the best next step for the life insurance operations, and is the most optimal and
prudent strategy to take under any macroeconomic condition or scenario in the PRC now and in the future.

TPL will also continue to focus heavily on maintaining effective cost controls throughout its organization. While
building scale and further expanding its network infrastructure throughout China will be pursued (25 new
sub-branches and 100 marketing centres are planned to be opened in 2009), effective expense management will
continue to be focused upon. Given the continued uncertainty and volatility of global capital markets, the investment
policies and investment portfolio will continue to be managed in a conservative and prudent fashion, with a special
emphasis placed upon risk management and conservative asset allocation.

Property and Casualty Insurance Business — TPI

In the near term, the fundamentals and competitive conditions of the PRC property and casualty insurance industry
remain challenging. Following a disappointing year of operational performance, the senior management and
professionals of TPI have placed the utmost priority on loss and expense controls. Although TPI will likely again
produce operational losses in 2009, its rigid and strict focus on reigning in losses and expenses, in combination
with a carefully planned and coordinated expansion of premium growth, should allow TPI to eventually achieve the
economies of scale necessary for sustainable profitability. TPl hopes to be able to consistently achieve combined
ratios of below 100 sometime within the next 3 to 5 years.

In 2009, TPI will launch a new initiative for centralized underwriting for all of its retail, motor insurance business and
will also introduce a more sophisticated and refined control system on fixed and variable costs. Previously, underwriting
for motor insurance was conducted at the branch level. Now, such underwriting must take place at TPI's central
headquarters in Shenzhen, with policy issuance conducted at the branch level. Although such a structure and
change of cost controls may result in lower premiums being written in the short term, TPI firmly believes that the
benefits from centralized underwriting are significant, particularly in further professionalising TPI’'s underwriting
capabilities and best allowing the property and casualty insurance business to achieve higher risk quality, more
efficient loss control, and better branch utilization.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group’s cash and bank deposits as at 31 December 2008 amounted to HK$15,620.70 million (2007:
HK$10,520.27 million). There was no bank borrowing during the Year except for certain temporary bank overdrafts
for insignificant amounts. The interest-bearing notes as at 31 December 2008 amounted to HK$5,376.03 million
(2007: HK$2,960.38 million). The gearing ratio, which represents interest-bearing notes issued divided by the total
assets of the Group, was 6.7% as at 31 December 2008 (2007: 5.3%).

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

During the Year, the Company issued 6,449,000 new shares (2007: 9,021,000 shares) for cash under the Company’s
employee share option scheme. Net proceeds received for the shares issued for cash in aggregate amounted to
HK$15.41 million (2007: HK$22.35 million).

74 China Insurance International Holdings Company Limited  Annual Report 2008



TR

¥ [ (Bl A A O AT

ABRBER - KFAS

KFABNRREEENEZXABHTEASRRER _STNFOISHRELERE - BRRLEARRIRSEHE
EFE  BEREFTELESSREER - DEFERARS N ZEBERERE - ERASRBSBEREARE - K
ERF - PEABRRTSOARDA—F LR -

“ETNE - KTABHTEREK £ PIARZESARENHEE - ATASHEZEBAAREREMRITRIBEREDN
HHREBHEEADEERNTETIKTNER - HEREEENEXHERERBASHEUBREREHEEMSERTE
FHE - MARRBHEERHERENGEESNLE - BB L AFASREEL - ERRBF AR ERRMERMR
BEMHE  TEARARTETAZBLERSBER MR SEE LFRA R -

KEASTHEBS TRERBORANES - E2PEBRAEMNSEEREEEER GIER ST NFHARBFTHNX
RAIRIORMHHEED L) AR - BESEEETATARINERER - ERNRLEARNTISZESFHETREASORE - i
BAEBABREENREFTRERRLERBREMAS  ERFIERARERE MIRIUSRNEER BRI -

MERBER - KFRR

PEMERRFEHANERERBEFREDTMAB - DEEFEEEEREAR  AFRBROSAEEENREXZAERE
RIEEFRN R BRI SELRESEE - #FANTFREBR _ZTNFHAEEEEEREER - BREERMEENREN R
EREFIER  RARESNATLHNREERRE - B K HRIREZABAFERMENMUTORREH - X
FREMEBNRAR=ZEAFEEHFARAEAFERNI00W L RRHE o

R-ZTNEF » KFREBEHETETE ROTERREBHET 2IH T RAGR BE 55| B HEE SASHERO B E K A # AR
HFRLE o TERBRAEHD AR B EAR - BERAEKHREHRYEEEIAR - ADARBEZELRE - #HAULRE
B RAEH B RS EEARRERERNRD - BEAFRERARE - HRARBIER@BEE - LR HRERAAIREE
E—HEXL  SMERREBEFRSEHRAREE  ERMENRNEEIIESD ABIRRE -

RBEERMBEER

RZZZNF+ZA=+—H  FEENHR© RRITFRR166.2070EE T (ZTTAF : 106.20271887T) ° lrET/8&
RSIRITE AN - AEEATEEARITEE - —ZTT/\F+ - A=1+—"HANERELTERG3.7603FET (ZTTLF :
29.6038(E/87T) - —ETN\F+_-A=1T—HEHETANEREZERUAEEREEMSHNERLER/6.7% (CTTLF

5.3%) °

BEXER

REERBEARNRVEERREE - NATIARE BHREETT6,449,000BF R (ZTZ L5 : 9,021,000/%) ° E1THAIE
BREWAREFRR/ SMNEBET(CTTLF 1 2,236887T) °

FREBZERER AT 2008 F ik 75



MANAGEMENT REVIEW AND ANALYSIS

STAFF AND STAFF REMUNERATION

As at 31 December 2008, the Group had a total of 24,048 employees (2007: 9,925 employees), an increase of
14,123 employees. Total remuneration for the Year amounted to HK$1,799.14 million (2007: HK$1,130.63 million),
an increase of 59.1%. Bonuses are linked to both the performance of the Group and the performance of the
individual.

MAJOR EVENT DURING THE YEAR

On 20 March 2008, TPL entered into a Joint Bidding Agreement with TPI, CIHC and The Ming An Insurance Company
(China) Limited (“Ming An China”) in relation to the purchase of a piece of land in Shenzhen and development of a
commercial office building. The amount to be invested by TPL was agreed to be RMB289,000,000.

On 30 June 2008, ClIH entered into the conditional capital contribution agreement with CIHC, ICBC (Asia) and TPI
pursuant to which CIHC and the Company agreed to contribute, in cash, in aggregate an amount of RMB270,000,000
as additional registered capital into TPI. Of the aggregate amount, RMB4,540,000 was to be contributed by CIHC
and RMB265,460,000 was to be contributed by ClIH. ICBC (Asia) decided to not participate in the capital contribution.
TPl is an associated company of the Company, in which ClIH holds a 40.025% equity interest prior to the capital
contribution. Upon completion, each of CIHC, the Company and ICBC (Asia) was directly interested in 42.020%,
50.050% and 7.930%, respectively, of the equity interests in TPI. On 30 June 2008, CIHC, ClIH and ICBC (Asia)
also entered into the conditional option deed pursuant to which CIHC agreed to grant the right to ICBC (Asia) at nil
consideration to, conditional upon completion, acquire from CIHC the equity interest of approximately 1.647% in
TPI as enlarged by the capital contribution for a consideration of RMB25,858,900 within six months from the date
of the option deed, or such later date as the parties may extend pursuant to the terms of the option deed. The
option will be exercisable at the option of ICBC (Asia), and if exercised by ICBC (Asia), will have to be exercised in
full. The Company has waived its right to purchase the option interest if the option is exercised by ICBC (Asia). The
capital contribution agreement and the option deed were approved by the Independent Shareholders of ClIH at an
extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 15 July 2008.

On 5 November 2008, TPI and TPL entered into a supplemental agreement in relation to the purchase of land and
the development of the property in Shenzhen with CIHC and Ming An China to amend the total investment amount
from the parties as set out in the joint bidding agreement dated 20 March 2008. According to the joint bidding
agreement, the percentages of the total investment amount for the transaction required from each of TPI, CIHC,
TPL and Ming An China were 15%, 55%, 15% and 15%, respectively. Under the supplemental agreement, the
percentages of the total investment amount for the transaction required from each of TPI, CIHC, TPL and Ming An
China was amended to be 15%, 5%, 65% and 15%, respectively. TPl and TPL are expected to invest a total of
approximately RMB289,000,000 and RMB1,251,000,000, respectively, for the transaction under the supplemental
agreement. The purchase of the land was completed in April 2008 and the construction of the property is expected
to commence in early 2009 and will last for a period of three years with a tentative completion date set to be in the
second half of 2011. The joint bidding agreement and supplemental agreement were approved by the independent
shareholders of ClIH at an extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 9 December 2008.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group has received a query issued by the Inland Revenue Department of Hong Kong in relation to the taxability
of certain investment income from its offshore investments for the years of assessment from 1999 to 2006. The
directors consider that the Group has a strong legal base to support its tax position. As such, no provision for a
potential tax exposure of approximately HK$31,600,000 (2007: HK$31,600,000) was made at 31 December 2008.

Save as herein disclosed and other than those incurred in the normal course of the Group’s insurance businesses,
there were no outstanding litigation nor any other contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2008.
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EMBEDDED VALUE OF TPL

1. BACKGROUND

The Group consists of three major business segments, which are the reinsurance business, life insurance
business and property and casualty business. In particular, the life insurance segment operated by TPL, a
50.05%-owned subsidiary, has become an increasingly significant part of the Group in terms of gross premiums
written, total assets and profitability. In order to provide investors with additional parameters to evaluate the
profitability and valuation of TPL, the Group has decided to disclose the Embedded Value and New Business
Value of TPL. The Embedded Value consists of the shareholders’ adjusted net worth plus the present value of
future expected cash flows to shareholders from the in-force business, less the cost of holding regulatory
solvency capital to support the in-force business. The New Business Value represents an actuarially determined
estimate of the economic value arising from the new life insurance business issued during the past one year.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

The Group has appointed PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC”), an international firm of consulting actuaries, to
examine whether the methodology and assumptions used by TPL in the preparation of the embedded value
and the new business value as at 31 December 2008 are consistent with standards generally adopted by
insurance companies in the PRC. In the opinion of the management, PwC has not identified material
inconsistencies between the methodology and assumptions used by TPL and those under the standards
generally adopted by insurance companies in the PRC.

3. CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

The calculations of embedded value and the new business value are based on certain assumptions with
respect to future experience and thus the actual results could differ significantly from what is envisioned when
these calculations are made. From an investor’s perspective, the valuation of the Company is measured by
the stock market price of the Company’s shares on any particular day. In valuing the Company’s shares,
investors should take into account not only the embedded value and the new business value, but also various
other considerations. In addition, TPL is 50.05%-owned by the Company. The embedded value and the new
business value as at 31 December 2008 as disclosed below should therefore not be applied 100% in valuing
the Company. Investors are advised to pay particular attention to this factor, as well as the other assumptions
underlying the calculations of the embedded value and new business value of TPL, if they believe such
calculations are important and material to the valuation of the Company.
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EMBEDDED VALUE OF TPL

4. EMBEDDED VALUE

At 31 December, HK$ million

2008 2007
Adjusted net worth a 3,083 3,368
Value of inforce business before cost
of capital and expense overrun b 7,069 4,593
Cost of capital c 1,201 640
Expense overrun d 403 442
Value of inforce business after cost of
capital and expense overrun e=b-c-d 5,465 3,511
Embedded Value f=a+e 8,548 6,879

Adjusted net worth is the audited shareholders’ net assets of TPL as measured on a PRC statutory basis.

5. NEW BUSINESS VALUE

At 31 December, HK$ million

2008 2007
New business value before cost of
capital and expense overrun a 2,099 1,445
Cost of capital b 398 225
Expense overrun c 836 617
New business value after cost of
capital and expense overrun d=a-b-c 865 603

TPL's expense overrun is due to its significant investments in establishing a branch network infrastructure,
initiating relationships with business partners, establishing computer systems and hiring a highly professional
management team. As such expense overrun is due to the start-up costs of beginning and expanding upon
TPL’s business operations, the management of the Group and TPL believe that the expense overrun will
diminish over time as TPL’s scale of operations increases in the future.
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EMBEDDED VALUE OF TPL
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MOVEMENT ANALYSIS OF EMBEDDED VALUE

The following analysis shows the movement of the Embedded Value (after expense overrun) from 1 January

2008

to 31 December 2008.

HK$ million

Notes
Embedded Value as at 1 January 2008 6,879
New business value a 865
Expected return on Embedded Value b 635
Assumption and modeling changes c (200)
Investment return variance d (442)
Expense variance e (59)
Income tax variance f 318
Other experience variance g 123
Exchange gain h 429
Embedded Value as at 31 December 2008 8,548

Notes:
(@)
(b)
()

(d)
(e)
(0
()

(h)

New business contribution from sales of new business in 2008.
Return on value of in-force business plus expected interest on adjusted net assets.

Changes from model improvements and assumption changes having impact on the future distributable earnings of the in-force
business.

Difference between the actual investment return and expected investment return in 2008.
Difference between the actual and expected expense in 2008.
Difference between the actual and expected income tax in 2008.

Difference between actual experience and expected experience mainly including mortality, morbidity, lapse, business tax and policyholder
dividends.

Exchange gain arising from appreciation of RMB.

KEY ASSUMPTIONS

TPL has adopted the best estimate approach in setting the assumptions used in the calculation of its embedded

value

and new business value. The assumptions have been based on the actual experience of TPL and certain

benchmarks set by referencing general PRC economic conditions and the experience of other life insurance
companies.
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EMBEDDED VALUE OF TPL

7.1 Risk discount rate

The risk discount rate represents the long-term, post-tax cost of capital of the investor for whom the
valuation is made, together with an allowance for risk, taking into account factors such as the political
and economic environment in the PRC.

As calculated, the discount rate is equal to the risk-free rate plus a risk premium. The risk free rate is
based on the PRC ten-year government bond and the risk premium reflects the risk associated with
future cash flows, including all of the risks which have not been considered in the valuation.

The risk discount rate currently applied by TPL is 11.5% for all in force and new business.

7.2 Investment return

Future investment returns have been calculated as the weighted average of the investment returns on
existing assets and new assets assuming an investment return of 4.2% (2007: 5.0%) on new assets
from fixed income securities. The investment returns on existing assets have been determined by the
projected investment income in future years divided by the projected value of the assets. The calculation
of projected investment income and the value of assets are based on yield to maturity, term to maturity

and the book value of the assets.

The investment returns have been assumed to be 4.0% in 2009 (2007: assumed to be 4.57% in 2008),
increasing to 4.5% in 2020 and thereafter (2007: 5.0% in 2026 and thereafter).

7.3 Expenses
Expenses have been projected based on benchmark assumptions. The expense overrun is derived from
TPL’s recent experience studies, and is applied to both the value of inforce business and new business
value.

7.4 Tax
The tax rate is assumed to be 25% according to the tax regulations in the PRC.

7.5 Mortality
The experience mortality rates have been based on 70% of the China Life (2000-2003) table for non-
annuities, with a three-year selection period. For annuitants, 80% and 70% of the China Life Annuity
(2000-2003) table for males and females, respectively, have been assumed.

7.6 Morbidity
The experience morbidity assumptions have been based on the Group’s own pricing tables. The loss

ratios for short term accident and health insurance business have been assumed to be in the range of
21% to 75%.
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EMBEDDED VALUE OF TPL

7.7 Lapses

The lapse assumptions have been based on TPL's actuarial pricing assumptions and adjusted to reflect
the results of its recent experience studies.

7.8 Required capital
The required capital has been based on 120% of minimum solvency margin (2007: 100%).
8. SENSITIVITY TESTING
The sensitivity testing in respect of the following key assumptions are summarized below:

At 31 December 2008, HK$ million

Value of inforce New business
business after cost value after cost of
of capital and capital and
Assumptions expense overrun expense overrun
Base scenario 5,465 865
Risk discount rate of 10.5% 5,964 1,050
Risk discount rate of 12.5% 5,082 705
Investment return increased by 25bp every year 6,037 1,034
Investment return decreased by 25bp every year 4,978 697
10% increase in maintenance expenses 5,265 794
10% decrease in maintenance expenses 5,664 938
10% increase in mortality and
morbidity rates and claims ratio 5,388 846
10% decrease in mortality and
morbidity rates and claims ratio 5,542 887
10% increase in lapse rates 5,426 843
10% decrease in lapse rates 5,502 889
Policyholder dividend increased to 80% 5,136 736
Lapse rates for Universal Life increased
to 50% at the end of the 10th policy year 5,335 866
Required capital at 100% of solvency margin 5,716 948
Required capital at 150% of solvency margin 5,036 730
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lin Fan, aged 50, is the chairman and an executive director of the Company. Mr. Lin was appointed as the vice
president of CIHC and CIHK in July 1999, a managing director of CIHC and CIHK in July 2000, and the vice
chairman of CIHC and CIHK in August 2004. He was appointed as the general manager of CIHC and CIHK in May
2005, and the chairman of CIHC and CIHK in August 2008. Mr. Lin was a director of TPI from December 2001 to
December 2006. He is currently the chairman and a non-executive director of The Ming An (Holdings) Company
Limited. Mr. Lin is an insurance specialist with more than 29 years of experience in the insurance industry. Mr. Lin
was the deputy general manager of the People’s Insurance Company of China (“PICC”), Guangzhou Branch from
September 1990 to September 1996 and the general manager of PICC, Shenzhen Branch from September 1996 to
July 1999.

Mr. Song Shuguang, aged 47, is the vice chairman and an executive director of the Company, and is responsible
for the life insurance operations of TPL. Mr. Song holds a Bachelor degree in Economics from Jilin University and a
Master degree in Economics from the Postgraduate School of Jilin University. Mr. Song has been a managing
director of CIHC since June 2002 and a managing director of CIHK since August 2002. He was appointed as the
general manager of CIHC and CIHK in August 2008. He has been the chairman of TPL from November 2004 to
November 2008. He was appointed as a director of TPP since December 2004 and a director of TPAM since
February 2007. Mr. Song was the deputy director of the General Affairs Department and Policy & Legal and Policy
Research of the State Planning Commission of the PRC from August 1985 to September 1993; the division chief
and departmental deputy general manager of PICC from October 1993 to October 1998; and the chief head of the
Finance & Accounting Department of the CIRC from November 1998 to April 2000.

Mr. Xie Yiqun, aged 48, is an executive director of the Company. Mr. Xie graduated from the Insurance, Finance
Department of Nankai University, Tianjin, China. He holds a Master degree in Administration from Middlesex University
Business School in the United Kingdom, and has over 25 years of experience in the insurance and finance industries.
Mr. Xie has been the general manager of the Foreign Business Department of PICC of China, Zheijing Branch and
the deputy general manager of the Wenzhou Branch respectively. He has been the director and general manager of
China Insurance Co. (UK) Ltd. and China Insurance Co., (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. Mr. Xie was the chairman of TPL from
December 2001 to November 2004. Mr. Xie has been a managing director and deputy general manager of CIHC
and CIHK since June 2004 and is responsible for the asset management and overseas operations. He has been the
chief executive officer of CIGAML since November 2004 and was appointed as chairman of CIGAML since November
2008. Mr. Xie was appointed as chairman of TPAM since February 2007 and the chairman of China Insurance
Group Securities Holdings Limited since November 2008.

Mr. He Zhiguang, aged 49, was appointed as an executive director of the Company on 12 March 2009. Mr. He
holds a Master degree in Business Administration jointly awarded by the East China University of Science and
Technology, China and the University of Canberra, Australia. Mr. He previously served as Deputy Head of life insurance
division of the Guangxi Branch of PICC, Deputy General Manager of the Wuzhou Branch of PICC, General Manager
(life insurance) of Shanghai Branch of Ping An Insurance (Group) Company of China, Limited. Mr. He was the
General Manager of TPL from April 2001 to December 2008 and Chairman of TPP from December 2004 to December
2008. He has been appointed as Deputy General Manager of CIHC and Chairman of TPL since November 2008
and January 2009, respectively. Mr. He is a director of TPL, TPP and TPAM.
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Mr. Ng Yu Lam Kenneth, aged 60, is the chief executive officer and an executive director of the Company. Mr. Ng
is a fellow of the Chartered Insurance Institute of the United Kingdom. He has more than 30 years of experience in
the insurance industry. Mr. Ng is a managing director and assistant president of CIHK, the chairman and chief
executive officer of CIRe and a director of TPL and TPI. In December 1980, Mr. Ng joined CIRe and was appointed
as the chief executive officer and chairman of CIRe in 2004 and 2008 respectively.

Mr. Shen Koping Michael, aged 40, is the deputy chief executive officer and an executive director of the Company.
He was previously the chief financial officer of the Company. Mr. Shen is also the deputy managing director and a
director of CIGAML, and is a member of the board of supervisors of TPL. Prior to joining the Company, he was an
executive director in the Financial Institutions Group of the Investment Banking Division at Goldman Sachs (Asia)
L.L.C. ("“Goldman Sachs”). Mr. Shen was responsible for marketing and executing corporate finance and mergers/
acquisitions transactions for financial institutions in the Asia ex-Japan region. During his seven years at Goldman
Sachs, Mr. Shen developed in-depth knowledge in advising insurance and asset management companies on strategic
and operational matters. Mr. Shen received a Juris Doctorate degree with honors in 1994 from Harvard Law School,
where he was an executive editor of the Harvard Law Review. Mr. Shen graduated as the valedictorian of his class
and received a Bachelor of Science in Foreign Service with highest honors in 1991 from Georgetown University,
where he majored in International Politics/Relations.

Mr. Lau Siu Mun Sammy, aged 50, is an executive director of the Company, and is responsible for the reinsurance
operations of CIRe. Mr. Lau is also a director of TPI, CIRe and SINO-RE. Mr. Lau holds a Bachelor of Business Administration
degree from the Chinese University of Hong Kong. He is a fellow of the Chartered Insurance Institute of the United
Kingdom. Mr. Lau joined CIRe in July 1981. He has been the general manager of CIRe since March 2004.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Li Tao, aged 36, was appointed as a non-executive director of the Company on 12 March 2009. Mr. Li holds a
Bachelor of Arts degree from Wuhan University, China. He is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants of the United Kingdom. Mr. Li previously served at the Business Assurance Division of Coopers
& Lybrand in London and the Life Insurance Division of CIRC. He subsequently served as the manager in the
Internal Audit Department and Accounts Department of American International Assurance Company Limited, Shanghai
Branch. Mr. Li was the chief financial officer of TPL from October 2001 to October 2008. He has been appointed as
the chief financial officer of CIHC and CIHK since November 2008.

Dr. Wu Jiesi, aged 57, is an independent non-executive director of the Company. He is also the chairman of the
audit committee and a member of the remuneration committee of the Company. Dr. Wu holds a Doctorate degree
in Economics. Dr. Wu has extensive experience in finance and management. He conducted post-doctorate research
work in theoretical economics at the Nankai University in the PRC and was conferred a professorship qualification
by the University in 2001. Dr. Wu served in various capacities with ICBC from 1984 to 1995 and was the president
of ICBC Shenzhen Branch. He subsequently served as the deputy mayor of the Shenzhen Municipal Government
between 1995 and 1998. Dr. Wu was an assistant to the governor of Guangdong Province from 1998 to 2000.
From 2000 to 2005, he acted as a chairman of Guangdong Yue Gang Investment Holdings Company Limited and
GDH Limited. He also has been the honorary president of Guangdong Investment Limited and Guangdong Tannery
Limited. Dr. Wu was the managing director and chief executive officer of Hopson Development Holdings Limited
from April 2005 to January 2008. He also has been the independent non-executive director of Yingli Green Energy
Holding Company Limited (listed on the New York Stock Exchange) from May 2007 to August 2008. Dr. Wu is an
executive director and vice chairman of China Aoyuan Property Group Limited. He is also the chairman of Zhonghui
Mining Industry Africa Limited, an independent non-executive director of Beijing Enterprises Holdings Limited and
China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd., non-executive director of China Water Affairs Group Limited, Shenzhen Investment
Limited and Silver Base Group Holdings Limited and director of China Life Franklin Asset Management Co., Limited.
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Mr. Che Shujian, aged 65, is an independent non-executive director of the Company. Mr. Che is a qualified senior
engineer of economic management. He graduated from the School of Economics of Jilin University in China and
has extensive experience in economic development and corporate management. Mr. Che was the dean of the
designing laboratory, the deputy director and subsequently the director of the Northeast Academy of the China
Civil Engineering Institute from 1968 to 1991. He was the director of the Administrative Affairs Office of the Ministry
of Construction and Development of the State Council of China from 1991 to 1998. Mr. Che subsequently acted as
a specially appointed investigator of the State Council of China from 1998 to 2000. He was an independent non-
executive director of China Overseas Land & Investment Ltd. from 2002 to 2003 and a director of China Overseas
Holdings Limited, the holding company of China Overseas Land & Investment Ltd., from 2002 to 2003. Mr. Che
was the chairman of China Travel International Investment Hong Kong Limited and China Travel Service (Holdings)
Hong Kong Limited, the holding company of China Travel International Investment Hong Kong Limited from 2000 to
2006.

Mr. Lau Wai Kit, aged 46, is an independent non-executive director of the Company. Mr. Lau holds a Bachelor of
Law degree and a Postgraduate Certificate in Law from the University of Hong Kong. Mr. Lau has over 13 years of
experience in practicing law and is a solicitor of the High Court of Hong Kong, an attorney and counselor at law of
the Supreme Court of the State of California, a solicitor of the Supreme Court of England and Wales, and an
advocate and solicitor of the Supreme Court of Singapore. He is currently a partner of Gobi Partners, Inc., a China-
based venture capital firm that focuses on digital media investments. Mr. Lau is also the chairman of the Diamondlite
Group, a jewelry manufacturer headquartered in Hong Kong. He is also an independent non-executive director of
Tianjin Development Holdings Limited and Shandong Weigao Group Medical Polymer Company Limited and an
independent director of WSP Holdings Limited.

COMPANY SECRETARY AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

Mr. Chan Man Ko, aged 34, is the chief financial officer of the Company. He is also the Company’s company
secretary. Mr. Chan holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in Accountancy. He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and holds a practicing certificate. He is also an associate of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales (“ICAEW?”). Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Chan was an audit
manager in the Financial Institutions Group of an international auditing and accounting company.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The directors respectfully submit their annual report together with the audited financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2008.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of Company is investment holding. The principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are
the underwriting of all classes of global reinsurance business, direct life insurance business in the PRC and direct
property and casualty insurance business in the PRC. Apart from these core businesses, the Group also carries on
operations in assets management, insurance intermediaries and pensions, and to support its insurance activities,
holds money market, fixed income, equity and property investments. The principal activities and other particulars
of the subsidiaries are set out in note 17 of the consolidated financial statements.

The analysis of the principal activities and geographical locations of the operations of the Company and its subsidiaries
during the financial year are set out in note 3 of the consolidated financial statements.

The only information which the Company has maintained relating to its operating results by geographical area is
the geographical analysis of its turnover. The directors believe that an analysis of the profit contributions from each
geographical area is not required for a proper appraisal of its businesses.

MAJOR INSURANCE CUSTOMERS

The information in respect of the Group’s gross premiums written and policy fees attributable to major insurance
customers during the financial year is as follows:

Percentage of the
Group’s total gross
premiums written
and policy fees

The largest insurance customer 0.4%
Five largest insurance customers in aggregate 1.2%

Included in the five largest insurance customers in aggregate, representing approximately 0.2% of the total gross
premiums written and policy fees, were connected parties of which the shareholder of the Company (which to the
knowledge of the directors own more than 5.0% of the Company’s share capital) had an interest.

Other than as disclosed above, at no time during the Year have the directors, their associates or any shareholder of

the Company (which to the knowledge of the directors own more than 5.0% of the Company’s share capital) had
any interest in these major insurance customers.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The loss of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2008 and the state of the Company’s and the Group’s
affairs at that date are set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 136 to 274.

No interim dividend was declared during the Year (2007: Nil). The directors did not recommend the payment of a
final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2008 (2007: HK 10 cents per share).

FIXED ASSETS
Details of the movements in fixed assets are set out in note 15 of the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

During the Year, shares were issued upon the exercise of options under the Company’s share option scheme.
Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the Year are set out in note 37 of the consolidated
financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries have purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in reserves of the Company and the Group during the Year are set out in note 38 of the
consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2008, the Company did not have any distributable reserves available for distribution (2007:
HK$220.32 million). In addition, the Company’s share premium account of HK$2,218.25 million (2007: HK$2,201.06
million) as at 31 December 2008 may be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

DONATIONS

During the Year, the Group made charitable donations of HK$6.51 million (2007: HK0.46 million), most of which
were donated to the relief aid efforts for the snowstorm in Southern China and the earthquake in Sichuan Province.
In addition, during the Year, the staff of the Group made charitable donations of HK$5.34 million to the relief aid
efforts of the earthquake in Sichuan Province.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

DIRECTORS
The directors during the Year and up to the date of this annual report were:
Executive directors

Feng Xiaozeng (resigned on 7 November 2008)
Lin Fan

Song Shuguang

Xie Yigun

He Zhiguang (appointed on 12 March 2009)
Ng Yu Lam Kenneth

Shen Koping Michael

Lau Siu Mun Sammy

Non-executive directors

Zheng Changyong (resigned on 12 March 2009)
Li Tao (appointed on 12 March 2009)

Wu Jiesi*

Che Shujian*

Lau Wai Kit *

* Independent

In accordance with Article 93 and 97 of the Company’s articles of association, Messrs. Xie Yiqun, He Zhiguang, Ng
Yu Lam Kenneth, Li Tao, Wu Jiesi and Lau Wai Kit, shall retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at
the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

The proposed appointments will not have any specific term, but will be subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the Company’s Annual General Meeting in accordance with the Company’s articles of association.

Subject to the approval of the shareholders at the Company’s Annual General Meeting, the emoluments of the
directors will be determined by the Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors of the Company.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received annual confirmation from each of the independent non-executive directors in regards
to their independence from the Company and considers that each of the independent non-executive directors is
independent from the Company.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Messrs. Ng Yu Lam Kenneth and Lau Siu Mun Sammy have entered into service contracts with the Company on 29
May 2000 for an initial period of three years commencing from 1 April 2000. Mr. Shen Koping Michael has entered
into a service contract with the Company on 23 July 2002 for an initial period of two years commencing from 15
July 2002. The respective contracts shall continue after their respective initial periods unless and until terminated
by either party to such contracts by giving three months’ written notice to the other party.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting has an unexpired service contract
which is not determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year without payment of compensation,
other than normal statutory obligations.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTEREST AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2008, the interests or short positions of the directors and chief executive in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
as recorded in the register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies
were as follows:

Long Positions in shares and underlying shares of the Company:

Underlying
Shares shares Percentage
Personal Family pursuant to Awarded Total of issued
Name of directors interests interests share options shares interests share capital
(Note 1) (Note 2) %
Lin Fan 770,000 — 3,200,000 — 3,970,000 0.28
Song Shuguang — — 800,000 — 800,000 0.06
Xie Yiqun — — 500,000 — 500,000 0.04
He Zhiguang — — 800,000 240,000 1,040,000 0.07
Ng Yu Lam, Kenneth 2,166,000 693,000 1,400,000 82,000 4,341,000 0.31
Shen Koping, Michael 4,279,000 - 875,000 22,000 5,176,000 0.36
Lau Siu Mun, Sammy 1,006,000 — 1,150,000 67,000 2,223,000 0.16
Li Tao — — — 130,000 130,000 0.01

Notes:

(1) These figures represent interests of options granted to the directors under the Share Option Scheme of the Company adopted on 23
January 2003 to acquire shares of the Company, further details of which are set out in the section “Share Option Scheme”.

2) These figures represent interests of awarded shares granted, but not yet vested, to the directors under the Employees’ Share Award

Scheme of the Company adopted on 10 September 2007, details of which are set out in the section “Share Award Scheme”.

Save as disclosed above:

(A)  none of the directors of the Company had any interest or short position in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO);
and

(B) during the Year, no directors of the Company nor any of their spouses or children under the age of 18 years

held any rights to subscribe for equity or debt securities of the Company nor had there been any exercise of
any such rights by any of them.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted the Old Scheme on 24 May 2000 whereby the directors of the Company were authorized,
at their discretion, to invite employees of the Group, including directors of any company in the Group, to take up
options to subscribe for shares of the Company. The exercise price of options was determined by the board of
directors and would not be less than the nominal value of the shares or 80.0% of the average of the closing prices
of the shares on the Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding the date on which an option
is offered. The options are exercisable for a period of ten years commencing from the date on which an option is
accepted.

No employee shall be granted an option, which, if exercised in full, would result in such employee becoming entitled
to subscribe for such number of shares as, when aggregated with the total number of shares already issued to him
under all options previously granted to him which have been exercised and issuable to him under all the options
previously granted to him which are for the time being subsisting and unexercised, would exceed 25.0% of the
aggregate number of shares for the time being issued and issuable under the Old Scheme.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may be granted under the Old Scheme may not (when
aggregated with shares subject to any other employee share option scheme) exceed in nominal 10.0% of the
issued share capital of the Company from time to time, excluding for this purpose any shares which have been duly
allotted and issued pursuant to the Old Scheme.

At the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 7 January 2003, the shareholders of the Company
approved the adoption of the New Scheme and the termination of the Old Scheme. The New Scheme is in line with
the prevailing requirements of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules in relation to share option schemes. All options
granted under the Old Scheme shall continue to be valid and exercisable in accordance with the terms of the Old
Scheme.

The purpose of the New Scheme is for the Company to attract, retain and motivate participants to strive for the
future development and expansion of the Group and to provide the Company with a flexible means of giving incentive
to, rewarding, remunerating, compensating and/or providing benefits to the eligible participants and for such other
purposes as may be approved from time to time.

Eligible participants of the New Scheme include any executive or non-executive directors of the Group or any
employees (whether full-time or part-time) of the Group; any discretionary objects of a discretionary trust established
by any employees, executive or non-executive directors of the Group; any consultants and professional advisers to
the Group; any chief executives or substantial shareholders of the Company; any associates of director, chief
executive or substantial shareholder of the Company; and any employees of substantial shareholders of the Company,
as absolutely determined by the Board of Directors.

The New Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years commencing on the Adoption Date, after
which period no further options will be granted but in respect of all options which remain exercisable at the end of
the period, the provisions of the New Scheme shall remain in full force and effect. The remaining life of the New
Scheme as at 31 December 2008 was 4 years.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the New Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company shall not in aggregate exceed 10.0% of the total number of
Shares in issue as at the Adoption Date, which was 132,533,159 Shares. As at the date of this annual report, a
total of 76,494,159 Shares (representing approximately 5.4% of the issued share capital of the Company as at the
date of this annual report) are available for grant under the New Scheme. Together with the outstanding share
options granted under the New Scheme of 14,602,000 Shares as at the date of this annual report, a total of
91,096,159 Shares (representing approximately 6.4% of the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of
this annual report) are available for issue.

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to
be exercised under the New Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company must not exceed 30.0%
of the total number of Shares in issue from time to time (or such higher percentage as may be allowed under the
Listing Rules).

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options granted to each participant in any
12-month period up to and including the Grant Date shall not exceed 1.0% of the total number of Shares in issue.
Where any further grant of options to a participant would result in the Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of all options granted and to be granted to such participant in the 12-month period up to and including the date of
such further grant to be in aggregate over 1.0% of the Shares in issue, such further grant must be separately
approved by the shareholders of the Company in a general meeting with such participant and his associates abstaining
from voting.

The period under which an option may be exercised will be determined by the board of directors at its discretion,
save that the period shall commence on the date of acceptance by the Grantee and expire not later than 10 years
after the date of acceptance. The amount payable on acceptance of an option is HK$1.00. The full amount of the

Subscription Price shall be paid on exercise of an option.

The Subscription Price in respect of each Share issued pursuant to the exercise of options granted under the New
Scheme shall be determined by the board of directors with a price at least the highest of:

(a) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the Offer Date,
which must be a Business Day;

(b) a price being the average of the closing prices of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheets for the 5 Business Days immediately preceding the Offer Date; and

(c) the nominal value of a Share.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

As of 31 December 2008, the directors and employees of the Company had the following interests in options to
subscribe for shares of the Company (market value per share at 31 December 2008 was HK$11.92) granted at
nominal consideration under the Old Scheme and the New Scheme, respectively. Each unit of option gives the
holder the right to subscribe for one share.

106

No. of No. of No. of No. of
options options shares options Price 'Market value *Market value
outstanding outstanding acquired in cancelled/ per share  per share at per share on
at the at the Period during No. of options exercise of  reclassified to be paid on date of grant of  exercise of
beginning end of which options  granted during options during during the exercise of options during options during
Directors of the Year the Year Date granted exercisable the Year the Year Year options the Year the Year
Feng Xiaozeng 2,350,000 - 2 November 2005 23 November 2005 - - $-2,350,000 HK$2.875 - -
(resigned on to 22 November 2015
7 November 2008)
Lin Fan 700,000 700,000 12 September 2002 12 September 2002 - - - HK$3.225 - -
to 11 September 2012
2,500,000 2,600,000 2 November 2005 23 November 2005 - - - HK$2.875 - -
to 22 November 2015
Song Shuguang 800,000 800,000 2 November 2005 23 November 2005 - - - HK$2.875 - -
to 22 November 2015
Xie Yigun 500,000 500,000 2 November 2005 23 November 2005 - - - HK$2.875 - -
to 22 November 2015
He Zhiguang — 800,000 26 February 2007 26 February 2007 — - #+800,000 HK$9.490 - —
(appointed on to 25 February 2017
12 March 2009)
Ng Yu Lam, 1,300,000 — 28 September 2000 28 September 2000 - 1,300,000 - HK$1.110 - HK$16.700
Kenneth to 27 September 2010
500,000 - 12 February 2001 12 February 2001 - 500,000 - HK$0.950 - HK$16.700
to 11 February 2011
400,000 400,000 12 September 2002 12 September 2002 — - - HK$3.225 - -
to 11 September 2012
1,000,000 1,000,000 2 November 2005 23 November 2005 - - - HK$2.875 - -
to 22 November 2015
Shen Koping, 1,500,000 — 12 September 2002 12 September 2002 - 1,500,000 — HK$3.225 - HK$18.460
Michael to 11 September 2012
156,000 - 7 January 2003 7 January 2003 - 156,000 - HK$3.975 - HK$18.460
to 6 January 2013
350,000 - 5 January 2004 5 January 2004 - 350,000 - HK$3.980 - HK$18.460
to 4 January 2014
350,000 — 31 December 2004 27 January 2005 - 350,000 - HK$3.200 - HK$18.460
to 26 January 2015
600,000 - 2 November 2005 23 November 2005 - 600,000 - HK$2.875 - HK$18.460
to 22 November 2015
350,000 — 30 December 2005 3 January 2006 - 350,000 - HK$3.300 - HK$18.460
to 2 January 2016
175,000 - 30 June 2006 30 June 2006 - 175,000 - HK$5.000 - HK$18.460
to 29 June 2016
175,000 175,000 29 December 2006 29 December 2006 - - - HK$9.800 - -
to 28 December 2016
175,000 175,000 29 June 2007 29 June 2007 - - - HK$14.220 - -
to 28 June 2017
175,000 175,000 31 December 2007 31 December 2007 - - - HK$21.400 - -
to 30 December 2017
- 175,000 30 June 2008 30 June 2008 175,000 - - HK$19.316 HK$18.600 -
to 29 June 2018
- 175,000 31 December 2008 31 December 2008 175,000 - - HK$11.920 HK$11.920 -

to 30 December 2018
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Ak - 800,000 200742 R26R 200742268 - - “4800,000 9.490%TT - -
(20095 F201752R25R
3A128%M)
RAOR 1,300,000 - 200069 428H 200069 428H - 1,300,000 - 111087 - 16.700%7T
Z201049A27R
500,000 - 2001F2A12R 2001F2/128 - 500,000 - 0.9507% T - 16.70057¢
Z201142R11R
400,000 400,000 2002698128 2002698128 - - - 3.225% T - -
Z201249A11R
1,000,000 1,000,000 200511 2R 2005411 23R - - - 2.875% T - -
£2015F11 228
JLRIE 1,500,000 - 2002698128 2002698128 - 1,500,000 - 3.205%TT - 18.4607%7T
Z201249A11R
156,000 - 2003F1A7A 2003F1 A7 - 156,000 - 3.975% T - 18.460757T
Z201341A6R
350,000 - 200441 A58 200441 B5H - 350,000 - 3,980 T - 18.4607%7T
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%2015 1H26R
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22015411 F22A
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2201641 A28
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Z201646A29A
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£2018F 12308
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No. of No. of No. of No. of

options options shares options Price 'Market value ?Market value

outstanding outstanding acquired in cancelled/ per share  per share at per share on

at the at the Period during No. of options exercise of  reclassified to be paid on date of grant of exercise of

beginning end of which options  granted during options during during the exercise of options during options during

Directors of the Year the Year Date granted exercisable the Year the Year Year options the Year the Year

Lau Siu Mun, 750,000 150,000 27 September 2000 27 September 2000 - 600,000 - HK$1.110 - HK$15.460
Sammy t0 26 September 2010

400,000 400,000 12 February 2001 12 February 2001 - - - HK$0.950 - -
to 11 February 2011

600,000 600,000 2 November 2005 23 November 2005 - - - HK$2.875 - -
to 22 November 2015

Zheng Changyong 800,000 - 2 November 2005 23 November 2005 — - 3-800,000 HK$2.875 - —
(resigned on to 22 November 2015

12 March 2009)

Employees 300,000 — 25 September 2000 25 September 2000 - 300,000 — HK$1.110 - HK$18.987

to 9 October 2000 to 8 October 2010

100,000 100,000 9 February 2001 9 February 2001 - - - HK$0.950 - -
to 17 February 2001 to 16 February 2011

100,000 100,000 12 September 2002 12 September 2002 - - - HK$3.225 - -
to 23 September 2002 to 22 September 2012

2,795,000 5,677,000 2 November 2005 23 November 2005 - 268,000  °+3,150,000 HK$2.875 - HK$15.518
to 27 November 2015

800,000 - 26 February 2007 26 February 2007 - - +-800,000 HK$9.490 - -
to 25 February 2017

Notes:

(1) Being the closing price quoted on the Stock Exchange immediately before the dates on which the options were granted during the Year.

2) Being the weighted average closing price quoted on the Stock Exchange immediately before the dates on which the options were exercised
during the Year.

(3) Mr. Feng Xiaozeng and Mr. Zheng Changyong resigned as a Director of the Company on 7 November 2008 and 12 March 2009, respectively.
As they were still a director of the subsidiaries of the Group after their resignation, the share options that they were entitled to, but had not
yet been exercised after their resignation, were reclassified and grouped under the employee category.

4) Mr. He Zhiguang had been appointed as a Director of the Company on 12 March 2009. The share options that he was entitled to was

reclassified from the employee category.

The assumptions used in estimating the fair value of the Company’s share options granted during the Year are
provided in note 40(a)(v) to the consolidated financial statements.

Share options were granted as part of a service condition. This service condition does not take into account the fair
value measurement of the share options to be granted. There were no market conditions associated with the share
options granted.

Apart from the foregoing, at no time during the Year was the Company, any of its holding companies, subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the directors or chief executives of the Company or any

of
in

their spouses or children under eighteen years of age to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.
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SHARE AWARD SCHEME

(A)  The Share Award Scheme of the Company was adopted by the board of directors (the “Board”) on 10 September
2007 (“Adoption Date”). Unless terminated earlier by the Board, the Share Award Scheme shall be valid and
effective for a term of 10 years commencing from the Adoption Date, and after such period no new award of
Shares shall be granted. A summary of some of the principal terms of the Share Award Scheme is set out in
section (B) below.

(B) The purpose of the Share Award Scheme is to recognize and reward certain employees (including without
limitation an employee who is also a director) of the Group and CIHC and its subsidiaries for their contributions
to the Group and to give long-term incentives for retaining them for the continued operations and development
of the Group. The Share Award Scheme intends to provide long-term compensation and incentives such that
current employees are incentivized to remain in the Group and CIHC and its subsidiaries, and suitable professional
recruits are attracted to join the Group and CIHC and its subsidiaries, to further assist in the development of
the Group.

Under the Share Award Scheme, the Board or a committee (which consists of at least the chief executive
officer and a director of the Company) delegated with the power of the Board may, from time to time, at its
absolute discretion and subject to such terms and conditions as it may think fit select an employee for
participation in the Share Award Scheme and determine the number of shares to be awarded. The Board shall
not grant any award of shares which would result in the total number of shares which are the subject of
awards of shares granted by the Board under the Share Award Scheme (but not counting any which have
lapsed or have been forfeited) to represent in aggregate over 10% of the issued share capital of the Company
as at the date of such grant. No award shall be granted to any selected employee which would result in the
maximum number of awarded shares which are the subject of the awards of shares granted to such selected
employee (including any which have lapsed or have been forfeited) under the Share Award Scheme in the 12-
month period up to and including the date of such grant to represent in aggregate over 1% of the issued
share capital of the Company as at the date of such grant.

(C) As at 31 December 2008, the net total number of shares acquired under Share Award Scheme is 4,720,000
shares (2007: 5,254,000 shares). As at 31 December 2008, 3,323,500 shares were awarded to selected
employees (2007: 3,286,000 shares) subject to the terms of the Share Award Scheme, but have not yet
vested in such selected employees.
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Details of the Shares awarded to the Directors are set out below:

Number of shares

Number of  Historical Average fair Lapsed As at

Name of awarded acquisition value per during 31 December
Directors Date of award shares cost share the Year 2008 Vesting date

(Note 1) (Note 2)

He Zhiguang 31 December 2007 240,000 HK$20.68 HK$21.60 — 240,000 31 December 2010
Ng Yu Lam, 16 November 2007 27,000 HK$18.75 HK$22.00 - 27,000 31 December 2009
Kenneth 20 May 2008 55,000 HK$18.01 HK$22.40 - 55,000 31 December 2010
Shen Koping, 16 November 2007 10,000 HK$18.75 HK$22.00 — 10,000 31 December 2009
Michael 20 May 2008 12,000 HK$18.75 HK$22.40 — 12,000 31 December 2010
Lau Siu Mun, 16 November 2007 22,000 HK$18.75 HK$22.00 - 22,000 31 December 2009
Sammy 20 May 2008 45,000 HK$18.01 HK$22.40 - 45,000 31 December 2010
Li Tao 31 December 2007 130,000 HK$20.68 HK$21.60 - 130,000 31 December 2010

Notes:

(1) The date of award refers to the date on which the selected employees agree to undertake to hold the awarded shares on the terms on which
they are granted and agree to be bound by the rules of the Share Award Scheme.

2) The average fair value of the awarded shares is based on the closing price at the date of award and any directly attributable incremental
costs.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As of 31 December 2008, the interests and short positions of the shareholders, other than a director or chief
executive of the Company, in the Shares and underlying Shares of the Company as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of SFO were as follows:

Long Positions in Shares of the Company:
Number

of ordinary shares
(corporate interests)

Percentage
of issued
share capital

Substantial shareholders Capacity

CIHC

CIHK

JP Morgan Chase & Co.

ICBC

ICBC (Asia)

Interest of controlled
corporation

643,425,705 shares as
beneficial owner and
129,690,000 shares (Note 2)
as interest of controlled
corporation

651,000 shares as
beneficial owner,
8,272,000 shares as
Investment manager and
105,247,660 shares as
custodian corporation/
approved lending agent

Interest of controlled
corporation

Beneficial owner

773,115,705
(Note 1)

773,115,705

114,170,660

97,464,887
(Note 3)

97,464,887

54.38

54.38

8.03

6.86

6.86

Notes:

(1) CIHC's interest in the Company is held by CIHK, Golden Win Development Limited (“Golden Win”), Ming Lee Investment Limited (“Ming
Lee”), Manhold Limited (“Manhold”), China Insurance Group Finance Company Limited (“CIGFCL”), Panbillion Finance Company Limited
(“Panbillion”) and China Insurance Group Investment Company Limited (“CIGICL”), all of which are wholly-owned subsidiaries of CIHC.

2) 71,544,000 shares are held by Golden Win, 18,672,000 shares are held by Ming Lee, 10,768,000 shares are held by Manhold, 13,144,000
shares are held by CIGFCL, 14,597,000 shares are held by Panbillion and 965,000 shares are held by CIGICL.

(3) ICBC'’s interest in the Company is held by ICBC (Asia), a subsidiary of ICBC.

Save as disclosed above, the register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO showed that the Company
had not been notified of any interests or short positions in the Shares and underlying Shares of the Company as at
31 December 2008.
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

No contract of significance to which the Company, any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries
was a party in which a director of the Company had a material interest subsisted at the end of the Year or at any
time during the Year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Year, the Group entered into the following connected transactions with CIHC and its subsidiaries (“CIHC
Group”).

Joint Bidding Agreement with TPI, CIHC and Ming An China

On 20 March 2008, TPL entered into a Joint Bidding Agreement with TPI, CIHC and The Ming An Insurance Company
(China) Limited (“Ming An China”) in relation to the purchase of a piece of land in Shenzhen and development of a
commercial office building. The amount to be invested by TPL was agreed to be RMB289,000,000.

Capital Contribution to TPI

On 30 June 2008, ClIH entered into the conditional capital contribution agreement with CIHC, ICBC (Asia) and TPI
pursuant to which CIHC and the Company agreed to contribute, in cash, in aggregate an amount of RMB270,000,000
as additional registered capital into TPI. Of the aggregate amount, RMB4,540,000 was to be contributed by CIHC
and RMB265,460,000 was to be contributed by ClIH. ICBC (Asia) decided to not participate in the capital contribution.
TPl is an associated company of the Company, in which ClIH holds a 40.025% equity interest prior to the capital
contribution. Upon completion, each of CIHC, the Company and ICBC (Asia) was directly interested in 42.020%,
50.050% and 7.930%, respectively, of the equity interests in TPI. On 30 June 2008, CIHC, ClIH and ICBC (Asia)
also entered into the conditional option deed pursuant to which CIHC agreed to grant the right to ICBC (Asia) at nil
consideration to, conditional upon completion, acquire from CIHC the equity interest of approximately 1.647% in
TPl as enlarged by the capital contribution for a consideration of RMB25,858,900 within six months from the date
of the option deed, or such later date as the parties may extend pursuant to the terms of the option deed. The
option will be exercisable at the option of ICBC (Asia), and if exercised by ICBC (Asia), will have to be exercised in
full. The Company has waived its right to purchase the option interest if the option is exercised by ICBC (Asia). The
capital contribution agreement and the option deed were approved by the Independent Shareholders of ClIH at an
extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 15 July 2008.

Supplemental Agreement with CIHC and Ming An China

On 5 November 2008, TPl and TPL entered into a supplemental agreement in relation to the purchase of land and
the development of the property in Shenzhen with CIHC and Ming An China to amend the total investment amount
from the parties as set out in the joint bidding agreement dated 20 March 2008. According to the joint bidding
agreement, the percentages of the total investment amount for the transaction required from each of TPI, CIHC,
TPL and Ming An China were 15%, 55%, 15% and 15%, respectively. Under the supplemental agreement, the
percentages of the total investment amount for the transaction required from each of TPI, CIHC, TPL and Ming An
China was amended to be 15%, 5%, 65% and 15%, respectively. TPl and TPL are expected to invest a total of
approximately RMB289,000,000 and RMB1,251,000,000, respectively, for the transaction under the supplemental
agreement. The purchase of the land was completed in April 2008 and the construction of the property is expected
to commence in early 2009 and will last for a period of three years with a tentative completion date set to be in the
second half of 2011. The joint bidding agreement and supplemental agreement were approved by the independent
shareholders of ClIH at an extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 9 December 2008.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Year, the Group entered into the Continuing Connected Transactions Agreements with CIHC and its
subsidiaries (“CIHC Group”). Details of these connected transactions are set out in the following paragraphs A to
D.

A. Reinsurance Transaction

On 11 January 2006, CIRe and CIHC entered into the Reinsurance Agreement pursuant to which CIRe agrees,
and CIHC agrees to procure its subsidiaries, to enter into various reinsurance contracts with members of the
CIHC Group. Pursuant to the said reinsurance contracts, CIRe acts as reinsurer and accepts risks in return
for agreed premium from such members of the CIHC Group. The Reinsurance Transactions consist of both
treaty and facultative businesses and the range of risks covered includes all lines of general reinsurance risks
and certain classes of long term reinsurance risks on both a proportional and non-proportional basis. The
Reinsurance Agreement is conditional upon the obtaining of Independent Shareholders’ Approval and shall
be valid for a term of three years from 1 January 2006 to 31 December 2008. Pursuant to the Reinsurance
Agreement, CIRe will enter into reinsurance contracts on the same basis as it accepts reinsurance business
from other independent customers, and the terms and conditions of such reinsurance contracts, in which
other independent third party reinsurers may also participate, will be negotiated on an arm’s length basis and
will be entered into on normal commercial terms.

It is expected that the amount of gross premium income ceded by CIHC Group and underwritten by CIRe and
the commission expenses payable by the Group in respect of the Reinsurance Transactions for each of the
financial year ended 31 December from 2006 to 2008 will not exceed HK$504.00 million and HK$154.37
million, respectively.

The proposed cap of the amount of gross premium income and commission expenses described above are
determined by reference to the historical value of such transactions and the projected value on new business
that are likely to be procured.

The Reinsurance Agreement and the proposed cap were approved by the independent shareholders of the
Company by way of poll at the Company’s extraordinary general meeting on 23 February 2006.

During the Year, the gross premiums written and the commission expenses paid in respect of business ceded
by related companies was HK$266.04 million (2007: HK$241.54 million) and HK$86.18 million (2007: HK$72.95
million) respectively.

B. Retrocession Transaction
On 11 January 2006, CIRe and CIHC entered into the Retrocession Agreement pursuant to which CIRe agrees,
and CIHC agrees to procure its subsidiaries, to enter into retrocessional reinsurance contracts. Pursuant to

the retrocessional reinsurance contracts, CIRe retrocedes inward premium to the CIHC Group on both a
proportional and non-proportional basis and CIRe receives commission income from the CIHC Group.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Retrocession is the transfer by a reinsurer of inward reinsurance risks accepted by it to another insurance or
reinsurance company. A reinsurer may enter into retrocession agreements with a number of insurers and
reinsurers, whereby such other insurers and reinsurers agree to accept given proportions of risk. The reinsurer
would consider the extent of the risk it wishes to retain, and retrocede the surplus to other insurers and
reinsurers under a retrocession treaty. The retrocession arrangements may be arranged on a single original
risk, or for a portfolio of inward reinsurance risks, and may be arranged in a proportional or non-proportional
manner.

The Retrocession Agreement is valid for a term of three years from 1 January 2006 to 31 December 2008.
Pursuant to the Retrocession Agreement, the Retrocession Transactions will be effected on terms and conditions
that are comparable to those offered by the Group to and accepted by independent third parties, and will be
on normal commercial terms and on an arm’s length basis and in accordance with the Group’s risk management

policy.

It is expected that the gross premium income to be retroceded to CIHC Group and the commission income to
be received by the Group in respect of the Retrocession Transactions for each of the financial years ended 31
December 2006 to 2008 will not exceed HK$47.25 million and HK$17.96 million, respectively.

The proposed cap of the gross premium income and commission income described above are determined by
reference to the historical value of such transactions and the projected values on new business that are likely
to be procured.

During the Year, the outward retroceded premiums and the commission income received in respect of business
retroceded to related companies was HK$2.78 million (2007: HK$2.68 million) and HK$433,000 (2007:
HK$269,000), respectively.

C. Investment Management Services

On 11 January 2006, CIGAML, the wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and CIHC entered into the
Master Investment Management Agreement pursuant to which CIGAML agrees, and CIHC agrees to procure
its subsidiaries, to enter into various investment management agreements with the CIHC Group. In accordance
with the investment management agreements, CIGAML provides investment advice and investment management
services to the relevant members of the CIHC Group in managing the Trust Fund.

The Master Investment Management Agreement shall be valid for a term of three years from 1 January 2006
to 31 December 2008. Under the Master Investment Management Agreement, CIGAML will receive from the
CIHC Group management fees, performance bonus fees and other fees for its investment management services
per annum for each investment management agreement (together, the “Management Fees”) and such
Management Fees will be calculated on the basis of (a) a certain percentage of the net asset value of the Trust
Fund; and/or (b) a performance bonus fee representing a certain percentage of the amount of net investment
return at the end of the relevant calendar year in excess of an amount equivalent to a certain percentage of
the daily average balance of the settlor’s subscription monies or the increase in the next asset value of the
relevant Trust Fund managed by CIGAML; and/or (c) such other bases as may be agreed to by the parties to
the investment management agreement.

It is expected that the Management Fees to be received by the Group for each of the financial years ending 31
December from the financial years ended 31 December 2006 to 2008 will not exceed HK$4.80 million. The
proposed cap is determined by reference to the historical values of such transactions and the projected
values on new business to be procured.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

During the Year, the Management Fees to be received by the Group was HK$7.89 million (2007: HK$17.84
million). The actual amount received is more than the proposed cap of HK$4.80 million for the relevant transaction
by an amount of HK$3.09 million. In respect of the amount of the Management Fees to be received by the
Group during the Year, since each of the applicable percentage ratios calculated pursuant to the Listing Rules
is on an annual basis less than 0.1%, pursuant to Listing Rule 14A.33, this transaction is exempt from reporting,
announcement and shareholders’ approval requirements set out in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

D. Provision of Training Services

On 11 January 2006, the Company and CIHC entered into the Training Services Agreement pursuant to which
the training department of the CIHC Group will provide training services to directors, employees, agents and
sales representatives of members of the Group. Such training services include the provision of training to
staff, training materials and information and the organization of training-related seminars and activities on
basic insurance knowledge, risk management, presentation skills, and other-job-related skills training.

The Training Services Agreement shall be valid for a period of three years from 1 January 2006 to 31 December
2008 and the Group will pay training fees to CIHC in respect of the training services provided (“Training
Fees”). Pursuant to the Training Services Agreement, at the commencement of each financial year, CIHC will
notify the Group of the projected amount of Training Fees payable by the Group by reference to the planned
training activities to be conducted in that financial year and the proportion to be shared by the Group. Prior to
31 March of each financial year, the Group shall pay to CIHC the Training Fees in advance (the “Advance
Payment”). At the end of the relevant financial year, if the Advance Payment is insufficient to cover the actual
Training Fees incurred during that financial year, the Group will top up the shortfall within 90 days from the
end of the respective financial year. On the other hand, if the Advance Payment is more than the actual
Training Fees incurred, the surplus will, at the discretion of CIHC, be refunded to the Company or be brought
forward to the next financial year as part of the Advance Payment for the next financial year. The Training Fees
to be charged by the CIHC Group will be based on the number of persons within the Group who have received
the training services as a proportion to the total number of persons to which training services have been
provided and/or other reasonable bases as may be determined by the Company and CIHC.

It is expected that the Training Fees to be paid by the Group pursuant to the Training Services Agreement for
each of the financial year ending 31 December 2006 to 2008 will not exceed HK$5.08 million. The proposed
cap is determined by reference to the historical values of such transactions and the projected increase of the
number of directors, employees, agents and sales representatives of the members of the Group who will
receive the training services.

During the Year, the fees paid to the CIHC Group in respect of the training services was HK$4.95 million
(2007: HK$4.78 million).

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have reviewed and confirmed that the continuing connected
transactions in paragraphs A to D above were conducted in following manner:

(i) entered into by the Group in the ordinary and usual course of its business;

(i)  entered into on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable than terms available to or from
independent third parties

(iiiy entered into in accordance with the terms of the relevant agreements governing such transactions and on
terms that are fair and reasonable so far as the shareholders of the Company as a whole are concerned.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

In accordance with rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, the Board engaged the auditor of the Company to perform
certain procedures on the above continuing connected transactions on a sample basis in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Related Services 4400 “Engagements to Perform Agreed-Upon Procedures Regarding Financial
Information” issued by the HKICPA. The auditor has reported their factual findings to the Board concerning the
matters stated in rule 14A.38.

Based on the work performed, the external auditor of the Company has reported that the aforesaid continuing
connected transactions (a) have been approved by the Board of the Company; (b) are in accordance with the
pricing policies if the transactions involve provision of goods or services; (c) have been entered into in accordance
with the terms of the relevant agreements governing the transactions, and (d) have not exceeded the caps disclosed
in the announcement dated 11 January 2006, except for the asset management fee.

In respect of the amount of the Management Fees to be received by the Group during the Year, since each of the
applicable percentage ratios calculated pursuant to the Listing Rules is on an annual basis less than 0.1%, pursuant
to Listing Rule 14A.33, this transaction is exempt from the reporting, announcement and shareholders’ approval
requirements set out in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

INTEREST BEARING NOTES

Particulars of the interest bearing notes of the Company and the Group as at 31 December 2008 are set out in note
32 to the consolidated financial statements.

FIVE YEAR SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years is set out on
pages 275 to 276.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES
Particulars of the retirement schemes are set out in note 39 to the consolidated financial statements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Information on the Company’s corporate governance practices during the Year under review is set out in the “Corporate
Governance Report” of the Company’s 2008 annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Further information on the composition of the Audit Committee and the work performed by the Audit Committee
during the Year under review is set out in the Company’s 2008 annual report under the section headed “Audit
Committee” in the Corporate Governance Report.

PUBLIC FLOAT
Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge of its directors, as at

the date of this report, there is sufficient public float, as not less than 25.0% of the Company’s issued shares are
held by the public.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

AUDITORS

During the Year, Messrs. KPMG, who acted as auditor of the Company for the past seven years, resigned and
Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu was appointed as auditor of the Company. A resolution will be submitted to the
annual general meeting to re-appoint the auditor, Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu.

By order of the Board
Lin Fan
Chairman

Hong Kong, 18 March 2009
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to the establishment of good standards of corporate governance practices by emphasising
transparency, accountability and responsibility to our shareholders. The Board reviews its corporate governance
practices from time to time in order to meet the rising expectations of shareholders, to comply with increasingly
stringent regulatory requirements, and to fulfill its commitment to excellence in corporate governance practices.

During the Year under review, the Company has applied the principles and complied with the Code Provisions set
out in the “Code on Corporate Governance Practices” contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules which came
into effect on 1 January 2005 (the “Code”), with the following exceptions:

The non-executive directors are not appointed for a specific term, but are subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election at the Company’s Annual General Meeting in accordance with the Company’s Articles of
Association.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by directors. Having made specific enquiry of all directors, the Company confirmed
that all directors have complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code during the Year under review.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is collectively responsible for overseeing the management of the business and affairs of the Group. The
Board currently is comprised of a total of eleven directors, with seven executive directors, one non-executive
director and three independent non-executive directors.

The names of the directors are set out in the Company’s 2008 annual report under the section headed “Corporate
Information”.

During the period from 1 January 2008 to the date of this annual report, the Board held five meetings, the particulars
of which are as follows:

Date of meeting Attendees

8 January 2008 Mr. Feng Xiaozeng, Mr. Lin Fan, Mr. Song Shuguang, Mr. Xie Yiqun, Mr. Ng Yu Lam,
Kenneth, Mr. Shen Koping, Michael, Mr. Lau Siu Mun, Sammy, Mr. Zheng Changyong
and Mr. Che Shuijian.

18 March 2008 Mr. Feng Xiaozeng, Mr. Lin Fan, Mr. Song Shuguang, Mr. Xie Yiqun, Mr. Ng Yu Lam,
Kenneth, Mr. Shen Koping, Michael, Mr. Lau Siu Mun, Sammy and Mr. Lau Wai Kit.

29 August 2008 Mr. Feng Xiaozeng, Mr. Lin Fan, Mr. Song Shuguang, Mr. Xie Yiqun, Mr. Ng Yu Lam,
Kenneth, Mr. Shen Koping, Michael, Mr. Lau Siu Mun, Sammy, Mr. Zheng Changyong,
Dr. Wu Jiesi, Mr. Che Shujian and Mr. Lau Wai Kit.

14 November 2008 Mr. Lin Fan, Mr. Song Shuguang, Mr. Xie Yigun, Mr. Ng Yu Lam, Kenneth, Mr. Shen
Koping, Michael, Mr. Lau Siu Mun, Sammy, Mr. Zheng Changyong and Dr. Wu Jiesi.

18 March 2009 Mr. Lin Fan, Mr. Song Shunguang, Mr. Xie Yiqun, Mr. He Zhiguang, Mr. Ng Yu Lam,
Kenneth, Mr. Shen Koping, Michael, Mr. Lau Siu Mun, Sammy, Mr. Li Tao and
Dr. Wu Jusi.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board formulates the overall strategy of the Group, monitors its financial performance and maintains effective
supervision over the management. Daily operations and administration are delegated to the management. During
the Year under review, none of the directors above has or maintained any financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationships with any of the other directors.

The non-executive director and the independent non-executive directors are not appointed for specific terms but
are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting of the Company in accordance
with the Company’s articles of association.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The chairman and chief executive officer are Mr. Lin Fan and Mr. Ng Yu Lam, Kenneth. Their roles are clearly
defined and segregated and are not exercised by the same individual.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTOR

The Company has not established a nomination committee. The Board as a whole is responsible for reviewing the
Board composition, developing and formulating the relevant procedures for nomination and appointment of directors
and assessing the independence of the independent non-executive directors to ensure that the Board has a balance
of expertise, skills and experience. The Board had appointed Mr. He Zhiguang as an executive director and Mr. Li
Tao as a non-executive director of the Company by means of written resolutions passed on 12 March 2009.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

A Remuneration Committee with specific written terms of reference was established by the Company on 24 February
2005.

The principal duties of the Remuneration Committee include the making of recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for all remuneration of directors and senior management; the establishment of a
formal and transparent procedure for developing the policy on such remuneration and to determine the specific
remuneration packages of all executive directors and senior management.

The main principles of the Group’s remuneration policies are:
(a) Remuneration should be determined by taking into consideration factors such as salaries paid by comparable
companies, time commitment, responsibility, employment conditions elsewhere in the Group and the desirability

of performance-based remuneration;

(b) Performance-based remuneration should be reviewed and approved by reference to the corporate goals and
objectives approved by the Board from time to time; and

(¢)  No director should be involved in deciding his or her own remuneration.

Mr. Lin Fan has been appointed as a chairman and a member of the Remuneration Committee to fill the casual
vacancy following the resignation of Mr. Feng Xiaozeng on 7 November 2008.

The Remuneration Committee is currently comprised of the three independent non-executive directors, namely Dr.

Wu Jiesi, Mr. Che Shujian and Mr. Lau Wai Kit, the chairman, Mr. Lin Fan, and the chief executive officer, Mr. Ng Yu
Lam, Kenneth.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

During the period from 1 January 2008 to the date of this annual report, the Remuneration Committee approved
the payment of the directors’ bonuses for the year 2007, the granting of share options, discretionary bonuses and
share awards to the directors of the Group by means of written resolutions passed on ten occasions.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

KPMG were auditors of the Company up to 21 November 2008 and since that date, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
have held the office of auditors of the Company. The services provided by them include audit and taxation. During
the 2008 financial year, the fees for the Group’s statutory audit and taxation services payable to the external
auditors of the Group were HK$3,409,000 and HK$168,000, respectively.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board has adopted the new written terms of reference for the Audit Committee, which are in accordance with
the Code. The Audit Committee meets with the Group’s senior management and external auditors regularly to
review the effectiveness of the internal control system and the interim and annual results of the Group.

The Audit Committee has recommended the Board to appoint Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditors of the Company
to fill the casual vacancy following the resignation of KPMG on 21 November 2008.

Mr. Li Tao has been appointed as a non-executive director and member of the Audit Committee to fill the casual
vacancy following the resignation of Mr. Zheng Changyong on 12 March 2009.

The Audit Committee is comprised of the three independent non-executive directors, namely Dr. Wu Jiesi, Mr. Che
Shujian and Mr. Lau Wai Kit, and a non-executive director, Mr. Li Tao. Dr. Wu Jiesi is the chairman of the Audit
Committee.

The interim results, annual results and the system of internal controls of the Company and its subsidiaries for the
2008 financial year have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

During the period from 1 January 2008 to the date of this annual report, the Audit Committee held three meetings,
the particulars of which are as follows:

Date of meeting Attendees

13 March 2008 Dr. Wu Jiesi, Mr. Lau Wai Kit and Mr. Zheng Changyong

26 August 2008 Dr. Wu Jiesi, Mr. Che Shujian, Mr. Lau Wai Kit and Mr. Zheng Changyong
13 March 2009 Dr. Wu Jeisi, Mr. Che Shujian, Mr. Lau Wai Kit and Mr. Li Tao

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR PREPARING THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors acknowledge that it is their responsibility for preparing financial statements which give a true and fair
view.

The statement of the auditor of the Company about their responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in
the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 134.

INTERNAL CONTROL REVIEW

The Board has conducted a review of the system of internal controls of the Group in accordance with the Code.
The Board considers that all material internal controls of the Group are proper and effective.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Deloitte.
=2

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
China Insurance International Holdings Company Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Insurance International Holdings Company Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 136 to 274, which
comprise the consolidated and Company balance sheets as at 31 December 2008, and the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the true and fair presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility
includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and true and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
and of the Group as at 31 December 2008 and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

18 March 2009
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

= A 2 32

’%/_-I_\ E/\

136

for the year ended 31 December 2008
BE-—TENF+-—HA=1+—HIFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(BT

2008 2007
Note $°000 $'000
i F Frr
Revenue LON
Gross premiums written EARRER
and policy fees REBERA 4 25,003,796 17,933,997
Less: Premiums ceded to reinsurers o REZBROER
and retrocessionaires EAME (730,318) (277,4083)
Net premiums written and policy fees FERRRBRREBRA 24,273,478 17,656,594
Change in unearned premium REBETEHESEL
provisions, net of reinsurance BERR (64,853) (7,912)
Net earned premiums and policy fees ERDRERREBRAFE 24,208,625 17,648,682
Net investment income &éuﬁz)\@gﬁ 3 5(a) 3,394,339 1,888,401
Net realized investment (losses)/gains BERKE (BB) W8 5(b) (1,048,781) 4,277,786
Net unrealized investment AEREBE (BB MEmk
(losses)/gains and impairment B 5(c) (2,065,072) 505,578
Net exchange loss bE B EIFE (119,197) (31,121)
Other income Hplg A 6 84,563 64,933
Total revenue WA % 24,454,477 24,354,259
Benefits, losses and expenses wm BRRER
Net policyholders’ benefits REFA AR ZFE 7(a) (6,248,410) (5,062,155)
Net commission expenses AeXHFE 7(b) (2,561,811) (1,997,156)
Administrative and other expenses TREABER (3,798,238) (2,228,343)
Change in life insurance funds, ShETEHESE L
net of reinsurance R (11,742,512) (11,849,470)
Goodwill impairment EERE 16 (73,276) —
Total benefits, losses and expenses B BRkEBRARE (24,424,247) (21,137,124)
Profit from operations BERF 30,230 3,217,135
Share of losses of associates FE(EE & ARSI (115,848) (57,760)
Finance costs B8R 8(a) (183,383) (148,467)
(Loss)/profit before taxation BB (B518) &F 8 (269,001) 3,010,908
Income tax credit/(charge) BEiKE,/ () 11(a) 63,240 (558,711)
(Loss)/profit after taxation R (B8]) & F (205,761) 2,457,197
Attributable to: BEfL
Equity holders of the Company P R i 12 (299,715) 1,549,072
Minority interests DR R 93,954 908,125
(205,761) 2,457,197
Dividends payable to equity holders  FEEMNREHN
of the Company attributable RE :
to the year:
Final dividend proposed after REER 1§T§i I
the balance sheet date RERR S 13 - 141,527
cents cents
1l fily
(Loss)/earnings per share BRRELER
attributable to the equity holders (B8.) /BF
of the Company 14
Basic R (21.2) 110.2
Diluted B (21.2) 108.3

The accompanying notes on pages 145 to 274 form an integral part of

these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

ReEERER

as at 31 December 2008
RZFFENFfZHA=1+—H

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)
(BB ST)

2008 2007
Note $°000 $°000
Bt aE FT For
Assets BE
Statutory deposits EEFH 25 995,330 653,239
Fixed assets EE & E
— Investment properties — REME 15(a) 76,719 78,560
— Property and equipment — MEREE 15(a) 2,664,533 1,318,147
— Prepaid lease payments — FEMHEERMNR 15(c) 535,213 —
3,276,465 1,391,707
Goodwill EES 16 364,845 228,185
Interest in associates REEE N RIH RS 18 134,382 530,436
Deferred tax assets FRIEFIE & = 31(b) 22,353 2,648
Investments in debt and BEBRBARESFEE
equity securities 19(a) 56,863,866 40,502,185
Amounts due from group companies & EEE RN Q B FKIE 20(a) 11,455 17,488
Insurance debtors 1% Eﬁf”ﬁl%@m 21 1,026,222 616,540
Reinsurers’ share of DRA B EIGRE
insurance contract provisions BRI 22 1,421,962 376,740
Other debtors H 4th e SBR R 23 2,071,499 1,431,352
Tax recoverable AT el I 31(a) 1,640 —
Pledged deposits at banks BIRIFIRITE R 24 102,453 97,417
Deposits at banks with original REIBIE BB =EA K
maturity more than three months RITER 6,691,122 4,631,977
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEEEY 26 7,831,795 5,137,635
80,815,389 55,617,549
Liabilities :éf
Life insurance funds BETEES 27 52,787,213 38,529,656
Unearned premium provisions ﬂi?‘J HHEFE EES 28 3,456,749 893,924
Provision for outstanding claims RIORES TR 29 4,468,829 2,496,932
Investment contract liabilities KEEHAR 30 235,891 157,421
Deferred tax liabilities BRI IAE 31(b) 641,860 949,031
Interest-bearing notes EHEEE 32 5,376,028 2.960,377
Securities sold under repurchase B EEES
agreements 36 4,206,880 —
Amounts due to group companies BN EERNRRIKE 20(b) 492 46
Insurance creditors RREFENER 33 740,139 394,116
Other creditors E iy e BRIX 34 1,572,505 1,046,389
Current taxation EHTIE 31(a) 59,246 85,999
Insurance protection fund 1% RIREES 35 30,310 7,976
73,576,142 47,521,867
Net assets EEFE 7,239,247 8,095,682
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (Continued)

REEERGEXR @

as at 31 December 2008
RZFFENFfZHA=1+—H

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)

(BT

2008 2007
Note $°000 $000
i & Fr For

Capital and reserves attributable  BRREHERR

to the Company’s equity holders  f#f#

Share capital &N 37 71,086 70,764
Reserves L] 38(a) 4,525,533 5,614,862
4,596,619 5,685,626
Minority interests DEBRRER 2,642,628 2,410,056
Total equity A RE S 7,239,247 8,095,682

Approved and authorized for issue by the board of directors on 18 March ZEEFE@R -—TETNF=H+/\BENRFEER -
20009.

Lin Fan Ng Yu Lam Kenneth
IR KRBT
Director Director
3 EF

The accompanying notes on pages 145 to 274 form an integral part of £ 145F 2748 FTHIHI et A A4 G B IS 3Rk /A Ak 56
these consolidated financial statements. 5 o
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BALANCE SHEET

EERAEBR

as at 31 December 2008
R-ZFENEL—H=1+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars)
(BB ST)

2008 2007
Note $°000 $°000
Bt aE FT For
Assets BE
Fixed assets EE&E 15(b) 206 172
Investments in subsidiaries B A B E 17 2,377,599 1,653,359
Interest in associates REE QA RINER 18 6,937 580,474
Investments in debt and BEBRBARESFEE
equity securities 19(b) 571,825 290,845
Deferred tax assets FRIEFIE & = 31(b) 5,549 —
Amounts due from group companies &Y E B R Q 7B 20(a) 459,651 443,651
Other debtors H At i W BR 3R 23 11,591 51,167
Deposits at banks with original REIBAE BB =R/
maturity more than three months RITIF K 24,325 160,531
Cash and cash equivalents BekReEED 26 251,778 622,159
3,709,461 3,802,358
Liabilities afE
Deferred tax liabilities RERIEEE 31(b) - 157
Amounts due to group companies FERNEERNRQRRIEB 20(b) 1,592,641 1,363,388
Other creditors HAith FE AR FR 34 8,184 9,312
Current taxation & iR A 31(a) - 10,893
1,600,825 1,383,750
Net assets EEFE 2,108,636 2,418,608
Capital and reserves ERR#FE
Share capital B 37 71,086 70,764
Reserves ] 38(b) 2,037,550 2,347,844
Total equity i 2,108,636 2,418,608

Approved and authorized for issue by the board of directors on 18 March

2009.

Lin Fan
R
Director

EE

The accompanying notes on pages 145 to 274 form an integral part of
these consolidated financial statements.

BEEgR -_TENF=A T N\BRAERRERS -

Ng Yu Lam Kenneth

KA

Director

EE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

GAERBDE

140

for the year ended 31 December 2008
HBE—FTEN\F+ZA=1+—HIFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(BT

Total equity attributable to:
bR

Equity holders Minority
of the Company interests Total
2 H
BRER RRER 4azg
Note $°000 $°000 $°000
it & Fr Fr Fr
Balance at 1 January 2008 R-ZZBENF-—A—BZ#&EH 5,685,626 2,410,056 8,095,682
Exchange differences on translation & &% A St [&
of the financial statements of B B8 A B B s R HY
subsidiaries outside Hong Kong fE R =% 38(a) 147,704 163,464 311,168
Revaluation increase on acquisition B A — R H & A B REIME RS
of additional interest in an associate Z EiHEE 43 16,655 — 16,655
Net changes in fair value of AEEEES
available-for-sale securities, AREBEEZEFE -
net of deferred tax R JE R TR 38(a) (866,543) (8351,117) (1,217,660)
Net loss recognized directly BEBERRER
in equity ZEEE (702,184) (187,653) (889,837)
(Loss)/profit for the year REFE (B518) /& F 38(a) (299,715) 93,954 (205,761)
Total recognized loss for the year KEEHERZBERE (1,001,899) (93,699) (1,095,598)
Capital contributions made m— KB A A
to a subsidiary JEANE R - 48,114 48,114
Dividend paid B A 38(a) (141,454) - (141,454)
Movements in equity arising from BRRETRAEARZ S
capital transactions with i 2 A 2 IR R 2w
equity holders: BE) -
— Shares issued under — REBERREEE
Share Option Scheme BT 281D 37 322 - 322
— Net share premium received — BWEZ D s EFE
and share option exercised REITERRE 38(a) 17,184 - 17,184
Transfer to retained profits & B D S EN A I
on disposal of revoked shares for ZEUBRMDEA
Share Award Scheme REB &M 38(a) (5,052) — (5,052)
Changes in share held for RAX G Ryt &
Share Award Scheme A2 ’RHE(t 38(a) 14,359 = 14,359
Equity-settled share-based & AAE R 2 B 7
transactions BAEARZS 38(a) 27,533 - 27,533
Arising on acquisition LN =N
of a subsidiary MmEHE 43 — 278,157 278,157
Balance at 31 December 2008 R-ZZEZENFE+=ZA=+—H
k=3 4,596,619 2,642,628 7,239,247

China Insurance International Holdings Company Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (Continued)

mEEREER &)

for the year ended 31 December 2008
BE-—TENF+-—HA=1+—HIFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(BB ST)

Total equity attributable to:
JEIE R

Equity holders Minority
of the Company interests Total
L
e MR = 1REE
Note $’000 $’000 $’000
it & For Fr Fr
Balance at 1 January 2007 R-ZZZELF-—A—BZ#&EH 4,178,319 1,404,322 5,582,641
Exchange differences on translation & & LAY &
of the financial statements of B B8 A B B s R HY
subsidiaries outside Hong Kong [ 5 =& 38(a) 153,371 145,015 298,386
Net changes in fair value of AIHEEES
available-for-sale securities, RREEEEFE -
net of deferred tax R E T IE 38(a) (114,187) (130,705) (244,892)
Net income recognized directly BEERNER
in equity ZFWA 39,184 14,310 53,494
Profit for the year NG JE i F 38(a) 1,549,072 908,125 2,457,197
Total recognized income for F E R
the year a1 N 1,588,256 922,435 2,510,691
Capital contributions made M — B E A Al
to a subsidiary SEABA - 83,299 83,299
Movements in equity arising from HRRETRAEARZ S
capital transactions with MEEZ REE
equity holders: B2 -
— Shares issued under — IRIER R E
Share Option Scheme BT 2R 37 451 — 451
— Net share premium received — Bz iR m EFE 38(a) 26,941 — 26,941
Changes in share held for B G5 REE &
Share Award Scheme 58 2 By 84 38(a) (111,147) - (111,147)
Equity-settled share-based & AAE R 2 B 7
transactions BAEZ S 38(a) 2,806 — 2,806
Balance at 31 December 2007 R=-ZEZtLtHF+=-A=+—H
2 i 5,685,626 2,410,056 8,095,682

The accompanying notes on pages 145 to 274 form an integral part of

these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

,.‘/T/\ERE/JILEZ:E

for the year ended 31 December 2008
BE-—TENF+-—HA=1+—HIFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(L BEBSTR)
2008 2007
Note $°000 $’000
it & Fr Fr
Operating activities R
(Loss)/profit before taxation BrFiAT (B518) 5 F (269,001) 3,010,908
Adjustments for: BTOIS L HE -
— Depreciation — e 126,021 64,301
— Deficit/(surplus) on revaluation — REMEE MR A
of investment properties /(&) 1,841 (5,533)
— Loss on disposal of — HEREYE

investment properties &8 - 182

— Goodwill impairment — BERE 73,276 —
— Employee share-based — MARR(D AR
compensation benefits ZEBEERT 29,626 7,853
— Finance costs — BEA 183,383 148,467
— Dividend income — BB A (1,254,361) (670,654)
— Net interest income — MEBWAFRE (2,137,169) (1,192,654)
— Share of losses of associates - N 115,848 57,760
— Net (gain)/loss on sale — HEETAE
of fixed assets (Mezm) /1B 48 (26) 136
— Net realized and — EmRIFLEMEHR
unrealized losses/(gains) RAES 2
on listed and unlisted debt and EEBREEARER
equity securities B8, (k) 58 2,802,566 (4,776,765)
— Net realized and unrealized gains — $fT4A & @ T A
on derivative financial ZBEERRK
instruments RER W FEE = (1,248)
— Impairment on available-for-sale — AT E
equity investments BRI & R E 309,446 —
Operating loss before changes EEBESEHA
in working capital ZRE e (18,550) (3,357,247)
Decrease/(increase) in insurance and 17% 25 P I L b AR K
other debtors A, () 325,871 (627,0083)
Increase in insurance and 17% 2?\}5
other creditors ﬁﬁﬂﬁgﬁﬁﬁﬁi hn 233,402 600,140
Decrease/(increase) in amounts due fuﬂl‘i BAR 7
from group companies A (35 0 6,033 (10,452)
Increase/(decrease) in amounts due fﬁ‘i E] W A 7 X IH
to group companies 446 (367)
Increase in provision for H
outstanding claims A 421,792 310,766
(Increase)/decrease in DR FIELE
reinsurers’ share of R &N ER
insurance contract provisions (g md (156,874) 15,167
Increase in investment contract REGH
liabilities =] fiii pill 78,470 41,740
Increase in life insurance funds SWmETEESEM 14,257,557 14,123,284
Increase in unearned premium RE|EREF
provisions eI M 132,741 40,956
Increase/(decrease) in REREES
insurance protection fund 0, Gt 4) 16,613 (2,409)
Increase in loans and advances B R P W SR I AE AN (104,322) (160,246)
Payment for purchase of shares i AR 1 BEEh =T E
for Share Award Scheme 2 W& An 1-F 3R (6,663) (111,147)
Proceeds from disposal of shares SRR () 22 E) ET &)
for Share Award Scheme 2B S RIE 15,970 —
Cash generated from operations REEKFEE RS 15,202,486 10,863,182

China Insurance International Holdings Company Limited
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (Continued)

n‘/—.r\/\ Eﬁﬁ/)lbi Z:«% (llﬁ‘,g)

for the year ended 31 December 2008
BE-—TENF+-—HA=1+—HIFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(L BEBSTR)
2008 2007
Note $°000 $000
i & Fr For
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid BRI EEFEH &
and payment for purchase BARTS
of tax reserve certificate ES (55,261) (41,496)
Tax paid outside Hong Kong BEHEINEIE (10,601) (37)
Tax paid 2IBE (65,862) (41,533)
Net cash generated from REXEBREEZ
operating activities REFE 15,136,624 10,821,649
Investing activities REE
Increase in pledged deposits DEIBIBITIEK
at banks 0 (5,036) (3,741)
Increase in statutory deposits VAT R N (45,447) (105,796)
(Increase)/decrease in deposits REEBAE A=A E
at banks with original maturity more 2 HATIFER
than three months Ggm m (1,869,049) 5,873
Payment for purchase B A E%iﬁi%%’\&
of debt securities classified JE Wk E
as loans and receivables ZEBE 3%?17‘ B (1,893,663) (256,306)
Payment for purchase BARBZEIH

of held-to-maturity debt securities (EL kAN
Proceeds from redemption fEE A 25 E
of held-to-maturity debt securities BISESFMERIE 357,563 267,602

(19,579,016) (432,463)

Payment for purchase of securities EARHEER

available-for-sale and BB A R

designated at fair value through /&ﬁ L)

profit or loss BHN (25,552,210) (22,733,852)
Proceeds from sale of securities HER M E RiBA

available-for-sale and designated T§¥LA}§59%’R/"CFTE

at fair value through profit or loss BHISHIE 30,009,112 13,999,866
Proceeds received from dealing f/TéEIEl\X%

in derivative FriS 38 (4) —
Proceeds from sale i E&ﬁ%%

of investment properties FRi5 #E - 32,868
Interest income received B 8 14517\ 1,279,486 1,358,221
Dividend income received B U B A 1,254,361 670,653
Increase/(decrease) in securities sold & H [0l 8% & %

under repurchase agreements 80, Gt A) 4,206,880 (2,490,366)
Payment for purchase of fixed assets B A B & & E (948,892) (275,035)
Prepayment for lease payment FERNHEENK (434,862) —
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets HEBTEEMBRIE 3,100 883
Capital injection to associates A E/NE] ‘E\E)\éTK (129,191) (143,420)
Decrease/(increase) & 1451 /N

in amounts due from associates m (1 7][1) 179 (163)
Acquisition of subsidiary Eﬁ)\ﬁﬁ%@ﬂ 43 763,517 —

Net cash used in investing activities REXKRE AR L FE

(12,583,172)

(10,105,176)

REFZERER AR
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (Continued)

n‘/—.r\/\ Eﬁﬁ/)lbi Z:«% (llﬁ‘,g)

144

for the year ended 31 December 2008
BE-—TENF+-—HA=1+—HIFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(L BEBSTR)
2008 2007
Note $°000 $000
Bt aE FT For

Financing activities RLESER
Proceeds from shares issued BBITRGABRIEA 15,413 22,346
Proceeds from interest-bearing BRITENEEEK

notes issued FriS 3018 2,324,556 -
Capital contributions from minority —EHBARLVERKRE

interests of a subsidiary s &)\HxK 48,114 83,299
Interest paid EEENESS (239,109) (433,343)
Dividend paid EfBRE (141,454) -
Net cash generated from/(used in) REZEFES, (BA)

financing activities ZREFE 2,007,520 (327,698)
Effect of changes in exchange rates [E XE &S & (1,866,812) (1,332,150)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and BE&RBEEEEY

cash equivalents g, () F4E 2,694,160 (943,375)
Cash and cash equivalents R—BA—HWEERK

at 1 January BLZEY 26 5,137,635 6,081,010
Cash and cash equivalents RTZA=+—HBHERER

at 31 December BEZEEY 26 7,831,795 5,137,635

The accompanying notes on pages 145 to 274 form an integral part of

these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B SRR MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(BB ZT)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1

FERHBMEREHRERS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), and
the applicable requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. The consolidated financial statements also comply
with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. A summary of the significant accounting policies adopted
by the Group is set out below.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements comprise the Company
and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”) and
the Group'’s interest in associates.

The functional currency of the major entities in the Group is RMB,
the currency of the primary economic environment in which the
respective entities in the Group operate. For the convenience
of the consolidated financial statements users, the consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is the historical cost basis except that the following
assets are stated at their fair value as explained in the accounting
policies set out below:

(i) investment properties;

(i) investments in debt and equity securities classified as
available-for-sale; and

(i) investments in debt and equity securities designated at fair
value through profit or loss.

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgments, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form
the basis of making the judgments about carrying values of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

FTESHEE

(a)

(b)

8 1) 2 A

AHBHRRECRRBREL SRS EMH A
PrEERN(ERM B RS ERD) (RGHEE
BIEERERNCEEMBIRELR) - (&
BEAEEREB) RE  UNEEMAN
FRCRFHEDD) ZHRE WO - KRB R
BIRENTEKEBHERIMEBERRRE
F LR BANEERE - ATRASE
EEANEIEEAHEME -

MBRERNFEREE

BEMBRREEARARAMBLAR (4
BRIAEE]) kAKEEGEERRZ#

o

S

Bl

AEBAIZERAANNEEE /AR
oNEEMAASEEMREARLEE

° h

MEBLERTABITNER - RHRE
EMBHREERE AR HRSE NGB
W27 -

BLTEEMBBRARRBEIKI -
R BEMRBAE LR ARNE BRI -
ERABEIN T EFTHEK

iy wEME

(i) BEAAHEENEERBRAERK
g R

(i) BERBBHERZUARRARBENES
EBEAEFRE

B(EBMBWMELER) 2 Bk ERAY
BwEKE - BEEAFEHE - A5 RR&R
EMPERRERNEE  BF  BWAR
XHZ2REHE - ARG RBRRIIEE
REBRATAAEMBARE  REBEZL
B R H B 2R A BT DL R AR Ho A
KEENEERBBOREE - BEREA
KA EILFHEETEER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

MEMEHRRMETE @)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LUBE#ZIT)
1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 1 S BERSFTHERRE (©)
CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements (Continued) (b) BB ERMNFEREE ()
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an BAGTREREZATEHRY ST R
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized Z2ZEFTH 8 uﬂE s .:TE EZ( AT HA
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects NIER  RNZIEET 2R &%XA*
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods B BIREETER R KRG HIRR
if the revision affects both current and future periods.
Judgements made by management in the application of HKFRSs EWEH?W EHEEEEMIACEBND
that have significant effect on the financial statements and iﬁﬁWﬁTifﬁ’Jﬁﬁﬁ#&i’%&ﬁﬁrﬁé
estimates with a significant risk of material adjustment in the 7(%% SIMATREEAERNFARZR R
next year are discussed in note 47.
(c) Classification of contracts (c) &XDEE
(i) Insurance contracts (i) REBEEH
Contracts under which the Group accepts significant i % 2R FE B TR SE 44 ([ AR SF14])
insurance risk from another party (“the policyholder”) by HE—7 (REFHAD BRFTFE -
agreeing to compensate the policyholder or other beneficiary mAE lL%B HOEE7 E‘\X E FZRERHE
if a specified uncertain future event (“the insured event”) A= /\E’]i?ﬂ% gl [F) B
adversely affects the policyholder or other beneficiary are a%%%%—rﬁ)\jzx &:Q?’]ﬁiﬁ
classified as insurance contracts. Insurance risk is risk other BIRE o {RR& 7% BHRFEEA
than financial risk that is transferred from the holder of a L%i?{‘ﬁ}\ﬂ’]@ﬁkﬂ L/W\\ZI—L °
contract to the issuer. Financial risk is the risk of a possible R IEFEMNE  FHER - B®
future change in one or more of a specified interest rate, B - EX - Eﬁ%iﬂra*a%( = ERT
security price, commodity price, foreign exchange rate, index LR EERY S HEMEEEENE R —
of prices or rates, credit rating or credit index or other variable, TE ok % I8 1 2R 7] B IR B B ) LR - ’\ﬁ
provided in the case of a non-financial variable that the 1%7/%#5??%2; ' ﬁ‘JIE?FﬁFEJff%T
variable is not specific to a party of the contract. Insurance ME—FTHR o a8 )Tﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂk
contracts may also transfer some financial risk. = B o
Insurance risk is significant if, and only if, an insured event EARREMAIRESIBAEERNEKRSE
could cause the Group to pay significant additional benefits. 57\\7“ = RREBRIIBEKX - —BA
Once a contract is classified as an insurance contract it HERBARBREL - E%ﬁﬁ%ﬂ&%ﬁ%
remains classified as an insurance contract until all rights Zéﬁﬂ% gfEmA - A —ERERRR
and obligations are extinguished or have expired. BH) o
(ii) Investment contracts (i) REEH
Investment contracts are with or without discretionary BEAHNAMBED AL IEWBE DAL
participation features (“DPF”). A DPF is a contractual right Ao FIE %ﬁ’*”)’ﬂ%ﬁh*ﬁ/\%ﬁ—fﬂﬁ
held by a policyholder to receive, as a supplement to EURE SN 2= E’]*IE/\”WEE%‘J SZFHNA
guaranteed minimum benefits, additional benefits that are wIERBEERMN RGN & - FIaE
likely to be a significant portion of the total contractual BRA T \#@%EE’JK‘W =y okl
benefits, whose amount or timing is contractually at the MR EES R E TR AREEA
Group’s discretion and are contractually based on: WA RBEATZENIEEE
(i) the performance of a specified pool of contracts or a iy —HRFTEAHIBFEEANEGHNE
specified type of contract; #H
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e IEHRRMEE @)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(BB ZT)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

1

FESTFTHRERETBERNRE (&)

(c) Classification of contracts (Continued)

(ii)

Investment contracts (Continued)

(i) realized and/or unrealized investment returns on a
specified pool of assets held by the issuing entity; or

(iii) the profit or loss of the issuing entity.

Deposits collected under investment contracts with DPF
are classified as insurance contracts. Deposits collected
under investment contracts without DPF are classified as
investment contracts. For the recognition of investment
contracts without DPF, please refer to note 1(d)(vi).

(d) Recognition and measurement of contracts

(i)

(ii)

Recognition of gross premiums written

Gross premiums written in respect of reinsurance contracts
reflect business written during the year, and exclude any
taxes or duties based on premiums. Premiums written include
estimates for “pipeline” premiums and adjustments to
estimates of premiums written in previous years.

Gross premiums written in respect of life insurance contracts
other than unit-linked insurance contracts, are recognized
as revenue when due. Gross premiums written in respect
of unit-linked insurance contracts are recognized when the
corresponding units are allocated to policyholders.

Gross premiums written in respect of property and casualty
insurance contracts are recognized as revenue when the
amount is determined, which is generally when the risk
commences.

Life insurance funds

Provisions for life insurance contracts other than unit-linked
insurance contracts are determined using the net premium
approach, in which the assumptions used in assessing the
actuarial valuation of life insurance funds reflect
management’s assessment of the most likely outcome of
future policy cash flows subject to reasonable and prudent
allowances, and a deferral approach on the acquisition costs
related to the acquisition of new business, including but
not limited to commissions, underwriting, marketing and
policy issue expenses, in so far as there are sufficient margins
in the future premiums of the new policies to fund the
amortization of the acquisition costs over the life time of
the policies. Profits are expected to emerge on a level basis
over the life of the insurance contracts.

(c) EHDE (&)

(ii)

REGH (F)

(i) —HBABTEBRANSTEEZ
EERRAAERREER K

(i) BEITHIBHIBEEN ©

RBRBED AR NIKEA OREIZ 5K
WEEARREH - RIBFEWB AL
MEBEGHRI 2 FRKEERRES
# o MIERIEMBOARKRERL 5
SRR (d)(vi) ©

(d) EWEIRTE

(i)

(if)

ERRREZER

ABBREA DNERRRE T RBE
PEARERBET - LENBRER
BRHERBS - ARREOIE R
[RE fhat BB R RAR B 5HE
ELS

BB BESRENAIIMIERENE
EREREND R ER ST - REE
EERAONEARRERBRKRE R
BREFEABER -

BRMERRNEARRENBERETE
RBRERLSBA » —RBERFEGE -

BEREFEED

RIREEESRAKAIIMNNERE HLE
BIAFREAEEETE - AEAFE
BRSRETERSNVBEGRELRR
EEEEELERE REENELR ¥
ARREFRSRBRAAEHBIBE NN
iy ARIRAIRIE 75 )% BR 32 BUS 31 5 7%
WHEBKRA  BREEATEAMAE &
B MBEEMBEREZER  RZ
IR B8 E9 R SRR B UR A FTS FIE B A 32
U EER A FEREH M D # o @78
e ERRAOMATHFA -

FREBZERER AT 2008 F ik

147



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

MEMEHRRMETE @)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(BB ZT)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

1

EZE2BREE

SRS ()

148

(d) Recognition and measurement of contracts (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

China Insurance International Holdings Company Limited

Unearned premium provisions

The unearned premium provisions comprise the proportion
of gross premiums written which is estimated to be earned
in the following or subsequent financial years, computed
on a time-apportioned basis, adjusted if necessary to reflect
any variation in the incidence of risk during the period covered
by the contract.

Provision for outstanding claims

Provision for outstanding claims comprises provision for the
Group’s estimate of the ultimate cost of settling all claims
incurred but unpaid at the balance sheet date whether
reported or not, and related internal and external claims
handling expenses and an appropriate prudential margin.
Provision for outstanding claims is assessed by reviewing
individual claims and making allowance for claims incurred
but not yet reported, the effect of both internal and external
foreseeable events, such as changes in claims handling
procedures, inflation, judicial trends, legislative changes and
past experience and trends. Provision for outstanding claims
is not discounted. Adjustments to claims provisions
established in prior years are reflected in the consolidated
financial statements of the year in which the adjustments
are made and disclosed separately if material. The methods
used, and the estimates made, are reviewed regularly.

Liability adequacy test

At each balance sheet date, liability adequacy tests are
performed to determine if the life insurance funds are
adequate. Current best estimates of all future contractual
cash flows and related expenses, such as claims handling
expenses, and investment income from assets backing the
life insurance funds are used in performing these tests. Any
deficiency is recognized in the income statement for the
current year.

Provision is made for unexpired risks arising from reinsurance
contracts and property and casualty insurance contracts
where the expected value of claims and expenses attributable
to the unexpired periods of policies in force at the balance
sheet date exceeds the unearned premium provisions in
relation to such policies. The unexpired risk provision is
calculated by reference to classes of business which are
managed together, after taking into account the future
investment return on investments held to back the unearned
premium provisions and the unexpired risk provision.

(d)

Annual Report 2008
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(iii)

(iv)

(v)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e IEHRRMEE @)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(BB ZT)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

1

FESTFTHRERETBERNRE (&)

(d) Recognition and measurement of contracts (Continued)

(vi)

Investment contracts liabilities

Investment contracts without DPF are recognized as financial
liabilities in the balance sheet when the Group becomes a
party to their contractual provisions. Contributions received
from policyholders are not recognized in the consolidated
income statement but are accounted for as deposits.

All investment contracts issued by the Group are initially
recognized at fair value and thereafter stated at amortized
cost using effective interest method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.

(vii) Policyholders’ benefits

Policyholders’ benefits include maturities, annuities,
surrenders, claims and claims handling expenses, and
policyholder bonuses allocated in anticipation of a bonus
declaration. Maturity and annuity claims are recognized as
an expense when due for payment. Surrender claims are
recognized when paid. Claims are recognized when notified
but not settled and claims incurred but not reported at the
reporting date.

(viii)Embedded derivatives in insurance contracts

(ix)

The Group has taken advantage of the exemptions available
in HKFRS 4, Insurance Contracts, not to separate and fair
value a policyholder’s option to surrender an insurance
contract (or investment contracts with DPF) for a fixed amount
(or for an amount based on a fixed amount and an interest
rate) even if the exercise price differs from the carrying amount
of the host insurance liability.

Reinsurance

The Group cedes insurance/reinsurance in the normal course
of business for the purpose of limiting its net loss potential
through the diversification of its risks. Assets, liabilities,
income and expense arising from ceded insurance/
reinsurance contracts are presented separately from the
assets, liabilities, income and expense from the related
insurance contracts because the reinsurance arrangements
do not relieve the Group from its direct obligations to its
policyholders.

Only contracts that give rise to a significant transfer of
insurance risk are accounted for as reinsurance contracts.
Rights under contracts that do not transfer significant
insurance risk are accounted for as financial instruments.

(d)

BHREARTE (&)

(vi)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

MEMEHRRMETE @)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LB #3R)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

1

SHBENREFTHERNRE (&)

150

(d) Recognition and measurement of contracts (Continued)

(ix) Reinsurance (Continued)

The benefits to which the Group is entitled under its
reinsurance contracts held are recognized as reinsurance
assets. These assets consist of balances due from reinsurers,
as well as other receivables (classified as reinsurance assets)
that are dependent on the expected claims and benefits
arising under related reinsured insurance contracts. Amounts
recoverable from or due to reinsurers are measured
consistently with the amounts associated with the reinsured
insurance contracts and in accordance with the terms of
each reinsurance contract. Reinsurance liabilities are primarily
premiums payable for reinsurance contracts and are
recognized as an expense when due.

Premiums ceded and reinsurers’ share of claims paid and
the related payables and receivables are separately
accounted for in the consolidated income statements and
the consolidated balance sheets and not net off against
the related gross balances.

Amounts due/recoverable under reinsurance and the
reinsurers’ share of insurance contract provisions are
assessed for impairment at each balance sheet date. Such
assets are deemed impaired if there is objective evidence,
as a result of an event that occurred after its initial recognition,
that the Group may not recover all amounts due and that
the event has a reliably measurable impact on the amounts
that the Group will receive from the reinsurers. The impairment
loss is calculated following the same method used for financial
assets held at amortized cost and the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account similar
to insurance receivables.

(e) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the

Company (its subsidiaries).

Control is achieved where the

Company has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated income statement from
the effective date of acquisition and up to the effective date of
disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into
line with those used by other members of the Group.

China Insurance International Holdings Company Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e IEHRRMEE @)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(BB ZT)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 1
CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

FESTFTHRERETBERNRE (&)

(e) Basis of consolidation (Continued) (e) HmEEE (4B)

M

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses
are eliminated on consolidation.

Minority interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries
are presented separately from the Group’s equity therein. Minority
interests in the net assets consist of the amount of those interests
at the date of the original business combination and the minority’s
share of changes in equity since the date of the combination.
Losses applicable to the minority in excess of the minority’s
interest in the subsidiary’s equity are allocated against the interests
of the Group except to the extent that the minority has a binding
obligation and is able to make an additional investment to cover
the losses.

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment in a subsidiary
is stated at cost less impairment losses (see note 1(0)). The
results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on
the basis of dividends received or receivable.

Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group or Company has
significant influence, but not control or joint control, over its
management, including participation in the financial and operating
policy decisions.

An investment in an associate is accounted for in the consolidated
financial statements under the equity method and is initially
recorded at cost and adjusted thereafter for the post acquisition
change in the Group’s share of the associate’s net assets, less
any identified impairment loss. The consolidated income statement
includes the Group’s share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results
of the associates for the year, including any impairment loss on
goodwill relating to the investment in associates recognized for
the year (see note 1(0)).

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in the
associates, the Group’s interest is reduced to nil and recognition
of further losses is discontinued except to the extent that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate. For this purpose, the Group’s
interest in the associate is the carrying amount of the investment
under the equity method together with the Group’s long-term
interests that in substance form part of the Group’s net investment
in the associate.

(f)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e IEHRRMEE @)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LUBE#ZIT)
1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 1 FESTBRRREFABERRE ()
CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(f) Associates (Continued) (H BEQT (E)
Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share of REBER BEAKRALEASEEGHE
the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the NRAIMAHANFEENLATERL 2
associate recognized at the date of acquisition is recognized BAEEAR B_TTAF—A—HRE -
as goodwill. From 1 January 2005 onwards, the Group has AEECDFILIEEZENE  UBEER%
discontinued amortization of goodwill and such goodwill is REZREBEARABENERERAZIR
included within the carrying amount of the investment and is BEH)—EH o

assessed for impairment as part of the investment.

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the EREEERMBEKRBENRHAIEE - &

identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the BERIARBENDRFESREBE K

cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is recognized immediately KEBENRBHNKAE  BHNSREY

in profit or loss. BB m KRR -

Unrealized profits and losses resulting from transactions between AEFHEBEARCHANRIEENRE

the Group and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the WAE  BASBRZEE QB FTEr#E

Group’s interest in the associate, except where unrealized losses =B BERERBEETRAEZENE

provide evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred, in ELBERE AIXREREESHRELGS

which case they are recognized immediately in the income BRRANER -

statement.

In the Company’s balance sheet, its investments in associates RABIEERERATRE S ATINIKRE

are stated at cost less impairment losses (see note 1(0)). The RERAREREBEAR (2EMTE1(0) -

results of associates are accounted for by the Company on the ARG HE & QA 2 EE IR D IR & O

basis of dividends received or receivable. BAR °

(g) Business combinations and goodwill (0) ¥BEHEEE

(i) Business combinations (i) EXEEGF
The acquisition of business is accounted for using the Wig 75 TR AU A ABR o BB AR
purchase method. The cost of the acquisition is measured BXBREBRGTZEE  MELESE
at the aggregate of the fair values, at the date of exchange, A2 B EN R AN EE BT E A
of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity AIMATETIRATE 2B R EE - N
instruments issued by the Group in exchange for control of FEBEHEERN 2 ERKAGE ©
the acquiree, plus any costs directly attributable to the HEBBMBEREEANEIREBEE
business combination. The acquiree’s identifiable assets, MR GE 2 HERIE AT 25
liabilities and contingent liabilities that meet the conditions BE BERSIABE HREEER
for recognition under HKFRS 3 “Business Combinations” ZARBERR

are recognized at their fair values at the acquisition date.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognized as an asset WHEFTE £ v BB R ERREE k&)
and initially measured at cost, being the excess of the cost BEARRTE - BRUEB S R
of the business combination over the Group’s interest in REBEGHZAHEFNEE - BERIRA
the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and BEZANEEZHE - BIEHER
contingent liabilities recognized. If, after reassessment, the & MAEEMRH#LCAIBNEE &
Group’s interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s BERFIARBEZ AR BEFEBLER
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities exceeds B 85 - BB AERER
the cost of the business combination, the excess is hEgER -

recognized immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

MEMEHRRMETE @)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LB #3R)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

1

EZE2BREE

SRS ()

(9) Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Business combinations (Continued)

The interest of minority shareholders in the acquiree is initially
measured at the minority’s proportion of the net fair value
of the assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities recognized.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on acquisitions prior to 1 January 2005

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of net assets and
operations of another entity for which the agreement date
is before 1 January 2005 represents the excess of the cost
of acquisition over the Group’s interest in the fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities of the relevant acquiree
at the date of acquisition.

For previously capitalized goodwill arising on acquisitions
of net assets and operations of another entity after 1 January
2001, the Group has discontinued amortization from 1
January 2005 onwards, and such goodwill is tested for
impairment annually, and whenever there is an indication
that the cash-generating unit to which the goodwill relates
may be impaired (see note 1(0)).

Gooawill arising on acquisitions on or after 1 January 2005

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business for which
the agreement date is on or after 1 January 2005 represents
the excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s interest
in the fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of the relevant business at the date of
acquisition. Such goodwill is carried at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is allocated to
cash-generating units and is tested annually for impairment
(see note 1(0)).

On subsequent disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit,
the attributable amount of goodwill capitalized is included
in the determination of the amount of profit or loss on
disposal.

() BEHREE (&)

(i)

(ii)

EBEO (F)

W EE 2 D BERRERRIIZ DB
RAECHREE  BBERIREEZ
ARBEFEZLIGE -

BE

R-BERF—A—HEBHRBRESL
ZEE

WS —BERZFEENREBMEL
ZABWBZHEAS _TTREF
—A—BA) - EEERABHKER
HAEBEREGABKEE 2 EME
ENABAREERSZEE -

MR- EE—F— A B 2BETH
WES—AER Y FEAEREGMES
WERNMEE  AEEEHR-_TTRF
—A—BRFLEE - MZEREDR
BFEREADNRETZEREBYRZH
& A B A At H 3R R (E B 1 TR (E R
H(2FEWFE() -

R-_FERF—A—AEBRBRESL
ZEE

WHEXBREE mE (KB 2HER
BE-ZETARAF—A—H=2%) Bl
SRR AU B AR B e (5B
B2 HBEE BEXIREBER
REBEZEREZE - EEEEREAR
FRRFTREBEYE BEEIRE
BeELBEMRFFETRENR (2
FEMWrE1(0) °

RERHEFMATELENE  EF
ZHEMRSERERIBCRAERNER
BEGEEHE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e IEHRRMEE @)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LUBE#ZIT)
1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 1 TESTHBRRREFHERRE @)
CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(h) Investments in debt and equity securities (h) EBRBEAELFRE
Investments in debt and equity securities are initially measured REBEREAEFSF 2REVNFEIAAEE
at fair value, which is their transaction price unless fair value TIER - AR EEIANERXSE @ BRIEATUA
can be more reliably estimated using valuation techniques whose HERT (RZS8EREBEmE 2 8U8)
variables include only data from observable markets. Attributable EAEMAEFEAREE B RXIHIKA
transaction costs are included in the fair value, except where BREEAABERN @ ETXAIBETEERI -
indicated otherwise below. These investments are subsequently ZERERBE TN FERIEE  HEHERT
accounted for as follows, depending on their classification: HEpImE
(i) Securities designated at fair value through profit or loss (i) EEBBEBEDURBALEENFES

Securities designated at fair value through profit or loss are EEABBERIRBRALEENES

financial instruments which on initial recognition are A EB VISR AW IEE S A R R

designated by the Group as being at fair value through profit ARnEBEENERIA -

or loss.

A security is classified in this category if it meets the criteria HaTIHNEANES Y SRBEEER

set out below, and is so designated by management. The Bl BRENZWLEE - NEBIEES

Group designates securities at fair value through profit or RIEAMBBEREANEE B

loss if:

(1) such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a (1) K& ETER DUBRR SR ER A AT
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would AERELGEcREEXERMARE
otherwise arise from measuring assets or liabilities or HI(E A K IERE W K E 1B R FE T
recognising the gains and losses on them on different WO —BOER X
bases; or

(2) the securities form a group of financial assets, financial (2) BHBEKN—HSRMEE - eRlBE
liabilities or both that is managed and its performance S—HeMEERAE  BEHAX
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the RMEMNEREENIZERE - A
Group’s documented risk management or investment REEELEEERFHERR - MA
strategy, and where information about these instruments HIPRBEZELERNFTZEEARR
are provided internally on that basis to the Group’s key HZESBHMITEMNER =X
management personnel; or

(3) the securities form part of a contract containing one (3) BHEXR/ANE—EXZBESHR
or more embedded derivatives and HKAS 39 permits ARTETREZEHMEF D -
the entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be MEBGEREINEARHFEGDE
designated as at fair value through profit or loss. e (BEXEE) HEH /BB

BaARBARER -

Financial assets so designated are recognized initially at CREESVIEAABEIEMERS

fair value with transaction costs taken directly to the income BEREETDABRR - VEBRERS

statement. At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial HHEB BREBEmEAABENTREAE
recognition, financial assets designated at fair value through ERARBEIE BAZEENAAE
profit or loss are measured at fair value, with gains and EFFmEEN KRG RBERERRRA

losses from changes in the fair value of such assets are R o

recognized in the income statement as they arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

MEMEHRRMETE @)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(BB ZT)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

1 EETHRERETHERE 8

(h) Investments in debt and equity securities (Continued)
(ii) Held-to-maturity securities

Dated debt securities that the Group and/or the Company
have the positive ability and intention to hold to maturity
are classified as held-to-maturity securities. Held-to-maturity
securities are stated in the balance sheet at amortized cost
using effective interest method less impairment losses (see
note 1(0)).

(iii) Available-for-sale securities

Investments in securities which do not fall into any of the
above categories are classified as available-for-sale securities.
At each balance sheet date the fair value is remeasured,
with any resultant gain or loss being recognized directly in
equity, except foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from changes in the amortized cost of monetary items such
as debt securities which are recognized directly in the income
statement. Where these investments are interest-bearing,
interest calculated using the effective interest method is
recognized in the income statement and included in “net
investment income”. When these investments are
derecognized or impaired (see note 1(0)), the cumulative
gain or loss previously recognized directly in equity is
recognized in the income statement.

(iv) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. At each balance sheet date subsequent
to initial recognition, loans and receivables are carried at
amortized cost using the effective interest method, less any
identified impairment losses (see note 1(0)).

Investments in equity securities that do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured are recognized in the balance sheet at cost less
impairment losses (see note 1(0)).

All regular way purchases or sales of investments in debt and
equity securities are recognized and derecognized on a trade
date basis.

(h BBRRAZBSZRE (B)
(i) HEEIEZEF

ZIK’EI&/iZIS ﬁﬁﬁiﬁ%ﬁ&%‘ﬁ
Hﬁ M BHRERES  BERE
EIJHHﬁ%J %ﬁiiuﬁﬂﬁ%}ﬁﬁ
xﬁlﬂ+u BT AR DR (E
BRTEAEEESEBR (2EWE0) °

(i) A & & %

ﬂiﬁﬁiﬁﬁl«xt*ﬁﬁ'l BHRE
RAHHERES - E’\tl %Elﬁﬂ'kﬁ

Qﬁ{ﬁﬁ E s EE - EER
%ﬁnmﬁﬁ BERIERNEBESD
B AR B 2 SME W R REBIR R E &
FEERAER - MEFEERE - 7B
REBFNEFEAEUERERRRA
MEERMREWAEREIRN - ERE
A TR BK /WTEET(;Q%MT;IH )
iﬁ&ﬁ?ﬁﬁ&a??%ﬁnﬂ'}%ﬁrw & o &5
B tEx %Wﬁguu °

(iv) EFRERNIE

,\TA&ﬁ”&TAIEEIMTm.IEjZTﬁEE%
BNRZETEERMEE (WIFAER
/EE&ZW%%HEB) EAE/AﬁEw&Zt
BEHEER  BERREUEFIRTIRBE R
?‘J,%\/ihz&ﬁﬁﬁ$ﬁ&ﬁaE@EZ?@ZTE
EIERIIR(2FH () °

REERMESMEREARBETENSE
WA ENRAZTHEE  BRARERE
BRERRTEEBRERAN (B2FME1() °

A MREBEBZBRAREHESRES N
X5 HEEERBRE LR -

FREBZERER AT 2008 F ik

155



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e IEHRRMEE @)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LUBE#ZIT)
1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 1 FESTBRRREFABERRE ()
CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(h) Investments in debt and equity securities (Continued) (h) EBERBREAELFRE (&)
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the BRANEEDGFEeREEZEHEXR
amortized cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income RREBEBEBSFSRAZTE - B
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate MERZSHMEECERAFERAFHIR
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including EEER (ER) ERTRMAFTARES
all fees on points paid or received that form an integral part of WA (BIEEAREBFE  RGHEAREM
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums HEITEETESHzENHWE 225
or discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset, ERZemEEYRERRNRDFEZ
or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount FE o

of the financial asset on initial recognition.

(i) Sales and repurchase agreements () BEHEBEY
Securities sold under repurchase agreements represent short- EHCEESEUATHENEFERFZ
term finance arrangements secured by the securities sold. The REVBZHE REEFNETEEAR
securities remain on the balance sheet and a liability is recorded ®OUWHMAUKERzREZRELSEE - FE
in respect of the consideration received. Interest is calculated TREMFNEREFE - BEHEBESZ
based upon the effective interest method. The securities sold ROBERALRAEERBER -

under repurchase agreements are carried in the balance sheet
at amortized cost.

() Investment properties () REMZE

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are owned Tk REEEFARAROERERES -
or held under a leasehold interest to earn rental income and/or EmARDESE HNEEEANEESH
for capital appreciation. These include land held for a currently B I RIREME  REMEBIERARE
undetermined future use. HiERE 2zt -

Investment properties are stated in the balance sheet at fair REMERNAABEREEABRRIIT
value. Any gain or loss arising from a change in fair value or AAnBEZENRENIHEMEENE
from the retirement or disposal of an investment property is AEBEANER KREVEHSRARK
recognized in the income statement. Rental income from M s () (iv)FT it & o

investment properties is accounted for as described in note 1(v)(iv).

When the Group holds a property interest under an operating SEEREENBR  LULEHEESR
lease to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, the BEAERSRARERIEE (R_FES)
interest is classified and accounted for as an investment property MYMERZOPAREDE - TRERSE
on a property-by-property basis. Any such property interest which RILEMENDERER  EEREREMR
has been classified as an investment property is accounted for EAR - -HEMABERERERLNIEEY
as if it was held under a finance lease, and the same accounting ¥ HAR—gHEAR-

policies are applied to that interest as are applied to other
investment properties leased under finance leases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e IEHRRMEE @)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(BB ZT)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

1

FESTFTHRERETBERNRE (&)

(k) Property and equipment

U]

Property and equipment including land and buildings held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes are stated at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see note 1(0)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property and equipment are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the item and are recognized in the income statement on the
date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of property
and equipment, less their estimated residual value, if any, using
the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives as follows:

— Land and buildings are depreciated over the shorter of the
unexpired term of lease and their estimated useful lives,
being no more than 50 years after the date of completion.

— Other fixed assets 3 — 6 years

Where parts of an item of property and equipment have different

useful lives, the cost or valuation of the item is allocated on a

reasonable basis between the parts and each part is depreciated

separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value,
if any, are reviewed annually.

Prepaid lease payments and buildings under construction

When the leasehold land is in the course of development for
production or for administrative purposes, the leasehold land
component is classified as a prepaid lease payment and amortized
over a straight-line basis over the lease term. The amortization
is charged to income statement before the commencement of
the construction. During the construction period, the amortization
charge provided for the leasehold land is included as part of
costs of buildings under construction. Buildings under
construction are carried at cost, less any identified impairment
losses. Depreciation of buildings commences when they are
available for use (i.e. when they are in the location and condition
necessary for them to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management).

(k) MERRE

U]

MERZBERBAAREEREHREY
R HARTEBEZ LB RET
TR AER R ERAITER RERES
BIIR(2FMEA() °

MMERHENERREER KalEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e IEHRRMEE @)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LUBE#ZIT)
1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 1 FESTBRRREFABERRE ()
CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(m) Insurance debtors, other debtors and amounts due from group (m) REEEFREWERZR - EtEWERREWR
companies EERAQFRE
Insurance debtors, other debtors and amounts due from group R R EUAR TR ~ E 1th &8 U BR 3 B IR
companies are initially recognized at fair value and thereafter SEARBRBEESEVEEFAR R BR
stated at amortized cost using effective interest method less R HIERB RN EFEN D #HK AR
allowance for impairment of bad and doubtful debts (see note ERZRBEEEBAR (2FNE10) ° A
1(0)), except where the receivables are interest-free or the effect - MEREREESERNITERER
of discounting would be immaterial. In such cases, the receivables WEEDIKN - AR AR ERERBERS
are stated at cost less allowance for impairment of bad and BARK -

doubtful debts.

(n) Insurance creditors and amounts due to group companies n) REEFEMRANENSEERQTRE
Insurance creditors and amounts due to group companies are REEFEMNERREMERARGFIE
initially recognized at fair value and thereafter stated at amortized ERVEERNUARBEER  HERBNX
cost using effective interest method unless the effect of FMEFEOCEBENARAR - A - 047
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated EREBNZETK  BIEKAANR -
at cost.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the BRANEEDGFEeRBEZEHEXR
amortized cost of a financial liabilities and of allocating interest KA EBEEEBFERARZ % - AR
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is MEEREBEBCERIEAFHIR
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments EEER (ER) ERTRMAFARES
through the expected life of the financial liabilities, or, where NREBBYVIRERRMREFEZFE -

appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the
liability on initial recognition.

(o) Impairment of assets (o) EERE

(i) Impairment of financial assets other than those at fair (i) BREBEBEZURMALBEIIZEHE
value through profit or loss ERE
Financial assets other than those at fair value through profit BiBEBEBZUARMARBEINZEHE
or loss are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine ERNEGFHEERART  NETEEEE
whether there is objective evidence of impairment. Objective FIEAIUNERTERE - REZEEE
evidence of impairment includes observable data that comes BREERIZEINT —HEHXZEEIE
to the attention of the Group about one or more of the FHECBEYE -

following loss events:

— significant financial difficulty of the debtor; — EBABERMBEE

— a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency — BERAEH mEXREENESRAR
in interest or principal payments; Eal

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter — EBATRERESETEMMBE
bankruptcy or other financial reorganization; 4

— significant changes in the technological, market, — BE WS RERERREEE
economic or legal environment that have an adverse RAEMHBEZABTATE Kk

effect on the debtor; and

— asignificant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an — BRAIEKREZAREBENERE
investment in an equity instrument below its cost. HTH®REEREKARE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e IEHRRMEE @)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LB #3R)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

1

FESTFTHRERETBERNRE (&)

(o)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets other than those at fair
value through profit or loss (Continued)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is determined
and recognized as follows:

— For unquoted equity securities carried at cost, the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the carrying amount of the financial asset and the
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset where
the effect of discounting is material. Impairment losses
for equity securities are not reversed.

— For trade and other receivables and other financial assets
carried at amortized cost, the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed
at initial recognition of these assets), where the effect
of discounting is material.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be linked
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognized, the impairment loss is reversed
through the income statement. A reversal of an
impairment loss shall not result in the asset’s carrying
amount exceeding that which would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognized
in prior years.

— For available-for-sale securities, the cumulative loss that
has been recognized directly in equity is removed from
equity and is recognized in the income statement. The
amount of the cumulative loss that is recognized in the
income statement is the difference between the
acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment and
amortization) and current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that asset previously recognized in the income
statement.

Impairment losses recognized in the income statement
in respect of available-for-sale equity securities are not
reversed through the income statement. Any subsequent
increase in the fair value of such assets is recognized
directly in equity.

(o) EERE (&)

(i)

BriEBRm URBR AR EEIZEHBE
ERE (&)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e IEHRRMEE @)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LB #3R)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

1

FESTFTHRERETBERNRE (&)

160

(o) Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Impairment of financial assets other than those at fair
value through profit or loss (Continued)

Impairment losses in respect of available-for-sale debt
securities are reversed if the subsequent increase in
fair value can be objectively related to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognized. Reversals
of impairment losses in such circumstances are
recognized in the income statement.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
and other receivables, assets that are assessed not to
be impaired individually are subsequently assessed for
impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence
of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include
the Group’s past experience of collecting payments,
an increase in the number of delayed payments in the
portfolio past the average credit period, observable
changes in national or local economic conditions that
correlate with default on receivables.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced
by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets
with the exception of insurance and other receivables,
where the carrying amount is reduced through the use
of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount
of the allowance account are recognized in profit or
loss. When an insurance or other debtor is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited to profit or loss.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed
at each balance sheet date to identify indications that the
following assets may be impaired or, except in the case of
goodwill, an impairment loss previously recognized no longer
exists or may have decreased:

China Insurance International Holdings Company Limited

property and equipment;
reinsurers’ share of insurance contract provisions;
investments in subsidiaries and associates; and

goodwill.

(o) EERE (&)

(i)

(if)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

MEMEHRRMETE @)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(BB ZT)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

1

EZE2BREE

SRS ()

(o)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

(ii) Impairment of other assets (Continued)

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount
is estimated. In addition, for goodwill, the recoverable amount
is estimated annually whether or not there is any indication
of impairment.

(1)

(i)

(iii)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of
its fair value less cost to sell and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. Where an asset does not generate cash inflows
largely independent of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest group
of assets that generates cash inflows independently
(i.e. a cash-generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognized in the income statement
whenever the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognized in
respect of cash-generating units are allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the cash-generating unit (or group of units) and then,
to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in
the unit (or group of units) on a pro rata basis, except
that the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced
below its individual fair value less costs to sell, or value
in use, if determinable.

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an impairment
loss is reversed if there has been a favourable change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount. An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is
not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset’s
carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognized in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses are credited to the
income statement in the year in which the reversals
are recognized.
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

1 FESHHERSFTHERE (&)

162

(p)

(a)

(r)

(s)

China Insurance International Holdings Company Limited

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within three
months of maturity at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s
cash management are also included as a component of cash
and cash equivalents for the purpose of the cash flow statement.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognized initially at fair value
less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortized
cost with any difference between the amount initially recognized
and redemption value being recognized in the income statement
over the period of the borrowings, together with any interest
and fees payable, using the effective interest method.

Short term employee benefits and contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of non-
monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees. Where payment or settlement
is deferred and the effect would be material, these amounts are
stated at their present values.

Income tax

()  Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognized in the income statement except to the extent
that they relate to items recognized directly in equity, in
which case they are recognized in equity.

(i)  Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable
in respect of previous years.

(P)

(a)

()

(s)
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1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

1

FESTFTHRERETBERNRE (&)

(s)

Income tax (Continued)

(i)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and
taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and
unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utilized, are recognized. Future taxable
profits that may support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences include those
that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable temporary
differences, provided those differences relate to the same
taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse either in the same period as the expected
reversal of the deductible temporary difference or in periods
into which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset
can be carried back or forward. The same criteria are adopted
when determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those
differences are taken into account if they relate to the same
taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the
tax loss or credit can be utilized.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets
and liabilities are those temporary differences arising from
goodwill not deductible for tax purposes and the initial
recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting
nor taxable profit (provided they are not part of a business
combination).

The amount of deferred tax recognized is measured based
on the expected manner of realization or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
each balance sheet date and is reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilized. Any
such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of
dividends are recognized when the liability to pay the related
dividends is recognized.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e IEHRRMEE @)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LUBE#ZIT)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 1 FESTBRRREFABERRE ()
CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(s) Income tax (Continued) (s) FIER (&)

(iv) Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and (iv) ERRIBERELERIBLE S  REFHE
movements therein, are presented separately from each other B e RmAEE - MR R
and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against BE  BEARANAER  TEELE
current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against deferred AIATE R A4 8 BITIIR B E R I E 1
tax liabilities if the Company or the Group has the legally af AIZHBEAESYENERE -
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current MEEHBEELEESLIRLEAE - AmiD
tax liabilities and the following additional conditions are met: FrEa T EIERMY
— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the — FHAEHBEAERBE ARAF

Company or the Group intends either to settle on a FAEEEERAFEEERES
net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability H SeBEESRRRARANX
simultaneously; or HEE %

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they — BHRECHBEEAEKRAE  HHE
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation BEHREEEBROFETEER -
authority on either:

— the same taxable entity; or — BE—ERWEE =X

— different taxable entities, which, in each future period — TRERMER  MEKRT
in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities {EEARE - TRERE A & RIRLER
or assets are expected to be settled or recovered, EHEEXNEESBANIK
intend to realize the current tax assets and settle B - WA BRAFEEERE
the current tax liabilities on a net basis or realize o RGHRAEREARSZN
and settle simultaneously. 7R HEAT o

(t) Provisions and contingent liabilities ) ERERIREE

Provisions are recognized for liabilities of uncertain timing or fit %5 AR S B S AN 1 BB Bk B B AR ) B R

amount when the Group or Company has a legal or constructive BEErESIETEER  METZEBEHS

obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that EREELEIRNERIING - WA EH
an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the ARG FeRZEBEKBEETITHN
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time BENIEEH NMREBRHEEBEEEAX

value of money is material, provisions are stated at the present ARTERTBITERB AR A RNRER Y%

value of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation. o

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits i 5 & B &8 Wm0 & RSN A A g 1 T

will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, X SR EAHEREEELD T SEANMGE

the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the FeEZEBRBEAIREBE  ARME

probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible $EE RN B AT B M SR AE RIBR A o ZBAR T

obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the ERRERAREUELELETERTEST

occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are FEEHEERT  TEREAXAREE

also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of BEREEERINT A ] BB RIBR AN o

outflow of economic benefits is remote.

(u) Equity instruments Uy BAIA

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the RARET2RATERE WS HRIBN

proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. BREBZEEITHRAANR -
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1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

1

FESTFTHRERETBERNRE (&)

(v) Revenue recognition

Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be
measured reliably, revenue is recognized in the income statement
as follows:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Gross premiums written from insurance contracts

The accounting policies for the recognition of revenue from
insurance contracts are disclosed in note 1(d).

Policy fee income from investment contracts

Fees are recognized in the period in which the services are
provided.

Commission income

Commission income is recognized as revenue on the effective
commencement or renewal dates of the related reinsurance
contracts.

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognized in the income statement in equal instalments
over the periods covered by the lease term, except where
an alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognized in the income
statement as an integral part of the aggregate net lease
payments receivable. Contingent rentals are recognized as
income in the accounting period in which they are earned.

Income from asset management, insurance intermediary
and pension businesses

Income from asset management, insurance intermediary and
pension businesses are recognized when the service is
rendered.

Dividends

Dividend income from investments is recognized when the
shareholder’s right to receive payment is established.

(vii) Interest income

Interest income is recognized as it accrues using the effective
interest method.
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(w) Translation of foreign currencies

(x)

China Insurance International Holdings Company Limited

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated into
the functional currency of respective entities in the Group at
the exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated into the functional currency of respective entities in
the Group at the exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet
date. Exchange gains and losses are recognized in the income
statement.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated into the
functional currency of respective entities in the Group using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
that are stated at fair value are translated into the functional
currency of respective entities in the Group using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was determined.

The results of foreign operations are translated into the Group’s
presentation currency (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the exchange
rates approximately the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates
of the transactions. Balance sheet items are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the balance
sheet date. The resulting exchange differences are recognized
directly in a separate component of equity. Goodwill arising on
acquisition of a foreign operation is translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the foreign exchange rate prevailing at the balance
sheet date.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of
the exchange differences recognized in equity which relate to
that foreign operation is included in the calculation of the profit
or loss on disposal.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognized initially at fair value.
At each balance sheet date the fair value is remeasured. The
gain or loss on remeasurement to fair value is charged immediately
to the income statement.

An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid (combined)
instrument that includes both the derivative and a host contract
with the effect that some of the cash flows of the combined
instrument vary in a way similar to a stand-alone derivative. The
embedded derivatives are separated from the host contract and
accounted for as a derivative when (a) the economic
characteristics and risks of the embedded derivative are not
closely related to the host contract; and (b) the hybrid (combined)
instrument is not measured at fair value with changes in fair
value recognized in the income statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

MEMEHRRMETE @)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LUBE#ZIT)
1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND S BERSFTHERRE (©)
CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(y) Borrowing costs (y) BHER
Borrowing costs are expensed in the income statement in the BHREATEREAERACRAERERK L
period in which they are incurred. B e
(z) Operating lease charges (2) KEBEEER
Where the Group has the use of assets held under operating EREEREBELCEHEFHAEE - ARE
leases, payments made under the leases are charged to the HEINHSBREERIROSTHHM -
income statement in equal instalments over the accounting periods LA EHEBHERNG  BRIES ﬁ%° CEED
covered by the lease term, except where an alternative basis is BRMRRREEHAELAENFEER - &

more representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from
the leased asset. Lease incentives received are recognized in
the income statement as an integral part of the aggregate net
lease payments made. Contingent rentals are charged to the
income statement in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.

(aa) Related parties

For the purposes of these consolidated financial statements, a
party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(i) the party has the ability, directly or indirectly through one
or more intermediaries, to control the Group or exercise
significant influence over the Group in making financial and
operating policy decisions, or has joint control over the Group;

(i) the Group and the party are subject to common control;

(iii)y the party is an associate of the Group or a joint venture in
which the Group is a venturer;

(iv) the party is a member of key management personnel of the
Group or the Group’s parent, or a close family member of
such an individual, or is an entity under the control, joint
control or significant influence of such individuals;

(v) the party is a close family member of a party referred to in
(i) or is an entity under the control, joint control or significant
influence of such individuals; or

(vi) the party is a post-employment benefit plan which is for
the benefit of employees of the Group or of an entity that is
a related party of the Group.

Close family members of an individual are those family members
who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that
individual in their dealings with the entity.
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(ab) Share based payment transactions

(i)

(ii)

China Insurance International Holdings Company Limited

Share Options Scheme and Share Award Scheme

The fair value of share options and awarded shares granted
to employees in an equity-settled share based payment
transaction is recognized as an employment cost with a
corresponding increase in the employee share-based
compensation reserve within equity. In respect of share
options, the fair value is measured at grant date using the
Black Scholes pricing model, taking into account the terms
and conditions upon which the options were granted. In
respect of awarded shares, the fair value is based on the
closing price at the grant date and any directly attributable
incremental costs. Where the employees have to meet vesting
conditions before becoming unconditionally entitled to the
share options and awarded shares, the total estimated fair
value of the share options and awarded shares is spread
over the vesting period, taking into account the probability
that the share options and awarded shares will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options and
awarded shares that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognized in prior
years is charged/credited to the income statement for the
year of the review, with a corresponding adjustment to the
employee share-based compensation reserve. On vesting
date, the amount recognized as an expense is adjusted to
reflect the actual number of share options and awarded
shares that vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the
employee share-based compensation reserve).

The equity amount for the share options is recognized in
the employee share-based compensation reserve until either
the option is exercised (when it is transferred to the share
premium account) or the option expires (when it is released
directly to retained profits).

Shares held for Share Award Scheme

Where the shares of the Company are acquired under the
Share Award Scheme, the consideration paid, including any
directly attributable incremental costs, is presented as
“Shares held for Share Award Scheme” and deducted from
total equity.

When the award shares are transferred to the awardees
upon vesting, the related weighted average cost of the
awarded shares vested are credited to “Shares held for Share
Award Scheme”, and the related employment costs of the
award shares vested are debited to the employee share-
based compensation reserve. The difference between the
related weighted average cost and the related employment
costs of the award shares is transferred to retained profits.

(ab) U /B AX N 2R S

(i)

(ii)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 1
CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

SHBENREFTHERNRE (&)

(ab) MR BAXN 2R 5 (&)

(ab) Share based payment transactions (Continued)

(ii) Shares held for Share Award Scheme (Continued)

Where the shares held for Share Award Scheme are revoked
and the revoked shares are disposed of the related gain or
loss is transferred to retained profits, and no gain or loss is
recognized in the income statement.

Where the cash or non-cash dividend distribution declared
in respect of the shares held for Share Award Scheme, the
cash or fair value of the non-cash dividend is transferred to
retained profits, and no gain or loss is recognized in the
income statement.

(ac) Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that is
engaged either in providing products or services (business
segment), or in providing products or services within a particular
economic environment (geographical segment), which is subject
to risks and rewards that are different from those of other
segments.

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial reporting system,
the Group has chosen business segment information as the
primary reporting format and geographical segment information
as the secondary reporting format for the purposes of these
consolidated financial statements.
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Segment revenue, expenses, results, assets and liabilities include R SU\ T KERR - EERARE
items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that BEEEREBE — 92 URAZREEHN
can be allocated on a reasonable basis to that segment. Segment BEXH EEiEZ AEMIEENEE - DEK

revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities are determined before
intra-group balances and intra-group transactions are eliminated
as part of the consolidation process, except to the extent that
such intra-group balances and transactions are between group
entities within a single segment. Inter-segment pricing is based
on similar terms as those available to other external parties.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during
the period to acquire segment assets (both tangible and intangible)
that are expected to be used for more than one period.

Unallocated items mainly comprise financial and corporate assets,
interest-bearing loans, borrowings, tax balance, corporate and
financing expenses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e IEHRRMEE @)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(BB ZT)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 1
CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

FESTFTHRERETBERNRE (&)

(ad) Jointly controlled assets (ad) HEEHIEE
EEEANARIEEMFETEER - #
BRHRZESEE  AEBETERARZEFEE
FiihtEm AR A M mRP T UER -
WIZB M PO EE L 55 o AR
EEEZMEEREENBERERE S
FEETE LA -

When a group entity undertakes its activities with other parties,
constituted as jointly controlled assets, the Group’s share of
the jointly controlled assets are recognized in the consolidated
financial statements and classified according to their nature.
Liabilities and expenses incurred directly in respect of interests
in jointly controlled assets are accounted for on an accrual basis.

M HE S ERA LB AR EEN
EEMER D MFNRARERS MG

Income from the sale or use of the Group’s share of the output
of the jointly controlled assets, together with its share of any

expenses incurred, are recognized when it is probable that the Hin  SEBBERZHE BT %880 S
economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to/ AE WRAERA S HEHAEEES T
from the Group. LARERR ©

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES SRR R

AEGHMIAGRMTETEAGHFERE
Rk AT AN S [ R A R R SR A ER A A R A
BRIz BB BRELAREE -

The HKICPA has issued a number of new and revised HKFRSs and
Interpretations that are first effective or available for early adoption
for the current accounting period of the Group and the Company.

REBRERAEMERGHFERKRERA
MENLRE (BEME49) -

Riz - BB RELXREREE

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation that
is not yet effective for the current accounting period (see note 49).

2 INSURANCE, FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RISK 2
MANAGEMENT

(a) Risk management objectives, policies and processes for (2 ERREEBERBERERRBEENDS R
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mitigating insurance risk

The Group is principally engaged in the underwriting of reinsurance
business around the world, and life insurance business and
property and casualty business in the PRC. The Group’s
management of insurance and financial risk is a critical aspect
of the business. Insurance risks are managed through the
application of various policies and procedures relating to
underwriting, pricing, claims and reinsurance as well as experience
monitoring.

The Group uses several methods to assess and monitor insurance
risk exposures both for individual types of risks insured and overall
risks. These methods include internal risk measurement models,
sensitivity analyzes and scenario analyzes.

The theory of probability is applied to the pricing and provisioning
for a portfolio of insurance contracts. The principal risk is that
the frequency and severity of claims is greater than expected.
Insurance events are, by their nature, random, and the actual
number and size of events during any year may vary from those
estimated using established statistical techniques.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e IEHRRMEE @)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(BB ZT)

2 INSURANCE, FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

2 R BBRERARKBRER &)

(b) Underwriting strategy

(c)

Reinsurance business

The Group’s reinsurance portfolio is made up of a mix of business
spreading across different geographic regions and classes, with
emphasis towards Asian countries covering property damage,
marine cargo and hull and miscellaneous non-marine classes.
In addition to diversifying its underwriting portfolio, the Group
does not actively seek acceptance of any liability reinsurance
business from customers operating outside the Asia Pacific region,
in particular, the United States of America. In the Asia Pacific
region, where these are core-markets of the Group, liability
reinsurance for motor, workers’ compensation and general third
party liability businesses are written on a limited scale in order
to provide customers in the region with comprehensive reinsurance
services.

Life insurance business

The Group operates its life insurance business in the PRC'’s life
insurance market, offering a wide range of insurance products
covering different types of individual and group life insurance,
health insurance, accident insurance and annuity. With regard
to the control of quality of the insurance polices underwritten,
the Group has formulated strict operational procedures on
underwriting and claims settlement to control risks on insurance
underwriting.

Property and casualty insurance business

The Group is engaged in the underwriting of property and casualty
insurance business in the PRC. The Group focuses its property
and casualty insurance business towards the PRC’s property
and casualty insurance market by offering a wide range of
insurance products covering different types of property insurance
(including compulsory motor insurance), liability insurance, credit
insurance, guarantee insurance business and short-term accident
and health insurance and the related reinsurance business. The
Group has formulated strict operational procedures on
underwriting and claims settlement to control risks on insurance
underwriting.

Reinsurance strategy

The Group purchases reinsurance protection from other reinsurers
in the normal course of business in order to limit the potential
for losses arising from longer and concentrated exposures. In
assessing the credit worthiness of reinsurers, the Group takes
into account, among other factors, ratings and evaluation
performed by recognized credit rating agencies, their claims-
paying and underwriting track record, as well as the Group’s
past experience with them.

(b)

(c)

R 5K S
BREFEH

AEEN-RBRRAEASHBRETRLRE
BRIM — RONEBERMAK - ERER
TMER  BEVERSR BERMER
BIAREMIEBERR - BETERRA
A REEWEBIRYE A E AN O
HEXH) 2 ENEPSREFAEEHERR
B o EnAME - ARSENZLTS
AEBGEREARIBEESRR - T
BRER-RE=EHEER REARTF
REZEBRRRE -

ABREFEE

AEBASRREBEENTBHAZTRR
s RESEZIHORBRER  BET
REZNEARERBASRRE  EER -
BEORNFE HARNRELEES S
M RNEEE RSB B AR R IR R
R REBIRBARSERR

BERBRFK

AEENREARTEAMERRER - A%
BETEVERREFZRNPEMERRD
5 RESEEEORBRER 8B TH
BNV ERR (BRBBEIBERET
smblfRER) - BTk ERRR - RERR
FEBIREER R BREER -
2R B B R T R B RAR RIR BR AR T
VA28 i) 4R B AR B LB o

BAR R

AEERNABEBEETMEMBRRE D
ABEBRRRAE  URHERERHRE
mREMEENEEER  EFESRR
REIMERKER  AEEEEERR
AR RHEHT RN - LNEEE
RECEE N EARBEUENR ZEBERE -

=

FREBZERER AT 2008 F ik

171



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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2 INSURANCE, FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

2 fREg

BN ERARBER (&)
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(d)

(e)

China Insurance International Holdings Company Limited

Asset and liability matching

The objective of the Group’s asset and liability management is
to match the Group’s assets with liabilities on the basis of duration.
The Group actively manages its assets using an approach that
balances quality, diversification, asset and liability matching,
liquidity and investment return. The goal of the investment process
is to maximize investment returns at a tolerable risk level, whilst
ensuring that the assets and liabilities are managed on a cash
flow and duration basis.

However, in respect of life insurance business, under the current
regulatory and market environment in the PRC, the Group is
unable to invest in assets with a duration of sufficient length to
match the duration of its life insurance liabilities. When the
regulatory and market environment permits, the Group intends
to gradually lengthen the duration of its assets. The Group
monitors the duration gap between the assets and liabilities closely
and prepares cash flow projection from assets and liabilities on
a regular basis. Currently, the Group reduces the level of the
asset-liability mismatch by:

e actively seeking to acquire longer dated fixed rate debt
investments with an acceptable level of yield;

e upon the maturity dates of fixed rate debt investments, rolling
over the proceeds to longer dated fixed rate debt investments;

e disposing of some of the shorter dated fixed rate debt
investments, particularly those with lower yields, and rolling
over the proceeds to longer dated fixed rate debt investments;
and

e investing in equities for the long term.
Insurance risk

The risk under any one insurance contract is the possibility that
the insured event occurs and the uncertainty of the amount of
the resulting claim. By the very nature of an insurance contract,
this risk is random and therefore unpredictable.

For a portfolio of insurance contracts where the theory of
probability is applied to pricing and provisioning, the principal
risk that the Group faces under its insurance contracts is that
the actual claims and benefit payments exceed the carrying
amount of the insurance liabilities. This could occur because
the frequency or severity of claims and benefits are greater than
estimated. Insurance events are random and the actual number
and amount of claims and benefits will vary from year to year
from the estimate established using statistical techniques.

(d) EEREERL

(e)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e IEHRRMEE @)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LB #3R)

2

INSURANCE, FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

2 R BBRERARKBRER &)

(e)

Insurance risk (Continued)

Experience shows that the larger the portfolio of similar insurance
contracts, the smaller the relative variability about the expected
outcome will be. In addition, a more diversified portfolio is less
likely to be affected across the board by a change in any subset
of the portfolio. The Group has developed its insurance
underwriting strategy to diversify the type of insurance risks
accepted and within each of these categories to achieve a
sufficiently large population of risks to reduce the variability of
the expected outcome.

The terms and conditions of insurance contracts that have a
material effect on the amount, timing and uncertainty of future
cash flows arising from insurance contracts are set out below:

(i)

Reinsurance business
Product features

The Group writes proportional and non-proportional
reinsurance treaties and facultative reinsurance contracts
primarily in Hong Kong and other Asian countries.

Reinsurance may take a relatively long period of time to
finalize and settle claims for a given underwriting year. The
speed of claims reporting and claims settlement is a function
of the specific coverage provided, the jurisdiction, the specific
policy provisions and the nature of underlying risks. There
are numerous components underlying the general reinsurance
business.

Management of risks

The key risk associated with reinsurance contracts are those
relating to underwriting.

The Group maintains underwriting teams who are responsible
for the underwriting and sales of the Group’s reinsurance
products. The team promoting a certain product to a
customer has the requisite expertise to determine whether
the Group can meet the specific requirement of the customer
within the Group’s risk appetite. All inward business is
screened and analyzed by the underwriting staff. The decision
to underwrite and the level of risk exposure accepted are
determined by reference to the underwriting guideline setting
out the types of business desired, and the maximum capacity
per risk and per zone. Such criteria are determined by
considering factors including the risk exposure, the pricing,
the profit potential, the class of business, the marketing
strategy, the retrocession facilities available and the market
trends.
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2 INSURANCE, FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RISK 2 R BBRERARKBRER &)

MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(e) Insurance risk (Continued) (e) REERE (&)

(i) Reinsurance business (Continued) (i) BRE¥ERK(E)

B EE ()

REBETZHED LM B R o &
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Management of risks (Continued)

The Group also arranges retrocession facilities to manage
the risk. The Group purchases mainly proportional
retrocession treaties in respect of fire and marine cargo

businesses. In addition, the Group is protected against BEESREN UG E SR
catastrophic risk by means of a single whole-account & o
catastrophe excess of loss retrocession facility.

Concentration of insurance risks REZE R EF

174

Concentration of risk arises from the accumulation of risks
within a particular business line and geographic area. The
Group’s key methods in managing these risks are
diversification of the business line and areas where the gross
premiums are written. The tables below indicate the gross
premiums written by business line and geographical

distribution for the year ended 31 December 2008.

JeR\ e 5= rp R 55 E S 75 TR AR 3 I [ s Y
R REMEL - AEEERZERAR
WEBTERDBELERELBNER
BERME - TRETHE_ZTN\F
TZA=t—BULFEREBRELM
EBOMEEMREMRE -

By business line: REGESE
% to total gross premiums written
EEARRELTIIL
2008 2007
Proportional treaty LBl & 4 59.6% 55.9%
Non-proportional treaty FELE B & &) 27.9% 32.1%
Facultative e I & 49 12.5% 12.0%
100.0% 100.0%
By geographical territory: b B8 = 5,
% to total gross premiums written
EEARRELTIIL
2008 2007
Hong Kong & Macau BB &R 16.5% 18.8%
Mainland China (& Taiwan) FERRE(REE 28.8% 23.8%
Japan =[N 7.8% 6.8%
Rest of Asia TN E A R 24.7% 27.1%
Europe BOM 12.3% 14.9%
Others H fth 3 [ 9.9% 8.6%
100.0% 100.0%

China Insurance International Holdings Company Limited
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2 INSURANCE, FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

2 R BBRERARKBRER &)

(e) REERR (&)

(e) Insurance risk (Continued)

(i) AFJBREEH

(ii) Life insurance business

The features of major life insurance products are summarized
below:

ITEABRBEROSHBALOT

Product features E g
Term insurance TE IR e

The Group writes term policies which pay out guaranteed
benefits on death that are fixed in amounts and not at the
discretion of the Group. The benefits are determined by the
contract terms and are not directly affected by the
performance of the underlying asset performance. The
contracts include both individual and group schemes. The
individual policies are long-term policies with guaranteed
surrender value. Under the Group schemes, the rates are
annually renewable and are not guaranteed.

Whole life insurance

The Group writes whole life policies which pay out guaranteed
benefits on death. One individual whole life product also
pays survival benefits every three years. All contracts have
guaranteed surrender value.

Endowment insurance

The Group writes endowment policies which pay out
guaranteed benefits on death or maturity at the end of the
policy term. All contracts have guaranteed surrender value.

Annuity

The Group writes immediate and deferred annuity policies
which pay out guaranteed survival benefits, some with a
minimum guaranteed fixed period. All contracts have
guaranteed surrender value before the pay out period starts.

Products with DPF

The Group writes with-profits whole life and endowment
policies, where discretionary annual bonus and sometimes
discretionary terminal bonus are offered. All contracts have
guaranteed surrender value. Provisions are invested in a
fund, the strategy of which is to invest mostly in fixed interest
securities. The bonus payments are designed to distribute
to policyholders the profits from investment, expense and
mortality gains. The contracts provide more capital security
to the policyholders than unit-linked contracts.
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2 INSURANCE, FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RISK 2 R BBRERARKBRER &)
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(e) REERR (&)

(e) Insurance risk (Continued)

(i) ASZERERER (E)

(ii) Life insurance business (Continued)
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Product features (Continued)
Unit linked insurance contracts

The Group writes unit-linked contracts that operate by
investing the policyholders’ premiums into pooled investment
funds of the Group. The policyholders’ share of the fund is
represented by units. Individual policies are contracts with
a fixed term where the policyholders are paid the sums
assured upon death or total and permanent disability in
addition to the account value. The account value depends
on the investment performance of the underlying fund and
the level of charges levied by the Group for policy
administration fees, mortality and other charges.

Universal life insurance contracts

The Group writes fixed-term single-premium endowment
contracts. Universal life contracts operate by investing the
policyholders’ premiums into a pooled investment fund of
the Group. The Group at its discretion declares a monthly
crediting rate to the policyholder accounts subject to the
guaranteed minimum rate of the policy. The account values
accrue interest at the crediting rate and monthly charges
levied by the Group for policy administration. The Group at
its discretion allocates excess investment gains generated
from the pooled investment fund for future declaration to
the policyholder accounts.

Guaranteed features

The main guaranteed features of life insurance products
include:

Guaranteed interest rate
The guaranteed minimum interest rate in most products is

not higher than the statutory maximum rate in the PRC.
The rate is lower than the current market interest rate.
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Guaranteed crediting rate 1R 78 4 E I

There is a guaranteed minimum crediting rate in the universal B ESREMNTERBLEENE -
life product and an adjustable non-negative guaranteed rate i 48 BB AT R E IR R E A Al
for the Group’s unit-linked deposit administration policy. BEHREBEANE -

Guaranteed premium

There is a guarantee of premium in all of the long-term
products. There is no guarantee of premium for short-term
products.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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2 INSURANCE, FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RISK 2 R BBRERARKBRER &)

MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(e) REERR (&)

(e) Insurance risk (Continued)

(i) AZFBRBEK (&)

(ii) Life insurance business (Continued)

Guaranteed features (Continued)
Guaranteed cash surrender values (“CSVs”)

There are statutory minimum guaranteed CSVs for most of
the Group’s long-term products.

Concentration of insurance risks

Concentration risk is the risk of incurring a major loss as a
result of having a significant mortality or other insurance
coverage on a particular person or a group of persons due
to the same event. The Group manages the concentration
of insurance risks by way of reinsurance arrangements with
a maximum retention risk of RMB500,000 per person in life
and personal accident policies and RMB200,000 on critical
illness insurance. In addition, the Group purchases
catastrophe protection for losses arising from claims involving
multiple lives from the same event. The maximum retention
risk is RMB1 million for each and every loss occurrence,
and the total coverage is RMB50 million for each and every
loss occurrence. The Group purchases surplus treaties and
proportional treaties to cover life, accident and long term
health risks. In addition, an excess of loss reinsurance
contract is applied for any insurance contract with significant
sum insured.

The distribution of sum insured is summarized as follows:

Before reinsurance

R A8 O] #5345 B (48)
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AHRBIARESZR - BINERRER R
REBEERRR o WO - TMZRMEXR
SHRBANILHE T BERIBRR
a4

EREBOOMBRDT

After reinsurance

RMB’000 BRE A BRE®
AR T 2008 2007 2008 2007
0-200 95.30% 95.61% 95.65% 95.96%
201-500 3.78% 3.47% 4.35% 4.04%
501-750 0.63% 0.71% = —
751-1,000 0.14% 0.05% = —
1,001-1,500 0.04% 0.06% — —
1,501-2,000 0.02% 0.02% = —
2,001-2,500 0.01% 0.01% = —
>2 500 0.08% 0.07% — —
100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
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(e)
(ii)

(iii)

China Insurance International Holdings Company Limited

Insurance risk (Continued)

Life insurance business (Continued)
Management of risks

The key risk associated with life insurance contracts is the
risk of potential loss arising with respect to a particular
insurance product as a result of actual market conditions
and loss experience being different from the assumed market
conditions and loss experience used when designing and
pricing the product.

The Group manages the risks by centralising the product
design function at the head office level, headed by the chief
appointed actuary and senior management in other key
functional departments. Standards and guidelines are
established to ensure that the risks associated with particular
products are within the acceptable level. The pricing method,
the solvency requirement, the profit margin, the loss
experience, etc., are key considerations in designing a
product.

In addition, the underwriting and claim processing
departments strictly follow the established standards and
procedures.

Property and casualty insurance business

The features of major property and casualty insurance
products are summarized below:

Product features
Motor

It is the Group’s strategy not to underwrite business related
to high risk types of motor such as vehicles for public
transportation, vehicles carrying dangerous products and
vehicles not owned by local citizens. The maximum insured
sum of underwriting motor and third party liability business
at the branches is RMB3,000,000.

Non-marine

The insurance risk is controlled by the branches’ compliance
with the procedure manual which was launched and approved
by TPI's senior management annually. To limit the net
exposure, the Group arranged an excess of loss reinsurance
protection for non-marine business.

(e) REERR (&)

(ii)

(iii)
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(e) REERR (&)

(e) Insurance risk (Continued)

(iii) FERBEXE (&)

(iii) Property and casualty insurance business (Continued)

Product features (Continued) EmnfE L (1)
Marine K

The risk accumulation generally arises from underwriting
risks in any one vessel or shipment. It is the Group’s strategy
not to underwrite business related to high risk types of marine
such as cross-boarder marine or cargo and cargo business
for North-East Asia. Net exposure of risk per vessel is limited
by arranging surplus treaty and monitored by TPI's senior
management regularly.

Concentration of insurance risks

Within the insurance process, concentration of risk may arise
where a particular event or series of events could impact
heavily upon the Group’s liabilities. Such concentrations may
arise from a single insurance contract or through a small
number of related contracts, and relate to circumstances
where significant liabilities could arise.

The concentration of insurance risk before and after
reinsurance by classes of business is summarized below,
with reference to premiums written in 2008. The premiums
written as shown in the table below include both the pre-

RBERE —RAARE - MERKEE
o THREARE B RBREKR NG
B EE RN MR BN EEE
BRAEENEKE - FEMBBRES
HAORATREREAEEEEMNES
VA BEL i) 55 fax

1R 2 2 B =

ERREFS > SR ERAESER
EEHR—ESEMHHAREELER
KEWAE - ZFETAEEE—RR
AHNSEBLEBREREANSIRE - FY
Rl RERBENBR

R T N\FARRE  REBER
&l BRI R BRRE Z R E R E
FIERBAMT o TREIZARRE
BREANFREABARMBARNE

acquisition and post-acquisition results of TPI. i o
2008

Premiums

ceded
Gross written to reinsurers  Net written Ceding
premiums REZ premiums ratio
ERRRE BRHE FERRE 2t =
$°000 $°000 $°000 %

FT FT Fr

Motor iy 3,761,126 262,932 3,498,194 7.0%
Marine KB 199,795 85,813 113,982 43.0%
Non-marine EIN 817,618 450,744 366,874 55.1%
Total wEn 4,778,539 799,489 3,979,050 16.7%
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M

(9)

China Insurance International Holdings Company Limited

Management of risks

The Group delegates underwriting authority to experienced
underwriters. Each underwriting department has an underwriting
manual for each class of business. The underwriting manual is
approved by the Underwriting Committee and specifies the
authority of underwriters at each level. Each underwriting manual
states clearly the minimum gross premium per policy, the maximum
sum insured per policy and the aggregate exposure per zone
as well as the probable maximum loss which underwriters at
each level can underwrite. Risks that exceed the underwriting
authority of the head of the underwriting department have to be
reviewed and approved by the Underwriting Committee. For claims
handling, there is a procedures manual that lays down the
operational procedures and controls required to mitigate the
insurance risk.

The Group also arranges both treaty reinsurance and facultative
reinsurance in accordance with international practice. Treaty
reinsurance provides automatic reinsurance cover under specific
reinsurance contract terms and conditions. Facultative reinsurance
is reinsurance of individual risk. Each contract is arranged
separately. The choice of reinsurance contract depends on market
conditions, market practice and the nature of business. Facultative
reinsurance is arranged when an individual risk is not covered
by treaty reinsurance or exceeds treaty reinsurance capacity.

Financial risk

Transactions in financial instruments and insurance assets/
liabilities may result in the Group assuming financial risks. These
include market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. Each of these
financial risks is described below, together with a summary of
the ways in which the Group manages these risks.

There is no significant change in the Group’s exposures to risk
and how they arise, nor the Group’s objectives, policies and
processes for managing each of these risks.

(i) Market risk

Market risk can be described as the risk of change in fair
value of a financial instrument due to changes in interest
rates, equity prices or foreign currency exchange rates.

(a) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is risk to the earnings or market value
of a fixed-rate financial instrument due to uncertain future
market interest rates.

The Group monitors this exposure through periodic
reviews of its financial instrument. Estimates of cash
flows, as well as the impact of interest rate fluctuations
relating to the investment portfolio are modelled and
reviewed periodically.

(f)

(9)
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(9) Financial risk (Continued)

(i) Market risk (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

A decrease of 50 basis points in interest rates of the
debt investments classified as available-for-sale and
designated at fair value through profit or loss (excluding
the balance for unit-linked insurance contracts), with
all other variables held constant, would increase the
Group’s total equity by approximately 1.5% of the total
investments held by the Group as at 31 December 2008
(2007: 2.2%). Most of the Group’s fixed rate debt
investments that are designated at fair value through
profit or loss are held for unit-linked insurance contracts;
consequently the Group’s profit is not significantly
sensitive to any change in value of these debt
investments arising from interest rate change.

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred
at the balance sheet date and had been applied to the
exposure to interest rate risk for both derivative and
non-derivative financial instruments in existence at that
date. The analysis is performed on the same basis for
2007. The Group does not have significant amount of
floating-rate financial instruments.

Equity price risk

The Group has a portfolio of marketable equity securities,
which is carried at fair value and is exposed to price
risk. This risk is defined as the potential loss in market
value resulting from an adverse change in prices.

The Group manages the equity price risk by investing
in a diverse portfolio of high quality and liquid securities.

The equity securities (including direct equity securities
and equity investment funds), other than those held
for unit-linked insurance contracts were carried at a
fair value of $4,323.97 million (2007: $8,494.99 million),
representing 6.3% (2007: 18.2%) of total investments
held by the Group excluding those held for unit-linked
insurance contracts.

Since most of the equity securities, other than those
held for unit-linked insurance contracts, are classified
as available-for-sale financial assets, the Group’s profit
is not significantly sensitive to any change in value of
the equities securities.
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(9) Financial risk (Continued)
(i) Market risk (Continued)

(b) Equity price risk (Continued)

(o) BBRAR (&)

A 10% increase/decrease in market value of the equities
securities classified as available-for-sale and designated
at fair value through profit or loss (excluding the balance
for unit-linked insurance contracts) and held by the Group
as at 31 December 2008, with all other variables held
constant, would increase the Group’s total equity/
decrease the Group’s total equity and the profit after
tax by approximately $432.40 million (2007: total equity
of $849.50 million). Most of the Group’s equities
securities that are designated at fair value through profit
or loss are held for unit-linked insurance contracts;
consequently the Group’s profit is not significantly
sensitive to any change in value of these equities
securities arising from market value change.

(c) Foreign exchange risk

In respect of the reinsurance business, premiums are
received mainly in HKD and USD and also in a number
of Asian currencies which follow closely the USD
currency rate movement. The Group aims to hold assets
in these currencies in broadly similar proportion to its

insurance liabilities.

In respect of the life insurance and property and casualty
insurance business, premiums are received in RMB and
the insurance regulation in the PRC requires insurers

to hold RMB assets.

China Insurance International Holdings Company Limited
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(o) BBRAR (&)

(9) Financial risk (Continued)

(i) Market risk (Continued) (i) THEERE (&)

() SMER R (%)

(c) Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

TRERAEENGAEEABR
NETEEESENERIRBE

The following table presents the Group’s carrying values
of financial and insurance assets and liabilities in the

consolidated balance sheet in HKD equivalent by major ERBEZzZABEREEASE -
currencies:
2008
Other
foreign
RMB uUsD HKD  currencies Total
AR¥ Ep B Hihsps mi
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr
Financial assets: TREE
Statutory deposits EEFR 975,180 - 20,150 = 995,330
Investments in debt and B & B A
equity securities EHEE 53,963,322 2,207,361 507,007 186,176 56,863,866
— debt securities - BB ES 47,703,969 2,097,011 68,981 158,130 50,028,091
— equity securities — IR AR E 5 6,259,353 110,350 438,026 28,046 6,835,775
Amounts due from group  EMEER
companies NEFE 4,546 - 6,896 13 11,455
Other debtors H A JE IR 3R 1,983,041 52,381 27,992 8,085 2,071,499
Pledged deposits at bank 2L MIRITF - 102,453 - = 102,453
Deposits at bank with REEHEA
original maturity more =EAm
than three months RITHER 5,513,275 700,354 471,040 6,453 6,691,122
Cash and cash equivalents E& REEEEY 5,413,848 1,306,739 604,991 506,217 7,831,795
67,853,212 4,369,288 1,638,076 706,944 74,567,520
Insurance assets: REBEE
Insurance debtors REEFEWKERR 559,694 64,433 278,078 124,017 1,026,222
Reinsurers’ share of D IRRF RS
insurance contract RBELD
provisions A 1,078,185 38,150 275,922 29,705 1,421,962
1,637,879 102,583 554,000 153,722 2,448,184

REFZERER AR

2008 F
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(9) Financial risk (Continued)

(o) BBRAR (&)

(i) Market risk (Continued) (i) FHEEE(E)
(c) Foreign exchange risk (Continued) (c) SME =g ()
2008
Other
foreign
RMB usD HKD  currencies Total
AR¥ Ey B H fth & m
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Fr Fi Fi Fr Fr
Financial liabilities: cRARE:
Investment contract liabilities % & & 418 & 235,891 - - - 235,891
Interest-bearing notes ENEER 4,025,452 1,350,576 - - 5,376,028
Securities sold under EH O
repurchase agreements EH 4,206,880 - - - 4,206,880
Amounts due to group EREER
companies NGIE S| 488 - 4 - 492
Insurance protection fund R REE S 30,310 - - - 30,310
8,499,021 1,350,576 4 - 9,849,601
Insurance liabilities: REBEE:
Life insurance funds ShETEER 52,787,213 - - — 52,787,213
Unearned premium REBEA
provisions B 2,826,441 14,046 614,233 2,029 3,456,749
Provision for outstanding 7 & & &
claims Kl 2,541,340 432,306 755,647 739,536 4,468,829
Insurance creditors REEE P EMERR 684,663 2,947 42,017 10,512 740,139
58,839,657 449,299 1,411,807 752,077 61,452,930

China Insurance International Holdings Company Limited
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MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(9) Financial risk (Continued) (o) TSR (&)
(i) Market risk (Continued) (i) FHEEE(E)
(c) Foreign exchange risk (Continued) (c) SME =g ()
2007
Other
foreign
RMB usD HKD currencies Total
ARE =Y ok N ik
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T Fr
Financial assets: TREE:
Statutory deposits EETFHK 640,764 12,475 - - 653,239
Investments in debt and & # M AR
equity securities BHRE 37,194,292 2,197,537 1,027,764 82,592 40,502,185
— debt securities -EBES 25,606,654 1,983,789 19,971 46,415 27,746,829
— equity securities -REES 11,497,638 213,748 1,007,793 36,177 12,755,356
Amounts due from group  EWEE R
companies NAIRIE 1,060 - 16,320 108 17,488
Other debtors H b EUR X 1,200,085 47,083 180,896 3,288 1,431,352
Pledged deposits at bank 2 #EMETER - 97,417 - - 97,417
Deposits at bank with REHIE A
original maturity more =EAH
than three months BITER 3,633,756 910,711 74,873 12,637 4,631,977
Cash and cash equivalents & KELEEY 2,530,670 780,249 1,148,350 678,366 5,137,635

45,200,627 4,045,472 2,448,203 776,991 52,471,293

Insurance assets: RBEE
Insurance debtors REEPEWKERR 201,585 49,351 299,596 66,008 616,540
Reinsurers’ share of DR B LS

insurance contract R4

provisions EF 80,265 9,569 260,309 26,597 376,740

281,850 58,920 559,906 92,6056 993,280
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2 INSURANCE, FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RISK 2 R BBREXRREBER #)
MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(g) Financial risk (Continued) (o) BERAK (&)
(i) Market risk (Continued) (i) THEERE (&)
(c) Foreign exchange risk (Continued) (c) SIEEE B (&)
2007
Other
foreign
RMB usD HKD currencies Total
ARK ETT ok H fty sp & ik
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T Fr
Financial liabilities: SREE:
Investment contract liabilities & &4 41 & & 157,421 - - - 157,421
Interest-bearing notes ENEER 1,601,910 1,358,467 - - 2,960,377
Amounts due to group B EER
companies NSE@ 19 - 27 - 46
Insurance protection fund {RERREE 7,976 - - - 7,976
1,767,326 1,358,467 27 — 3,125,820
Insurance liabilities: RBEE:
Life insurance funds ERETEES 38,529,656 — — — 38,529,656
Unearned premium REBEF
provisions £ 327,860 - 566,064 - 893,924
Provision for outstanding & R B 2%
claims A 266,993 228,819 1,495,031 506,089 2,496,932
Insurance creditors RRE P EMER 320,956 11,829 49,080 12,251 394,116
30,445,465 240,648 2,110,175 518,340 42,314,628
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MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(g) Financial risk (Continued) (o) BERAK (&)

(ii) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of economic loss resulting from the
failure of one of the obligors to make any payment of principal
or interest when due.

The Group is exposed to credit risks primarily associated
with bank deposits, insurance debtors, investments in debt
securities, reinsurance arrangements with reinsurers and
other debtors etc.

The maximum exposure of the Group to credit risk in the
event of the counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations
as at the balance sheet date is the carrying amount of the
assets as shown in the table below:

(i) 1=HRERE

5 R R 2 H A B AR B HE )
A% B8 1 3l AR A A B K KO B o

AEETEEARNERARRRTE
R RBEFPEWENR EBESKR
& BRBEBAREMEKRERE

AXSHFREBITEEMEANEER
HERFARNRSERRRATRH
Pl BEREE :

2008 2007
$’000 % of Total $000 % of Total
Fr HEEOSL Fr HBREEHL
Statutory deposits and EEFRR
deposits with banks RATR 15,620,700 22.3% 10,520,268 25.9%
Investments in debt BB ESH
securities % & 50,028,091 71.3% 27,746,829 68.2%
Reinsurers’ share of DRARIENG
insurance contract REEH
provisions A 1,421,962 2.0% 376,740 0.9%
Insurance debtors R P FE YR 3K 1,026,222 1.5% 616,540 1.5%
Other debtors H i UsBR R 2,071,499 2.9% 1,431,352 3.5%
70,168,474 100.0% 40,691,729 100.0%

To reduce the credit risk associated with the investment in
debt securities, the Group has established detailed credit
control policy. In addition, the risk level of the various
investment sectors is continuously monitored with the
investment mix adjusted accordingly. In respect of the debt
securities invested by reinsurance business, the Group
restricts investments in debt securities with international
credit ratings generally not below the investment grade, i.e.
BBB or higher, except for certain sovereign rated securities.
In respect of the debt securities invested by life insurance
and property and casualty insurance business, the investment
procedures manual, which is managed by an investment
committee, includes the minimum acceptable domestic credit
rating of the issuers as required by the CIRC. Any non-
compliance or violation of the manual will be followed up
and rectification action will be taken immediately.

In assessing the need for impairment allowances,
management considers factors such as credit quality, portfolio
size, concentrations, and economic factors.

REEEEHESREBBNERR
b REEBIE -EFRNERZESK
o Ubsh - ARBETENRRKFE
BPFBRREEEMESHEZE - B
BREEXBOEBESFRE  AFRER
HIEE SR RERRE SR (K
MBBB) MEBEFEHNIRE - B
R RERBRI - BEEABSRBLME
RREBNEBESRE  REEBFT
- HREZE|EE  JIHEFERT
BRE S ERNBEITAZHKEATEZAR
WEEFNE - FATERIERTME
S7 B R R BRIE e

ERFEREEFNTER BEARE
BORZERERER HaRR &
TRREREEREZE -
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(9) Financial risk (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

China Insurance International Holdings Company Limited

Credit risk (Continued)

The carrying amount of the financial assets set out in the
consolidated balance sheet after deducting any impairment
allowance represent the maximum exposure to credit risk
at the balance sheet date.

Liquidity risk

The Group has to meet daily calls on its cash resources,
notably from claims arising from its reinsurance contracts,
life insurance contracts and property and casualty insurance
contracts. There is, therefore, a risk that cash will not be
available to settle liabilities when due.

The Group manages this risk by formulating policies and
general strategies of liquidity management to ensure that
the Group can meet its financial obligations in normal
circumstances and that an adequate stock of high-quality
liguid assets is maintained in order to contain the possibility
of a liquidity crisis.

Apart from liquidity management and regulatory compliance,
the Group always strives to maintain a comfortable liquidity
cushion as a safety net for coping with unexpected large
funding requirements and to maintain a contingency plan
to be enacted should there be a company specific crisis.

The following table presents amounts the contractual
undiscounted cash flows of the Group’s financial liabilities
and the estimated timing of undiscounted cash flows arising
from liabilities under insurance and investment contracts.
A maturity analysis prepared on the basis of the earliest
possible contractual repayment date (assuming that all
surrender and transfer options are exercised) would result
in all insurance and investment contracts being presented
as falling due with one year or less.

(9) MERER (#)

(ii)

(iii)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e IEHRRMEE @)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LUBE#ZIT)
2 INSURANCE, FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RISK 2 R BBREXRREBER #)
MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(g) Financial risk (Continued) (o) BERAK (&)
(iii) Liquidity risk (Continued) (iii) % By 1 R B (42)

5 years Total Carrying
or less un- value
but over discounted at 31
1 year 1 year cashflows December
or less LEY After RFHR  R+=A
—F NTE 5 years Be&R =+-8
FZUT  HBE-F IF# wmE  CREMA
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr

At 31 December 2008 R-ZZBENF

t+=ZA=+-8
Interest-bearing notes ENEEER 300,799 4,260,332 3,365,787 7,926,918 5,376,028
Life insurance funds ERETLERES 41,062  (3,590,549) 120,251,626 116,702,139 52,787,213
Unearned premium provisions REBEAEES 3,219,418 237,331 — 3,456,749 3,456,749
Provision for outstanding claims KRB FERE 2,715,318 1,314,621 438,890 4,468,829 4,468,829
Investment contract liabilities REGHAE 235,891 - - 235,891 235,891
Securities sold under repurchase & i@ 8

agreements &5 4,206,880 - — 4,206,880 4,206,880
Insurance creditors REBEFEMER 740,139 - - 740,139 740,139
Insurance protection fund REREES 30,310 - - 30,310 30,310
11,489,817 2,221,735 124,056,303 137,767,855 71,302,039

At 31 December 2007 RZETLHF

+-F=+—H

Interest-bearing notes ENEER 150,464 601,856 3,117,530 3,869,850 2,960,377
Life insurance funds EREALES (487,430) 1,042,688 91,528,364 92,083,622 38,529,656
Unearned premium provisions REMETEES 893,924 - — 893,924 893,924
Provision for outstanding claims KRBT EE 842,621 1,156,138 498,173 2,496,932 2,496,932
Investment contract liabilities REAGNAE 167,421 - - 167,421 167,421
Insurance creditors REEE P M ERR 394,116 - - 394,116 394,116
Insurance protection fund RBEREES 7,976 - - 7,976 7,976

1,969,092 2,800,682 95,144,067 99,903,841 45,440,402
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(h) Capital management

The Group’s key business operations are its reinsurance business,
the life insurance business and the property and casualty
insurance business, which are conducted through its subsidiaries.
The Group manages its capital to ensure that the entities
conducting the reinsurance, life insurance businesses and the
property and casualty insurance business will be able to meet
statutory solvency requirements in the jurisdictions in which they
operate. The Group’s capital management initiatives also strive
to maintain a surplus for future business expansion opportunities.
The Group’s overall capital management strategy remains
unchanged from the prior year. The statutory solvency
requirements for reinsurance business and life insurance business
and property and casualty insurance business are set out in the
Hong Kong Insurance Companies Ordinance and Solvency
Reporting Standards for Insurance Companies issued by CIRC,
respectively. The Group’s capital includes the components of
total equity and interest-bearing notes. The solvency margins
ratios of the reinsurance business, life insurance business and
property and casualty insurance business were as follows:

(hy EXERE

AEBZIEZEBRERRER - ASR
MEBLMERRED  HEBBBNE
NAETT c REBZERNER - ZHEMAEK
EHRMER ASRBREBRPERR
EBzRABA A EBKERERER
BZEEENENRE - AEBZEARE
BRBEIRIBAREBBERESEITT
HWES AEEZEREATERKEAS
FRETE - BREBEBRASRRER
EWERBER ZAEEMNENRED 5
HNE B RE A RGP K i o BR B 8
Mz RBRABENENRERBRADA -
REME 7 ERNBIEBRES AR RS
RE - BRIEBER - ASRBEBRME
RBEB ZENENLEWT :

At 31 December At 31 December

2008 2007

RIEENE RZEELF

+=ZA=+—H” +=ZA=+—H

Reinsurance business BREER 631% 748%

Life insurance business ASBRBED 218% 215%
Property and casualty insurance B ERRE

business Ei 173% 129%

)

China Insurance International Holdings Company Limited

Risks associated with investment contracts without DPF

There is no material difference in risk exposure between life
insurance contracts and investment contracts without DPF, except
that the mortality risk of investment contracts is generally
insignificant.

Claims development

Claims development information for the reinsurance business
and property and casualty insurance business is disclosed below
in order to illustrate the insurance risk inherent in the Group.
The tables provide a review of current estimates of the cumulative
claims and demonstrate how the estimated claims have changed
at subsequent reporting or underwriting year-ends. The estimates
increased or decreased as losses are paid and more information
becomes known about the frequency and severity of unpaid
claims.

0
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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2 INSURANCE, FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RISK 2 R BBRERARKBRER &)

MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(i) Claims development (Continued) () BRBRE#E)
Analysis of claims development — gross of reinsurance of BRERSNT—FBEREZ KR ERRE
CIRe E#H

For the year ended 31 December 2008

BE_ZFF)\F+ZA=1+—-HILEFE

Underwriting year

AREE Total
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 HBE
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr
Unearned premium provisions RERFERZ
at the end of underwriting RIHEMR
year (note) S (i) 348,831 366,916 523,080 560,466 604,802
Estimate of cumulative claims fh &t ZEH B
(note) (i)
At the end of underwriting year RERFEFHER 601,563 903,974 617,028 813,412 1,050,587
One year later —Fi& 838,792 1,251,632 928,909 1,157,883 -
Two years later GRS 838,594 1,283,002 885,898 - -
Three years later =& 823,576 1,186,049 - - -
Four years later M E iR 747,259 = = = =
Estimate of cumulative claims CRERE:EA 747,259 1,186,049 885,898 1,157,883 1,050,587 5,027,676
Cumulative payments to date 24 BRI R (661,700) (991,416) (563,910) (471,292) (42,784) (2,731,102)
Liabilities recognized in the BRAREEGBRRW
balance sheet g& 85,559 194,633 321,988 686,591 1,007,803 2,296,574
Liabilities in respect of R-BE=FAREE
underwriting years 2003 TR EE
and earlier 246,042
Total liabilities included in the BRARNEESBRD
balance sheet BAE 85,559 194,633 321,988 686,591 1,007,803 2,542,616
Note: Excluding the unearned premiums provision/claims liabilities for the life iF TEEASBRREBZAIPECEHES BRE

reinsurance business.

f& e
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(LUBE#ZIT)
2 INSURANCE, FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RISK 2 R BBREXRREBER #)
MANAGEMENT (Continued)
() Claims development (Continued) () BRBRE#E)
Analysis of claims development — gross of reinsurance of BHBRES T —F BEEZ KRB RE
CIRe (Continued) EF (#E)
For the year ended 31 December 2007 HE_FEE+FS_H="1T—HIEFE
Underwriting year
ERFEE Total
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 M
$°000 $°000 $°000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fir Fir Fr Fr Fr Fir
Unearned premium provisions RERFERZ
at the end of underwriting BEBEM
year (note) EES () 352,003 348,831 366,916 523,080 560,466
Estimate of cumulative claims it Rat gt
(note) (i)
At the end of underwriting year REREE FER 545205 601,563 903,974 617,028 813,412
One year later —Fi 674,007 838,792 1,251,632 928,909 -
Two years later mE 1% 629,880 838,504 1,283,002 — -
Three years later =& 612,981 823,576 - - -
Four years later M F ik 591,425 - - - -
Estimate of cumulative claims RN 501,425 823,576 1,283,002 928,909 813,412 4,440,324
Cumulative payments to date 25 BRHR (451,641)  (637,656) (929,010)  (408,512) (26,626) (2,453,445)
Liabilities recognized in the BRAREEGBRW
balance sheet =L 139,784 185,920 353,992 520,397 786,786 1,986,879
Liabilities in respect of RITZE-FRREE
underwriting years 2002 TR EE
and earlier 362,733
Total liabilities included in the BRARNEESBRDN
balance sheet waf 139,784 185,920 353,992 520,397 786,786 2,349,612
Note: Excluding the unearned premiums provision/claims liabilities for the life o TEREASERBEKZARINPETEES BRE

reinsurance business. & -
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2 INSURANCE, FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RISK
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

2 fREg

BN ERARBER (&)

(j) Claims development (Continued)

)

Analysis of claims development — net of reinsurance of CIRe

For the year ended 31 December 2008

B —FBER 2 6 5 BRERFE
HE-FTNFF+ A=+ -HILFE

Underwriting year

AREE Total
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 k]
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr
Unearned premium provisions RERFERZ
at the end of underwriting BEBEM
year (note) £EE (i) 308,983 335,296 470,207 497,576 528,539
Estimate of cumulative claims CHELIE 2
(note) (i)
At the end of underwriting year RAEREE FER 478,807 763,448 568,075 752,167 922,454
One year later —F8 651,938 1,056,084 849,375 994,736 -
Two years later W F 1% 664,027 1,081,483 807,483 - -
Three years later =Fi& 651,331 994,160 = = =
Four years later lE % 592,374 = = = =
Estimate of cumulative claims i BHBER 502,374 994,160 807,483 994,736 922,454 4,311,207
Cumulative payments to date 25 BRHR (519,441) (815,403) (509,679)  (424,430) (36,227) (2,305,180)
Liabilities recognized in the BRAREEGBRN
balance sheet =L 72,933 178,757 297,804 570,306 886,227 2,006,027
Liabilities in respect of RZZEZT=FAREE
underwriting years 2003 RARIMAE
and earlier 199,907
Total liabilities included in the BRANEEBBRD
balance sheet mafE 72,933 178,757 297,804 570,306 886,227 2,205,934
Note: Excluding the unearned premiums provision/claims liabilities for the life 7 TEEASBRREBZAINSBECLEFES HHRE

reinsurance business.

f& e
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MEMEHRRMETE @)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(BB ZT)
2 INSURANCE, FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RISK 2 R BBREXRREBER #)
MANAGEMENT (Continued)
() Claims development (Continued) () BRBRE#E)
Analysis of claims development — net of reinsurance of CIRe BRI — T BERZ 6L B R FE
(Continued) (ﬁf)
For the year ended 31 December 2007 HE_FEE+FS_H="1T—HIEFE
Underwriting year
ERFEE Total
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 BE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $000 $°000 $°000
Fir Fir Fr Fr Fr Fir
Unearned premium provisions REREERZ
at the end of underwriting REEEME
year (note) ke (7F) 302,131 308,983 335296 470,207 497,576
Estimate of cumulative claims CHEE 5
(note) (i)
At the end of underwriting year RERFEFLHER 447317 478,807 763,448 568,075 752,167
One year later —Ek 571,361 651,938 1,056,084 849,375 -
Two vyears later ME# 534,180 664,027 1,081,483 - -
Three years later =Fk 520,703 651,331 — - -
Four years later rmEE 502,894 - - - -
Estimate of cumulative claims CHES Jrgu TA 502,894 651,331 1,081,483 849,375 762,167 3,837,250
Cumulative payments to date 5B (383,644)  (499,061)  (759,885)  (369,879)  (29,775) (2,042,244)
Liabilities recognized in the BRREESBERN
balance sheet E % 119,250 152,270 321,598 479,496 722,392 1,795,006
Liabilities in respect of ANZTE-FAREE
underwriting years 2002 RARIM A &
and earlier 293,998
Total liabilities included in the BRAREERBERN
balance sheet BaE 119,250 152,270 321,508 479,496 722,392 2,089,004
Note: Excluding the unearned premiums provision/claims liabilities for the life 7 TEEASBRREBZAINBECLEFES BHHRE
reinsurance business. & -
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2 INSURANCE, FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RISK 2 R BBRERARKBRER &)
MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(i) Claims development (Continued) () BRBRE#E)
Analysis of claims development — gross of reinsurance of BERERSNT— K FREZ KR BRRE
TPI EH
For the year ended 31 December 2008 BE—2ZENF+ZA=1+—HILEFE
Accident year
ENEE Total
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 HEE
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr
Estimate of cumulative claims fh &t ZEH B
At the end of accident year REINEE F R 446,303 919,502 1,217,424 1,901,570 3,138,746
One year later —Fi& 440,697 856,037 1,105,458 1,792,027 -
Two years later M F & 426,344 752,007 1,254,443 - -
Three years later —Ek 430,659 851,727 - - -
Four years later mF & 428,155 - - - -
Estimate of cumulative claims ERERE:EA 428,155 851,727 1,254,443 1,792,027 3,138,746 7,465,098
Cumulative payments to date 25 BRHR (421,810) (817,364) (1,181,372) (1,593,813) (1,756,274) (5,770,633)
Liabilities recognized in the BRAREEGBRN
balance sheet B 6,345 34,363 73,071 198,214 1,382,472 1,694,465
Liabilities in respect of accident ~ R-ZFE=FZHNFE
years 2003 and earlier BB EE (42,417)
Total liabilities included in the BRAREEGBERN
balance sheet BwafE 6,345 34,363 73,071 198,214 1,382,472 1,652,048
Analysis of claims development — net of reinsurance of TPI BERBR N —XFREZ 6L B REFE
For the year ended 31 December 2008 BE_—_TZENF+ZA=+—HILFE
Accident year
ENEE Total
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 HEE
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr
Estimate of cumulative claims CHEE T
At the end of accident year REINEE F LR 354,435 704,159 921,899 1,520,294 2,381,620
One year later —Fi% 345,127 667,407 942,630 1,434,394 -
Two years later W E 333,722 629,316 959,771 = =
Three years later =—Ek 333,616 662,356 - - -
Four years later Il E % 331,471 = = = =
Estimate of cumulative claims ERERE:EA 331,471 662,356 959,771 1,434,394 2,381,620 5,769,612
Cumulative payments to date 25 BRHR (326,342)  (636,343) (913,502) (1,288,542) (1,469,112) (4,633,841)
Liabilities recognized in the BRAREEGBRRW
balance sheet =L 5,129 26,013 46,269 145,852 912,508 1,135,771
Liabilities in respect of accident ~ R-ZTZE=FZHFE
years 2003 and earlier KRS EE (52,070)
Total liabilities included in the BRAREEGBRRW
balance sheet mafE 5,129 26,013 46,269 145852 912,508 1,083,701
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MEMEHRRMETE @)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LUBE#ZIT)
3 SEGMENT REPORTING 3 DHER
Segment information is presented in respect of the Group’s businesses DEERMERZIZANEBNER KbE RS
and geographical segments. Business segment information is chosen HEREBEANEEEELREENERSEN -
as the primary reporting format.
By business segments REKDE
The Group comprises the following main business segments: REELRETIMEEXEBHE
— Reinsurance business; — BREER
— Life insurance business; — ASRBER:
— Property and casualty insurance business (resulting from the — HMERBEB(BER=-ZZNFEAKTR
acquisition of TPI during 2008); and ®) - &
— Corporate and other businesses which comprise the asset — DEREMER BREEAEEEEY R
management business, insurance intermediary business, pension BRENER  BEERBEKERVBRDZE
business, and financial and corporate assets. ﬁ}x

196 China Insurance International Holdings Company Limited  Annual Report 2008



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

an\ (=] E\j iﬁz #&%:Z Bﬁ it (7B)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LUBE#ZIT)
3 SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 3 pHEER &)
By business segments (Continued) REBDE (B
a. Segmental income statement for 2008 a. 20087 #HiEwm &
2008
Corporate
Property and and other
Life casualty businesses
Reinsurance insurance insurance TER Total
BRE ASERE BERE Hih 5% Lok
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr
Revenue ON
Gross premiums written EARRE 1,838,999 21,207,791 1,949,904 — 24,996,694
Policy fees REBWA - 7,102 - - 7,102
1,838,999 21,214,893 1,949,904 — 25,003,796
Less: Premiums ceded to B REBZBROER
reinsurers and BA0ME
retrocessionaires (270,337) (110,221) (349,760) - (730,318)
Net premiums written and policy fees FHRRRERREEW 1,568,662 21,104,672 1,600,144 — 24,273,478
Change in unearned premium RIBMEFEHESE(L
provisions, net of reinsurance RERR (33,760) (43,413) 12,320 - (64,853)
Net earned premiums and EHRIRE R
policy fees REBRAFHE 1,534,902 21,061,259 1,612,464 — 24,208,625
Net investment income (note (i)) BEWAFE () 178,668 3,051,633 62,797 101,241 3,394,339
Net realized investment losses BERREBRTR
(note (i) (3(i) (96,962)  (834,451)  (18,102)  (99,266) (1,048,781)
Net unrealized investment losses RELREBER
and impairment (note (ii)) WIEEE ( E(///)) (179,606)  (1,686,805) —  (198,661) (2,065,072)
Net exchange gain/(loss) 5/ () $E (38,094) (81,657) (1,593) 2,147 (119,197)
Other income H b A 29,807 16,873 (6,384) 167,423 207,719
Inter-segment transactions NBEZEARS (30,000) (8,663) - (84,493) (123,156)
1,398,715 21,518,189 1,649,182 (111,609) 24,454,477
Benefits, losses and expenses B BRRER
Net policyholders’ benefits REBBEANGZFE (887,761)  (4,288,569) (1,072,080) —  (6,248,410)
Net commission expenses e FE (396,008)  (2,026,973) (138,830) -  (2,561,811)
Administrative and other expenses THREEMER (65,150)  (2,671,614) (749,396) (435,234)  (3,921,394)
Change in life insurance funds, SmETEHESE L
net of reinsurance RERR — (11,742,512 - - (11,742,512)
Goodwill impairment 2R E - - - (73,276) (73,276)
Inter-segment transactions NBEZEARS 9,789 103,704 1,000 8,663 123,156
(1,339,130) (20,625,964) (1,959,306) (499,847) (24,424,247)
(Loss)/profit from operations & (B TE!) Ve ¥l 59,585 892,225 (310,124) (611,456) 30,230
Share of losses of associates i A=/NC) SE ] - - - (115,848) (115,848)
Finance costs B5ER - (98,176) (5,034) (80,173) (183,383)
(Loss)/profit before taxation BB A (BE) /B A 59,585 794,049 (315,158) (807,477) (269,001)
Income tax credit/(charge) MEHE /(i) (7,739) 86,376 (16,007) 610 63,240
(Loss)/profit after taxation BRE& (BE) R 51,846 880,425 (331,165) (806,867) (205,761)
Minority interests b 81 3R 58 A 2 —  (439,742) 163,919 181,869 (93,954)
(Loss)/profit attributable BREL (BH) /
to equity holders SR 51,846 440,683  (167,246)  (624,998)  (299,715)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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3 SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

By business segments (Continued)

a. Segmental income statement for 2008 (Continued) a. 20087 Bk (&)
2008
Corporate
Property and and other
Life casualty businesses
Reinsurance insurance insurance TER Total
BRE ASERE B ERE HEthER m
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr
Note (i): Net investment income i) BEWAFE
Interest income from debt securities BHEHF S WA
— Held-to-maturity — ﬁ?ﬂ A 76,213 421,655 3,566 793 502,227
— Available-for-sale o] 35,885 1,103,068 24,672 27,349 1,190,974
— Designated at fair value through —HEARBBERMN
profit or loss RBED A ER 9,261 8,494 - 2,181 19,936
— Loans and receivables — B R ERRIE - 42,523 1,611 = 44,134
Dividend income from direct equity EERAES
securities IS ON
— Available-for-sale — At E 12,641 23,509 7 8,448 44,605
— Designated at fair value through BT ABBREZN
profit or loss KRR EE 1,600 6,826 - 458 8,884
Dividend income from equity BALEEES
investment funds IS ON
— Available-for-sale — At E - 339,746 4,097 - 343,843
— Designated at fair value through BT ABBREZN
profit or loss KRR EE - 816,871 17 1,794 818,682
Dividend income from composite mAEREES
investment funds IS ON
— Available-for-sale — A E 186 — — — 186
— Designated at fair value through BT ABBREZN
profit or loss kMDA EBE 2,943 - - 35,218 38,161
Bank deposits and other interest BITFERREAM
income A EHA 37,130 368,224 28,909 25,229 459,492
Rentals receivable from investment IR EME
properties ik 2,809 - - - 2,809
Interest expenses on securities sold EREEES
under repurchase agreements FEER - (79,283) (82) (229) (79,594)
178,668 3,051,633 62,797 101,241 3,394,339
Note (ii): Net realized investment (i) DERRE (B8B)
(losses)/gains '451 =R 8
Debt securities BHE 5
— Available-for-sale — At E - (29,077) 14,346 2,119) (16,850)
— Designated at fair value through —BERBBEGZMN
profit or loss KRR EE (1,281) 277,103 - 8,916 284,738
Direct equity securities EERAES
— Available-for-sale T e (95,306) 815,687 44,443 (85,517) 679,307
— Designated at fair value through —HEARBBERMN
orofit or loss REEAf BE (375 (709,342) - (5,670)  (715,387)
Equity investment funds BAREES
— Available-for-sale — AHE - (358,958) (76,891) - (435,849)
— Designated at fair value through — BT RABRBZMNU
profit or loss REEAREE - (829,864) - (6,336) (836,200)
Composite investment funds BelRERES
— Designated at fair value through —HEARBBERIN
profit or loss RBEAREE - - - (8,540) (8,540)
(96,962)  (834,451)  (18,102)  (99,266) (1,048,781)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

an\ (=] E\j iﬁz #&%:Z Bﬁ it (7B)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(BB ZT)

3 SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 3 S HEEH

By business segments (Continued)

a. Segmental income statement for 2008 (Continueq)

a. 20087 Bk (&)

2008
Corporate
Property and and other
Life casualty businesses
Reinsurance insurance insurance tER Total
BRE AERRE BERE Hih %% BE
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr
Note (iii): Net unrealized i) REBRE (BR)/
investment (losses)/ Wi KR E
gains and impairment R
Debt securities BHBES
— Designated at fair value through EEARBA ?‘5 =
profit or loss RERAE (36,235) 487 - 2,315 (33,433)
Direct equity securities E?ﬁ H” RES
— Designated at fair value through BEABBRERIN
profit o loss REA L BE (25,351)  (317,017) - (8,147)  (350,515)
Equity investment funds BRAKRERES
— Designated at fair value through —BERBREGZMN
profit or loss REBRAREE - (1,276,157) - (1,742) (1,277,899)
Composite investment funds BeREES
— Designated at fair value through —BERBREGZMN
profit or loss RBAREE (10,366) - - (81,572) (91,938)
Deficit on revaluation of REAMESH
investment properties & 4t (1,841) - - - (1,841)
Impairment on available-for-sale A ERARE
equities RiE (105,813)  (94,118) — (109,515  (309,446)
(179,606)  (1,686,805) —  (198,661) (2,065,072)
hREFZERERAR 2008 FiR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

an\ (=] E\j iﬁz #&%:Z Bﬁ it (7B)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(BB ZT)

3 SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

200

By business segments (Continued)

b. Segmental balance sheet for 2008 b. 20087 EEEEAMEFK
2008
Corporate
Property and and other
Life casualty businesses
Reinsurance insurance insurance TER Total
BRE AERE BERE Hih¥% ma
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Fr Fi Fi Fi Fr
Statutory deposits EEFR 20,150 566,965 294,822 113,393 995,330
Investment properties REME 76,719 - - = 76,719
Property and equipment I EYE 4,286 2,076,231 494,556 89,460 2,664,533
Prepaid lease payments fﬁ ] %ﬁ B - 434,862 100,351 - 535,213
Debt securities (note (i) 5% 5 (i) 1,904,911 45,538,341 2,105,066 479,773 50,028,091
Direct equity securities (note (i) E?ﬁ W7 E % (7)) 231,800 1,102,040 10,290 277,582 1,621,712
Equity investment funds (note (i) BAZEEES (i) - A772,477 351,170 53 5,123,700
Composite investment funds GRAEREES
(note (iv) (&) 67,041 - - 23,322 90,363
Cash and bank deposits Be RRITEX 1,766,301 10,623,323 1,317,882 917,864 14,625,370
Goodwill RS - 154,909 209,936 - 364,845
Interest in associates REEE DN RIER - 4,526 - 129,856 134,382
Reinsurers’ share of insurance DIRAFEERRE
contract provisions BHEE 413,078 69,940 938,944 - 1,421,962
Other segment assets Hﬁﬂ NEEE 554,887 2,076,676 439,376 62,230 3,133,169
Total assets BEE 5,039,173 67,420,290 6,262,393 2,093,533 80,815,389
Life insurance funds SkETEES — 52,787,213 - — 52,787,213
Unearned premium provisions REBPETEES 613,329 397,415 2,446,005 — 3,456,749
Provision for outstanding claims RRERER 2,548,443 268,338 1,652,048 — 4,468,829
Investment contract liabilities Tx EAMEE - 235,891 - = 235,891
Interest-bearing notes ENEEE — 3,281,701 793,751 1,350,576 5,376,028
Securities sold under repurchase B EEES
agreements - 4,206,880 - - 4,206,880
Deferred tax liabilities ELEHEARE 403 626,179 15,248 30 641,860
Other segment liabilities HinEaE 173,156 1,200,672 809,193 219,671 2,402,692
Total liabilities BefE 3,335,331 62,954,289 5,716,245 1,570,277 73,576,142
Minority interests PERRES 2,642,628
Net assets attributable to the BRELEEFE
equity holders of the Company 4,596,619
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

an\ (=] E\j iﬁz #&%:Z Bﬁ it (7B)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(BB ZT)

3 SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

By business segments (Continued) REBDE (B
b. Segmental balance sheet for 2008 (Continued) b. 20087 BEEEMEXK ()
2008
Corporate
Property and and other
Life casualty businesses
Reinsurance insurance insurance TER Total
BRE AERE BERR Hih¥% R
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr
Note (i): Debt securities () ERES
By category: RERE
— Held-to-maturity — BEEIEA 1,338,632 19,222,471 426,476 16,568 21,004,147
— Available-for-sale — AHHE 390,078 23,634,693 1,576,537 402,643 26,003,951
— Designated at fair value through — BT ABRABZEMN
profit or loss REARE 1 176,201 617,424 - 60,562 854,187
— Loans and receivables — B R EMR — 2,063,753 102,053 — 2,165,806
1,904,911 45,538,341 2,105,066 479,773 50,028,091
By class: REA
— Central governments and — FREMR
central banks RIETT 131,344 19,204,888 1,128,548 58,601 20,523,381
— Public sector entities — DK 50,973 - - - 50,973
— Banks and other financial — RITREAM
institutions SRS 1,425,131 8,465,891 616,477 327,800 10,835,299
— Corporate entities —EER 286,468 17,867,562 360,041 93,372 18,607,443
— Others — Htp 10,995 - - - 10,995
1,904,911 45,538,341 2,105,066 479,773 50,028,091
Note (ii): Direct equity securities i) EEREAES
By category: BES
— Available-for-sale — At HE 194,664 1,034,857 10,290 270,911 1,510,722
— Designated at fair value through — BT ABRABZEMNU
profit or loss REAREBE 37,136 67,183 - 6,671 110,990
231,800 1,102,040 10,290 277,582 1,621,712
By class: wEA
— Banks and other financial — RITREAM
institutions SRS 140,054 - - 96,979 237,033
— Corporate entities — EER 87,566 1,102,040 10,290 180,603 1,380,499
— Others — Hfh 4,180 - - - 4,180
231,800 1,102,040 10,290 277,582 1,621,712
RREFRERAR AR 2008 F#
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

an\ (=] E\j iﬁz #&%:Z Bﬁ it (7B)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(BB ZT)

China Insurance International Holdings Company Limited

3 SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 3 NEER®
By business segments (Continued) REBDE (B
b. Segmental balance sheet for 2008 (Continued) b. 20087 BEEEMEXK ()
2008
Corporate
Property and and other
Life casualty businesses
Reinsurance insurance insurance TER Total
BRE AERE BERR Hih % Lok
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr
Note (iii): Equity investment funds i) RAREES
By category: BIEE
— Available-for-sale — A E - 2,360,722 351,170 - 2,711,892
— Designated at fair value through —HERBBERN
profit or loss REEAREE — 2,411,755 - 53 2,411,808
- 4,772,477 351,170 53 5,123,700
By class: BER
— Corporate entities — hEER — 4,772,477 351,170 53 5,123,700
Note (iv): Composite investment Hiv): REREES
funds
By category: REE
— Available-for-sale — A& 38,182 - - - 38,182
— Designated at fair value through —HERBBERN
profit or loss REEAAREER 28,859 = = 23,322 52,181
67,041 - - 23,322 90,363
By class: ®EA
— Banks and other financial — RITREMD
institutions SRS E - - - 23,322 23,322
— Corporate entities — EER 67,041 - - - 67,041
67,041 - - 23,322 90,363
c. Other segmental information for 2008 c. 2008Hft 5 EHE X
2008
Corporate
Property and and other
Life casualty businesses
Reinsurance insurance insurance TER Total
BRIE ABERE BERR Hih %% m
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr
Capital expenditure =N 2,058 1,287,092 167,818 27,137 1,484,105
Depreciation e 833 82,606 28,695 13,887 126,021
Significant non-cash expenses BAFREXZH
(other than depreciation (FEEFER
and amortization) B 217,700 1,768,462 1,593 196,514 2,184,269
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e IEHRRMEE @)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(BB ZT)

3 SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

3 DHEER S
7

EBoE (E)

By business segments (Continued)

d. Segmental income statement for 2007

d. 20075 %Az &

2007
Corporate
and other
Life businesses
Reinsurance insurance TrER Total
BRRE ASRE Hin ¥ 5% BEE
$000 $000 $000 $'000
Fir Fr Fir Fir
Revenue A
Gross premiums written ERRRE 1,681,212 16,245,249 — 17,926,461
Policy fees REBIWA - 7,536 - 7,536
1,681,212 16,252,785 — 17,983,997
Less: Premiums ceded to o REBZBROBR
reinsurers and BAME
retrocessionaires (211,150) (66,253) - (277,403)
Net premiums written and FERRRER

policy fees REBIWA 1,470,062 16,186,532 — 17,656,594
Change in unearned premium FEMETEESEL -

provisions, net of reinsurance IR B (28,113) 20,201 — (7,912)
Net earned premiums and ERMRERRES

policy fees WA 5 1,441,949 16,206,733 — 17,648,682
Net investment income (note (i) REWANFE (720) 184,621 1,591,925 111,855 1,888,401
Net realized investment gains EERKEE R FE

(note (i) (3 (i) 357,379 3,758,608 161,799 4,277,786
Net unrealized investment AERBE (BB /

(losses)/gains (note (iii)) W a % 88 (3 (i) (11,869) 452,178 65,269 505,578
Net exchange gain/(loss) [EH Wz, (B18) 8 61,191 (86,609) (5,703) (31,121)
Other income Halg A (8,449) 31,505 188,292 211,348
Inter-segment transactions PECERS - (7,998) (138,417) (146,415)

2,024,822 21,946,342 383,095 24,354,259
Benefits, losses and expenses wit  BRRER
Net policyholders’ benefits REFE AR EFRE (995,224) (4,066,931) - (5,062,155)
Net commission expenses BexHFE (351,659) (1,645,497) - (1,997,156)
Administrative and other expenses THREMER (91,071) (1,901,470) (382,217)  (2,374,758)
Change in life insurance funds, SERETERBSEL

net of reinsurance WERR —  (11,849,470) —  (11,849,470)

Inter-segment transactions DEZERS 30,065 108,352 7,998 146,415

(1,407,889)  (19,355,016) (374,219)  (21,137,124)
Profit from operations e i A 616,933 2,591,326 8,876 3,217,135
Share of profit/(losses) FEMREE &N ELEF

of associates (B8) - 3 (57,763) (57,760)
Finance costs BM%ER - (68,449) (80,018) (148,467)
Profit/(loss) before taxation BREAEF (BB) 616,933 2,522,880 (128,905) 3,010,908
Income tax charge BMHEZH (37,241) (488,797) (27,673) (553,711)
Profit/(loss) after taxation BB EEF (BE) 579,692 2,034,083 (156,578) 2,457,197
Minority interests DB R —  (1,016,025) 107,900 (908.125)
Profit/(loss) attributable to equity R BEEER,

holders (&518) 579,692 1,018,058 (48,678) 1,549,072

REFZERER AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

MEMEHRRMETE @)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(BB ZT)

3 SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

3 DHEER S

By business segments (Continued)

BEBKDIE (B)

d. Segmental income statement for 2007 (Continued) d. 20075 #iEwm &k (&)
2007
Corporate
and other
Life businesses
Reinsurance insurance rER Total
R AERE e R
$°000 $'000 $'000 $'000
FT FT T Fr
Note (i): Net investment income %(i) CREWAFE
Interest income from debt securities BESHMBEWA
— Held-to-maturity —BAEHHA 64,850 - 324 65,174
— Available-for-sale — EHE 24,469 943,886 9,801 978,156
— Designated at fair value — BT ABBEREIRYR
through profit or loss NhfEfE 11,379 3,395 6,976 21,750
— Loans and receivables — BEXREWGIE - 5,646 — 5,646
Dividend income from direct equity EERABHERERA
securities
— Available-for-sale — ARHE 8,195 11,925 5,430 25,550
— Designated at fair value — BERBRERIRER
through profit or loss LnfEE 1,906 4,135 440 6,481
Dividend income from equity BAZEESRERA
investment funds
— Available-for-sale — AHRHE - 256,304 - 256,304
— Designated at fair value — BERBRERIRER
through profit or loss LnfEE - 366,129 16,190 382,319
Dividend income from composite mAREESREMA
investment funds
— Designated at fair value — BERBBERNURR
through profit or loss AhEE 3,182 — 19,485 22,667
Bank deposits and other interest WITFRREM
income F B WA 68,214 285,832 53,209 407,255
Rentals receivable from investment JEW IR EMER
properties e 2,426 - - 2,426
Interest expenses on securities sold EHEEES
under repurchase agreements MEER - (285,327) - (285,327)
184,621 1,591,925 111,855 1,888,401
Note (ii): Net realized investment i) CEBRRE (BB),/
(losses)/gains ﬂﬁﬁ/?ﬁ
Debt securities B
— Available-for-sale — A E - (537) - (537)
— Designated at fair value through — BERBBRBZN
profit or loss KR4 EE (343) 97,844 2,862 100,363
Direct equity securities EERAE S
— Available-for-sale — e 356,758 1,879,751 138,949 2,375,458
— Designated at fair value through — BT ARBBEZEN
profit or loss REDAREE (102) 485,659 7,434 492,991
Equity investment funds BABEEES
— Available-for-sale — AEHE - 710,944 - 710,944
— Designated at fair value through — EBEABBBHEMN
profit or loss REEAREE - 584,947 7,828 592,775
Composite investment funds BaREES
— Designated at fair value through —BEABBERMI
profit or loss REDREE - - 4,726 4,726
Derivative financial instruments TESRMTIA 1,248 - - 1,248
Investment properties REME (182) - - (182)
357,379 3,758,608 161,799 4,277,786
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e IEHRRMEE @)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LUBE#ZIT)
3 SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 3 DHER#E)
By business segments (Continued) REKDE (&)
d. Segmental income statement for 2007 (Continued) d. 20075 #HiEwm & (&)
2007
Corporate
and other
Life businesses
Reinsurance insurance rER Total
BRE AERE S ik
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T Fr
Note (iii): Net unrealized i) REBRRE (BB)/
investment (losses)/ W& F 58
gains
Debt securities BHE 5
— Designated at fair value through — EBEARBBERMI
profit or loss RMAREE (15,060) 55,656 661 41,257
Direct equity securities BEEREAES
— Designated at fair value through — EBERABBERMI
profit or loss RMALEE (1,733) 56,882 1,200 56,349
Equity investment funds BRAKREES
— Designated at fair value through — EBERABBERMI
profit or loss RBAAEE - 339,640 39,457 379,097
Composite investment funds FeREES
— Designated at fair value through — EBERABBERMI
profit or loss RMAREE (609) - 23,951 23,342
Surplus on revaluation of REMESH
investment properties B 5,533 - - 5,533
(11,869) 452,178 65,269 505,578
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e IEHRRMEE @)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LUBE#ZIT)
3 SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 3 DHER#E)
By business segments (Continued) REKDE (&)

e. Segmental balance sheet for 2007

e. 20075 BEEERER

2007
Corporate
and other
Life businesses
Reinsurance insurance rER Total
BRR ABRE H %% B
$°000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fir Fir T Fir
Statutory deposits EEFR 12,475 533,970 106,794 653,239
Investment properties REME 78,560 - - 78,560
Property and equipment MEREE 3,106 1,231,432 78,609 1,313,147
Debt securities (note (i)) BBES (51() 1,734,132 25,690,527 322,170 27,746,829
Direct equity securities (note (ii)) ERRAEF (i) 638,930 5,833,575 527,947 7,000,452
Equity investment funds (note (iii)) BRAREES (i) - 5,493,209 121,747 5,614,956
Composite investment funds RAREERES
(note (iv)) (E(iv) 90,841 - 49,107 139,948
Cash and bank deposits BeMETEFER 1,795,332 6,942,180 1,129,517 9,867,029
Goodwill [EES - 154,909 73,276 228,185
Interest in associates REEE R B R - 4,262 526,174 530,436
Reinsurers’ share of insurance DIRAFEGRRE
contract provisions BHEE 323,498 53,242 - 376,740
Other segment assets HpnEEE 587,619 1,362,481 117,928 2,068,028
Total assets BEE 5,264,493 47,299,787 3,053,269 55,617,549
Life insurance funds EMETEES - 38,529,656 - 38,529,656
Unearned premium provisions REBMEAEES 566,064 327,860 - 893,924
Provision for outstanding claims RRBETERE 2,349,612 147,320 - 2,496,932
Investment contract liabilities REENEE - 157,421 - 157,421
Interest-bearing notes ENEER - 1,601,910 1,358,467 2,960,377
Deferred tax liabilities EEREEE 2,012 945,584 1,435 949,031
Other segment liabilities EfHhHEAaRE 175,574 1,158,751 200,201 1,534,526
Total liabilities BafE 3,098,262 42,868,502 1,560,103 47,521,867
Minority interests LERFESR 2,410,056
Net assets attributable to the BRELEEFE
equity holders of the Company 5,685,626
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

MEMEHRRMETE @)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(BB ZT)

3 SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

3 7%

A& R (#)

By business segments (Continued)

BEBKIE (B)

e. Segmental balance sheet for 2007 (Continued) e. 20075 BHEEBEX (&)
2007
Corporate
and other
Life businesses
Reinsurance insurance rER Total
BRR ABRE H % R
$'000 $'000 $’000 $°000
Fir Fir T Fir
Note (i): Debt securities H2): BEEESH
By category: mEE:
— Held-to-maturity ?—rﬁ Z 5| H 1,013,616 — 5,458 1,019,074
— Available-for-sale HHE 572,333 25,094,065 281,146 25,947,544
— Designated at fair value through — ? ThABBEZN
profit or loss REEAREE 148,183 340,156 35,566 523,905
— Loans and receivables — BERREWGIE - 256,306 - 256,306
1,734,132 25,690,527 322,170 27,746,829
By class: RER
— Central governments and — FRENR
central banks R ERAT 181,608 13,529,672 5,458 13,716,738
— Public sector entities — AHEHE 100,723 - - 100,723
— Banks and other financial — RITREMR
institutions SRS 980,447 2,911,758 282,760 4,174,965
— Corporate entities —hEEE 441,368 9,249,097 33,952 9,724,417
— Others — Hth 29,986 — — 29,986
1,734,132 25,690,527 322,170 27,746,829
Note (ii): Direct equity securities i) BERAES
By category: RiESE
— Available-for-sale — AEHE 569,548 4,168,794 504,826 5,243,168
— Designated at fair value through — BERBRBZREN
profit or loss REEAREE 69,382 1,664,781 23,121 1,757,284
638,930 5,838,575 527,947 7,000,452
By class: REA
— Central governments and — R REFR
central banks hRERTT - - 639 639
— Public sector entities — AEHE - - 5,205 5,205
— Banks and other financial — R RHEM
institutions SRS 288,377 - 333,065 621,442
— Corporate entities — hEEE 350,553 5,833,575 189,038 6,373,166
638,930 5,838,575 527,947 7,000,452
RREFRERAR AR 2008 F#
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e IEHRRMEE @)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

HEER (&)

208

(BB SF)
3 SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 3 7
By business segments (Continued) i3

EBoE (E)

e. Segmental balance sheet for 2007 (Continued) e. 20075 BHEEBEX (&)
2007
Corporate
and other
Life businesses
Reinsurance insurance tER Total
BRRE AESRB H 2 7% BEE
$000 $000 $000 $000
Fir Fir Fir Fir
Note (iii): Equity investment funds =X (iii) : RAREE S
By category: RER .
— Available-for-sale — ARG - 2,220,712 - 2,220,712
— Designated at fair value through — EBEARABRBBEZRMN
profit or loss kD EE — 3,272,497 121,747 3,394,244
- 5,498,209 121,747 5,614,956
By class: &R
— Banks and other financial — RITREM
institutions TREE — — 97,421 97,421
— Corporate entities — EERE - 5,493,209 24,326 5,517,535
— 5,498,209 121,747 5,614,956
Note (iv): Composite investment  if(iv) : ZEREES
funds )
By category: RIEA -
— Available-for-sale — AfhE 51,378 - - 51,378
— Designated at fair value through — EERBBERMNU
profit o loss RBAREE 39,463 - 49,107 88,570
90,841 — 49,107 139,948
By class: BER
— Banks and other financial — RITREM
institutions LRI — - 49,107 49,107
— Corporate entities —hEER 90,841 — — 90,841
90,841 — 49,107 139,948
f. Other segmental information for 2007 f. 2007E 7 E&E X
2007
Corporate
and other
Life businesses
Reinsurance insgﬁrance ﬁ%& Total
BRRE AERRB Hin ¥ 5% BEE
$000 $000 $000 $000
T T T T
Capital expenditure BEARAY 1,153 252,410 21,472 275,035
Depreciation FE 818 57,634 5,849 64,301
Significant non-cash income BRFHASEA
(other than depreciation (TBRERER
and amortization) 2 35) 50,570 350,549 59,566 460,685
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e IEHRRMEE @)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(BB ZT)

3 SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 3 DHER#E)
By geographical segments RibE D8
In presenting information on the basis of geographical segments, REFEWESFEZRENR  2HEREERE
segment revenue is based on the geographical location of customers. FPHREMIERD 2 - BEREAREZ H LA
Segment assets and capital expenditure are based on the geographical BHEEmEREY -

location of the operations.

2008
PRC
(other than
Hong Kong Rest Rest
Hong Kong and Macau) of Asia of the
and Macau HE (B#ER Japan M Europe world Total
BERRRM  RMBKRM) AR  HitE BN HatE B
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Fr Fr Fi Fi Fr Fr Fr
Gross premiums written and ~ EARIRE K
policy fees REBWA 304,000 23,694,824 143,424 453,699 226,924 180,925 25,003,796
Segment assets NEEE 6,314,046 74,501,343 - - - — 80,815,389
Capital expenditure incurred ~ FREH BRI E A
during the year 53 2,349 1,481,756 - - - — 1,484,105
2007
PRC
(other than
Hong Kong Rest Rest
Hong Kong  and Macau) of Asia of the
and Macau F B (&% & Japan oM Europe world Total
BEERRMN  RFIBRIN AKX  HiE B HiwE aE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $000 $°000 $'000
Fi FiT FiT FiT FiT Fi Fi
Gross premiums written and ~ EARRE K
policy fees REBWA 316,653 16,652,436 113,973 455,988 249,970 144,977 17,933,997
Segment assets PEBE 7,291,563 48,325,986 - - - — 55,617,549
Capital expenditure incurred ~ FREH BRI E A
during the year % 1,008 274,032 - - - - 275,035
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e IEHRRMEE @)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(BB ZT)

4 GROSS PREMIUMS WRITTEN AND POLICY FEES 4 EFERARREBERFREZBWA

Principal activities FEEK

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The ARARMFZEBRREER - ARAIZHME
principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are the underwriting ARANTZEBEAESEBRBER B
of all classes of reinsurance business, direct life insurance business AERBEBRVERBZER -

and property and casualty insurance business.

Apart from these, the Group also carries on asset management, IoON  REBBRHEEEETE - REFNMRE
insurance intermediary and pension businesses and, to support its ERBED  UARARREBMIFIASHEES
insurance activities, holds money market, fixed income, equity and wOETEBRAES  BRERWERSE -
property investments.

Turnover represents gross premiums written and policy fees from LEEREBERBER ASRBEBLUE
the reinsurance business, life insurance business and property and REEBEERRRERREBRA -

casualty insurance business.

2008
Property and
Life casualty
Reinsurance insurance insurance Investment
contracts contracts contracts contracts Total
BREEN ASRBEN BERBEY REEGH mE
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr
Gross premiums written FERREBUA 1,838,999 21,207,791 1,949,904 — 24,996,694
Policy fees REBUA - - - 7,102 7,102
1,838,999 21,207,791 1,949,904 7,102 25,003,796
2007
Life
Reinsurance insurance Investment
contracts contracts contracts Total
BREBEH ABRBRAK BREEH i
$000 $000 $000 $000
Fr Fr Fr Fr
Gross premiums written ERRRERA 1,681,212 16,245,249 — 17,926,461
Policy fees REBIKA - - 7,536 7,536
1,681,212 16,245,249 7,536 17,933,997
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5 INVESTMENT INCOME 5 BEWA

2008 2007
$°000 $'000
Fr Fr
Net investment income (note (a)) BREWAFEE (H(a) 3,394,339 1,888,401
Net realized investment (losses)/gains T EBRKRE (FE) WHFH
(note (b)) ((b)) (1,048,781) 4,277,786
Net unrealized investment (losses)/gains ABRKRE (FE) WH K BE
and impairment (note (c)) F 5 (7E(c)) (2,065,072) 505,578
280,486 6,671,765
(a) Net investment income (@) BEWANFEE
Interest income from debt securities Hi5E 5 E WA
(note (i)): (&) -
— Held-to-maturity — EAEHEA 502,227 65,174
— Available-for-sale — g 1,190,974 978,156
— Designated at fair value through — BT ARBBEBREIURE
profit or loss ARfEE 19,936 21,750
— Loans and receivables — B K E W FRIE 44,134 5,646
Dividend income from direct equity BEEBRAELERE
securities (note (ii): WA (i)
— Available-for-sale — A HE 44,605 25,550
— Designated at fair value through — EERBABEARYR
profit or loss NABEAABE 8,884 6,481
Dividend income from equity BAREEES RS
investment funds (note (ii): WA (i) -
— Available-for-sale — A HE 343,843 256,304
— Designated at fair value through — RBERABBERIURE
profit or loss ~RrEE 818,682 382,319
Dividend income from composite FEaREESRE
investment funds (note (iii)): WA (a(ii) -
— Auvailable-for-sale — A#EHE 186 -
— Designated at fair value through — BERABBEBRIURE
profit or loss NREE 38,161 22,667
Bank deposits and other interest WITHFER R AT E
income A 459,492 407,255
Rentals receivable from investment RS EMERS
properties 2,809 2,426
Interest expenses on securities sold BEHEBESNEER
under repurchase agreements (79,594) (285,327)
3,394,339 1,888,401
Notes: it
2008 2007
$°000 $000
Fr T
() Interest income from debt securities: () EBEHEFBBA :
Listed i) 523,148 992,745
Unlisted L 1,234,123 77,981
(i) Dividend income from direct equity iy EEBRAZHFRBRABREES
securities and equity investment B A
funds:
Listed = 979,112 438,695
Unlisted E il 236,902 231,959
(i)  Dividend income from composite (i) HEREESBREWA :
investment funds:
Listed = 36,512 5,336
Unlisted E 1,835 17,331
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5 INVESTMENT INCOME (Continued)

5 BEWA (&)

212

2008 2007
$°000 $’000
Fr Fr
(b) Net realized investment (b) CEEBEEE (BB
(losses)/gains Wi F 5
Debt securities (note (i)): BEBEH (iF() -
— Auvailable-for-sale —a I E (16,850) (537)
— Designated at fair value through —EEABRBEBERINRMRE
profit or loss AREE 284,738 100,363
Direct equity securities (note (ii)): HERAES (i)
— Auvailable-for-sale — At E 679,307 2,375,458
— Designated at fair value through —HEERBBIBLGURBR
profit or loss NREE (715,387) 492,991
Equity investment funds (note(ii)): AR ERE S (7)) :
— Available-for-sale —al & (435,849) 710,944
— Designated at fair value through —IEEARABIRIEH R
profit or loss AV EEE (836,200) 592,775
Composite investment funds (note(iii)): RAREES (i) :
— Designated at fair value through —IEEARABIRIE R
profit or loss NrEE (8,540) 4,726
Derivative financial instruments MTHEERIA — 1,248
Loss on disposal of investment LEREMESE
properties - (182)
(1,048,781) 4,277,786
Notes: 7
2008 2007
$°000 $000
Fr Fir
() Net realized investment (losses)/gains () EBEBEHFDERKE (BB
on debt securities: W F 5 -
Listed £ (12,568) 98,036
Unlisted E il 280,456 1,790
(i) Net realized investment (losses)/gains iy EEBRAZHFRBRABREES
on direct equity securities and equity BEERKE (BR)/
investment funds: W Fa
Listed = (1,311,900) 3,487,495
Unlisted FEm 3,771 684,673
(i) Net realized investment (losses)/gains (i) HABRBELCERRE (BE)/
on composite investment funds: Y F 88
Listed i) (23,199) 1,118
Unlisted E 14,659 3,608
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(LUBE#ZIT)
5 INVESTMENT INCOME (Continued) 5 REWA (#)
2008 2007
$°000 $’000
Fr Fr
(c) Net unrealized investment (losses)/ (c) KREBRKRE (FFE) KWHER
gains and impairment WAEF
Debt securities (note (i)): BIBES (7)) :
— Designated at fair value through — EERAEBIERURBR
profit or loss AREE (33,433) 41,257
Direct equity securities (note (ii)): BEERAES (7))
— Designated at fair value through — EERAEBIERURBR
profit or loss N EE (350,515) 56,349
Equity investment funds (note (ii)): RARZEES (i) -
— Designated at fair value through — EERAEBIERURBR
profit or loss N EE (1,277,899) 379,097
Composite investment funds (noteiii)): REREES (i)
— Designated at fair value through — EERAEBIERURBR
profit or loss N EE (91,938) 23,342
(Deficit)/surplus on revaluation of BEMESH (B B
investment properties (1,841) 5,633
Impairment on available-for-sale A ERAEERE
equity investments (309,446) —
(2,065,072) 505,578
Notes: i
2008 2007
$°000 $000
Fr T
() Net unrealized investment (losses)/ () EEBFHFAEREKE (BB
gains on debt securities: Y ss H 88
Listed =] (24,265) 53,510
Unlisted LW (9,168) (12,253)
(i) Net unrealized investment (losses)/ iy EEBRABHFRBAKREES
gains on direct equity securities and RERLE (BB /
equity investment funds: W58
Listed =] (971,470) 379,170
Unlisted LW (656,944) 56,276
(i) Net unrealized investment (losses)/ iy LABREELAEHRE
gains on composite investment funds: (B18) /s -
Listed sy (46,344) 4,404
Unlisted FEm (45,594) 18,938
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6 OTHER INCOME 6 Hfzug A
2008 2007
$°000 $’000
FT Fr
Income from provision of asset REEEEERDG
management services N 14,407 19,647
Income from provision of insurance REREP RS
intermediary services WA 23,367 17,027
Income from provision of pension EHEZRREERE
administration services A 31,972 11,244
Net gain/(loss) on sale of property and HEMERZBIWE
equipment (E18) F& 26 (136)
Others Hih 14,791 17,151
84,563 64,933
7 NET POLICYHOLDERS’ BENEFITS AND NET 7 REBEANGZFERASIHFEE
COMMISSION EXPENSES
(a) Net policyholders’ benefits (a) REIFEAFRFE
2008
Property and
casualty
Reinsurance Life insurance insurance
contracts contracts contracts Total
BREEGH ASRREH HERREY W
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Fr Fr Fr Fr
Claims and claim adjustment BREERART S
expenses 1,052,795 596,118 1,307,348 2,956,261
Less: Reinsurers’ and W BRRESME
retrocessionaires’ share (165,034) (3,628) (235,268) (403,930)
887,761 592,490 1,072,080 2,552,331
Surrenders RIR - 3,472,704 - 3,472,704
Annuity and maturity payments Fe REBETR - 102,865 - 102,865
Policy dividends REHL - 120,510 - 120,510

887,761 4,288,569 1,072,080 6,248,410
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(B M5 F)
7 NET POLICYHOLDERS’ BENEFITS AND NET 7 REFBANGZFERASIHFRE
COMMISSION EXPENSES (Continued) (%)
(a) Net policyholders’ benefits (Continued) (a) REIFBEAFZFE (&)
2007
Reinsurance Life insurance
contracts contracts Total
BREEH ABRBERN aE
$’000 $’000 $°000
Fr Fr Fr
Claims and claim adjustment ERRERFAEL L
expenses 1,062,525 508,046 1,570,571
Less: Reinsurers’ and B BREESMDE
retrocessionaires’ share (67,301) (48,109) (115,410)
995,224 459,937 1,455,161
Surrenders RIR — 3,452,949 3,452,949
Annuity and maturity payments Fe MBI - 83,004 83,004
Policy dividends RE DA - 71,041 71,041
995,224 4,066,931 5,062,155
(b) Net commission expenses (b) AeXXHFHE
2008
Property and
casualty
Reinsurance Life insurance insurance
contracts contracts contracts Total
BREEGH ASRREH HERREHY W
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Fr Fr Fr Fr
Gross commission expenses EHESEIH 457,688 2,048,304 228,359 2,734,351
Reinsurance commission income BREMAS KA (61,680) (21,331) (89,529) (172,540)
Net commission expenses AesHFE 396,008 2,026,973 138,830 2,561,811
2007
Reinsurance Life insurance
contracts contracts Total
BREREH ASRBRAN B
$'000 $'000 $'000
Fr Fr Fir
Gross commission expenses EHEeEH 400,050 1,659,302 2,059,352
Reinsurance commission income BREASEA (48,391) (13,805) (62,196)
Net commission expenses Be X HFE 351,659 1,645,497 1,997,156
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8 (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 8 BR®iAI (BB &R
(Loss)/profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting): BRE R (BE) #FEmk(GEe) ¢
2008 2007
$°000 $'000
Fr For
(a) Finance costs: (@) BIBER :
Interest on interest-bearing notes BRNEREFE
— payable within 5 years — RAFR S'ZH 155,031 —
— not payable within 5 years — NERAFRZ 28,352 148,467
183,383 148,467
(b) Staff costs: (b) BEIRA :
Salaries, wages and other benefits Fe IERHMAZR 1,595,269 1,041,949
Employee share-based compensation IR p RAZEEFHERZR
benefits 29,626 7,852
Contributions to defined contribution B 5T FUR IR ET 8l 5K
retirement plans 174,245 80,830
1,799,140 1,130,631
(c) Other items: (c) EMER :
Auditor’s remuneration % B0 B &
— audit services — ZE IR 3,409 3,804
— tax services — B R T 168 170
Depreciation of property and equipment MEREBETE 126,021 64,301
Impairment losses on insurance RBREFPEKER K
debtors and other debtors HiEREFREBE 12,022 10,151
Operating lease charges in respect EEMENKEHEHEER
of properties 190,497 95,036
Share of associates’ taxation charge HEt = AR IBE 13,227 22,542
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MEMEHRRMETE @)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(BB ZT)

9 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 9 EEXMS
Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 of the RIBEBCATHERD E161EHIIRE BB < a0
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance was as follows: ™
2008
Salaries and Retirement
other Share based scheme
Directors’ emoluments Discretionary  payments contrlbutlons
fees HEKk  bonuses RHAKX  Bif:E Total
EEHe HiBle BERL X AT % B
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Fr Fr Fr T Fi Fi
Executive directors: HiTES
Feng Xiaozeng bl 3z
(resigned on (B #2008
7 November 2008) MATEZER) - 2,387 900 - 1 3,298
Lin Fan i - - - - - -
Song Shuguang REKX - 2,077 788 - 96 2,961
Xie Yiqun #—H# - 1,827 788 - 12 2,627
He Zhiguang OS5
(appointed on (2009
12 March 2009) 3E12BZ ML) - - - - - -
Ng Yu Lam, Kenneth RAW - 1,674 700 693 180 3,247
Shen Koping, Michael GRS - 859 1,063 3,825 12 5,759
Lau Siu Mun, Sammy e - 1,259 563 566 169 2,557
Non-executive directors: FHTES
Zheng Changyong BEE
(resigned on (2720095
12 March 2009) 3E12BER) - - - - - -
Li Tao &
(appointed on (P2 20095
12 March 2009) 3A12BZM) - - - - - -
Wu Jiesi RER 300 - - - - 300
Che Shujian BEg 300 - - - - 300
Lau Wai Kit G 300 - - - - 300
900 10,083 4,802 5,084 480 21,349
2007
Salaries and Retirement
other Share based scheme
Directors” emoluments Discretionary ~ payments contributions
fees Zek bonuses R AAX BRI Total
Ex0e  EtBle BERL %t #HR mE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
FIT T T T Fir Fir
Executive directors: HiTES
Feng Xiaozeng Pl - 2,423 1,700 - 12 4,135
Lin Fan PR - - - - - -
Song Shuguang N - 1,725 1,430 - 9 3,251
Xie Yiqun #—H# - 1,725 1,430 - 12 3,167
Ng Yu Lam, Kenneth RER - 1,569 1,360 457 180 3,566
Shen Koping, Michael LA - 803 1,283 4,310 12 6,408
Lau Siu Mun, Sammy EIP'e — 1,182 1,050 281 158 2,671
Non-executive directors: FHTES
Zheng Changyong BEE - - - - - -
Wu Jiesi RER 300 - - - - 300
Che Shujian BEg 300 - - - - 300
Lau Wai Kit Bl 300 - - - - 300
900 9,427 8,253 5,048 470 24,098
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9 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued) 9 BEEME &
The above emoluments include the value of share options granted LTS BESABREA R AN RRET S &
and shares awarded to certain directors under the Company’s share R EE TFHROHESNRBEELBEDR
option scheme and share award scheme, respectively, as estimated ETARBRANEFEBE BHELEEDK
at the date of grant and award. The details of these benefits in kind EHNHBHREETSMESEN[RREE -
are disclosed under the paragraph “share option scheme” and “share (A% 1D 22 BT 81 R B340
award scheme” in the directors’ report and note 40.
10 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 10 ZEMis AL
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, three (2007: FRuGEERMEMALTS = (ZTZLF -
five) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed in note 9. The R AES  BENSHFBHAKEI 5
emoluments of the remaining two (2007: nil) individuals are as follows: INRUALT(ZESEF BB RB|OT -
2008 2007
$°000 $'000
Fr Fir
Salaries and other emoluments FehEMME 2,654 —
Discretionary bonuses B TE AL 1,137 —
Share based payments B 1D B AN A 4,667 —
Retirement scheme contributions IRRETE LR 108 -
8,566 —
The emoluments of the individuals with the highest emoluments are ZEERNEATHHSEATHERR -
within the following bands:
2008 2007
Number of Number of
$ individuals individuals
T AE N
3,000,001 — 3,500,000 1 -
5,000,001 — 5,500,000 1 -
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11 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME 11 GKEEBEERANBE

STATEMENT

(a) ZGEBERFAFNHIES

(a) Taxation in the consolidated income statement represents:

2008 2007
$°000 $'000
Fr For
Current tax — Provision for EHRE — EBAEHRERS
Hong Kong Profits Tax
Tax for the year FEBR 7,576 63,815
Over-provision in respect of prior years 212 LA{E F E %4 (379) —
7,197 63,815
Current tax — Outside Hong Kong Efi#E — &FBLUIIME
Tax for the year FEBRK 905 1,019
Under/(over)-provision in respect of DI (ZIR) U FEEE
prior years 23,596 (1,801)
24,501 (782)
Deferred tax EEBIE
Origination and reversal of ERMEREZERKED
temporary differences (90,093) 549,586
Attributable to a change in tax rate HESHEN (4,845) (58,908)
(94,938) 490,678
Income tax (credit)/charge WIE (Ke) L (63,240) 553,711

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax represents the Group’s
estimated Hong Kong Profits Tax liability calculated at the standard
tax rate of 16.5 % (2007: 17.5%) on its assessable profits from
reinsurance, asset management and insurance intermediary
businesses, except for its assessable profits from the business
of reinsurance of offshore risks, which is calculated at 8.25%
(2007: 8.75%), one-half of the standard tax rate.

Taxation outside Hong Kong for overseas subsidiaries is calculated
at the rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions. Under the
new Enterprise Income Tax Law of the PRC, the enterprise income
tax rate for domestic companies in the PRC was changed from
15% — 33% to 18% — 25% effective from 1 January 2008.

EENCHEEREAEERERAEBR
% BEEBRRRBRANEBOEITHE
F o 1E16.5% (Z T EF  17.5%) MIZ%E
MEFENGAEHRTENGSHE  BXRAE
FONR R B R B 375 @0 FE ST B s A AR
AR R —F - A18.25% (- TT L F :
8.75%) it & -

BN B A BB LA b R 69 B I8 LA AR
BRZEERNRTVEEE - REFD
TEARANMBEEMGERE  #-2F
NE—A—RE EARTEARLEER
EFSHERT15% - 33%F E18% - 25% ©
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11 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME 11 KEEBERANBE (©)

STATEMENT (Continued)

(b) BE (ER) ZHESHEFIREARE

(b) Reconciliation between tax (credit)/charge and accounting

profit at applicable tax rates: W E R -
2008 2007
$°000 $’000
Fr Fr
(Loss)/profit before taxation A (&18) % 7 (269,001) 3,010,908
Notional tax on (loss)/profit before REEEENRER
taxation, calculated at the rates FmF SR 5 E
applicable to profits in the Al (B8) 7
jurisdictions concerned M B EBIE 4,508 862,418
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses T—HIZI REBANBEYE 706,081 183,975
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue BERBBANTRIBL 2 (920,766) (289,307)
Tax effect of unused tax losses KR 8 R E A
not recognized MBEEENRIETE 179,174 79
Tax effect of prior years’ tax losses figffﬂlﬁi%?ﬁﬁﬁgfﬁﬁﬁ
utilized this year E’] MIEZE (19,755) (142,745)
Tax effect of different tax rate in LR B R RILAINZ 5 A A
branches located outside the head E’] TRAMEZ G E
office (31,233) —
Under/(over)-provision in prior years A TE/ (ZR) A FEERE 23,596 (1,801)
Tax effect of change in tax rate R EE RIS E (4,845) (58,908)
Actual tax (credit)/charge ERHEBEER) T H (63,240) 553,711

12 (LOSS)/PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY

12 REEML (BE) ER

HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

REEEGARFEIE—SZEINARQRNB
iR K ) E518300,488,0007C (T ZT L 4F : %A
18,830,0007T) °

The consolidated profit attributable to equity holders of the Company
includes a loss of $300,488,000 (2007: gain of $18,830,000) which
has been dealt with in the financial statements of the Company.

13 DIVIDENDS 13 RE

220

(a) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company () AEERNEAQARIRRNBEEWMT ¢

attributable to the year were as follows:

2008 2007
$°000 $’000
Fr Fr
No final dividend proposed after C%f@t E BREEIRKARE
the balance sheet date ZETLEF  FE@ERI0M)
— 141,527

(2007: 10 cents per ordinary share)
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13 DIVIDENDS (Continued)

13 RE (&)

(b)

Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company
attributable to the previous financial year, approved and paid
during the year:

(b) BRE—EMNHRFERSADARR > A
REAFERZERINHRE :

2008 2007
$°000 $'000
Fr Fr
Final dividend in respect of BRE—EMBREE -
the previous financial year, NIV R Y
approved and paid during the year, XA ERER B & AR 101
of 10 cents per share (2007: nil) —ZETLF E) 141,924 —
Less: dividend for shares held for Ve ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁbuf EimsE
Share Award Scheme 2 B’ AR 470 —
141,454 -

14 (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

14

R (BR) BF

(a)

(b)

Basic (loss)/earnings per share

The calculation of basic (loss)/earnings per share is based on
the loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of $299,715,000
(2007: profit of $1,549,072,000) and the weighted average of
ordinary shares in issue during the year less shares held for the
Share Award Scheme of 1,414,521,675 (2007: weighted average
of shares in issue during the year of 1,405,858,842).

Diluted (loss)/earnings per share

In 2008, the ordinary shares attributable to the Company’s Share
Option Scheme and Share Award Scheme are anti-dilutive as
their conversion would decrease loss per share. In 2007, the
calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on the profit
attributable to ordinary shareholders of $1,549,072,000 and the
weighted average of 1,430,775,029 ordinary shares after adjusting
for the effects of all of the potential dilution from ordinary shares
issuable under the Company’s Share Option Scheme and Share
Award Scheme.

(@) BREX (BER) &F

FREA(BR) /BT ERBRREGE

299,715,000 (- &=
1,549,072,0007T) -
MiFB2RNDENFASETYE
W #1,414,521,6750 (= F

WE?XH SR AT #1,405,858,842

B &

(b) EREE (E?E)/E%IJ

E/‘_

+$uz 3B PR R R B

+F EM

T R B 2R &

38 P # 0
TLFF

TNF - BB B RGN R

S 48
?V.%? !

HRmE

R}ﬁﬁ%éiﬂx}gﬁaﬂ Do R-ETLE
FhR#EEARN Ehz,ﬁﬁﬂxﬁﬁﬁxmﬂ

1 ,549,072,0007%& ERAR

AR B

KBt 2R st 2P B B RE E%&“?ﬁ =0

ABTE R

P A T8 B A5 A A AR N A

S5 801,430,775,02908 51 & -

(c) Reconciliations (c) HER
2008 2007
Number of Number of
shares shares
R EE igrl g
Weighted average number of et E IRER (BE) /&F
ordinary shares less shares held for 840 R A% 19 SE B 51 & i FE A
Share Award Scheme used in 2B ie 2 EERINETHRE

calculating basic (loss)/earnings
per share

Effect of Share Option Scheme =

Effect of Share Award Scheme foﬁ ﬁ@]%%‘l E’\J?Z =

Weighted average number of AtEs %%ﬁ&é (Eﬁ
ordinary shares used in calculating LR 3¢

diluted (loss)/earnings per share

=
5
=
|
e
-+
RG:
=
0

1,414,521,675

N/A
N/A

1,405,858,842

19,662,187
5,254,000

8) /BN

1,414,521,675

1,430,775,029

(R B

ZRARRA

2008 F
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15 FIXED ASSETS

15 BlEEE

222

(a) The Group (@) &%
Furniture
Land and and
buildings fixtures ~ Computer Motor Investment
TR HEKR equipment  vehicles  Sub-total properties Total
BEY EEZE  SHERE "E P RENE 8%
$000 $000 $000 $'000 $000 $000 $000
T T T T T T T
Cost or valuation: RASEE
At 1 January 2007 —EER+5-A-H 1,048,212 583,812 125,796 39,422 1,267,242 106,077 1,373,319
Exchange adjustments [ EXREE 66,213 2,820 8,472 2,708 80,208 - 80,208
Additions b= 154,985 31,029 73,814 15,207 275,035 - 275,035
Disposals i - (1,789) (7,104) (1,055) (9,941) (33,050)  (42,991)
Surplus on revaluation EhAK - - - - - 5,533 5,533
At 1 January 2008 —EE\5-A-H 1,269,410 85,879 200,978 56,277 1,612,544 78,560 1,691,104
Exchange adjustments ExHZ 68,263 4,259 11,274 3,028 86,819 - 86,819
Additions ®E 693,266 82,322 146,073 27,231 948,892 - 948,892
Disposals & - (5,975) (5,017) - (10,992) - (10992
Acquired on acquisition REA—FHB AR
of a subsidiary Em 300,758 24,432 83,088 49,156 457,434 - 457,434
Deficit on revaluation EfEEM - - - - - (1,841) (1,841)
At 31 December 2008 RZZENF+ZA=+—-H 2,331,697 190,917 436,396 135,687 3,094,697 76,719 3,171,416
Representing: & :
Cost A 2,331,697 190,917 436,396 135,687 3,094,697 — 3,094,697
Valuation — 2008 hE—ZTENF - - - - - 78,719 76,719
2,331,697 190,917 436,396 135,687 3,094,697 76,719 3,171,416
Accumulated depreciation: Z3 & :
At 1 January 2007 —E2ER+5-A-H 111,271 31,074 70,004 20,203 232,552 - 282,552
Exchange adjustments [T Bz 2,453 1,619 5,797 1,597 11,466 - 11,466
Charge for the year KEEHE 19,921 9,572 27,993 6,815 64,301 - 64,301
Written back on disposal i E B &) (1,871) (2,259) (4,298) (505) (8,922) - (8,922)
1 January 2008 RZEENG-A-A 181,774 40,012 99,501 28110 299,397 — 299,397
Exchange adjustments ExAZ 3,015 1,824 6,169 1,656 12,664 - 12,664
Charge for the year KEEHE 31,061 22,132 57,862 14,966 126,021 - 126,021
Written back on disposal i E B D) - (2,182 (5,736) - (7,918) - (7,918)
At 31 December 2008 R_EEN\$+_A=t-H 165,850 61,786 157,796 44,732 430,164 — 430,164
Net book value: REFE:
At 31 December 2008 RZZENF+ZA=+—-H 2,165,847 129,131 278,600 90,955 2,664,533 76,719 2,741,252
At 31 December 2007 RZZE+F+ZA=+-8 1,137,636 45,867 101,477 28,167 1,313,147 78,560 1,391,707

China Insurance International Holdings Company Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e IEHRRMEE @)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LUBE#ZIT)
15 FIXED ASSETS (Continued) 15 B E&EE (&)
(b) The Company (b) ZA&AQF]
Furniture
and fixtures Motor
FAER vehicles Total
& E 5 R F K
$’000 $’000 $°000
For For For
Cost: AR
At 1 January 2007 RZEELF—HA—H 2,958 1,671 4,629
Additions HE 124 — 124
Disposals & (58) — (58)
At 1 January 2008 RZZEZENF—HA—H 3,024 1,671 4,695
Additions e 112 — 112
Disposals & (129) — (129)
At 31 December 2008 RZEENF
+-—A=+—H 3,007 1,671 4,678
Accumulated depreciation: EEHE
At 1 January 2007 R-ZZEZELF—A—H 2,832 1,671 4,503
Charge for the year REEHE 7 - 7
Written back on disposal £ B 3] (57) — (657)
At 1 January 2008 RZEENF—HA—H 2,852 1,671 4,523
Charge for the year KEEHFE 78 - 78
Written back on disposal & B B ] (129) — (129)
At 31 December 2008 RZZTZ)N\F
+=—A=+—8H 2,801 1,671 4,472
Net book value: REFE
At 31 December 2008 RZZEENF
+-A=+—8 206 - 206
At 31 December 2007 RZZETEF
+-A=+—8 172 — 172
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(BB ZT)

15 FIXED ASSETS (Continued)

15 BEIE&EE (8)

224

(c) Prepaid lease payments (c) EREEMNK
The Group
&
2008 2007
$°000 $’000
FT Fr
Prepaid lease payments comprises: ENHENRERE
Leasehold land in PRC MRPEZEE T

— Long lease — REBHEE 535,213 —
Current = 5 10,704 -
Non-current 3E & B 524,509 -
535,213 —

(d)

The leasehold land was acquired during 2008 by the Group and
the related companies for construction of properties primarily
for own use. The construction is expected to commence in 2009.
The above amount represents the share of the Group of the
land for the construction project. The Group is in the process
of applying for property certificate of the land-use right.

The analysis of net book value of land and buildings and
investment properties was as follows:

(d)

HETHWRHAEBENBEERRR -TZE
iﬁﬁkuﬂﬂikmiixf’ﬁéﬁﬁ %HEE_
ZhFENRBRTHEE - L SBERR
$§@4£%L1592iim DR o AEEIE
ERFELHEREIYEE

THREFRREMERDEFEN DN
T

(e)

China Insurance International Holdings Company Limited

The Group
rE
2008 2007
$°000 $’000
FT Fr
In Hong Kong BE
— Long leases — RHHEE 113,157 116,147
— Medium-term leases — hHHEE 7,657 8,469
Outside Hong Kong BB LN R
— Medium-term leases — hHHEE 2,121,752 1,091,580
2,242,566 1,216,196

The investment properties of the Group were revalued as of 31
December 2008 by an independent firm of surveyors, Greater
China Appraisal Limited, who is among its staff Associates of
the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors. The valuation was arrived
at by reference to market evidence of transaction prices for similar
properties. A revaluation deficit of $1,841,000 (2007: surplus
of $5,533,000) has been recognized in the consolidated income
statement (see note 5(c)).

(e)

Annual Report 2008
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

MEMEHRRMETE @)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(BB ZT)

15 FIXED ASSETS (Continued)

15 BEIE&EE (8)

()

The Group leases out investment properties under operating
leases. The leases typically run for an initial period of two to
three years, with an option to renew the lease after that date at
which time all terms are renegotiated. Lease payments are usually
reviewed every two to three years to reflect market rentals. None
of the leases includes contingent rentals.

The gross carrying amounts of the investment properties of the
Group held for use in operating leases were $70,070,000 (2007:
$71,160,000).

The time period in which the Group’s total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases are receivable
is as follows:

(f)

AEBUGCLEHERLREYE - FLf

— OB _E=F  WAAERE
FERHABES - FETFﬁﬁﬂ%/‘?}’\ﬁﬂé%ﬁ
BT - HENRERT ZEZFRE
ARMTISHEE - XIETE EH T BIERA
e -

REBIBELCLRE E’J&ﬁ#@%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ@
%8/570,070,0007T (ZZEZ+4F : 71,160,000
JT) °

AEBRBEIAIRENEEHEERRE
W REHE N RAEEORFRNT

The Group
wE
2008 2007
$°000 $’000
F For
Within 1 year —FRA 1,840 2,971
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_FEFERF (BIEEREME) 157 1,478
1,997 4,449
16 GOODWILL 16 2
The Group
wE
2008 2007
$°000 $'000
F For
Cost: AR
At 1 January Kn—A—H 478,185 478,185
Acquired on acquisition of a subsidiary B A B A R R B
(note 43) (KizE 43) 107,744 —
Transferred from an associate company wREe—HBE QA
(note 18) (Ktat18) 102,192 —
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 688,121 478,185
Impairment loss: WEEE
At 1 January ®n—A—H 250,000 250,000
Charge for the year KEERE 73,276 —
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 323,276 250,000
Carrying amount: BREDEE
At 31 December ®w+=-—A=+—8 364,845 228,185
HREFERARAR 2008 £k | 225
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(BB ZT)

16 GOODWILL (Continued)

16 B2 (#)

Impairment tests for cash-generating units containing goodwill

An impairment loss of $250,000,000 and $73,276,000 were recognized
in 2005 and 2008 respectively, in respect of goodwill associated
with the acquisition of CIGAML in September 2002. After such further
impairment amount of $73,276,000 made in 2008, there is no goodwill
associated with the acquisition of CIGAML.

The directors reached a conclusion on the cash flow projection of
CIGAML based on past performance and expectations for future
market development. As the cash generating unit has been reduced
to below its recoverable amount, the goodwill of CIGAML is fully
impaired.

The directors again performed the impairment review as at 31

BEFENREELEVNRENR

R-EE fihﬂuﬁlﬁ%qﬂﬁégﬁﬁ}%?im
HER-_ZETRAFR_ZFZNFEDHER
250,000,0007T % 73,276,0007T #) & & ° ?%TE@E/\\\
—ET)N\FRET3,276,0007T 2 #E—HREIE - B
BREEBATREEEEFHZEHE -

EERBBEREFARMGERNEERR

EEEEMNBRERMGH ARBEELBLUE
BMEERRAKEEHE PREEEEZHED
2HORE -

EER _ZZN\F+ _A=+—HEBXETH

226

December 2008 and found no further impairment loss on the goodwill BEN ABEERBWBEMNBARMELEN
associated with the acquisition of other subsidiaries. EMEAEE—FRHME -
17 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 17 RMTE QA BINIRE
The Company
PN
2008 2007
$°000 $'000
Fr Fir
Unlisted shares, at cost EETRRG - A 2,721,778 1,844,859
Less: Impairment loss B OBERSE (344,179) (191,500)
2,377,599 1,653,359

China Insurance International Holdings Company Limited

The following list contains details of the Company’s principal
subsidiaries at the balance sheet date. The class of shares held is
ordinary unless otherwise stated.

All of these are controlled subsidiaries as defined under note 1(e)
and have been consolidated into the Group’s financial statements.

The nature of the impairment loss relates to CIGAML as described
in note 16.

TREJARANEEMBRARNEH A
B BRIEZEHA  TAMFHRNDERER

% 5 T8 X B39 R I R 1 (e) AT 5T O S 42 1L B B
NG ﬁﬁE%$éBA$‘¥%EﬁE7f7r%i&§W °

00 0 AR P L R 167
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e IEHRRMEE @)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LA E# 3T

17 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

17 AMTB AR MR E (&)

Proportion of
ownership interest

REEREAL
Place of
incorporation Particulars
and operation of issued and Group’s Held by the Held by Principal
Name of company R paid up capital effective interest Company subsidiaries activity
AAER REERE BRARARRAMNE AEENERER ARAfEEE HRERRSEE IZER
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
China International Hong Kong Ordinary Ordinary 100% 100% - - 100% 100%  Reinsurance
Reinsurance $1,000,000,000 $1,000,000,000 business
Company Deferred Deferred
Limited $600,000,000 $600,000,000
(Note (i)
HEARERBERLR i EE i BREXH
1,000,000,0007 1,000,000,00070
EE Eft
600,000,000 600,000,0007
Tai Ping Life Insurance PRC RMB RMB 50.05% 50.05% 50.05% 50.05% - - Life
Company, Limited 2,330,000,000 2,330,000,000 insurance
(Note (i) business
RERAA hE N ARE NERBER
2,330,000,0007 2,330,000,0007
The Tai Ping Insurance PRC RMB - 50.05% - 50.05% - - - Property
Company, Limited 1,570,000,000 and casualty
(Notes (ii & iii)) insurance
ATRBERLR HE AR® - HERBER
(i Rii) 1,570,000,00070
Tai Ping Pension Company PRC RMB RMB 50.03% 44,03% - - 86% 4% Pension
Limited 800,000,000 500,000,000 business
(Note (i)
ATRZRRRABRAA HE N ARE RERBER
(&i) 800,000,000 500,000,0007
Tai Ping Asset Management PRC RMB RVB 42.03% 37.08% - - 2% 62.1% Asset
Company Limited 100,000,000 100,000,000 management
(Note (i) business
in the PRC
X ERERAA HE AR® AEE ol
) 100,000,0007 100,000,0007 REERER
China Insurance Hong Kong $130,000,000 $130,000,000 100% 100% 100% 100% - - Asset
Group Assets management
Management Limited business
in Hong Kong
TREEAEER ) 130,000,000 130,000,0007 REBZ
BRAF BEEEZH
SINO-RE Hong Kong Ordinary Ordinary 100% 100% - - 100% 100% Insurance
Reinsurance $4,000,000 $4,000,000 broking
Brokers Limited Deferred Deferred
Note {j) $1,000,000 $1,000,000
EEERRER i B 3 REEE
\ 4,000,000 4,000,000
fif13 i
1,000,00070 1,000,000
Quicken Assets BVI/ Usst US§1 100% 100% 100% 100% - - Property
Limited Hong Kong holding
ABEBAES/ 1%7 %7 HENE
Bh
CIIH (BVI) Limited BVI/ Us$t USS1 100% 100% 100% 100% - - Financing
Hong Kong
KEgEREE/ 1%7 %7 B
B4
Share China Assets BVI/ Us$t US$1 100% 100% 100% 100% - - Investment
Limited Hong Kong holding
EELEE REgREREE/ 127 0 REER
ERAT £
RREFRERAR AR 2008 F#



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(BB ZT)

17 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 17 AMTB AR MR E (&)

Notes: 2
(i)  Holders of the non-voting deferred shares in CIRe and SINO-RE are not () RAPEEREREENERERETRONISE AEEE
entitled to share profits, receive notice of or attend or vote at any general BELEARMERN  WRELARNEAREEFAE
meeting of these companies. On the winding-up of these companies, the BEM - HERRBAFAGREG LRE - FELRA

holders of the non-voting deferred shares are not entitled to the distribution
of the net assets of these companies for the first $100 billion; the balance
of net assets, if any, over the first $100 billion shall be distributed among

RN BRERBEERONIIAEABRESELAR
% 100,000,000,000 t M EEFME  BBH
100,000,000,0007T &) & &= /F E #4258 (10 A) RIAR IR & i

the holders of the ordinary shares and non-voting distributed shares pari BRERSEETERMHFTEASENIFERERLOET
passu among themselves in proportion to their respective shareholdings. 7 B

(i) These companies are PRC limited companies. (i) BLERABEFEERD

(i) TPl was an associate of the Company before 15 July 2008. Details are set iy RZFTENFLATHEBR  KFREASARDRZHEE
out in note 43. Af e FREMFE43 -

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results for the year
or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To
give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the Directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.

EFRFAIARFRZHMBAR - DEFERA/E
ﬁ%@$$f§¥%§ﬁégﬁﬁ% CEEA AR E
TBREEZMBLAR EREEMMEARZ
R %%25@%% RITE -
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18 INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES 18 REtE N BN ER
The Group The Company
REE ¥ NN

2008 2007 2008 2007

$°000 $'000 $°000 $'000

FT FT FT For

Unlisted shares, at cost FEEMEG - KA — — 6,937 580,474

Share of net assets Frih & EFE 134,382 428,065 = —

Goodwill RS - 102,192 - —
Amounts due from fﬂ& RN

associates FIE — 179 - —

134,382 530,436 6,937 580,474

On 15 July 2008, the Group contributed additional capital of
RMB265,460,000 (approximately HK$303,381,000) into TPI. Since
then, the Group’s equity interest in TPI has increased from 40.025%
to 50.05%. Particulars of the transaction related to the acquisition
of an additional interest of 10.025% of TPI are set out in note 43.
The loss of TPI shared by the Group up to the date of its ceasing to
be associate of the Group amounted to $113,252,000. The goodwill
associated with acquisition of TPl in previous years, amounting to
$102,192,000 was reclassified to goodwill as disclosed in note 16.

China Insurance International Holdings Company Limited

R-ZBENE+ATER  KREEBRATRR
1#E A R 265,460,0007T (4978 303,381,000
J0) o Ut AREEN KR 2 #25H40.025%
b’%ISO 05% - BB AKX FREEIN0.025%
B2 SHBRAM T - EERAFRBEL
BAREEZBEDNR AL - $¢%F’Ef£ﬁl§ﬂ%
/113,252,0007T ° A& B E A F E B A KRR
ZEE . BHEER102,192,0007T © WK FE 165
BE WETH>EABE -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LB #3R)

18 INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

18 REFE NAIMNER (#)

The following list contains details of the Company’s principal
associates, all of which are unlisted corporate entities:

TREINARANEER &
ERNREHMHAIELTLEER

NAEREE - % EH

Proportion of
ownership interest
REEEAEAM
Place of
incorporation Particulars
Form of and of issued Group's Held
Name of business operation and paid effective by the Held by Principal
associates structure HREL up capital interest Company subsidiaries activity
EENEET EBERYA REEnY BREARYERANFE AEENERESR Ry EHEAARE IERE
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
The Tai Ping Incorporated PRC - R\B - 40.025% - 40.025% - - Property
Insurance 1,300,000,000 and
Company, casualty
Limited insurance
(Notes (i &ii)
ATRRERLA e hE - AE# HERR
(i &) 1,400,000,0007
CMT Limited Cayman US§11,131,987 US$9,586,738 22.54% 22.18% - - 22.18% 22.18% Investment
ChinaValue partnership Islands/ holding
Capital Hong Kong
Partners, L.P. ERE%LE 285/ ILI987XT 9,686,738 1T REsk
i
CMT Incorporated Hong Kong $1,000 $1,000 46% 46% - - 46% 46% Advisory
ChinaValue services
Capital EAfiA B 1,007 1,000 EE
Advisors
Limited
Huatai Incorporated PRC RMB R\B 25% 26% 25% 25% - - Insurance
Insurance 30,000,000 30,000,000 agency and
Agency & consultancy
Consultant
Service Limited
(Note (i)
ERRBALERAT  ERAT HE N ARE RERE
30,000,000 30,000,000 REM
Notes: it
(i) TPl become a subsidiary of the Company since 15 July 2008. Details are () RZZZN\FEA+HARE  KFREBKBARRZH
set out in note 43. BAmE e FFRME4S -
(i)  These companies are PRC limited companies. (i) LERRRHRTFBEEFRRA

ERAFIIARRZBERR  HNEZGRAR/HE
AEEAFEXEEERRE  IBRAEHE
TBREEZHENE c EREHEMPERRZ
BR - EZERRBBNIUE -

The above table lists the associates of the Group which, in the opinion
of the directors of the Company, principally affected the results of
the year or form a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group.
To give details of other associates would, in the opinion of the directors
of the Company, result in particulars of excessive length.
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18 INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

18 REEE RAINER (4)

Summary of financial information on associates BEARNHBEERBRE
Assets Liabilities Equity Revenues (Loss)/profit
gE =4 REEE Wi (F7)EF
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $°000
T Fir Fir Fr Fr
2008 2008
100 per cent BAZ—H 678,142 87,596 590,546 113,529 (14,878)
Group’s effective interest AEENENES 156,594 22,212 134,382 30,419 (2,596)
2007 2007
100 per cent BAZ—8 4,797,905 3,475,629 1,322,276 3,598,419 (146,830
Group'’s effective interest AEBEMA R ER 1,786,436 1,358,371 428,065 1,428,002 (57,760)
19 INVESTMENTS IN DEBT AND EQUITY 19 EBEERAZFHRRE
SECURITIES
(a) The Group (@) A&E
2008 2007
$°000 $'000
FT For
Held-to-maturity (Note (i)): BEZIHEHA (E‘I(/)) :
— Debt securities BEES 21,004,147 1,019,074
Available-for-sale (Note (ii)): HE (Ef(i/)) :
— Debt securities — EEF 26,003,951 25,947,544
— Direct equity securities — BEERAEES 1,510,722 5,243,168
— Equity investment funds - HXZM“EE% 2,711,892 2.220,712
— Composite investment funds —EREES 38,182 51,378
30,264,747 33,462,802
Designated at fair value through BERBBER
profit or loss (Note (iii)): LA&BQQ’A)’*L &1 (s (i)
— Debt securities B ES 854,187 523,905
— Direct equity securities — BEERAE 110,990 1,757,284
— Equity investment funds — BAREEES 2,411,808 3,394,244
— Composite investment funds —REEREES 52,181 88,570
3,429,166 5,764,003
Loans and receivables (Note (iv)): BER Kk EWFKIE ()
— Debt securities — BEBEH 2,165,806 256,306
Total wE 56,863,866 40,502,185

China Insurance International Holdings Company Limited

Annual Report 2008




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e IEHRRMEE @)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(BB ZT)
19 INVESTMENTS IN DEBT AND EQUITY 19 ERRBABHRE (4)
SECURITIES (Continued)
(a) The Group (Continued) (@) &%= (&)
Central Banks
governments and other
and central Public financial
banks sector institutions Corporate
BREFK entities MITREAM entities Others Total

RREST  AHEE  SRBE  LXER Hith b
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
T T Fr Fr T Fr

()  Held-to-maturity ) HEEIHA
At 31 December 2008 RZZENE
t-A=t-H
Listed in Hong Kong th— %4 - - 111,290 - - 111,290
Listed outside Hong Kong IH—BERUME 49,119 43,317 877,097 1,251,297 10,995 2,231,825
Unlisted ¥ 9,029,771 7,656 5,758,455 3,865,150 - 18,661,032
9,078,890 50,973 6,746,842 5,116,447 10,995 21,004,147
Fair value of securities BENAEBE 9,126,611 53,121 6,724,229 5,121,505 12,691 21,038,157
Market value of listed securities THEEHE 50,155 45,176 957,395 1,255,753 12,691 2,321,170
At 31 December 2007 RZZETLE
+-F=+-8
Listed outside Hong Kong FH-EENME 52,378 85208 120592 394243 12349 664,860
Unlisted FEM 71,180 7,666 252,022 23,346 - 354,214
123,558 92,964 372,614 417,589 12,349 1,019,074
Fair value of securities EHAREE 142,385 96,312 381,134 431,633 14,195 1,065,659
Market value of listed securities TmEHFTE 54,699 87,843 123,264 408,167 14,195 688,168
The held-to-maturity debt securities include an amount of BHREZIHBNEREFBEEEA
$1,330,641,000 (2007: $300,815,000) which is maturing within 1,330,641,0007T (ZZZ+4 : 300,815,000
one year. None of the securities are past due or impaired. T MEBES - BRR—FRNEE - BREE

H B ESORE -
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19 INVESTMENTS IN DEBT AND EQUITY

SECURITIES (Continued)

19 BEHEEBRAZTEHRE (©)

232

(a) The Group (Continued)

(@) A%@E (&)

Central Banks
governments and other
and central Public financial
banks sector institutions Corporate
PREFR  entiies |ITREM  entites  Others Total
RRET  AHREE  SEKE LXEE 2t A
$000  $000  §000  $000  $000  $000
Fr Fr Fr T Fr Fr
(i) Available-for-sale e
At 31 December 2008 RZZENEF
+=ZA=+-A
Listed debt securities IHERES
— in Hong Kong -BB 42,145 - 46,836 15,428 - 104,409
— outside Hong Kong - EC\L Dot & 6,593,739 - 612,648 3,898,749 — 11,105,136
Listed direct equity securities ITHEERTES
— in Hong Kong -&8 - - 203,862 208,541 4,180 416,583
— outside Hong Kong -BEUME - - 3,994 1,071,666 — 1,075,660
Listed equity investment funds FTRAREES
outside Hong Kong EAMMEE - - - 456,498 — 456,498
Listed composite investment IHGEREES
funds outside Hong Kong ERUNMEE - - - 38,182 - 38,182
Unlisted debt securities FEHEBES 4,180,547 — 3,329,487 7,284,372 — 14,794,406
Unlisted direct equity securities FLTEHERKES - - - 18,479 - 18,479
Unlisted equity investment funds EHEAREES - - - 2,255,394 — 2,255,394
10,816,431 - 4,196,827 15,247,309 4,180 30,264,747
Fair value of securities EEONEERE 10,816,431 — 4,196,827 15,247,309 4,180 30,264,747
Market value of listed securities THESETE 6,635,884 - 867,340 5,689,064 4180 13,196,468
Current =5 10,816,431 — 4,196,827 15,247,309 4,180 30,264,747
Non-current FEH - - - - - -
10,816,431 — 4,196,827 15,247,309 4,180 30,264,747
At 31 December 2007 RZZETLE
+ZA=+—-H
Listed debt securities ITHEBES
— in Hong Kong - &5 40,020 - 15,697 - - 55,717
— outside Hong Kong - FAENIMLE 13,345,430 7,759 3,129,686 8,662,685 17,637 25,163,197
Listed direct equity securities THEERAES
— in Hong Kong -&8 639 5205 552,682 396,537 - 955,063
— outside Hong Kong - BEUIMEE - - 17,375 4,252,170 — 4,269,545
Listed equity investment funds TRAREES
outside Hong Kong BRNIMEE - - - 627,363 - 627,363
Listed composite investment tHGAREES
funds outside Hong Kong BENIMLE - - - 51,378 - 51,378
Unlisted debt securities FLTERES - - 466522 262,108 - 7286030
Unlisted direct equity securities FLTERRAES - - - 18,560 - 18,560
Unlisted equity investment funds FETRAREES - - - 1,503,349 — 1,593,349
13,386,089 12,964 4,181,962 15,864,150 17,637 33,462,802
Fair value of securities EARDAEBE 13,386,089 12,964 4,181,962 15,864,150 17,637 33,462,802
Market value of listed securities TmEHFTE 13,386,089 12,964 3,715,440 13,990,133 17,637 31,122,263
Current 5 13,386,089 12,964 4,181,962 15,864,150 17,637 33,462,802
Non-current FEH - - - - - -
13,386,089 12,964 4,181,962 15,864,150 17,637 33,462,802
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e R EE @)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(BB ZT)

19 INVESTMENTS IN DEBT AND EQUITY

SECURITIES (Continued)

19 BEHEEBRAZTEHRE (©)

(a) The Group (Continued) (a) &~&EBE (&)
Central Banks
governments and other
and central Public financial
banks sector institutions Corporate
R RBA R entities MITREAM entities Others Total
RRET  AHEE  SEEE LEBB 2t aEm
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
F Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr
(i) Designated at fair value (i) EEABBARLRQ
through profit or loss AREE
At 31 December 2008 RZZENE
+=ZA=+-H
Listed debt securities IHERES
— in Hong Kong -58 - - - 38,836 - 38,836
— outside Hong Kong - EBLMLE 78,582 - 49779 87,805 - 216,166
Listed direct equity securities IHEEREES
— in Hong Kong -58 - - 6,719 11,404 — 18,123
— outside Hong Kong -BFBUME - - 22,458 70,409 - 92,867
Listed equity investment funds IThEaREES
outside Hong Kong EBLNMEE - - - 244,702 - 244,702
Listed composite investment IHGRERERS
funds outside Hong Kong EEUME - - - 28,859 - 28,859
Unlisted debt securities FLTEBRES 549,478 - 49,707 - = 599,185
Unlisted equity investment funds FETRARERS - - - 2,167,106 — 2,167,106
Unlisted composite investment funds FETRARERES - - 23,322 - - 23,322
628,060 - 151,985 2,649,121 — 3,429,166
Fair value of securities BEONEE 628,060 - 151,985 2,649,121 — 3,429,166
Market value of listed securities THESETE 78,582 - 78,956 482,015 = 639,553
Current &} 628,060 — 151,085 2,649,121 — 3,429,166
Non-current FEH - - - - - -
628,060 - 151,985 2,649,121 — 3,429,166
HIRBEIRIZERARAR 2008 iR
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19 INVESTMENTS IN DEBT AND EQUITY

SECURITIES (Continued)

19 BEHEEBRAZTEHRE (©)

234

(a) The Group (Continued)

(@) A%@E (&)

Central Banks
governments and other
and central Public financial
banks sector institutions  Corporate
RREF R entities  $R7TRE entities Others Total
mRBRT  AHEE  SREE  OCEER Hit e
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $000 $'000
Fr Fir Fr Fr Fir Fr
(iii) Designated at fair value (i) EEABBEZURK
through profit or loss ARER(B)
(continued)
At 31 December 2007 e S a3
+ ZR=+—-8
Listed debt securities mEBES
outside Hong Kong BEENMEER 207,730 — 105,958 105,148 — 418,836
Listed direct equity securities THERRAES
— in Hong Kong -5 - - 17,862 31,547 - 49,409
— outside Hong Kong - AN E - - 33,523 1,674,352 — 1,707,875
Listed equity investment funds TTRAREES
outside Hong Kong %S ELME - —  B3457 2,430,847 — 2,484,304
Listed composite investment MEEREES
funds outside Hong Kong %.5/% LA - - 14,677 39,463 - 54,140
Unlisted debt securities ELmEBES - - 84,488 20,581 - 105,069
Unlisted equity investment funds FETRAREES - - 43964 865,976 — 909,940
Unlisted composite investment funds FEMGAREES - - 34,430 - - 34,430
207,730 — 388359 5,167,914 — 5764008
Fair value of securities EARDAEBE 207,730 - 388359 5,167,914 — 5,764,003
Market value of listed securities IWEFmE 207,730 - 225,477 4,281,357 — 4,714,564
Current =F 207,730 — 388359 5,167,914 — 5764008
Non-current FEH - - - - - -
207,730 — 388,359 5,167,914 — 5,764,003
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

MEMEHRRMETE @)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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19 INVESTMENTS IN DEBT AND EQUITY

SECURITIES (Continued)

19 BEHEEBRAZTEHRE (©)

(a) The Group (Continued)

(@) A%@E (&)

Central Banks
governments and other
and central Public financial
banks sector institutions Corporate
R R entities SRITREAM entities Others Total
RRFT  AHEE SREE L¥EER Hity B
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fr F FT Fr FT FT
(iv) Loans and receivables (iv) EFREWFE
At 31 December 2008 RZZENEF
+ZB=+-H
Unlisted debt securities F EmERE - - — 2,165,806 — 2,165,806
Fair value of securities HEEOAEE - - - 2,077,739 — 2,077,739
Current 28 - - - - - -
Non-current E ] - - — 2,165,806 — 2,165,806
- - - 2,165,806 — 2,165,806
At 31 December 2007 RZEELE
+=ZA=+—8
Unlisted debt securities FLEMBEBES - - — 256,306 - 256,306
Fair value of securities BEHELNEE - - — 218,888 — 218,888
Current =4 - - - - - -
Non-current FEH - - — 256,306 — 256,306
- - - 256,306 - 256,306
HIRBEIRIZERARAR 2008 iR
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19 INVESTMENTS IN DEBT AND EQUITY
SECURITIES (Continued)

19 BEHEEBRAZTEHRE (©)

(b) The Company (b) &xAF
2008 2007
$°000 $’000
Frr For
Available-for-sale (note(i)): A E ()
— Debt securities — EBESH 402,643 174,330
— Direct equity securities — BEBERAES 169,182 116,515
571,825 290,845
(i) Available-for-sale (i) AHEE
Listed debt securities FTHEBES

— in Hong Kong — B 15,428 —
— outside Hong Kong — BB NN E 157,335 39,004

Listed direct equity securities T EERAE?
in Hong Kong BB 169,182 116,515
Unlisted debt securities ELEMESES 229,880 135,326
571,825 290,845
Fair value of securities BHEAAEE 571,825 290,845
Market value of listed securities EHESEME 341,945 155,519
Current & 5 571,825 290,845
Non-current IEE - —
571,825 290,845

20 AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) GROUP COMPANIES

20 B () SER QA FE

236

(a) Due from group companies

(a) BWEBEAQANRE

The Group The Company
RE AT
2008 2007 2008 2007
$°000 $'000 $°000 $'000
Fr Fr Fr For
Amount due from the i3l = $ 32l NCIE ]
ultimate holding company 3,083 993 65 11
Amount due from the W EERERQGRIE
immediate holding
company 157 9 = -
Amounts due from fellow FEUR R XM B A B 5RE
subsidiaries 8,215 16,486 3,216 —
Amounts due from FE U B /BB A R 3B
subsidiaries - — 456,370 443,640
11,455 17,488 459,651 443,651
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e IEHRRMEE @)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(BB ZT)

20 AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) GROUP COMPANIES 20 FEW  (FE{H) EB IR A B FIE (&)

(Continued)
(b) Due to group companies (b) EREBERAQARE
The Group The Company
rEE RAT
2008 2007 2008 2007
$°000 $°000 $’000 $°000
Fr For Fr Fr
Amount due to the FEN AR IR A B 5RIE
ultimate holding company 341 26 — —
Amount due to the ENEEERAGNRIE
immediate holding
company 151 20 4 —
Amounts due to fellow FERTR R M B Q& 58
subsidiaries - — - —
Amount due to subsidiaries JE < B B A B RRIR — — 1,592,637 1,363,388
492 46 1,592,641 1,363,388
Included in the amount due to subsidiaries is $1,356,813,000 FEAT BT B A R 5K T8 & H £351,356,813,000
(2007: $1,363,388,000), which is unsecured, repayable after T (ZZEZ+4F ¢ 1,363,388,0007T) A& K
more than one year and bears interest at a rate of 6.12% (2007: foRBE-FEREEER YUERTEME
6.03%). 6.12%5T B (ZZE T+ F : 6.03%) ©
Other amounts due from/(to) group companies are unsecured, Habpedk /() £ @A A R R IEY £
interest free and repayable on demand. B WERBREERE -
21 INSURANCE DEBTORS 21 REBEFEWERMK
The Group
AEH
2008 2007
$°000 $’000
Fr For
Amounts due from insurance ERREER R
customers and suppliers H JE 78 5B 956,282 552,844
Less: allowance for doubtful debts B RIBEREM (ML)
(Note (b)) (23,937) (20,583)
932,345 532,261
Deposits retained by cedants DRARENIEZS 93,877 84,279
1,026,222 616,540
All of the insurance debtors are expected to be recovered within B RBRE P W ERRTEHE —F A A LA -
one year.
Amounts due from insurance customers and suppliers include amounts FEWR b2 B P R i FE 78 SR T8 B 15 FE UL R R B
due from fellow subsidiaries of $12,887,000 (2007: $15,904,000) A R)FRIE12,887,0007T (ZZEZ+H4F : 15,904,000
which are insurance related in nature. ) FRREERBRME -

FREBZERER AT 2008 F ik 237
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e IEHRRMEE @)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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21 INSURANCE DEBTORS (Continued) 21 REEEFEWER (&)

(a) BRER D AT

(a) Ageing analysis

ABEERERRENEWRRE P MR
ERIE - HEERAMAOT

The following is an ageing analysis of the amounts due from insurance
customers and suppliers that are not individually considered to be

impaired:
The Group
wE

2008 2007
$°000 $’000
FT For
Not yet due KB HA 365,262 270,056
Current 5B 5 8 430,839 233,831

More than 3 months but BB=@MAEIR+=A
less than 12 months 97,594 25,144
More than 12 months BiE+ =& A 38,650 3,230
932,345 532,261

AR TP R ERE 2 R RBEE
ZHRBETDEEEYEEBNLHEZ —RIE
FAR -

Amounts due from insurance customers and suppliers that were
neither past due nor impaired relate to a wide range of customers
for whom there was no recent history of default.

BEB R EA23,937,0007T (2007
$20,583,0007T) ° HMIE RSB S HATT
FREEL  BELEEDRKE -

The amount of impaired debts are $23,937,000 (2007: $20,583,000).
We have taken various actions to recover the debts, but these
debts have not been recovered.

238

(b) Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts (b) RIFREHEEE
The Group
&

2008 2007
$°000 $’000
Fr Fir
At 1 January ®n—A—H 20,583 10,432
Impairment losses recognized ERRBEER 3,354 10,151
At 31 December WR+—A=+—8” 23,937 20,583

China Insurance International Holdings Company Limited
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e IEHRRMEE @)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(BB ZT)

22 REINSURERS’ SHARE OF INSURANCE
CONTRACT PROVISIONS

22 PRABEERBENER

The reinsurers’ share of insurance contract provisions represents
the reinsurers’ share of life insurance funds, unearned premium
provisions and provision for outstanding claims arising from the life
insurance, reinsurance and property casualty insurance businesses.

ARARBERRANEFAE  RXBRR
AARBABRR - BRELYERREHE
EMBRETERS  ANBETERSRA
REERE RO B -

The Group
A EE
2008 2007
$°000 $’000
F For
Life insurance funds (Note 27) ERETERS (Mit27) 7,780 3,386
Unearned premium provisions (Note 28) REIBE T EHES (FF28) 493,227 101,350
Provision for outstanding claims (Note 29) R REEFEE (ff:729) 920,955 272,004
1,421,962 376,740
23 OTHER DEBTORS 23 Hi EU R
The Group The Company
AEE ARR
2008 2007 2008 2007
$°000 $’000 $°000 $’000
F For Fr For
Other debtors, deposits HmpEWER - e
and prepayments SEINEN 1,699,626 1,155,133 11,591 51,167
Less: allowance W RIBEREM ()
for doubtful debts (Note (a)) (8,668) — - —
1,690,958 1,155,133 11,591 51,167
Loans and advances BERRBI (b))
(Note (b)) 380,541 276,219 = —
2,071,499 1,431,352 11,591 51,167
HREFERARAR 2008 £k | 239
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e IEHRRMEE @)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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23

OTHER DEBTORS (continued)

23

H Ath B WR R (4)

(@) Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts:

(a) REREFERD :

The Group
rE

2008 2007
$°000 $’000
Fr Fr
At 1 January m—A—H - —
Impairment losses recognized ERRREER 8,668 —
At 31 December wR+=ZA=+—H 8,668 —

The amount of impaired debts are $8,668,000 (2007: nil). We
have taken various actions to recover the debts, but these debts
have not yet been recovered.

Loans and advances are repayable with the following terms:

(b)

BB 58,668,0007T (- TZT A4 : £) -
BAERDNZESENTHKEER - 8
ZEBRBDARKE -

(b) ERRBRNERPUT ¢

240

2008 2007 Interest  Repayment
$°000 $°000 rate term
Fr For H = & 5K ER
Secured loans: BEEFIRIBE R -
— to policyholders —HTREFEA 380,541 276,219 4.5 — 4.7% Less than
6 months
NE A A
There was no amount due but unpaid, nor any provision made RZEZELFR_ZETENF+_A=1+—
against the principal amount or interest on these loans as of 31 H - RBEEIBERZN  HwEEEMY
December 2007 and 2008. BEEERN RS BAE LT #E -
24 PLEDGED DEPOSITS AT BANKS 24 SEARITEX
The deposits at banks of $102,453,000 (2007: $97,417,000) are RITFERF — £ AE102,453,000 L (ZEE+
pledged to banks to secure letters of credit issued on behalf of the F 1 97,417,00070) BRI FRITIEARITHRE
Group. AEBBRLEARREHRESE -
All of the pledged deposits at banks are expected to be settled within FIEEERBRTFRBEFE—FANZN
one year.
25 STATUTORY DEPOSITS 25 EFERFX
Certain subsidiaries of the Group have placed $975,180,000 (2007: AEEBETHBARRETRREEBRBIZRS
$640,764,000) with banks as capital guarantee funds, pursuant to HWER BE975,180,000T (Z EE+ 4F
the relevant PRC insurance rules and regulations. The funds can 640,764,0007T) KR IBFRIRIT - IEAE KR

China Insurance International Holdings Company Limited

only be used with the prior approval of the relevant authorities in the
event that the PRC subsidiaries cannot meet the statutory solvency
requirements or go into liquidation.

In addition, a subsidiary of the Group has pledged a deposit of
$20,150,000 (2007: $12,475,000) registered in favour of the Monetary
Authority of Singapore pursuant to section 14A of the Singapore
Insurance Act.

AREE - REFRARAUAEZMB AR TEED
EEEMNEE N BERFFRE - WA EBUT
ERPIHLE - TAEMA -

BEON - AN 5 B — R BB A R AR BT AN R B 5
BIE14AR EHF B —F A#20,150,0007T (= F
T 12,475,00070) IRIFFER - BRRAA
FMEeRMERR -
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MEMEHRRMETE @)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(BB ZT)

26 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 26 RERMEZEY
The Group The Company
KE KN F]
2008 2007 2008 2007
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
FT FT FT Fr
Deposits with banks and other RE|HH PR ={EA K
financial institutions with SRIT R H b B IS e iR
original maturity less than T
three months 2,840,969 2,623,848 250,141 609,722
Money market funds E¥mIEES 1,462,825 393,259 - —
Cash at bank and in hand RITREFRS 3,528,001 2,120,528 1,637 12,437
Cash and cash equivalents EEEABREBAEGRER
in the balance sheet and the NEBEeRREEEY
cash flow statement 7,831,795 5,137,635 251,778 622,159
27 LIFE INSURANCE FUNDS 2T ERERXTEESR
2008 2007
Reinsurers’ Reinsurers’
share share
Gross BRRE Net Gross BRE Net
aE  NRHRE FE BE  REHMHE FE
$°000 $°000 $°000 $000 $000 $000
Fr Fr Fr Fi Fir Fr
Balance as at 1 January R—B—B&s 38,529,656 (3,386) 38,526,270 24,406,372 (462) 24,405,910
Premiums written during the year FREARRE 21,207,791 (110,221) 21,097,570 16,245,249 (66,253) 16,178,996
Surrenders RIR (3,472,704) —  (3,472,704) (3,452,949 - (3,452,949)
Annuity and maturity payments FERIBWAR (102,865) - (102,865) (83,004) - (83,004)
Policy dividends REHL (120,510) - (120510 (71,041) - 7104
Other movements Ethg (5,765,061) 106,082  (5,658,979)  (786,010) 63,478 (722,532)
Exchange alignment g 2,510,906 (255) 2,510,651 2,271,039 (149) 2,270,890
Balance as at 31 December R+=—A=1+—-B#&#% 52,787,213 (7,780) 52,779,433 38,529,656 (3,386) 38,526,270

Key assumptions used in estimating the life insurance funds

The insurance contract provisions have been established based upon

the following key assumptions:

e Interest rates which vary by the life of contract;

FEERETEFSRANIERR

% ’KAA

o FIX

DORBHIERATIERRMMEL

BEAKERMmEE

e Mortality/morbidity rates based on the China Life table (2000-2003); e T ?/%"fr ERBETFEAASRBRELR
and ERERABE(ZETZEFE_TET=F)
§54

e |apse rates based on 100% of pricing assumptions.

o EEXBETFEMBHKIOO%TEH -

(R B

ZRRAMR AT 2008 Fi



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e IEHRRMEE @)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LUBE#ZIT)
27 LIFE INSURANCE FUNDS (Continued) 27T EREXTERE B)
Sensitivities of changes in key assumptions: TEBRREHNHRE
Impact on profit after
tax and total equity
HERHBEENR
BEZHSE
HK$’million
B&#T
2008
1% increase in interest rate FI 2= 38 hN1 % 245.35
10% decrease in mortality/morbidity rate TR/ BHEEBRL10% 15.79
2007
1% increase in interest rate FE AL IN1% 149.74
10% decrease in mortality/morbidity rate LR ERRE D 10% 12.42
During the year, there were no significant changes in the key RAFR - FESRETEFSHEANEER
assumptions used in estimating the life insurance funds. BOUWEENEY -
28 UNEARNED PREMIUM PROVISIONS 28 REWEEEES
2008 2007
Reinsurers’ Reinsurers’
share share
Gross BRRE Net Gross BRR Net
Y YN 7 k- k] BaE  RANE 8
$°000 $°000 $°000 $'000 $000 $'000
Fr Fr Fr Fr Fi Fr
Reinsurance (Note (i) BRK (7)) 613,320 (76,395 536,934 566,064 (62,890 503,174
Life insurance (Note (i) ABRB (i) 397,415  (46,236) 351,179 327,880 (38,460 289,400
Property and casualty BTERK (7 (i)
insurance (Note (i) 2,446,005  (370,596) 2,075,409 - - -
Balance as at 31 December Rt-A=+-B&#H 3,456,749  (493,227) 2,963,522 893924  (101,350) 792,574
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e IEHRRMEE @)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(BB ZT)

28 UNEARNED PREMIUM PROVISIONS (Continued)

28 KB HPETEHFES ®)

Notes: it
(i) Analysis of movement in the unearned premium provisions for the reinsurance i) BREEBORINPETCEBESEIHN:
business:
2008 2007
Reinsurers’ Reinsurers’
share share
Gross BRE Net Gross BRRE Net
B ARBE 3 B RAENE FE
$°000 $°000 $°000 $'000 $000 $'000
Fi Fr Fr Fr Fir Fir
Balance as at 1 January R—A—R&# 566,064 (62,890) 503,174 527,934 (52,873) 475,061
Premiums written during the year ENERRE 1,838,999  (270,337) 1,568,662 1,681,212 (211,150) 1,470,062
Premiums earned during the year FAEHENRE (1,791,734) 256,832 (1,534,902)  (1,643,082) 201,133 (1,441,949)
Balance as at 31 December R+t-A=+—-A%&% 613,329 (76,395) 536,934 566,064 (62,890) 503,174
(i) Analysis of movement in the unearned premium provisions for the life insurance (i) ABRBREBORINPETERSE LN
business:
2008 2007
Reinsurers’ Reinsurers’
share share
Gross BRE Net Gross BRRE Net
B ARBE 3 B RAENE FE
$°000 $°000 $°000 $000 $'000 $'000
Fi Fr Fr Fr Fir Fir
Balance as at 1 January R—A—A&# 327,860 (38,460) 289,400 325,034 (35,698) 289,336
Premiums written during the year FREARRE 21,207,791 (110,221) 21,097,570 16,245,249 (66,253) 16,178,996
Premiums earned during the year ERBRRRE (21,159,037) 104,880  (21,054,157) (16,265,298) 66,101  (16,199,197)
Exchange alignment ERRE 20,801 (2,435) 18,366 22,875 (2,610) 20,265
Balance as at 31 December RTZA=+—-REH 397,415 (46,236) 351,179 327,860 (38,460) 289,400
(i) Analysis of movement in the unearned premium provisions for the property (i) BERBEBORINPECEBGS DN :
and casualty insurance business:
2008 2007
Reinsurers’ Reinsurers’
share share
Gross BRR Net Gross BRE Net
Fak NEAGRE 8 EoE] RENE FE
$°000 $°000 $°000 $000 $°000 $'000
Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr
Balance as at 1 January R-B—A&# - - - - - -
Acquisition of subsidiary REA—HHBAF
R 2,430,084 (325,845) 2,104,239 - - -
Premiums written during the year FRARRE 1,949,904 (349,760) 1,600,144 - - -
Premiums earned during the year FRERDRE (1,924,754) 312,290  (1,612,464) - - -
Exchange alignment R AT (9,229) (7,281) (16,510) - - -
Balance as at 31 December RTZRA=+—-RHE&EH 2,446,005 (370,596) 2,075,409 - - -

REFZERER AR
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29 PROVISION FOR OUTSTANDING CLAIMS 29 ARORBEFRER
2008 2007
Reinsurers’ Reinsurers’
share share
Gross Bk Net Gross BiRR Net
AR NENH 2R g RAME FE
$°000 $°000 $°000 $000 $000 $000
Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr
Reinsurance (Note (i) BRE () 2,548,443 (336,683) 2,211,760 2,349,612 (260,608) 2,089,004
Life insurance (Note (ii)) )\ﬂﬂ (& (i) 268,338 (15,925) 252,413 147,320 (11,396) 135,924
Property and casualty insurance BTERR (£ (i)

(Note (iii)) 1,652,048 (568,347) 1,083,701 - — -
Balance as at 31 December RT-R=t-H&% 4,468,829 (920,955 3,547,874 2,496,932  (272,004) 2,224,928
Notes: o
(i) Analysis of movement in the provision for outstanding claims for the reinsurance i) BREEBHORRBEIEHEZLEHSN

business:
2008 2007
Reinsurers’ Reinsurers’
share share
Gross BRE Net Gross BRRE Net
am ARGBE 3 B RENE FE
$°000 $°000 $°000 $000 $000 $000
Fr Fr Fr Fr Fir Fir
Balance as at 1 January R—A—R&# 2,349,612 (260,608) 2,089,004 2,133,272 (300,589) 1,832,683
Claims paid during the year ERBRER (853,964) 88,959 (765,005)  (846,185) 107,282 (738,903)
Claims incurred during the year FERRE 1,052,795 (165,034) 887,761 1,062,525 (67,301) 995,024
Balance as at 31 December Rt-A=t-H%&#% 2,548,443 (336,683) 2,211,760 2,349,612 (260,608) 2,089,004
(i) Analysis of movement in the provision for outstanding claims for the life (i) AFRBEBORREREEE DN
insurance business:
2008 2007
Reinsurers’ Reinsurers’
share share
Gross BRR Net Gross BRR Net
am ARBE 3 B AENE FE
$°000 $°000 $°000 $000 $'000 $'000
Fr Fr Fr Fr Fir Fir
Balance as at 1 January w—A—A f*?‘? 147,320 (11,396) 135,924 52,894 (2,285) 50,609
Claims paid during the year ERE # 53 (485,429) (155  (485,584)  (421,081) 39,520 (381,561)
Claims incurred during the year FRER 596,118 (3,628) 592,490 508,046 (48,109) 459,937
Exchange alignment @Eﬁ% 10,329 (746) 9,583 7,461 (522) 6,939
Balance as at 31 December RTZA=+—-RE&EH 268,338 (15,925) 252,413 147,320 (11,396) 135,924
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e IEHRRMEE @)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LUBE#ZIT)
29 PROVISION FOR OUTSTANDING CLAIMS 29 RRBREME &)
(Continued)
(i) Analysis of movement in the provision for outstanding claims for the property (iy MERBEBORREREFEZ LN :

and casualty insurance business:

2008 2007
Reinsurers’ Reinsurers’
share share
Gross BRE Net Gross BRE Net
ok DNEHE FH Fok NGIE 8
$°000 $°000 $°000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr
Balance as at 1 January R—A—-B&&# - - - - - -
Acquisition of subsidiary REA—FHBLABER 1,550,105 (562,503) 987,602 - - -
Claims paid during the year FREFHER (1,192,865) 223,093 (969,772 - -
Claims incurred during the year FRRE 1,307,346 (235,268) 1,072,078 - - -
Exchange alignment ERAR (12,538) 6,331 (6,207) - - -
Balance as at 31 December R+=—A=Z+—B#&# 1,652,048 (568,347) 1,083,701 - - —
30 INVESTMENT CONTRACT LIABILITIES 30 REGHNAE
The Group
rE
2008 2007
$°000 $’000
FT Fr
Balance as at 1 January R—A—B&&% 157,421 115,681
Premiums written during the year FRERRE 230,536 58,584
Surrenders and withdrawals BRRRER (152,066) (16,844)
Balance as at 31 December R+-_A=+—B#%&% 235,891 157,421
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e IEHRRMEE @)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(BB ZT)

31 INCOME TAX IN THE BALANCE SHEET

31 EERBRVAEH

246

(a) Current taxation in the balance sheet represents:

() KEEEBRMTNWEMHIES

The Group The Company
& AT
2008 2007 2008 2007
$°000 $°000 $’000 $°000
Fr Fr Fr For
Provision for Hong Kong REEEBNEHER
Profits Tax for the year 7,576 64,091 — 10,893
Provisional Hong Kong EE SR
Profits Tax paid (1,640) (33,223) - —
5,936 30,868 — 10,893
Balance of Hong Kong BRAEFERGHES
Profits Tax provision ") 4 f4h
relating to prior years 36,551 54,069 - —
Taxation outside Hong Kong BB BIE 15,119 1,062 - -
57,606 85,999 - 10,893
Amount of taxation payable FEHE—FUEA AN
expected to be settled HEN T
after more than 1 year - — - —
Net tax recoverable ERAREEBER
recognized in the # A] Uy [0 7 IR BR
balance sheet (1,640) — - —
Net current taxation ERAREEBER
recognized in the K g B IEF R
balance sheet 59,246 85,999 - 10,893
57,606 85,999 - 10,893
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

MEMEHRRMETE @)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(BB ZT)

31 INCOME TAX IN THE BALANCE SHEET (Continued) 31 EEEBRNAER ©®

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognized: (b) ERAELERBEERERE
The Group RE
The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) (prior to the CHRAEEBBERIERNELEHIEELE
offsetting of balances within the same taxation jurisdiction) /(8 E) (BAFA — B @ 2 AR AT
recognized in the consolidated balance sheet and the movements WEERANFEMNEESFEROT ¢
during the year were as follows:
Fair
value Securities
adjustment designated at
arising  Fairvalue  fair value
Difference in from  adjustment through
depreciation business  of available- profit Provision
allowances combination for-sale or loss Unused Life for
andrelated Revaluation — EBEff  securities EEA tax  insurance outstanding
Deferred tax depreciation of malg  THHE  BBER losses funds claims
arising BT SEENE  properties AR BEDR URBLA FBE  ERELT  AREX Others Total
from: RERE MER  WEER  EERE  EBERE  EERF  HEFE Rt %l Bt an
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $000 $'000 $'000
A 2 T - T 2 T . TS - T 2 TS o A .
At 1 January 2008 RZBENE
-A-H 11,083 (384) - (278,108) (270,337) 1,211 (413,120) 1,539 1,733 (946,383)
(Charged)/credited REEBER
to consolidated i) /5%
income statement (8,739) (18) - 144 283,812 8,654 (193,558) 6,464 (1,821) 94,938
Charged to reserves REEAR - - - 303,201 - - - - = 303,201
Arising on acquisiton A~
of subsidiary WEARE
ER - - (13,870) - - - - - = (13,870)
Exchange difference ERFE 492 - - (16,904) (13,562) - (27,671) 167 85 (57,393)
At31 December 2008 ~ W=-ZENE
+-fA=t-8 2,836 @0 (13870) 8,333 87) 9865  (634,349) 8170 @) (619,507)
At 1 January 2007 RZE5tE
-A-A 14,983 (322) ~ BIT45Y) (190971) 268,728 (237,165 1,305 (2963 (663,858)
(Charged)/credited REABER
to consolidated (i) /%
income statement (4,640) (62) - - (62,835) (275,645) (152,344) 134 4714 (490,678)
Charged to reserves REBAR - - - 275,584 - - - - - 275,584
Exchange difference ERAE 740 - - (36,239) (16,531) 8,128 (23,611) 100 (18) (67,431)
At 31 December 2007 RZTELE
+-A=+-8 11,083 (384) ~ o pisi0s  (270.337) 111 [#13120) 1,539 1733 (046,383)
2008 2007
$°000 $’000
Fr For
Net deferred tax asset recognized in  ERREGAEEBBERNIE
the consolidated balance sheet MIBEEFHE 22,353 2,648
Net deferred tax liability recognized in ERERRGEAEEBBERMEL
the consolidated balance sheet HEAEFR (641,860) (949,031)
(619,507) (946,383)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

MEMEHRRMETE @)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(BB ZT)

31 INCOME TAX IN THE BALANCE SHEET (Continued) 31 EEEBRNAER ©®

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognized: (Continued) (b) ERRELEHEEERERE @ (&)
The Company b
The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognized REEABRERNELCHE (BE) A
in the balance sheet and the movements during the year were BERNHEERAFENEHEROT :
as follows:
Fair value
adjustment
of available-
for-sale
securities
AHEEEES
Deferred tax arising from: EEHERE : ARAEEAE
$’000
Fr
At 1 January 2008 R-Z=EENFE—HA—H 157
Charged to reserves AEEANER (5,706)
At 31 December 2008 R-ZZEENF+ZA=+—H (5,549)
At 1 January 2007 RZZEZEELF—H—H 4,406
Charged to reserves B AR (4,249)
At 31 December 2007 RZEE+F+_A=+—H 157

(c) Deferred tax assets not recognized (c) RERWELERBEE

At 31 December 2008, the Group did not recognize deferred RZZEZENF+ZA=+—H  XxEERXR
tax assets in respect of certain tax losses of $1,015,878,000 BEHER1,015,878,000L (ZEZ L F

(2007: $193,044,000). Of this amount, the total tax loss of 193,044,0007T) 2 Fi 18 &5 18 M 2 A e IR REHY
$832,597,000 (2007: $183,783,000) can be carried forward up BEE - REZEERN + 832,597,0007T (=
to five years after the year in which the loss was originated to TE 4 1 183,783,0007T) Fi A E5 1B A FE 7]
offset future taxable profits, while the remaining tax losses do NEEEEEBEFRS  BETZRAF
not expire under current tax legislation. il T’Eﬁ iﬁﬂiXZFﬁﬁﬂ }Fﬁ ﬁ'ﬁﬁ?ﬂ’ﬁ)ﬁ'ﬂlﬁ
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e IEHRRMEE @)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(BB ZT)

32 INTEREST-BEARING NOTES 32 ENERE
The Group
rEE
2008 2007
$°000 $'000
F 7 FT
USD notes due 2013 (Note (a)) R -=FHHNETRE (it@) 1,350,576 1,358,467
RMB subordinated notes due 2013 WZZ— = F 3|
(Note (b)) MARBRBERE (7F(b)) 1,700,895 1,601,910
RMB subordinated notes due 2018 R ZE— )\ F 55
(Note (c)) HARBERBEERE (7F(c) 2,324,557 —
5,376,028 2,960,377

Fair value of interest-bearing notes ENEEBAREE 5,363,591 2,962,015

Notes: it

(@)  On 12 November 2003, a subsidiary of the Group issued 5.8% notes for (8 R-TT=F+—A+=8 AEEHEHF-RHEBLIA
the principal amount of US$175,000,000 at a discount. The notes are LAHTRE(E 54T T A£{E(E 175,000,000 705.8% ) Z i °
listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited and will be EREFMEEFZGA LD AR T —=ZF+
redeemed on 12 November 2013 at their principal amount. Interest on the —A+T-BEE - ZEFEFEFREPRIM -
notes is payable semi-annually in arrears.
The notes may be redeemed by the subsidiary, at its option, at any time at M-_EE=F+-—AZAFTARST I ZENGKE—EBE
par plus accrued interest, in the event of certain tax changes as described RER|AXFIREGHMELBRERSEE 2K - B
under “Conditions of the Notes — Redemption and Purchase” in the offering AREREEAREAZEEN EETF S REERED -
circular dated 3 November 2003.
The notes issued are unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed by the ZHEHARAIREEGEGRT A MEOER -
Company.

(b) On 23 October 2005, TPL, a subsidiary of the Group issued 4.45% (b) RZTTRAFTAZF+=A KRFAF ZEE-FRK
subordinated notes at par for the principal amount of RMB1,500,000,000. BAF - UEMEEEIT T A& E(E1,500,000,0007T A
The notes will be redeemed on 30 November 2013 and cannot be repaid RUE445%BHRBER - BEER T —=F+—A=
on demand before then. Interest on the notes is payable annually in arrears. T HEE RNZ BB ER ZRAEEF

RERZN -

The notes issued are free of any collateral and guarantee. EHRWEEAETRRER -

(c) During September and December 2008, TPL and TPI, subsidiaries of the () RZZZNFANARTZA KFAZRKTFRE - K

Group issued 6.3% subordinated notes at par for the principal amount of
RMB1,350,000,000 and RMB700,000,000, respectively. The notes will mature
in September and October 2018 but the notes can be redeemed at the
fifth anniversary year of the issue date. Interest on the notes is payable
annually in arrears.

The notes issued by TPL are free of any collateral and guarantee. The
notes issued by TPI are free of any collateral but are unconditionally and
irrevocably guaranteed by CIHC.

REZHBRAASHINEAERTIASEE
1,350,000,0007T A R # }2700,000,0007C A R #6.3%#)
RBRE - BEEAFINR - N\FLARTAEE
BEREANRETENERRFEEL - REMNSFFR
FARZA o

RFEABBTZEEL BB R RER - KFRER
BT ZRRYBEMERRE AP RERRREGER
TR AR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e IEHRRMEE @)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(BB ZT)

33 INSURANCE CREDITORS

33 REEFEFEMERR

The Group
KE
2008 2007
$°000 $’000
Frr For
Amounts due to insurance customers ERREER R

and suppliers e P FRIB 185,198 53,312
Amounts due to insurance intermediaries  JEfHR R AP BB 57,834 101,732
Deposits retained from retrocessionaires EORBARBNIES 22,584 22,820
Prepaid premiums received 8 Y iR & 474,523 216,252
740,139 394,116

All of the amounts due to the insurance creditors are expected to
be settled within one year.

The amounts due to insurance customers and suppliers include
amounts due to fellow subsidiaries of $2,953,000 (2007: $16,620,000)
which are insurance related in nature.

The following is an ageing analysis of the amounts due to insurance
customers and suppliers:

ERBEFPEMNERERAER —FRIEE -

ERREEEFREEENBEREENRRNE
NAERIEK2,953,000C (ZBE + 4
16,620,0007T) * EEFEEBRBR ML -

ENRBREP REEEFBZRESTAT

The Group
KEE
2008 2007
$°000 $'000
Frr For
Current I8 B 164,441 18,890
More than 3 months but HBRE=EAELR
less than 12 months +—{@A 12,494 27,363
More than 12 months wilt+ @A 8,263 7,059
185,198 53,312
34 OTHER CREDITORS 34 HAEFIRM
All of the other creditors are expected to be settled within one year. FiBEEMEMNERBEEBER —FREE -
35 INSURANCE PROTECTION FUND 35 RIBREE S

250
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The amount represents the amount payable to the insurance protection
fund at balance sheet date. According to the CIRC’s Order (2004)
No. 16 “Administration rule on insurance protection fund”, the
insurance protection fund is calculated on the basis of 1% of retained
premium for accident and short-term health policies, 0.15% of retained
premium for long-term life and long-term health policies with
guaranteed interest, and 0.05% of retained premium for long-term
life policies without guaranteed interest. The ceiling of the fund for a
life insurance company is 1% of its total assets.

SHERENEEAENRBRREES 2S5 -
RIEFRRESSR004]16FR(RBREESE
BIR)  REBEEESHRESKREAZTING
CHREREREABREMNI%  SRIJFENE
HASEEHREERREGBREN015% LT
EREMNENRPASRELBZERENO.05% °
EABSRBNRBREESHBEIREEN
1%8 - THIENRBREES -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e IEHRRMEE @)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LUBE#ZIT)
36 SECURITIES SOLD UNDER REPURCHASE 36 EHEEES
AGREEMENTS
The Group enters into transactions by which it transfers financial AEEETRILESREEEREBREE S
assets directly to third parties. These transfers will not give rise to EoELBBETERRAMNSRMAERRL
derecognition of the financial assets concerned as all the risks and wR - EAMERREELF I HAEEIEER
rewards of ownership are not transferred and control is retained. R AT R B 122 il 4 -
All of the securities sold under repurchase agreements are FTBEELREEFUARE BEN RIEME—
denominated in RMB and expected to be settled within one year. FALZAM -
37 SHARE CAPITAL 37 |7
2008 2007
No. of No. of
shares $°000 shares $'000
BR#MEE Fir 515 % B Fir
Authorized: EERK
Ordinary shares of FREE0.057T
$0.05 each TR 2,000,000,000 100,000 2,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRAZRE :
At 1 January wn—HA—H 1,415,272,592 70,764 1,406,251,592 70,313
Shares issued under Share RIER AR 2
Option Scheme (note (a)) BITHRG (7)) 6,449,000 322 9,021,000 451
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—4 1,421,721,592 71,086 1,415,272,592 70,764
All of the shares issued by the Company rank pari passu and do not RARMETHRERMNEYZERSEZ I
carry pre-emptive rights. RE MW T EAE ST -
(a) During the year ended 31 December 2008, options were exercised (@ BEZZZN\F+_A=T—HILFE
to subscribe for 6,449,000 ordinary shares (see note 40(a)) in TEREERBEALAAETBERE S
the Company at a consideration of $15,413,000 of which 6,449,000/% (2 F K 5E40(a)) - BER A
$322,000 was credited to share capital and the balance of 15,413,0007T > H#322,0007CEFFARA -
$15,091,000 was credited to the share premium account. # 8015,091,0007C B 5t AR D% B8R ©
During the year ended 31 December 2007, options were exercised HE_ZTZT+tF+-A=+—HLEFE
to subscribe for 9,021,000 ordinary shares (see note 40(a)) in TERBRERBARAANLTBBRK NG
the Company at a consideration of $22,346,000 of which 9,021,0008% (2 F i 5E40(a) @ BER A
$451,000 was credited to the share capital and the balance of 22,346,0007T ° EA1451,0007E 5T AR -
$21,895,000 was credited to the share premium account. # £121,895,0007C B st AR D& E IR ©

FREBZERER AT 2008 F ik 251



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

an\ (=] E\j iﬁz #&%:Z Bﬁ it (7B)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LUBE#ZIT)
38 RESERVES 38 &
(a) The Group (@) A&E
Shares
held for
Employee Share
share-based Award
Fair ~ compensation Scheme
value reserve AR
Capital Share Exchange feserve HRH B8 Revaluation Retained
feserve premium reserve MEE  BRZEE sz reserve profits Total
st RHEE EXGH % HERR R EfiGE REET g
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
fr fr fr fr fr fr fr fr fr
At 1 January 2008 RZFENE
-A-H 567,458 2,201,064 200,357 726,901 23,336 (111,147) - 2,006,893 5,614,862
Shares issued and share
option exercised - 17,184 - - - - - - 17,184
Exchange differences on
translation of the
financial statements of EXZE
subsidiaries - - 147,704 - - - - - 147,704
Avalable-for-sale
securities (notefi)): E : - - - (866,543) - - - - (866,543)
— changes in fair value —DhEREL - - - (921,241) - - - - (921,241)
— deferred tax - EREEHE
recognized - - - 158,783 - - - - 158,783
— transferred to —ERER%
profit or loss - - - (104,085) - - - - (104,085)
Loss for the year KEEER - - - - - - = (299,715) (299,715)
Dividend paid BxHRE - = = - - - - (141,454) (141,454)
Transferred to retained HERGER
profis on disposal of BE PN
revoked shares for LGNS
Share Award Scheme RE &R - - - - - - - (5,052) (5,052)
Shares purchased for ARG &BE
Share Award Scheme EAZRR - - - - - 14,359 - - 14,359
Equity settled share- REER2BH
based transactions BERS - - - - 27,533 - - - 27,533
Revaluation increase on BN
acquisttion of BENT
addtional interest in EiER
an associate LEREE - - - - - - 16,655 - 16,655
At 31 December 2008 H=%

£
St-H 567,488 2,218,248 348,061 (139,642) 50,869 (96,788) 16,655 1,560,672 4,525,533
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e IEHRRMEE @)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(KBS R)
38 RESERVES (Continued) 38 f&#E (&)
(a) The Group (Continued) (a) &~&EBE (&)
Shares held
Employee for Share
share-based Award
compensation Scheme
Fair value reserve B
Capltal Share Exchange reserve Wk GO HE] Retained
fesenve premium feserve LEE  BEZEE iki2:pd profits Total
ATEE RiHEE EXEE ] RERE ki REE 2%
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
fr I T fr I T fr r
At 1 January 2007 RZEStE-A-A 567,458 2174128 46,986 841,088 20,630 - 457,821 4,108,006
Shares issued RESH) - 26941 - - - - - 26941
Exchange differences on REHELR
translation of the RANERZE
financial statements of
subsidliaries - - 153,371 - - - - 153,371
Available-for-sale =55
securities (notefi)): - - - (114,187) - - - (114,187)
— changes in fair value - - - 1,479,070 - - - 1,479,070
— deferred tax recognized - - - 145,934 - - - 145,934
— transferred to profit or
loss - - - (1,789,191) - - - (1,739,191)
Profit for the year KER R - - - - - - 1,549,072 1,549,072
Shares purchased for Gt HE |
Share Award Scheme EAZBR - - - - - (111,147) - (111,147)
Equity settled REERZRR
share-based transactions BERS - - - - 2,806 - - 2,806
At 31 December 2007 RZZ%
T-A=1-H 567,458 2,201,064 200,357 726,901 23,336 (111,147) 2,006,893 5,014,862
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e IEHRRMEE @)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(BB ZT)

38 RESERVES (Continued) 38 f&#E (&)

(a) The Group (Continued) (@) &%= (&)

Notes: i
2008
Property  Corporate
and and other
Life casualty businesses
Reinsurance  insurance  insurance TER Total
BRE ABRE MERE Hfth 375 “E
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
F Fr Fr Fr F
Note (i) 7 (i)
Debt securities BB HH (65,043) 1,380,585 64,848 (46,846) 1,333,544
Direct equity securities EERAFS (93,428) (1,254,277) (353) (256,671) (1,604,729)
Equity investment funds BAREERS —  (1,154,854) (27,853) —  (1,182,707)
Composite investment funds BAREES (12,945) - - - (12,945)
(171,416) (1,028,546) 36,642 (303,517) (1,466,837)
Deferred tax charged REEBARZELEHIE
to reserves 7,165 290,503 (1,378) 6,911 303,201
Share of associates NI R - - - (54,024) (54,024)
Shared by minority interests DEHR R EG RS - 368,622 (17,505) - 351,117
(164,251) (369,421) 17,759 (350,630) (866,543)
2007
Corporate
and other
Life businesses
Reinsurance insurance TER Total
BIRRE ASERE Hin %7 k)
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000
Fir Fi Fir Fi
Note (i) (i)
Debt securities BERE S 9,489 (2,386,703) 3,861 (2,373,353)
Direct equity securities BEERARFS (99,922) 1,414,304 7,365 1,321,747
Equity investment funds EAREERES — 451,170 — 451,170
Composite investment funds HAEREES 4,271 - - 4,271
(86,162) (521,229) 11,226 (596,165)
Deferred tax charged REBEAKRZ
to reserves I E F 18 10,615 259,556 5,413 275,584
Share of associates NI — - 75,689 75,689
Shared by minority interests D BT ER B AL R A - 130,705 - 130,705
(75,547) (130,968) 92,328 (114,187)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

MEMEHRRMETE @)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LUBE#ZIT)
38 RESERVES (Continued) 38 f&#E (&)
(a) The Group (Continued) (a) &~&EBE (&)
Included in the retained profits is an amount of $3,928,000 (2007: RBGEMEFRERERANREB G
loss of $229,634,000), being the retained profits attributable to 75’5 3,928,000 (ZZEZTLF : 518
associates. 229,634,0007T) °
Included in the fair value reserve is an amount of $46,505,000 ARNEBEEREERREBRERATNAANE
(2007: $80,880,000), being the fair value reserves attributable BEfEE - £846,505,000T (ZTZ L5 ¢
to associates. 80,880,0007T) °
(b) The Company (b) AT
Employee Shares
share-based held for
Fair compensation  Share Award
value reserve Scheme
Share reserve R A AkH Retained
premium DAEE  ARZEE L3R profits Total
Bt} % E 1 HERE mEEzRH REEF 8%
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Fr Fr Fr fr fr fr
At 1 January 2008 RZZ2EN\F-A—H 2,201,064 3,452 22,693 (99,687) 220,322 2,347,844
Shares issued E?‘ﬂﬂxf’\ 15,091 - - - - 15,091
Available-for-sale securities: MREER
— Changes in fair value —RAnEEEL
(note (i) (#() - (80,223) - - - (80,223)
— Deferred tax recognized — BREEHE - 5,706 - - - 5,706
Loss for the year rEEER - - - - (152,582) (152,582)
Dividend paid EHkE - - - - (M57) (141,57
Transferred to retained profits HERD ZEEE 2
on disposal of revoked shares HERHEA
for Share Award Scheme RERN - - - - (6,446) (6,446)
Shares disposed for Share RROEBHELE
Award Scheme bd) ) - - - 26,867 - 26,867
Share options exercised BT RME 2,093 - (2,093) - - -
Share options granted and vested BREREBERRE - - 4,986 = = 4,986
Shares awarded BRERH - - 17,879 - = 17,879
At 31 December 2008 WoTTNE+-AS+-F | 2,218,248 (71,065) 43,465 (72,8200 (80,278) 2,037,550
At 1 January 2007 R-Z2E+F-A—H 2,174,123 20,772 20,530 - 9,592 2,225,017
Shares issued E?‘ﬂﬂxf’\ 21,895 - - - - 21,895
Available-for-sale securities: MREER
— Changes in fair value —RABEEL
(note () () - (21,569) - - - (21,569)
— Deferred tax recognized — BREERE - 4,249 - - - 4,249
Profit for the year REEET - - - - 210,730 210,730
Shares purchased for Share BB EEEEA
Award Scheme 7BH - - - (09,687) - (99,687)
Share options exercised BT R 5,046 - (5,046) - - -
Share options granted and vested BRLREGBRRE - - 7,149 - - 7,149
Shares awarded BRERH - - 60 - - 60
At 31 December 2007 RZZFE+F+-F=+—-H 2,201,064 3,452 22,693 (99,687) 220,322 2,347,844
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e IEHRRMEE @)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(BB ZT)

38 RESERVES (continued)

38 fi# g (#1)
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(b) The Company (Continued)

(b) RDT (&)

(c)

China Insurance International Holdings Company Limited

2008 2007
$°000 $'000
Fr Fr

Note (i) Changes in fair value 73i): 2hREEE L
Debt securities BEBESH (45,695) 2,710
Direct equity securities BEERAZES (34,528) (24,279)
(80,223) (21,569)

Nature or purpose of reserves

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents the differences between the
nominal value of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired
and the nominal value of the shares issued by the Company
as consideration for the acquisition.

Share premium

The application of the share premium account is governed by
Sections 48B and 49H of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve is comprised of all of the foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial statements
of the foreign operations into the Group’s presentation currency.
The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policy set out in note 1(w).

Fair value reserve

The fair value reserve is comprised of the cumulative net change
in the fair value of available-for-sale securities held at the balance
sheet date and is dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policy set out in note 1(h)(iii).

Employee share-based compensation reserve

The employee share-based compensation reserve is comprised
of the fair value of the actual or estimated number of unexercised
share options and unvested awarded shares granted to
employees of the Group recognized in accordance with the
accounting policy adopted for share based payments set out
in note 1(ab)(i).

Annual Report 2008

(i)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e IEHRRMEE @)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LUBE#ZIT)
38 RESERVES (Continued) 38 fikfm (#)
(c) Nature or purpose of reserves (Continued) (c) HEENSHMEE (&)
(vi) Shares held for Share Award Scheme (vi) BIRGERETEEZ KRG
The Shares held for Share Award Scheme is the consideration BRH I EmEE 2RH 2SN
paid, including any directly attributable incremental costs for ZHRE - WREMFE(@b)(i) A 5T
purchase of shares under the Share Award Scheme, in K PRBRERMEEE THERGKN
accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 1(ab)(ii). FIEEEZEBENIEENA -
(vii) Revaluation reserve (vii) Ef
The revaluation reserve represents the restatement of fair value EHHEERRBAKNTERRE - E@B
of the assets and liabilities from the acquisition of TPI relating ARAERTREEZNEERABZR
to previously held interest in TPI. REBEEMG -
39 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS 39 EERKEAR
The Group operates a MPF scheme under the Hong Kong Mandatory RIEEBREELABEETEEIERRIEE B
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under ERENEANET  AEBLH T —IE R
the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined MABETE ([BEEETE]) - LB BELEE
contribution retirement scheme administered by independent trustees. ERABUEREAERE BRI EHIRNKE
Under the MPF scheme, the employers and its employees are each B - BENRESTE  BETREEBEHFHA
required to make contributions to the MPF scheme at 5.0% of the ZEB ZHBWAS. 0% EETE - A
employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of a monthly relevant Z WA EBR A20,0007T © KB RIERE AGTE] -

income of $20,000. Contributions to the scheme vest immediately.

As stipulated by the labour regulations of the PRC, certain subsidiaries BERESTHRY  AEEETHEAR AR
of the Group participate in various defined contribution retirement EEZ2NMTEMEEBRNEAZN TRERDE]
plans authorized by municipal and provincial governments for its EHFRNETE - ELENBARERAEEDN
staff. These subsidiaries are required to contribute at a rate of 10.0% e ARFEEZIENI10.0%E19.0% (=%
to 19.0% (2007: 19.0%) of the salaries, bonuses and certain allowances THF 1 19.0%) ARG AL R IRET &) - 25T
of their staff to the retirement plans. A member of the plans is entitled EIWRK B NERMEERTEERRKZIFHF N
to a pension equal to a fixed proportion of the salary prevailing at —(EEE LA RAKSE o

his or her retirement date.

The Group has no other material obligations for the payment of its AREBEREL LM FTEMRZIN - BAIM
staff’s retirement and other post-employment benefits other than the BRARSHEMEAMBERENE—FEME -

contributions described above.

FREBZERER AT 2008 F ik 257



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

MEMEHRRMETE @)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

258

(B 5R)
40 EQUITY COMPENSATION BENEFITS 40 RAFHERER
(a) Share Options Scheme (a) RBRAEE

The Group has two share option schemes. Under the Old Scheme,
the directors of the Company were authorized, at their discretion,
to invite employees of the Group, including directors of any company
in the Group, to take up options to subscribe for shares of the
Company. Options granted between 24 May 2000 and 31 December
2002 were granted under the Old Scheme and in accordance with
the requirements of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules which came
under effect on 1 September 2001.

A new share option scheme which is in line with the prevailing
requirements of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules was adopted on 7
January 2003.

All of the share options are settled in equity.

(i) Movements in share options

AEEREEMBERBETE - RIBEFTS
ARREREENEBREAREER (215
AEBRNEMARBAMNES) EATTRBALR
AIROOREE E-FTEEFRA -+
E‘Elif77f¢+ A=+—BmEH
MRREORZEFEI RN -2 —F1
A—HEBEMN ETHRIE T ELENRE
& -

REEASRBRER _TT=F—At
Eliixﬁlﬁ’]imﬂxﬁlJ%ﬂLtiEl’J%E;EﬁﬁTx
& oo
FrAERIRERIARBEL A -

(i) RREED

2008 2007

Number Number

2 A B

At 1 January Kn—A—H 20,701,000 28,590,000
Granted =g 350,000 1,150,000
Exercised (note 37) B AT (B17#37) (6,449,000) (9,021,000)
Lapsed KK - (18,000)
At 31 December ®w+=-—A=+—8H 14,602,000 20,701,000
Options vested at 31 December R+ -A=+—HBEHRBENRRE 14,334,000 20,167,000

China Insurance International Holdings Company Limited  Annual Report 2008




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e IEHRRMEE @)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(BB ZT)

40 EQUITY COMPENSATION BENEFITS (Continued) 40 RAFHERF (©)

(a) Share Options Scheme (Continued) (a) RBREFE (&)

(ii) RAE B s KIE R i RAITEAERE

(ii) Terms of unexpired and unexercised share options at the

balance sheet date

Y & HY

Exercise Exercise 2008 2007

Date granted period _price Number Number

& H 8 TEH fTﬁE% A # A

T

25 September 2000 25 September 2000 1.110 150,000 2,350,000
to 9 October 2000 to 8 October 2010
20009 9 A 25H 20009 A 25H
Z£2000F10A9H £2010F10A8H

9 February 2001 9 February 2001 0.950 500,000 1,000,000
to 17 February 2001 to 16 February 2011
200192 A 9H 2001 2AH9H
£200142H17H 220114 2H16H

12 September 2002 12 September 2002 3.225 1,200,000 2,700,000
to 23 September 2002 to 22 September 2012
20029 9AH12H 20029 9H12H
220029 9H23H £2012F9H22H

7 January 2003 7 January 2003 3.975 - 156,000
to 6 January 2013
2003F1A7H 2003F 1/ 7H
£2013%F1H6H

5 January 2004 5 January 2004 3.980 - 350,000
to 4 January 2014
20041 A5H 200491 A5H
F2014F1H4H

31 December 2004 27 January 2005 3.200 — 350,000
to 26 January 2015
2004 12A31H 200541 H27H
£2015%F1H26H

2 November 2005 (note(a)) 23 November 2005 2.875 11,077,000 11,945,000
. to 27 November 2015
2005 11 A28 (i#(a) 2005911 A 23H
£2015%F11 /5278

30 December 2005 3 January 2006 3.300 - 350,000
to 2 January 2016
2005912 A 30H 2006417 3H
£2016%F1H2H

30 June 2006 30 June 2006 5.000 - 175,000
to 29 June 2016
2006 6 A 30H 200646 A 30H
£ 201656 H29H

29 December 2006 29 December 2006 9.800 175,000 175,000
to 28 December 2016
2006412 A 29H 2006F 12 429H
£20165F12H28H

26 February 2007 (note(b)) 26 February 2007 9.490 800,000 800,000
R to 25 February 2017
20074E2 268 (7 (b)) 200742 26H
£2017562H25H

29 June 2007 29 June 2007 14.220 175,000 175,000
to 28 June 2017
20074 6 A 29H 20074 6 A29H
£20179F6H28H
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e IEHRRMEE @)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(BB ZT)

40 EQUITY COMPENSATION BENEFITS (Continued) 40 RAFHERF (©)

260

(a) Share Options Scheme (Continued) (a) RBREFE (&)
(i)  Terms of unexpired and unexercised share options at the (i) REEHEREBRERITENRBRE
balance sheet date (Continued) B F B (48)
Exercise Exercise 2008 2007
Date granted period _price Number Number
REHE 1T E ﬁ@i% A B8
T
31 December 2007 31 December 2007 21.400 175,000 175,000
to 30 December 2017
2007 12H31H 20074 12H31H
220175 12H30H
30 June 2008 30 June 2008 19.316 175,000 —
to 29 June 2018
2008 6 A 30H 2008 6 H30H
£2018%F6H29H
31 December 2008 31 December 2008 11.920 175,000 —
to 30 December 2018
2008 12H31H 2008 12A31H
220184 12H30H
14,602,000 20,701,000
Notes: o
(a)  No options lapsed during the year (2007: 18,000). (a) BRERBRERFAXRB(ZTTLEF:
18,000) °
(b) 268,000 options were unvested, and have vesting periods up to 26 February (b)  H 268,000/ 7 & A 55 8 0 BRI A =
2009. TENF_AZ+BREB -
(iii) Details of share options (lapsed)/granted during the year, (iii) FRAE (kM) RHEBZREFR
all of which were granted for $1 in consideration ZERREDHGRUAEI RS
Exercise 2008 2007
Exercise period price Number Number
1T E TFEE A B8
$
T
23 November 2005 to 200511 238 & 2.875 — (18,000)
27 November 2015 201511 A27H
26 February 2007 to 2007 2A 268 & 9.490 — 800,000
25 February 2017 20179 2H25H
29 June 2007 to 2007 6A29H &= 14.220 - 175,000
28 June 2017 20174 6H28H
31 December 2007 to 2007128318 21.400 — 175,000
30 December 2017 2017912 A 30H
30 June 2008 to 20086300 & 19.316 175,000 —
29 June 2018 2018 64 29H
31 December 2008 to 2008F12A31H = 11.920 175,000 —
30 December 2018 2018412 A 30H
350,000 1,132,000

China Insurance International Holdings Company Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e R EE @)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LB #3R)

40 EQUITY COMPENSATION BENEFITS (Continued)

40 RABERER (&)

(a) Share Options Scheme (Continued)

(iv) Details of share options exercised during the year

(@) REBEEH ()

(iv) FABITRENZKREFE

Market
value
per share at

Exercise exercise date Proceeds
Exercise date price TR received Number
Cigd=! TEE BRWE Fri8 s IE A

$ $ $000

T T R
11 January —BA+—H 1.110 19.98 222 200,000
23 January —B=Z+=H 1.110 17.68 222 200,000
27 March =A=++tH 3.225 18.46 4,838 1,500,000
27 March =A=++tH 3.975 18.46 620 156,000
27 March =B=++tH 3.980 18.46 1,393 350,000
27 March =B=++tH 3.200 18.46 1,120 350,000
27 March =A=-++tH 2.875 18.46 1,725 600,000
27 March =B=++tH 3.300 18.46 1,155 350,000
27 March =A=++tH 5.000 18.46 875 175,000
2 July tAZ=H 1.110 16.70 1,665 1,500,000
2 July +tA=H 0.950 16.70 475 500,000
2 July tAZH 2.875 16.70 287 100,000
18 July +tB+N\H 1.110 17.00 111 100,000
18 July +tBA+N\H 2.875 17.00 287 100,000
16 October +A+7<H 1.110 12.00 222 200,000
18 December +=ZA+N\H 2.875 11.60 196 68,000
2008 —EENE 15,413 6,449,000
2007 2T LF 22,346 9,021,000
RREFRERAR AR 2008 F#
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e IEHRRMEE @)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(BB ZT)

40 EQUITY COMPENSATION BENEFITS (Continued)

40 RAFHERF (©)

262

(a) Share Options Scheme (Continued)
(v) Fair value of share options and assumptions

HKFRS 2 requires that, when the Group grants employees
options to acquire shares of the Company, the Group
recognizes the fair value of the options granted as an expense
in the consolidated income statement with a corresponding
increase in the employee share-based compensation reserve
within equity.

The fair value of services received in return for share options
granted are measured by reference to the fair value of share
options granted. The estimate of the fair value of the share
options granted is measured based on the Black-Scholes
pricing model. The contractual life of the option is used as
an input into this model.

Fair value of share options and assumptions:

(@) RBIRHEB ()

(v)

AREHR T EERER

BEBMBHMELNERHAE - TN
SEAESRHRBEE  AEBEERE
HRBREO R BENFS BRI AR
REXZH - MAERRER A A B
AzBEEMEREEREEZM -

EB RIS ARERREN DR EEIERER
ERBENAREETSE - BERRE
2 fE 2 £ (B8 & Black—ScholesiZ i%
EEEER - RRENAHNFHAERA
B o

REREN AR EERRE

Date of grant

=

30 June 31 December

2008 64300 128318
Fair value at RETEANAR

measurement date ($) EHE () 12.47972 8.267513

Share price ($) & & (T) 18.600 11.92

Exercise price ($) T{EE (Or) 19.316 11.92

Expected volatility (note i) TEER B R (3Fi) 61.32% 72.76%

Option life (Year) RIREFH (F) 10 10

Expected dividends (note i) TEBARR B (FFil) 0.54% 0.84%

Risk-free interest rate (note iii) fm R b W R (i) 3.469% 1.191%

Date of grant

gl =

26 February 29 June 31 December

2007 2A26H 6429H 12A31H
Fair value at RAEBHNAAR

measurement date ($) &ME (Jr) 5.095299 8.648458 14.44992

Share price ($) & & (7t) 9.07 14.22 21.40

Exercise price ($) 1T1EE (JT) 9.49 14.22 21.40

Expected volatility (note i) TEER B X (#Fi) 42.97% 46.23% 59.18%

Option life (Year) RREFH (F) 10 10 10

Expected dividends (note ii) T B IR B (aFii) 0.38% 0.38% 0.38%

Risk-free interest rate (note iii) 12 2 b W) == (ai) 4.206% 4.775% 3.441%

China Insurance International Holdings Company Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e IEHRRMEE @)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LB #3R)

40 EQUITY COMPENSATION BENEFITS (Continued)

40 RAFHERF (©)

(a) Share Options Scheme (Continued)

(v)

Fair value of share options and assumptions (Continued)

Notes:

(i)  The expected volatility is based on the historical volatility of the
share price one year immediately preceding the grant date.

(i)  Expected dividends are based on historical dividends since the
listing of the Company.

(i)  Risk-free interest rate is based on the yield of the 10-year Hong
Kong Exchange Fund Note.

Share options were granted under a service condition. This
condition has not been taken into account in the fair value
measurement of the services received on the grant date.
There were no market conditions associated with the share
option grants.

(b) Share Award Scheme

The purpose of the Share Award Scheme is to recognize and
reward certain employees (including without limitation an employee
who is also a director) of the Group and CIHC and its subsidiaries
for their contributions to the Group and to give long-term
incentives for retaining them for the continued operations and
development of the Group.

The Share Award Scheme of the Company was adopted by the
Board on 10 September 2007. A summary of the principal terms
of the Share Award Scheme is set out in the Share Award Scheme
Section of the Report of the Directors.

(a) RRETE (&)
(v) BREHLAEBEERER (E)

() BEFRELBRERHABE - FRENK

18 o

(i) EFBRBEAAR EMARBENRE -

i) EEBFEE RO ERNEL SRR

RN R TR G RIGEME o &0
WARMATHERE T RESREN DR
BE - UETSEREERTRRES
7 o

(b) Fx1DE2 =t 3

BARBESEESERRBREE RS
REBREENBARNEES (BEFREF
fE8) BN KB BB K RHEBORE
FEMFEERAEENSELZERERS
5 o

E=ZgRN_TTLFNLATARALRA
BB (D BB AT &Y - B i SR ED At I A0 E B 1R
FBBEANEFTERES (RO RE I
BB THAX

(i) Movements in the number of awarded shares and their (i) EEROGEEEZ{REEBHFHALE

related average fair value were as follows: BT :

2008 2007

Number Number

Eg= # A

At 1 January n—HA—H 3,286,000 —

Awarded (note a) B 8% (Fa) 594,000 3,286,000

Revoked (note b) BUE (7#b) (556,500) —

At 31 December (note c) R+=—A=+—8 (ic) 3,323,500 3,286,000
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e IEHRRMEE @)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(BB ZT)

40 EQUITY COMPENSATION BENEFITS (Continued) 40 RAFHERF (©)

(b) Share Award Scheme (Continued) (b) B1ipERBENET &

BRROHEZEREEHFHRLE
BT (&)

(i) Movements in the number of awarded shares and their (i)
related average fair value were as follows: (Continued)

Notes: it

(@) Included in the total number of awarded shares, 366,000 shares (a) BIFEBEEBKRMHEEH - 366,000/ 5%
are purchased from the market during the year (2007: 3,286,000 BRORBALTSBEBA(ZTTLF
shares). 3,286,000f%) °

(o) The amount represents awarded shares lapsed automatically, (b) BEARRBESEROEBMAZNEHEBZ
according to the conditions under the Employees’ Share Award HENARD °
Scheme.

(c) At the end of the year the average fair value per share of $21.59 () REARTFHERAABER21.59T(ZZR

(2007: $21.44). The average fair value of the awarded shares is
based on the closing price at the date of award and any directly
attributable incremental costs.

F 1 21.447T) - BEROHNERFHRAL
EERBEEER ZWTE  BFEEMER
HEIEERA -

BREREERGHIN RZZENEF+ZA
=+—H 1,396,500 (—EZT 4 :
1,968,000/%) 1 17 A K 75 B M A (5 LA K
MEEETEIEE - JHABRBERGK
B E 1YL

Apart from the awarded shares, as at 31 December 2008,
1,396,500 shares (2007: 1,968,000 shares) are deemed as
unallocated shares which are held under Share Award
Scheme and are available for future award and/or disposal
pursuant to the rules of Share Award Scheme.

(i) The remaining vesting periods of the awarded shares (i) HERGHEGTHEBHUT :
outstanding are as follows:

264

At 31 December

At 31 December

China Insurance International Holdings Company Limited

2008 2007

R-BZN\F N-BTLF

+=—A=+—8H +=ZA=+—H

Number of Number of

Remaining vesting period awarded shares Remaining vesting period Awarded shares
BRT 57 1B 1 BEBROEE BT 5B B O BA
1 year to 2 years 3,323,500 2 years to 3 years 3,286,000

15225

2FE E3F

Annual Report 2008



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

nﬂicnﬁjﬁ&éﬂiééﬁﬁnEEOE)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(BB ZT)
41 MATURITY PROFILE 41 FEIER
(a) The Group (@) A&E
1 year 5 years
or less or less
Repayable but over but over
ondemand 3 months 3 months 1 year
2E orless —FLUT EEHUT After
ZXE =EA BB BB 5years  Undated Total
EE FUT =EA -5 % RKEHR ok
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr Fr
At 31 December 2008 RZBENE
+=A=+-8
Assets EE
Deposits at banks and BATREMI B

other financial institutions BERER

(including statutory deposits) (B 1% E F5) 1,620,479 1,139,268 2,164,441 610,639 4,992,594 — 10,527,421
Money market funds ERMEES 1,462,825 - - - - — 1,462,825
Pledged deposits at bank EERTHRINGER - 102,453 - - - - 102,453
Certificates of deposit FHE

(under held-to-maturity) (BEEHHA) - 38,750 - 203,750 - = 242,500
Certificates of deposit BHE

(under available-for-sale) (7 Aﬁ%> - - = 136,770 = = 136,770
Debt securities BBE

(under held-to-maturity) (FEZHHA) - 648,179 643,712 1,481,278 17,988,478 — 20,761,647
Debt securities EBES

(under available-for-sale) (THEE) 943,430 70,413 311,340 4,947,851 19,462,660 131,487 25,867,181
Debt securities BEBESR

(under designated at fair (BHEZENU

value through profit or loss) REDAEE) 60,562 354,581 3,263 235,823 165,895 34,063 854,187
Debt securities BEBESR

(under loans and ( ERREK

receivables) IE) - - - - 2,165,806 - 2,165,806
Loans and advances g ?}( &L - 380,541 - - - - 380,541

4,087,296 2,734,185 3,122,756 7,616,111 44,775,433 165,550 62,501,331
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

MEMEHRRMETE @)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(X BB SIR)
41 MATURITY PROFILE (Continued) 41 ZEBR (&)
(a) The Group (Continued) (a) &~&EBE (&)
1 year 5 years
or less or less
Repayable but over but over
on demand 3 months 3 months 1 year
BE orless —FHUT  BENT After
EPSS =f@A BfRA BB 5years  Undated Total
B F AT —|A —4 TEkR  KREOR BE
$000 $000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $000
Fir Fir T T Fir Fir Fir
At 31 December 2007 RZZT+HE
+-A=+—H
Assets EE
Deposits at banks and BATREME B
other financial institutions BEER
(including statutory deposits) (B ¥&%EE 7 2) 505,734 2,253,553 418,681 4,731,096 - — 7,909,064
Money market funds EBMIEES 393,259 - - - - - 393,259
Pledged deposits at bank EERTHRITNER - - 97,417 - - - 97,417
Certificates of deposit FHE
(under held-to-maturity) (BFEZHHA) - - - 243,910 - - 243,910
Certificates of deposit BHE
(under available-for-sale) (L&) - - - 135,326 - - 135,326
Debt securities BEBES
(under held-to-maturity) (#EZHHA) - 10,276 200,539 243689 230,660 — 775,164
Debt securities BEBESR
(under available-for-sale) (L&) - - 147,178 6,270,405 19,394,635 — 25812218
Debt securities BEES
(under designated at fair (B ﬂ?ﬁ*u
value through profit or loss) ~ RB2R 4 EfE) 26,627 20,776 62,287 192,000 158,519 63,696 523,905
Debt securities BEES
(under loans and (BERRER
receivables) HE) - - — 106,794 149,512 - 256,306
Loans and advances ERRBR - - 276,219 - - - 276,219

925,620 2,284,605 1,292,321 11,923,220 19,933,326 63,696 36,422,788

266 China Insurance International Holdings Company Limited  Annual Report 2008



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e IEHRRMEE @)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(L EBSR)
41 MATURITY PROFILE (Continued) 41 ZEBR (&)
(b) The Company (b) ZA&AQF]
1 year 5 years
or less or less
Repayable but over but over
ondemand 3 months 3 months 1 year
BE orless —HFHUT EHEFUT After
ZXE =EA BB BB 5years  Undated Total
B HUT =@A —& 1% KEHR ok
$000 $000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $000
Fi Fir Fir FI FI F Fr
At 31 December 2008 RZEENE
+-A=+-H
Assets EE
Deposits at banks and RITREA A
other financial institutions WETT 116,982 133,159 24,325 - - - 274,466
Debt securities B E 5 - - 30,281 255,555 116,807 - 402,643
116,982 133,159 54,606 255,555 116,807 - 677,109
At 31 December 2007 RNZEELEF
+-A=1+—H
Assets BE
Deposits at banks and RITREAA
other financial institutions BEER 86,517 551,121 132,615 - - - 770,253
Debt securities BIE 5 - - - 135,326 39,004 - 174,330
86,517 551,121 132,615 135,326 39,004 - 944,583
42 FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 42 TRIANAAREE
(a) Fair value (@ A2REE

All financial instruments are stated at fair value or carried at BROEE19()()Fr sl B B i A 2 B BiR & K M

amounts not materially different from their fair values as of ARAEAMBRNEREN  ESRT

31 December 2007 and 2008, except for held-to-maturity EYRUAABEXKEER-_ZT+F+

investments as set out in note 19(a)(i) and interest-bearing notes ZA=ZFT—HNMZZEZENFRBANARE

as set out in note 32. BHEENSBAR -
(b) Estimation of fair values (b) AREBEEME

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are CREERERBEBECAABEIENAT

determined as follows: ERERE :

e The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities with o EABBEBEERRAGEIHERRATIS
standard terms and conditions and traded on active liquid BEEZEREEREMABZAREE
markets are determined with reference to recent transaction TR B2 E&ER SERKMIGAHRE
price or quoted market bid prices and ask prices respectively; ABHEETE &k
and

e The fair value of other financial assets and financial liabilities o HitemEERSBRBEBETBEENE
(excluding derivative instruments) are determined in TR ZARBERTERSREST
accordance with generally accepted pricing models based ZAREEEAZHANRE NSRS
on discounted cash flow analysis or using prices from BEMS2ERMEE °

observable current market transactions.
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MEMEHRRMETE @)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LUBE#ZIT)
43 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARY 43 I8 A KB 1 7]
On 15 July 2008, the Group acquired additional 10.025% equity RZZEZNFLtA+EB  REBENLAKFER
interest of TPI by contributing additional capital of RMB157,393,000 B AEINE AR ARBE157,393,0007T (4
(approximately HK$179,878,000) into TPI. With this capital 179,878,000/ 7T) f A K AR B2 BN 0.025% 1
contribution, the Group’s equity interest in TPl increased from 40.025% W BEAEBA  SAEERBEATIRBRAE
to 50.05%. % H40.025% F F+ £50.05% °
The net assets acquired in the transaction and the goodwill arising RHGBAZFEERFMEEZEHENT
are as follows:
TPI’'s
carrying
amount
before Provisional
combination fair value Provisional
KRB adjustment fair value
EOtAT 2 FEZ BEZ
REE DNAEBEERHAE AREE
$°000 $°000 $°000
For For For
Net assets acquired: BAZFEE :
Statutory deposits ETFEFR 206,644 - 296,644
Property and equipment LEN L 401,953 55,481 457,434
Prepaid lease payments TERHEENRK 100,973 - 100,973
Investments in debt and equity securities B LR AEHIKE 1,739,218 — 1,739,218
Insurance debtors RBRE P EKER 479,756 - 479,756
Reinsurers’ share of insurance DR B EAGRE
contract provisions B HRERE 888,348 - 888,348
Other debtors ,J JE W BR 3K 155,567 — 155,567
Deposits at banks with original maturity REHBERA=THAN
more than three months fETTT_fK 190,096 — 190,096
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEESEEYD 943,395 - 943,395
Less: Ve
— Unearned premium provisions - RIHEEEES (2,430,084) - (2,430,084)
— Provision for outstanding claims — KRR ERE (1,550,105) — (1,550,105)
— Deferred tax liabilities — Lkml =k - (13,870) (13,870)
— Other liabilities - HibE & (620,590) - (620,590)
Net assets FEE 595,171 41,611 636,782
Minority interests 8RR R 2 (278,157)
Equity interest held originally as JREREE R F]
interests in associates ST E 2 En (146,333)
Cash contributed by the Group to maintain N5 E#% A B IR & A 4 5
its original interests in TPI RARFRE 2 #E s (123,503)
Revaluation increase in net assets AEBREA#E
attributable to interests originally ZIERIEFEE
held by the Group EHEE (16,655)
Goodwill (note) e (i) 107,744
179,878
Total consideration satisfied by cash LR EE Nz RRE 179,878
Net cash inflow arising on acquisition: F B A E £
HFRESRA
Cash consideration paid BN zReNRE 179,878
Less: cash and cash W BAZES
equivalents acquired kB EEY (943,395)
(763,517)
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e IEHRRMEE @)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(BB ZT)

43 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARY (Continued)

43 BAKEB QT (&)

Note:

(@) The goodwill of $107,744,000 were attributable to the difference between
the consideration and the fair value of the underlying assets and liabilities
acquired. The goodwill arose in the business combination because the
consideration paid for the business combination effectively included the
amounts in relation to the benefit of premium growth, future market
development and the build up of economies of scale which enabled TPI to
generate sustainable and consistent profitability in future. The Board is in
the process of determining whether these future economic benefits can
be reliably measured and recognized separately from goodwill. As such,
the goodwill arising from the acquisition of above subsidiary may be subject
to adjustment.

TPI contributed $167,245,000 to the Group’s loss for the period
between the date of acquisition and the balance sheet date.

If the acquisition had been completed on 1 January 2008, total Group’s
gross premium written for the year would have been $27,825,329,000,
and loss for the year attributable to equity holders would have been
$331,525,000. The proforma information is for illustrative purposes
only and is not necessarily an indication of revenue and results of
the Group that actually would have been achieved had the acquisition
been completed on 1 January 2008, nor, is it intended to be as
projection of future results.

(@) 107,744,000z & AERRELRBAEBEER
BEANEEZERE EBAHPELERB AN
REZH CLOEFBATENREER RATSERER
BRBEENE - SATREBO RO EEFERE
EHRMEN - ERFEXE LEAR R BN E
IS ETE REESFRER o Eit - BA EMER
RIEAZEBAIEGEMAR -

REAREZEERBRASHE  RFRER/AE
% & 4 B8 167,245,0007T ©

MR —_ZEN\F—A—BEREA  KEEX
EEEARREBBEK £27,825,329,0007C © K
NEEEE I A331,525,0007C © FBEHRE R E
HEABRREGE 2R TTARRUEAR-Z
ZENF-—A—BEK AEEEAEZHFRE
BTN AIERKRELEZTEA -

44 COMMITMENTS 44 EIE

(a) Capital commitments outstanding as of 31 December 2008 were (@ RZZEZENF+ZA=+—HMERMEX

as follows: EUNNE
2008 2007
$°000 $’000
Frr For
Contracted for but not provided BRI A {E R kR 36,044 25,788
Authorised but not contracted for hEBRED 188,799 —

(b) As of 31 December 2008, the total future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows:

) RZFEZNF+-_A=+—RH  BEFA
BRNEEHEERRENORERER

REMT
2008 2007
$°000 $’000
Fr Fir
Within 1 year —F A 241,062 101,101
After 1 year but within 5 years —FEERFA 331,466 99,059
After 5 years hFE 8,766 111
581,294 200,271

The Group leases a number of properties under operating leases.
The leases typically run for an initial period of 1 to 6 years, with
an option to renew the leases when all terms are renegotiated.
Lease payments are usually reviewed annually to reflect market
rentals. None of the leases includes contingent rentals.

AEBENELEHEBALODYE - Sl
E-RVERE—ZERF LAEERRE
BB RESR  ENMAKRREAIENR
EeoMENFBESEZRFRE  UWRBRM
BHE FRHEEHTEEAAESE -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(BB ZT)

45 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

45

HZREE

The Group has received a query issued by the Inland Revenue
Department of Hong Kong in relation to the taxability of certain
investment income from its offshore investments for the years of
assessment from 1999 to 2006. The directors consider that the Group
has a strong legal base to support its tax position. As such, no provision
for a potential tax exposure of approximately $31,600,000
(2007: $31,600,000) was made as of 31 December 2008.

Save as herein disclosed and other than those incurred in the normal
course of the Group’s insurance businesses, there was no outstanding
litigation nor any other contingent liabilities as of 31 December 2008.

AEBRBEABRBRENBE  GRERER
BERAR—NMANFE_ZTTRNEFIRFE
ANERMGET EEREBAEERKEHL
BEBRENZEEERIE At RZZEN
¢+*H_+ H A& B3 & 3 431,600,000

T (ZEFE ti 31,600,0007T) K EERIEE

EE u+ }IE °©

BABREMEENEASEAERREBTE
ERHBIN RZEBENF+_A=+—H "
$’EITE5EEEH$/9%:J? R EABE -
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46 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 46 EXBEALIRS

The following is a summary of significant transactions entered into UWTRASBHBEATRFRNETHNERAR

between the Group and its related parties during the year: SHE -

2008 2007
Note $°000 $°000
Bt &t Fr For

Recurring transactions REXS

Business ceded by related companies: FiENEl D HAER (i)

— Gross premiums written — F & f%f% = 116,549 241,541

— Commission expenses paid — & H 32,164 72,946
Investment management fee and REERS

redemption income NERE IR A (ii) 8,585 18,989

Notes: 3

(i)  Certain fellow subsidiaries of the Group ceded business to and received iy AEEETRREMBARIMAAR—MHEARENE
commission from a subsidiary of the Company. BRAEZBRAS -

(i) A subsidiary of the Company provided investment consultancy services (i) AR —[EHER AR EEE T ERNME QR MR
to and received investment management fees and redemption income from BEBRYE  TMEKDNKREAEEERBEERA -
certain fellow subsidiaries of the Group.

Apart from the above, the Group has entered into the following non- Bt 2o NEBEEBE A TETUTIELS

recurring transactions with related parties: T5

(@) On 20 March 2008, TPL entered into a Joint Bidding Agreement (@ RZZEENF=A=-+H KAFASELK

with TPI, CIHC and The Ming An Insurance Company (China)
Limited (“Ming An China”) in relation to the purchase of a piece
of land in Shenzhen and development of a commercial office
building. The amount to be invested by TPL was agreed to be

RMB289,000,000.

China Insurance International Holdings Company Limited

11%&* FREBERZRE (FE) BR

T(FE;zEPJ)&*Jzﬁ%afmauﬁ\,ﬂeﬂwz
iﬁﬂ&%@ﬁ%@%ﬁﬁﬂi AR R o
KEASHEA HLIEE ARE289,000,0007T ©
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e IEHRRMEE @)
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46 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

46 ERBEEALR S (&)

(Continued)

(b) On 30 June 2008, ClIH entered into the conditional capital b) RZZEZNENA=ZTH  BEREEREH
contribution agreement with CIHC, ICBC (Asia) and TPI pursuant RIER - TR(EMN RAFREBERIZE
to which CIHC and the Company agreed to contribute, in cash, BHIBE R - B - PRIEREERAQF
in aggregate an amount of RMB270,000,000 as additional HHAFTRBEER G HXARK
registered capital into TPI. Of the aggregate amount, 270,000,0007T * {EBEESNEME X o £7%
RMB4,540,000 was to be contributed by CIHC and FEEF - PIRIERIGEE AR 4,540,000
RMB265,460,000 was to be contributed by CIIH. ICBC (Asia) 7T - PIREIRR R I5 & A R 265,460,000
decided to not participate in the capital contribution. TPl is an Lo TR (M) BEREFBHEEE o« KF
associated company of the Company, in which CIIH holds a R AEARNRNRBENT » FREBFERIEE
40.025% equity interest prior to the capital contribution. Upon AIH5 5 H 40.025% /X 1 o FATTRC » FIRIE
completion, each of CIHC, the Company and ICBC (Asia) was R PREBERIR(EMN SESSAIE
directly interested in 42.020%, 50.050% and 7.930%, respectively, BAE K FRB Z242.020% * 50.050%
of the equity interests in TPI. On 30 June 2008, CIHC, ClIH and 7.930% R - —ETENFAA=T
ICBC (Asia) also entered into the conditional option deed pursuant B RRER - RRBEBERETR (M) I5
to which CIHC agreed to grant the right to ICBC (Asia) at nil BRI B R HERE - Bt PRIZER
consideration to, conditional upon completion, acquire from CIHC AEREEREEETIR (M - #EX
the equity interest of approximately 1.647% in TPI as enlarged fFEmkiE - REEREEBE SEAR
by the capital contribution for a consideration of RMB25,858,900 REFT N RBHREZBRERATELEERZ
within six months from the date of the option deed, or such & AH - AR RIERUIE KRR &S
later date as the parties may extend pursuant to the terms of BIREKNEN1.647T% 210  REAARE
the option deed. The option will be exercisable at the option of 25,858,9007T ° HA#E S AT B3 T 4R (ZoM) i 4%
ICBC (Asia), and if exercised by ICBC (Asia), will have to be I - M — TR (M) 171 - BIZEEE
exercised in full. The Company has waived its right to purchase I« RABEWEER IR (BM) 176
the option interest if the option is exercised by ICBC (Asia). The HENEENEES CER -  BEHER
capital contribution agreement and the option deed were approved HEZBEER _ZEENFELA+HART
by the Independent Shareholders of ClIH at an extraordinary ZRERFRRE - SR RBIERE R
general meeting of the Company held on 15 July 2008. RALE o

(c) On 5 November 2008, TPl and TPL entered into a supplemental () RZZFEZENF+—AREH KEREEK

agreement in relation to the purchase of land and the development
of the property in Shenzhen with CIHC and Ming An China to
amend the total investment amount from the parties as set out
in the joint bidding agreement dated 20 March 2008. According
to the joint bidding agreement, the percentages of the total
investment amount for the transaction required from each of
TPI, CIHC, TPL and Ming An China were 15%, 55%, 15% and
15%, respectively. Under the supplemental agreement, the
percentages of the total investment amount for the transaction
required from each of TPI, CIHC, TPL and Ming An China was
amended to be 15%, 5%, 65% and 15%, respectively. TPl and
TPL are expected to invest a total of approximately
RMB289,000,000 and RMB1,251,000,000, respectively, for the
transaction under the supplemental agreement. The purchase
of the land was completed in April 2008 and the construction
of the property is expected to commence in early 2009 and will
last for a period of three years with a tentative completion date
set to be in the second half of 2011. The joint bidding agreement
and supplemental agreement were approved by the independent
shareholders of ClIH at an extraordinary general meeting of the
Company held on 9 December 2008.

FASEHPARIEBRERZHPEITEEBER
FIBEL M REEYEBR A TR BEZ
Wz BUABEHR_ZETNF=A=
+HEIENBEREB RSO ZRE
SF - BEBEBHAHEGSE - AFRE - F
R  KFASEKRZHEHIINZTHE
BEEARRSETEINZBERTEE LD
B A15%, 55%, 15% &% 15% ° 1R I% 1 7t 1
& BB RFERE - PRIZER - KF
AEBERRZHBEFOSTSEERR S S
Bz HREBEAED LRI AE15%, 5%,
65% K% 15% ° BB AW - A FRBREAK
FASHEHEBREZZEEIFRE AR
289,000,0007T & A R ¥51,251,000,0007T ©
RZZEENFNHAZRT THEE  MZ
WMEBHE_STAFYVFAKKEL - AR
—EWEHER T ——FTEFERK o B
EHEBBERBRBRER_ZZTNF T
ZANBROZBREFNAG L BB
R BB 98 S % SR L A o
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(BB ZT)

46 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

46

ERBEAETRS #)

(d)y On 9 July 2007, the Company entered into a conditional capital
contribution agreement with CIHC, ICBC (Asia) and TPI pursuant
to which CIHC and the Company will contribute, in cash, an
aggregate amount of RMB300,000,000 as additional registered
capital into TPI. Of the aggregate amount, RMB179,925,000
will be contributed by CIHC and RMB120,075,000 will be
contributed by the Company. ICBC (Asia) has decided to not
participate in the capital contribution. Upon completion, each
of CIHC, the Company and ICBC (Asia) will be directly interested
in 50.398%, 40.025% and 9.577%, respectively, of the equity
interests in TPI. The percentage of equity interests held by the
Company in TPl will remain unchanged after completion. In
addition, CIHC, the Company and ICBC (Asia) also entered into
the conditional option deed pursuant to which CIHC has agreed,
conditional upon completion, to grant the right to ICBC (Asia)
at nil consideration to acquire from CIHC an equity interest of
approximately 2.873% in TPl as enlarged by the capital
contribution for a consideration of RMB37,350,000 within twelve
months from the date of the option deed, or such later date as
the parties may extend pursuant to the terms of the Option Deed.
The Company has waived its right to purchase this Option Interest
if the Option is exercised by ICBC (Asia).

The Group operates in an economic environment predominated by
enterprises directly or indirectly owned or controlled by the PRC
government through its numerous authorities, affiliates or other
organizations (collectively”State-Owned Entities”). During the year,
the Group had transactions with State-Owned Entities including but
not limited to the sales of insurance policies and banking related
services. These transactions are conducted in the ordinary course
of the Group’s insurance business on terms similar to those that
would have been entered into with non-state-owned entities. The
Group has also established its pricing strategy and approval processes
for its major insurance products. Such pricing strategy and approval
processes do not depend on whether the customers are State-Owned
Entities or not. Having due regard to the substance of the relationships,
the directors believe that none of these transactions are material
related party transactions that require separate disclosure.

(d —ZZEZLF+ANE  KRAEPRER
THR(EMN RAFRBET LB GEHIEE
W o B PREREARRQE G R AF
R b1 E I8 $ 4% A R #300,000,0007T
ERBEIFMER - EZEBHEF R
2 % 4 4808 A R #179,925,0007T * AN A 7
B & A R#120,075,0007C » LR (EE;‘J‘H)
EORTENZEEE - AT PR
RATRIR(EMN SFEBKD R E&%ﬁ*ﬁ
K F4RE 2 50.398%  40.025% % 9.577 %%
2R ° SERE AR TJW:%% TR
EZBREED L BHEZTE - 1o PR

B~ AQFETR (M REFTLB K

HHERE - Bl PRERFEIREE
REXETIR(EMN) - EAFTRE
NHERE R RS A7 RIBERE

R A REIE IR 2 012 B e R+ — AW
A R AR F2 BB K F R B AR IR B B K12 40
2.873% 2 [ - R {B R AR¥37,350,000
Jo o BAREAS R TR (G BIEBITEE o A
NAERE AN TR (GEM) 17 (2 B s R
EHERED ZER -

REB RN — ILAI%? | BRI T B

BEEHETEE  FERAREHEELASD
IE&JﬁLﬂﬁE&ZHﬂ&% RIEKRE  MWERE

FEHMEBEZXRAZREAN (RERIEEE
B AEBRFENEEEERETRER
TRAREHERRITEBRE 2XH - %L
RHMATHERBEAEEBERREFBE
HEJFEE A BEETRZMANITHOGRTEMN
AEBTCHERE T BRE DN EBRE
LEMERF ZEEERBMEFHEFERTF
ELEAERER KEEEBENMEER
E=HEXERFUFEAMEALRS &
HEABILRE -
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The Group considers that the key management personnel of the Group AEERBAEENTEZEEEABRABELRR
include the directors of the Company only. Their remuneration is RIMES - HB & 1B %CEM Eﬂ%#ﬁi’%ﬁﬁ it
disclosed in note 9 to the consolidated financial statements. 9 ©

47 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS 47 FET bR H B
The preparation of financial statements under HKFRSs requires RIEE B %R E%E ﬁ‘ﬂﬁ%ﬁﬁ“#&iﬁﬁﬁ -
management to make significant estimates and assumptions that EBAELEEMGTRER ?/%K'J F 5 R
affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and ZEE - -BfE- H&)\&Ffﬂi ZHBEHE

China Insurance International Holdings Company Limited

expenses as well as the related disclosures. Changes in assumptions
may have a significant impact on the financial statements in the periods
where the assumptions are changed. The estimates and assumptions
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year are discussed below:

TR o %EME“”‘X‘“‘*%TEEE&TEJ*“ZHEFEﬁZ@ﬂ&‘
WREKNEATE -S| TEAMBEREANZE
ERABZEREEAEARABRIZRAR 2 A
RREmAmT
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47 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS
(Continued)

47 ST AT R HE (&)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Impairment of goodwill

The Group assesses annually if the goodwill associated with
the acquisition of subsidiaries and associates have suffered any
impairment losses in accordance with the accounting policy stated
in note 1(0). The recoverable amount of the goodwill is determined
using discounted cash flows which require the use of estimated
revenue from business operations, investment returns and an
appropriate discount rate.

Held-to-maturity investments

The Group classifies non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments and fixed maturity and where the Group
has a positive intention and ability to hold the assets to maturity
as held-to-maturity investments. In making this judgment, the
Group evaluates its intention and ability to hold such investments
until maturity.

If the Group fails to hold these investments to maturity other
than for certain specific circumstances, the Group would have
to reclassify the entire portfolio of held-to-maturity investments
as available-for-sale investments, as such portfolio of investments
would be deemed to have been tainted. This would result in the
held-to-maturity investments being measured at fair value instead
of at amortized cost.

Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39 when determining
whether there has been a significant or prolonged decline in
the fair value of an investment in available-for-sale financial assets
below its cost. This determination requires significant judgment.
In making this judgment, the Group evaluates, among other
factors, the duration and extent to which the fair value of an
investment is less than its cost.

Determination of insurance liabilities

The Group’s insurance liabilities are mainly comprised of unearned
premium provisions, provision for outstanding claims and life
insurance funds and estimates for premiums and claims data
not received from ceding companies at the date of the
consolidated financial statements. The Group determines these
estimates on the basis of historical information, actuarial analyzes,
financing modeling and other analytical techniques. The directors
continually review the estimates and make adjustments as
necessary, but actual results could differ significantly from what
is envisioned when these estimates are made.

48 PARENT AND ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANIES

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

BERE

AR B 6 R IR M R 1 (0)FTIL 2 BN
CLUE 1) POV PN B
REFEEAREHA - BEZAKES
HENERENARSREME  DARR
SHEBARAMELHIETRA - RAE
RRBY 2 FREETHE -

FEEIHZRE

AEEKAEERAIREN RSB REE
HEMAEBEXEABEBERARBENFE
NHBZEMETHSREE 2 ER/R
BERHMEE - RIEH L HER - REE
EERAREREEENNHZEM RE
5 o

BREETREBEATIH  HALBERER
EZEREZINH  AEBBLBEALTE
ZRHRE 2 EEREAES B OAR
AHHERE  AZKREEAEREARR
FE - EREYFERINPZREE AR
EEMIFREIHEKATE -

AJHEESREERE

AEBRAEAHEESHEEEKREY
ARBEAGABREM THREERER
AE - HREBER S ERFI95 2153
TEHURTE © tERTEFR 2 ERMHIET - ME
e HIE RS - AEER G (BREBEER)
BREZRABEINERAZ FHRER -

BEERBREE

AEEZRBRABIZ2ERINPETLE
BE RABREERSRETEES
A B R B 765 s R B T R M B 0 4R 2 A
iRt 2 RERBE RS EBIBMAEL 2
ite AEBERELEN  BEOWN - B
B R EM DRI MEE U FEET - &
=M Az XEARTERE
HFEE  EERERFEEFEREER
FTEAERZERIRAK -

48 B RAIRGRERRAF

The directors consider the immediate holding company and the ultimate
holding company as of 31 December 2008 to be China Insurance
H.K. (Holdings) Company Limited (incorporated in Hong Kong) and
China Insurance (Holdings) Company, Limited (established in the PRC),
respectively.
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49 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW 49 BEEBE-ZEENEFEF+=-A=1+—H
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATION ISSUED IEFERAMERRERNIEBET ~ #
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR CERFREMUREEENTE
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

EUSHBHRBEM AR EEGANAE
R T ZIREE]  FMIRENFRE  BREE
R R ENHREREE_STNF+=A
=t —HLEFEHRER B RERERR
Ut B ]RE -

Effective for annual periods
beginning on or after:

HEMMBAUBREER

1 January 2009 except

the amendments to HKFRS 5,
effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2009

b BB % wmEEAE55 2

B EBR_ZETZNFLA—BX

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA
has issued the following amendments, new standards and
interpretations which are not yet effective for the year ended 31
December 2008 and which have not been adopted in these financial
statements.

HKFRSs (Amendments)
B RS 28 (B51])

Improvements to HKFRSs

BB 5 A AR e o

HKAS 1 (Revised)

R GTERE 15 (B
HKAS 23 (Revised)

BB G ERE 235 (BE])
HKAS 27 (Revised)

R G ERE 275 (BRI
HKAS 32 & 1 (Amendments)

BERGTEAEIRR K E1H (E])
HKAS 39 (Amendment)

BB G ERIE 395 (BE])

HKFRS 1 & HKAS 27 (Amendments)

EEMBREEIER L

R G ERIE 275 (1E5])
HKFRS 2 (Amendment)

R B mE LR E25% (BFT)
HKFRS 3 (Revised)
BB mE LR B35 (BF])
HKFRS 7 (Amendment)

BBV BRE LB 7R (BFT)
HKFRS 8

BB RS LR B85

HK(IFRIC) — INT 13

57 (PR BREENRBEES)
@R — $131K

HK(IFRIC) — INT 15

E8 (BRI BREENREZES)
B — B150%

HK(IFRIC) — INT 16

57 (BRMBREENRBEES)
@R — $16lk

HK(IFRIC) — INT 17

E8 (BRI BREENRERZES)
B — BTk

HK(IFRIC) — INT 18

57 (BRMBREENRBEES)
@ — F18K

Presentation of financial statements

MBEHREZR

Borrowing costs

AR AR

Consolidated and separate financial statements

fRE MBS R

Puttable financial instruments and
obligations arising on liquidation

AAESMIARGRREEZEE

Eligible hedged items

SEREHMIER

Cost of an investment in a subsidiary,
jointly controlled entity or associate

R—ENE LA - HFEZEGEE
KB A R IR B AR

Vesting conditions and cancellations

5 B R 1 M rE BE

Business combinations

(%A bt

Improving disclosures about financial instruments

WS T ARE

Operating segments

EENE

Customer loyalty programmes

BERBLFE

Agreements for the construction of real estate

P B SR E 1 o

Hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation
TEINETE IR B F R P
Distribution of non-cash assets to owners

REBADRIERESEE

Transfers of assets from customers

NEPBEEE

A1g B s 2 FEISN
HR-ZZNFEF—-HA—H
1 January 2009
—EENFE—-A—H

1 January 2009
—EENFE—-A—H

1 July 2009
—EENFLA—H

1 January 2009

—ZETNF—HA—H
1 July 2009
—EEANFEHA—H
1 January 2009

—ETZNF—HA—H

1 January 2009
—ETNF—HA—H
1 July 2009
—EEANFLHA—HA
1 January 2009
—ETNF—HA—H
1 January 2009
—ZETNF—HA—H
1 July 2008
—EENFLHA—H

1 January 2009
—EENFE—-A—H

1 October 2008
—EENFE+A—H

1 July 2009
—TEAFLR—H

1 July 2009
“EFAFLAH

SR TR EMMRERE

o

REBEAFGUISE
EEERHEENY

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these amendments, new standards and interpretations is
expected to be in the period of initial application.

&
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A FHBERE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(BB ZT)

RESULTS B4
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
$°000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
F Fir Fir Fir Fir
Revenue O
Gross premiums written and policy fees ~ EAERRERREEB WA 25,003,796 17,933,997 12,373,454 8,611,673 7,307,809
Less: Premiums ceded to reinsurers W RBZBRNE (730,318) (277,403) (222,920) (267,726) (217,028)
Net premiums written and policy fees FRR 1%%3&4%?5%17\ 24,273,478 17,656,594 12,150,534 8,343,947 7,090,781
Change in unearned premium provisions, & ‘Jﬁﬂiﬁfﬁﬁ‘i\m
net of reinsurance HAR (64,853) (7,912 (216,961  (125,913) (49,288)
Net earned premiums and policy fees CHIRERREEWAFE 24,208,625 17,648,682 11,933,573 8,218,034 7,041,493
Investment income BEBA 280,486 6,671,765 2,384,094 814,573 459,648
Net exchange (loss)/gain EX (B8 WE3FE (119,197) (31,121) 22,836 (94,892) 32,917
Other income HAi A 84,563 64,933 39,781 15,056 37,615
Total revenue WA @5 24,454,477 24,354,259 14,380,284 8,952,771 7,571,673
Benefits, losses and expenses L BRRER
Net policyholders’ benefits RERE AT TE (6,248,410) (5,062,155) (2,365,092)  (1,422,941)  (1,006,929)
Net commission expenses Re (2,561,811)  (1,997,156)  (1,194,817) (809,157) (652,230)
Administrative and other expenses ﬁﬂz REMER (3,798,238)  (2,228,343)  (1,466,531) (1,179,857 (678,911)
Change in life insurance funds, ShETEESZ(L
net of reinsurance TRERR (11,742,512) (11,849,470) (8,229,133)  (5,785,225)  (5,326,361)
Goodwill impairment and amortization PR E R (73,276) - - (250,000 (27,767)
Total benefits, losses and expenses B BRRERRE (24,424,247) (21,137,124) (13,255,573)  (9,447,180) (7,692,198
Profit/(loss) from operations BEREA/ (B8 30,280 3,217,135 1,124,711 (494,409)  (120,525)
Share of (losses)/profits =N
of associates (B8) /& (115,848) (57,760) 4,070 (48,728) (35,546)
Finance costs H%ER (183,383) (148,467) (144,184) (88,299) (85,434)
(Loss)/profit before taxation BBAT (B18) /5F (269,001) 3,010,908 984,597  (631,436)  (241,505)
Income tax credit/(charge) MBERE,/ (FH) 63,240 (553,711) (326,256) 36,083 52,251
(Loss)/profit after taxation BB % (BB) 5F (205,761) 2,457,197 658,341 (595,353)  (189,254)
Attributable to: P :
Equity holders of the Company R (299,715) 1,549,072 510,765 (433,763) (22,935)
Minority interests DYREER 93,954 908,125 147,576 (161,590)  (166,319)
(205,761) 2,457,197 658,341 (595,353) (189,254)
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY (Continued)

EFEEME @)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LB #3R)

RESULTS (Continued) B ()
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
$°000 $°000 $000 $000 $000
Fr T Fr Fr Fr
Assets and liabilities EERERE
Statutory deposits EEEH 995,330 653,239 547,443 487,806 437,947
Fixed assets ETEE 3,276,465 1,391,707 1,140,767 659,507 500,599
Goodwill S 364,845 228,185 228,185 228,185 478,185
Interest in associates REE RN RNER 134,382 530,436 350,678 315,298 351,595
Deferred tax assets BEBIHEE 22,353 2,648 2,697 3,298 72,624
Investments in debt and BERRRAFELKE
equity securities 56,863,866 40,502,185 25,553,330 18,122,506 11,249,681
Amounts due from group companies e = BN A RIFRIE 11,455 17,488 7,036 314 555
Insurance debtors REBRE P REKRR 1,026,222 616,540 453,167 342,060 298,811
Reinsurers’ share of insurance DRAAIEN
contract provisions RIRA %R 1,421,962 376,740 391,907 472,176 485,517
Other debtors Hib e R 2,071,499 1,431,352 562,340 608,778 389,972
Tax recoverable AU B 75 78 1,640 - 3,581 5,585 6,378
Pledged deposits at bank CHEFRITER 102,453 97,417 93,676 97,980 76,533
Cash and cash equivalents and RekReEEMR
deposits at bank with original maturity ~ [RZ| 2 B 218
more than three months =R MRITER
14,522,917 9,769,612 10,718,860 5,990,288 2,990,980
Total assets BEE 80,815,389 55,617,549 40,053,667 27,333,781 17,339,377
Less: Total liabilities HomaE (73,576,142) (47,521,867) (34,471,026) (23,910,536) (13,916,070)
Minority interests DB 2 (2,642,628) (2,410,056) (1,404,322)  (916,087)  (780,847)
4,596,619 5,685,626 4,178,319 2,507,158 2,642,460
Share capital A 71,086 70,764 70,313 66,824 66,585
Reserves i 4,525,533 5614862 4,108,006 2,440,334 2,575,875
4,596,619 5,685,626 4,178,319 2,507,158 2,642,460
cents cents cents cents cents
1l ll il il iy
(Loss)/earnings per share SR (518 B
Basic PN 21.2) 110.2 38.1 (32.5) (1.7)
Diluted g 21.2) 108.3 37.7 (32.4) (1.7)

China Insurance International Holdings Company Limited

Annual Report 2008



DEFINITIONS

In the annual report, the following expressions shall have the following meanings unless the context requires otherwise:

“BV|”

“CIGAML”

“CIHC”

“CIHK”

“CIRC”

“CIRe”

“Directors”

“Fortis”

“Grantee”

“HKAS”

“HKFRS”

“HKICPA”

“HK(IFRIC)-Int”

“ICBC”

“ICBC (Asia)”

“Independent Shareholders”

“Last Year”

“Listing Rules”

“MPF scheme”

“PRC GAAP”

“SEO”

“Share(s)”

British Virgin Islands

China Insurance Group Assets Management Limited

China Insurance (Holdings) Company, Limited

China Insurance H.K. (Holdings) Company Limited

China Insurance Regulatory Commission

China International Reinsurance Company Limited

The directors of the Company, including the independent non-executive directors
Fortis International N.V.

A person who has been granted the right to accept the Company’s offer of share
options

Hong Kong Accounting Standard
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong (International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee)-
Interpretation

The Industrial and Commercial Bank of China

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited

Shareholder(s) other than CIHC, ICBC (Asia) and their respective associates
The year ended 31 December 2007

The Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme

Accounting principles generally accepted in the PRC

Securities and Futures Ordinance

Share(s) of HK$0.05 each in the capital of the Company
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RAFHF - X ESFAIES)  TIFARAF U TRE

[PREEEE] | TREEEEEEBERANA

[P RIZRR Ec R EIfRE (ER) AR A A

[FATR] Ec BETERR (EE) ERAF

[PERES] e hERREEEREEZES

[ BRI 18 FEERBRERAR AT

[E%] EC RRRES  BEBUIFNTES

=il = = BRI

(R A B IR T HEN P LA AN R B PR T 2 BB 2 At
[Fh B TR EC B TRRTT

(TR (M) ] e B TR RTT (M) AR AR

B AR B BRAPARIZAY - TR (S2M) RE &S BB E AN IR
(=] EC BHE_ZTAF+_A=1+—RHIZFE
[EmRA i B s E AR AN

[FEAREER] 15 B R R R ER

[fn ) EC ARRBPAF ZIRE{EO0.058 T2 B i
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DEFINITIONS

“Share Award Scheme”

“SINO-RE”

“the Stock Exchange”

“the Company” or “ClIH”

“the Group”

“the PRC”

“the Year”

“TPAM”

“TP|”

“TPL”

“TPP”

“the Old Scheme”

“the New Scheme”

“RMB”

“HKD”

“USD”

“EUR”

“GBP”

CIIH Employees’ Share Award Scheme adopted on 10 September 2007
SINO-RE Reinsurance Brokers Limited

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

China Insurance International Holdings Company Limited
ClIH and its subsidiaries

The People’s Republic of China

The year ended 31 December 2008

Tai Ping Asset Management Company Limited

The Tai Ping Insurance Company, Limited

Tai Ping Life Insurance Company, Limited

Tai Ping Pension Company Limited

Share option scheme of the Company adopted on 24 May 2000 and terminated
on 7 January 2003

Share option scheme of the Company adopted on 7 January 2003
Renminbi

Hong Kong dollars

United States dollars

Euro

British Pound

FREBZERER AT 2008 F ik
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[Htn 22T 21 15 R-ZEZLFNA+ BAERA D RERE S IR R 2

[ZEE ] e FEFRBRBERBERDA

(B <2 P 18 EEBMARZMERAT

[ARAa]] Sk [ REIER EC PIREIERIZA B R A A

[RE&E] e R OREIRR R A M B A

[FPE B REEARME

[REE] ¥ BHE-ZZ)\F+-_A=+—RHIEZFE

[KFEEEE] e ANFPEEEEARAR

(KRR 15 KRB BR AT

[KFAFE Ec KFEASRBERAT]

[KFEZE] b KEFEZRBROERAR

a8l B ARBR_FTFTTFRA-THAMRBREETS  R-_FT=F—AtHR
BRI

[#atdl] 1B RRFN-_FET=F— AL BARAZ BIET 8

[N/A] Ec TNEH
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